

BOARD OF DIRECTORS JANUARY 9, 2019 SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

ITEM #E8 AUCTION SERVICES

ITEM #E9 INDUSTRIAL CHEMICALS

ITEM #E10 FLUID MANAGEMENT SYSTEM
ITEM #F2 BUS TIRE AND LEASE SERVICES

ITEM #F3 ELEVATOR MODERNIZATION PROJECT

AMENDMENT 1

TO CONTRACT MNT17-09

BETWEEN

OMNITRANS

AND

CHP ENTERPRISES DBA KEN PORTER AUCTIONS

Auction Services

This Contract Amendment 1, effective January 9, 2019 entered into by and between Omnitrans (hereinafter called "OMNITRANS") and CHP Enterprises dba Ken Porter Auctions (hereinafter called "CONTRACTOR").

RECITALS

WHEREAS:

- I. Omnitrans and Contractor entered into Contract MNT17-09 on September 12, 2016; and
- II. Section 12. ASSIGNMENT, states "This Agreement, any interest herein or claim hereunder, may not be assigned by CONTRACTOR either voluntarily or by operation of law, nor may all or any part of this Agreement be subcontracted by CONTRACTOR, without the prior written consent of OMNITRANS. Consent by OMNITRANS shall not be deemed to relieve CONTRACTOR of its obligations to comply fully with all terms and conditions of this Agreement." Contractor now desires to obtain Omnitrans' consent to assign contract to J. J. Kane Associates, Inc. dba Ken Porter Auctions.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the forgoing, OMNITRANS agrees as follows:

- I. Omnitrans consents to the assignment by Contractor of Agreement as a result of restructure into a corporation to J. J. Kane Associates Inc. dba Ken Porter Auctions.
- II. Contract Cover Page, change Contractor's name and address to:
 - J. J. Kane Associates Inc. dba Ken Porter Auctions 4510 Muth Way Riverside, CA 92509
- III. Contract Section 7. NOTIFICATION, To CONTRACTOR, delete in its entirety and replace with the following:

J.J. Kane Associates dba Ken Porter Auctions 4510 Muth Way Riverside, CA 92509 Attn: Gene Govoreau Auctions Operations Manager IV. Unless changed herein, the remainder of Contract MNT17-09 remains in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment 1 to Contract MNT17-09 to be executed on the date shown below, and effective as written above.

OMNITRANS	J. J. KANE ASSOCIATES, INC. DBA KEN PORTER AUCTIONS		
P. Scott Graham CEO/General Manager	Gene Govoreau Auctions Operations Manager		
Dated:	Dated:		

см Д



CONTRACT AGREEMENT

between

CONTRACTOR) CONTRACT DOCUMENTS		
6C Technologies, Corp. dba Enviroform Industries	CONTRACT NO. MNT19-44		
9624 John Street, Suite 104 Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670) Industrial Chemicals)		
(hereinafter "CONTRACTOR"))))		
Telephone: (562) 650-8828 Email: Celina@EnviroformIndustries.com))))		
And	Contract Amount: \$16,384.60)))))		
Omnitrans 1700 West Fifth Street San Bernardino, CA 92411 (hereinafter "OMNITRANS")) Omnitrans Project Manager:) Name: Mark Montgomery) Title: Facility Manager) Telephone: (909) 379-7175) Email: mark.montgomery@omnitrans.org) Contract Administrator:) Name: Angelica Jara) Title: Contract Review Analyst) Telephone: (909) 379-7246) Email: angelica.jara@omnitrans.org)		
)))		



TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	SCOPE OF WORK	4
2.	PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE	4
3.	CONTRACT OPTIONS	5
4.	COMPENSATION	5
5.	INVOICING AND PAYMENT	6
6.	AUDIT AND INSPECTION OF RECORDS	7
7.	NOTIFICATION	7
8.	OMNITRANS' AND CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIVES	8
9.	DISPUTE RESOLUTION	9
10.	TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE	10
11.	TERMINATION FOR BREACH OF AGREEMENT	10
12.	ASSIGNMENT	11
13.	SUBCONTRACTING	11
14.	INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR	12
15.	INSURANCE	12
16.	INDEMNITY	15
17.	REVISIONS IN SCOPE OF WORK	15
18.	RIGHTS IN TECHNICAL DATA	15
19.	OWNERSHIP OF REPORTS AND DOCUMENTS	16
20	OWNERSHIP RIGHTS	16

21.	WORK FOR HIRE	. 17
22.	SUBMITTAL OF CLAIMS BY CONTRACTOR	. 17
23.	EQUAL OPPORTUNITY	. 17
24.	STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE	. 17
25.	NOTIFICATION OF EMPLOYMENT OF OMNITRANS BOARD MEMBERS/ALTERNATES AND EMPLOYEES	. 18
26.	DISQUALIFYING POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS	. 18
27.	COMPLIANCE WITH LAW	. 18
28.	COMPLIANCE WITH LOBBYING POLICIES	. 19
29.	PUBLIC RECORDS ACT	. 19
30.	WAIVER/INVALIDITY	. 20
31.	FORCE MAJEURE	. 20
32.	CONFIDENTIALITY	. 20
33.	CONTRACTOR'S INTERACTION WITH THE MEDIA AND THE PUBLIC	. 20
34.	GOVERNING LAW	. 21
35.	MODIFICATIONS TO AGREEMENT	. 21
36.	LICENSING, PERMITS AND INSPECTION COSTS	. 21
37.	PRECEDENCE	. 22
38.	ENTIRE AGREEMENT	. 22
ATTAC	HMENT A – SCOPE OF WORK	
ATTAC	CHMENT B - N/A	
ATTAC	HMENT C - PRICING	
ATTAC	HMENT D - WEAPONS POLICY	

This Agreement is made and entered into as of this <u>19</u> day of <u>February 2019</u>, by and between Omnitrans (hereinafter referred to as "OMNITRANS") and <u>6C Technologies</u>, <u>Corp., dba Enviroform Industries</u> (hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, OMNITRANS is a joint powers authority organized under Section 6500 et seq. of the California Government Code with power to contract for services described in Attachment A to this Agreement entitled "Attachment A, Scope of Work" (hereinafter referred to as "Work");

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR has indicated it is qualified to perform such services and (1) has reviewed all the available data furnished by OMNITRANS pertinent to the Work to be rendered; (2) has inspected and reviewed the Work to be rendered; (3) will exercise the ordinary care and skill expected of a practitioner in its profession; and (4) is willing to accept responsibility of performing the Work set forth in this Agreement for the compensation and in accordance with the terms, requirements and conditions herein specified;

NOW, THEREFORE, for the consideration hereinafter stated, the parties agree as follows:

1. SCOPE OF WORK

- A. CONTRACTOR will perform the Work and related tasks as described in Attachment A, Scope of Work hereto and is incorporated by reference into and made a part of this Agreement.
- B. This is a non-exclusive Agreement, whereby OMNITRANS may, at its sole discretion, augment or supplant the Work with its own forces or forces of another contractor or entity. CONTRACTOR will cooperate fully with OMNITRANS' staff or other contractor or entity that may be providing similar or the same Work for OMNITRANS.

2. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE

The term of this Agreement shall be from the date of execution of this Agreement and continue in effect through <u>February 18, 2020</u>, unless terminated as specified in Section 10 and 11 of this Agreement. Omnitrans has no obligation to purchase any specified amount of products/services. All applicable indemnification provisions in this Agreement shall remain in effect following the termination of this Agreement.

Omnitrans' election to extend the Agreement beyond the Initial Term shall not diminish its right to terminate the Agreement for Omnitrans' convenience or CONTRACTORS default as provided elsewhere in this Agreement. The "maximum term" of this Agreement shall be the period extended from February 19, 2020 through February 18, 2024, which period encompasses the Initial Term and the Option Years.

3. CONTRACT OPTIONS

- A. Omnitrans will have the unilateral right in the contract by which, for a specified time, Omnitrans may elect to purchase additional services called for by the contract, or may elect to extend the term of the contract. The requirements below apply:
 - Any options that were requested by Omnitrans and/or contained in the Contractor's PROPOSAL or offer must have been evaluated in making the contract award prior to exercising any such options.
 - 2) Since Contractor's proposed pricing for the option years and additional services are considered in evaluating the Contractor's original proposal and form the basis for awarding the contract, Contractor shall be bound by the proposal pricing for additional services and/or option years, unless otherwise provided herein.
- B. Omnitrans will provide a minimum of thirty days (30) written notice to the Contractor of Omnitrans' exercise of its option to extend the contract years. Omnitrans may give notice of its exercise of the option for additional services at any time during the term of the contract. The minimum time for the written notice may be waived by mutual agreement.

4. COMPENSATION

For CONTRACTOR's full and complete performance of its obligations under this Agreement, OMNITRANS shall pay CONTRACTOR on a FIXED PRICE basis at the fully burdened fixed rates shown in Attachment C, and subject to the maximum cumulative payment obligation.

OMNITRANS' maximum cumulative payment obligation under this Agreement shall not exceed <u>Sixteen Thousand Three Hundred Eighty-Four Dollars and Sixty Cents</u> (\$<u>16,384.60</u>), including all amounts payable to CONTRACTOR for all costs, including but not limited to direct labor, other direct costs, subcontracts, indirect costs including, but not limited to, leases, materials, taxes, insurance, and profit.

5. INVOICING AND PAYMENT

A. CONTRACTOR shall invoice OMNITRANS on a monthly basis no later than the 15th of each month. CONTRACTOR shall furnish information as may be requested by OMNITRANS to substantiate the validity of an invoice.

CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices in duplicate to:

OMNITRANS 1700 West Fifth Street San Bernardino, CA 92411 Attn: Accounts Payable

Accountspayable@omnitrans.org

A separate invoice shall be used for each shipment. Each invoice shall include, at minimum, the following information:

- Contract number
- Invoice number
- Description of delivery
- Delivery Date
- Total quantity delivered
- Information as requested by OMNITRANS
- B. OMNITRANS shall remit payment within thirty (30) calendar days of approval of the invoices by OMNITRANS' Project Manager.

In the event OMNITRANS should overpay CONTRACTOR, such overpayment shall not be construed as a waiver of OMNITRANS' right to obtain reimbursement for the overpayment. Upon discovering any overpayment, either on its own or upon notice of OMNITRANS, CONTRACTOR shall immediately reimburse OMNITRANS the entire overpayment or, at its sole discretion, OMNITRANS may deduct such overpayment amount from monies due to CONTRACTOR under this Agreement or any other Agreement between OMNITRANS and CONTRACTOR.

C. TITLE

- a. Title shall pass to Omnitrans at the time of payment.
- b. The title transferred as above shall in each case be good, and free and clear from any and all security interests, liens, and/or other encumbrances.
- c. The transfer of title as specified above shall not imply Acceptance by Omnitrans, nor relieve the Contractor from the responsibility for strict compliance with the Contract, including warranty as specified in the Article entitled Warranty of Work, and for any loss of or damage to the Work.
- d. The Contractor at its own expense shall promptly execute, acknowledge, and deliver to the Omnitrans proper bills of sale or other written instruments of title in a form as required by Omnitrans; said instruments shall convey to the Omnitrans' title free and clear of debts, claims, liens, mortgages, taxes, and/or encumbrances.
- e. Contractor shall have title to and bear the risk of any loss of or damage to Work purchased hereunder until they are delivered, unloaded, and received by Omnitrans at the FOB Destination specified herein. Contractor's responsibility for loss or damage except for loss or damage resulting from Contractor's negligence, shall cease when title passes to Omnitrans.

6. AUDIT AND INSPECTION OF RECORDS

CONTRACTOR agrees that OMNITRANS or any duly authorized representative shall have access to and the right to examine, audit, excerpt, copy or transcribe any pertinent transaction, activity, time cards, employment records or other records relating to this Agreement. Such material, including all pertinent cost, accounting, financial records, and proprietary data must be kept and maintained by CONTRACTOR for a period of three (3) years after completion of this Agreement unless OMNITRANS' written permission is given to CONTRACTOR to dispose of material prior to this time.

7. NOTIFICATION

All notices hereunder concerning this Agreement and the Work to be performed shall be physically transmitted by courier, overnight, registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid and addressed as follows:

To OMNITRANS:

Omnitrans
1700 West Fifth Street
San Bernardino, CA 92411

Attn: Angelica Jara

Title: Contract Review Analyst

To CONTRACTOR:

6C Technologies, Corp. dba Enviroform Industries 9624 John Street, Suite 104 Santa Fe Springs, CA 90670 Attn: Celina Shane Johnson

Title: V.P. Sales

8. OMNITRANS' AND CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIVES

A. OMNITRANS' Project Manager

Contracting Officer: OMNITRANS' CEO/General Manager or his authorized designee who has authority to execute contracts on behalf of OMNITRANS.

Project Manager: Mark Montgomery, Facilities Manager

- a. Except as expressly specified in this Agreement, the Contracting Officer may exercise any powers, rights and/or privileges that have been lawfully delegated by OMNITRANS. Nothing in this Agreement should be construed to bind OMNITRANS for acts of its officers, employees, and/or agents that exceed the delegation of authority specified herein.
- b. The Contracting Officer has delegated to the Project Manager certain powers and duties in connection with this Agreement. The Project Manager is the authorized representative of the Contracting Officer for matters related to this Agreement. The Project Manager or his/her designee is empowered to:
 - 1. Have general oversight of the Work and this Agreement, including the power to enforce compliance with this Agreement.
 - 2. Reserve the right to remove any portion of the Work from CONTRACTOR which have not been performed to OMNITRANS' satisfaction.
 - 3. Subject to the review and acceptance by OMNITRANS, negotiate with CONTRACTOR all adjustments pertaining to this Agreement for revision.
- c. In addition to the foregoing, the Project Manager shall have those rights and powers expressly set forth in other sections of this Agreement.

B. Contractor's Key Personnel

The following are CONTRACTOR's key personnel and their associated roles in the Work to be provided:

<u>Name</u>	<u>Role</u>	
<u>Victor Shane</u>	Formulation, Logistics, Installation and Planning	
Celina Shane	Contract Admin. & Project Performance Mgmt.	

Any propose/substitution or replacement by Contractor of Contractor's key personnel shall ensure that such person possesses the same or better expertise and experience than the key personnel being substituted or replaced. Omnitrans reserves the right to interview such person to ascertain and verify if such proposed substitution or replacement does in deed possess such expertise and experience.

OMNITRANS awarded this Agreement to CONTRACTOR based on OMNITRANS' confidence and reliance on the expertise of CONTRACTOR's key personnel described above. CONTRACTOR shall not reassign key personnel or assign other personnel to key personnel roles until CONTRACTOR obtains prior written approval from OMNITRANS.

9. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Any disputes between the successful CONTRACTOR and OMNITRANS relating to the implementation or administration of the Contract shall be resolved in accordance with this section.

- A. The parties shall first attempt to resolve the dispute informally in meetings or communications between proposer and OMNITRANS.
- B. If the dispute remains unresolved fifteen (15) days after it first arises, proposer may request that Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager issue a recommended decision on the matter in dispute. Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager shall issue the recommended decision in writing and provide a copy to proposer.
- C. If the dispute remains unresolved after review by Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager, either party may seek judicial resolution of the dispute in an appropriate Court of the State of California.
- D. Pending final resolution of a dispute under this section, proposer shall proceed diligently with performance in accordance with the Contract and Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager's recommended decision.

10. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE

OMNITRANS may terminate this Agreement in whole or in part for OMNITRANS' convenience. Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager shall terminate this Agreement by a written Notice of Termination to CONTRACTOR specifying the nature, extent, and effective date of the termination. Upon receipt of the notice of termination, CONTRACTOR shall immediately discontinue all Work affected and deliver all data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries, and other information and materials accumulated in performing this Agreement, whether completed or in process, to Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager. OMNITRANS shall make an equitable adjustment in the Agreement for Work already performed, but shall not allow anticipated profit on unperformed services. Force Majeure shall apply.

11. TERMINATION FOR BREACH OF AGREEMENT

- A. If CONTRACTOR fails to perform any of the provisions of this Agreement or so fails to make progress as to endanger timely performance of this Agreement, OMNITRANS may give CONTRACTOR written notice of such default. If CONTRACTOR does not cure such default or provide a plan to cure such default which is acceptable to OMNITRANS within the time permitted by OMNITRANS, then OMNITRANS may terminate this Agreement due to CONTRACTOR's breach of this Agreement.
- B. If a federal or state proceeding for relief of debtors is undertaken by or against CONTRACTOR, or if CONTRACTOR makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, then OMNITRANS may immediately terminate this Agreement.
- C. If CONTRACTOR violates Section 28, Compliance with Lobbying Policies, of this Agreement, then OMNITRANS may immediately terminate this Agreement.
- D. In the event OMNITRANS terminates this Agreement as provided in this Section, OMNITRANS may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as OMNITRANS may deem appropriate, Work similar in scope and level of effort to those so terminated, and CONTRACTOR shall be liable to OMNITRANS for all of its costs and damages, including, but not limited, any excess costs for such Work.
- E. All finished or unfinished documents and materials produced or procured under this Agreement shall become OMNITRANS' property upon date of such termination.
- F. If, after notice of termination of this Agreement under the provisions of this Section, it is determined for any reason that CONTRACTOR was not in default under the provisions of this Section, or that the default was

excusable under the terms of this Agreement, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the notice of termination had been issued pursuant to Section 10, Termination for Convenience.

G. The rights and remedies of OMNITRANS provided in this Article shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this Agreement.

12. ASSIGNMENT

This Agreement, any interest herein or claim hereunder, may not be assigned by CONTRACTOR either voluntarily or by operation of law, nor may all or any part of this Agreement be subcontracted by CONTRACTOR, without the prior written consent of OMNITRANS. Consent by OMNITRANS shall not be deemed to relieve CONTRACTOR of its obligations to comply fully with all terms and conditions of this Agreement.

13. SUBCONTRACTING

OMNITRANS hereby consents to CONTRACTOR's subcontracting of portions of the Work to the parties identified below for the functions described in CONTRACTOR's proposal. CONTRACTOR shall include in each subcontract agreement the stipulation that CONTRACTOR, not OMNITRANS, is solely responsible for payment to the subcontractor for all amounts owing and that the subcontractor shall have no claim, and shall take no action against OMNITRANS, Member Agencies or officers, directors, employees or sureties thereof for nonpayment by CONTRACTOR.

CONTRACTOR shall not, without the express written consent of Omnitrans, either:

- a. Substitute any person, firm, or corporation as subcontractor in place of the subcontractors identified below; or
- b. Permit any subcontract to be assigned or transferred; or
- c. Allow work to be performed by anyone other than the original subcontractor listed below.

Subcontractor's Name and Address	Work to Be Performed
N/A	

14. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

CONTRACTOR's relationship to OMNITRANS in the performance of this Agreement is that of an independent Contractor. CONTRACTOR's personnel performing Work under this Agreement shall at all times be under CONTRACTOR's exclusive direction and control and shall be employees of CONTRACTOR and not employees of OMNITRANS. CONTRACTOR shall pay all wages, salaries and other amounts due its employees in connection with this Agreement and shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting them, such as social security, income tax withholding, unemployment compensation, workers' compensation and similar matters.

15. INSURANCE

A. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

1) General Requirements for Contractor

- a. Without limiting or diminishing the Contractor's obligation to indemnify or hold Omnitrans harmless, Contractor shall procure, prior to commencement of the services required under this contract and maintain for the duration of the contract at its own expense, insurance of the kinds and in the amounts as indicated below;
- b. Provide Omnitrans with valid original certificates of insurance and endorsements showing Omnitrans as an additional insured.

2) Deductibles or Self-Insured Retention (SIR)

SIR must be declared to and approved by Omnitrans. At the option of Omnitrans, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or SIR or Contractor shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration and defense expenses.

3) Other Insurance Provisions

a. Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability

Commercial General Liability insurance coverage, including but not limited to, premises liability, contractual liability, products and completed operations liability, personal and advertising injury covering claims which may arise from or out of Contractor's performance of its obligations hereunder and if Contractor's vehicles or mobile equipment are used in the performance of the obligations under this Agreement, then Contractor shall maintain liability insurance for all owned, non-owned or hired vehicles so used. Policy shall name Omnitrans, its officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers as additional insured as respects: liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of Contractor; products and completed operations of Contractor; premises owned, occupied or

used by Contractor; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by Contractor. The coverage shall contain no special limitations of the scope of protection afforded Omnitrans, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers.

- For any claims related to this project, Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects Omnitrans, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers. Any insurance and/or deductibles and/or self-insured retentions or self-insured programs maintained by Omnitrans, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess of Contractor's insurance and shall not be construed as contributory.
- 2. Contractor's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.
- 3. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled by either party, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to Omnitrans.

b. Workers' Compensation

If the Contractor has employees as defined by the State of California, the Contractor shall maintain statutory Workers' compensation Insurance (Coverage A) as prescribed by the laws of the State of California. Policy shall include Employers' Liability (Coverage B) including Occupational Disease with limits not less than \$1,000,000 per person per accident. The policy shall be endorsed to waive subrogation in favor of Omnitrans and, if applicable, to provide a Borrowed Servant/Alternate Employer Endorsement.

c. Care, Custody, and Control

Contractor shall insure any Omnitrans property while under its Care, Custody, and Control according to the requirements listed in the insurance coverage required.

4) Acceptability of Insurers

Insurance companies shall be State of California admitted or approved and have a current **A.M. Best's** rating of no less than **A:VIII.**

5) Verification of Coverage

a. Contractor shall furnish Omnitrans with original endorsements affecting coverage required by this clause. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage

- on its behalf. All insurance certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by Omnitrans before work commences.
- b. As an alternative, Contractor's insurer may provide complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the coverage required by these specifications.
- c. In lieu of purchasing insurance and providing original endorsements and or certificates of insurance, the Contractor may provide proof of self-insurance; such proof must be to the satisfaction of Omnitrans.

6) Subcontractors

Contractor shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its policies or shall furnish separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor. All coverage for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein.

7) Notification of Terminated Insurance

Insurance shall not be terminated or expire without thirty (30) days written or electronic notice, and are required to be maintained in force until completion of the contract.

B. MINIMUM INSURANCE COVERAGE

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimum requirements shown below, Omnitrans requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or higher limits maintained by the Contractor.

1)	☐ Commercial General Liability including Products/Completed Operations: \$1,000,000; per occurrence for bodily and property damage liability and \$2,000,000 aggregate; Omnitrans named and endorsed as an Additional Insured.
2)	Automobile Liability: \$1,000,000; per occurrence for bodily and property damage liability and aggregate; <i>Omnitrans named and endorsed as an Additional Insured</i> .
3)	☐ Errors and Omissions Liability: \$1,000,000; combined single limit bodily and property damage liability per occurrence and \$3,000,000 aggregate or,
4)	☐ Professional Liability: \$1,000,000; per occurrence and aggregate.
5)	■ Workers' Compensation: statutory limits or,

6)	Self Insurance Program: a State Approved program in an amoun and form that meets all applicable requirements of the Labor Code of the State of California.
7)	Employer's Liability: \$1,000,000; per occurrence.
8)	☐ Environmental Liability: \$1,000,000; per occurrence and aggregate; Omnitrans named and endorsed as an Additional Insured.
9)	☐ Umbrella Policy: \$4,000,000; per occurrence and aggregate Additional coverage for the above policies, <i>Omnitrans Additional Insured</i> .
10)	All drivers making deliveries of products specified on this solicitation shall have Hazardous Materials Endorsements on thei Commercial Drivers License, and such other Endorsements as may be required by relevant laws and/or regulations.

16. INDEMNITY

CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless OMNITRANS, and its member agencies, and their officers, directors, employees and agents from and against any and all liability, expense (including, but not limited to, defense costs and attorneys' fees), claims, causes of action, and lawsuits for damages of any nature whatsoever, including, but not limited to, bodily injury, death, personal injury or property damage (including property of CONTRACTOR) arising from or connected with any alleged act and/or omission of CONTRACTOR, its officers, directors, employees, agents, Subcontractors or suppliers. This indemnity shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement and/or final payment thereunder.

17. REVISIONS IN SCOPE OF WORK

By written notice or order, OMNITRANS may, from time to time, order work suspension or make changes to this Agreement. Changes in the Work shall be mutually agreed to and incorporated into an amendment to this Agreement. Upon execution of an amendment, CONTRACTOR shall perform the Work, as amended.

18. RIGHTS IN TECHNICAL DATA

A. No material or technical data prepared by CONTRACTOR under this Agreement is to be released by CONTRACTOR to any other person or entity except as necessary for the performance of the Work. All press releases or information concerning the Work that might appear in any publication or dissemination, including but not limited to, newspapers, magazines, and electronic media, shall first be authorized in writing by OMNITRANS. B. The originals of all letters, documents, reports and other products and data produced under this Agreement shall become the property of OMNITRANS without restriction or limitation on their use and shall be made available upon request to OMNITRANS at any time. Original copies of such shall be delivered to OMNITRANS upon completion of the Work or termination of the Work. CONTRACTOR shall be permitted to retain copies of such items for the furtherance of its technical proficiency; however, publication of this material is subject to the prior written approval of OMNITRANS. The provisions of this paragraph shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement and/or final payment thereunder.

19. OWNERSHIP OF REPORTS AND DOCUMENTS

The originals of all letters, documents, reports and other products and data produced under this Agreement shall be delivered to, and become the sole and exclusive property of OMNITRANS. Copies may be made for CONTRACTOR's records, but shall not be furnished to others without prior written authorization from OMNITRANS. Such deliverables shall be deemed works made for hire, and all rights in copyright therein shall be retained by OMNITRANS.

20. OWNERSHIP RIGHTS

Α. In the event OMNITRANS rightfully obtains copies of Proprietary Data under the terms of the separate License Agreement and Escrow Agreement that govern rights in Documentation. Software and Intellectual Property created and/or developed by Contractor, its Third Party Software Contractors and its Suppliers as part of the Project, any derivative works and associated documentation created by or on behalf of OMNITRANS by Permitted Programmers (as defined in the License Agreement) shall be the sole and exclusive property of OMNITRANS (collectively, "OMNITRANS Intellectual Property"), and OMNITRANS may use, disclose and exercise dominion and full rights of ownership, in any manner in OMNITRANS Intellectual Property in connection with the use, operation and maintenance of a transportation system administered by OMNITRANS. No use of OMNITRANS Intellectual Property shall be made for any purpose other than in conjunction with a transportation system administered by CONTRACTOR, and OMNITRANS shall not sell, lease, rent, give away or otherwise disclose any OMNITRANS Intellectual Property to any outside third party other than Permitted To the extent there may be any question of rights of Programmers. ownership or use in any OMNITRANS Intellectual Property, Contractor shall require all of its subcontractors and suppliers (including without limitation its Third Party Software Contractors) to assign to OMNITRANS, all worldwide right, title and interest in and to all OMNITRANS Intellectual Property in a manner consistent with the foregoing terms of this paragraph. Contractor shall execute any documents as OMNITRANS may from time to time reasonably request to effectuate the terms of this paragraph.

B. All documentation and Software which predates this Contract and which otherwise owned by Contractor or its Third Party Software Contractors, and all Documentation and Software which is created by Contractor or its Third Party Software Contractors shall be Licensed Software or Licensed Documentation, as appropriate. All Licensed Software and Licensed Documentation shall be governed by the License Agreement by and between the parties of event date herewith.

21. WORK FOR HIRE

Any work created or produced as a part of this Agreement that may be defined under Section 101, Title 17, USC will be considered "work for hire" as it pertains to ownership rights. CONTRACTOR, by his/her endorsement hereon agrees that all rights to any work(s) created or produced are waived, and that ownership rests with OMNITRANS. CONTRACTOR further agrees to ensure transfer of all rights to such work(s), as defined under federal copyright law, that may be created or produced under this Agreement by its suppliers, contractors or subcontractors.

22. SUBMITTAL OF CLAIMS BY CONTRACTOR

CONTRACTOR shall file any and all claims with OMNITRANS' Project Manager in writing within thirty (30) days of the event or occurrence giving rise to the claim. The claim shall be in sufficient detail to enable OMNITRANS to ascertain the claim's basis and amount, and shall describe the date, place and other pertinent circumstances of the event or occurrence giving rise to the claim and the indebtedness, obligation, injury, loss or damages allegedly incurred by CONTRACTOR.

Even though a claim may be filed and/or in review by OMNITRANS, CONTRACTOR shall continue to perform in accordance with this Agreement.

23. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

CONTRACTOR shall not discriminate against, or grant preferential treatment to, any individual or group, or any employee or applicant for employment because of race, age, religion, color, ethnicity, sex, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, political affiliation, sexual orientation, marital status or other status protected by law. CONTRACTOR shall take action to ensure that applicants and employees are treated without regard to the above.

24. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE

A. CONTRACTOR shall perform and exercise, and require its subcontractors to perform and exercise due professional care and competence in the performance of the Work in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, completeness and coordination of the Work, it being understood that OMNITRANS will be relying upon such professional quality, accuracy, completeness and coordination in utilizing the Work. The

foregoing obligations and standards shall constitute the "Standard of Performance" for purposes of this Agreement. The provisions of this paragraph shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement and/or final payment thereunder.

B. All workers shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the Work assigned to them. OMNITRANS shall have the right, at its sole discretion, to require the immediate removal of CONTRACTOR's personnel at any level assigned to the performance of the Work at no additional fee or cost to OMNITRANS, if OMNITRANS considers such removal in its best interests and requests such removal in writing and such request is not done for illegal reasons. Further, an employee who is removed from performing Work under this Agreement under this Article shall not be re-assigned to perform Work in any other capacity under this Agreement without OMNITRANS' prior written approval.

25. NOTIFICATION OF EMPLOYMENT OF OMNITRANS BOARD MEMBERS/ALTERNATES AND EMPLOYEES

To ensure compliance with OMNITRANS' Ethics Policy, CONTRACTOR shall provide written notice to OMNITRANS disclosing the identity of any individual who CONTRACTOR desires to employ or retain under a contract, and who (1) presently serves as a Board Member/Alternate or an employee of OMNITRANS, or (2) served as a Board Member/Alternate or an employee of OMNITRANS within the previous 12 months of the date of the proposed employment or retention by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR's written notice shall indicate whether the individual will be an officer, principal or shareholder of the entity and/or will participate in the performance of this Agreement.

26. DISQUALIFYING POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS

In the event of a proposed amendment to this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall provide prior to the execution of such amendment, a written statement disclosing any contribution(s) of \$250 or more made by CONTRACTOR or its subcontractor(s) to Omnitrans Board Members/Alternates or employees within the preceding twelve (12) months of the date of the proposed amendment. Applicable contributions include those made by any agent/person/entity on behalf of CONTRACTOR or subcontractor(s).

27. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW

A. CONTRACTOR shall familiarize itself with and perform the Work required under this Agreement in conformity with requirements and standards of OMNITRANS, municipal and public agencies, public and private utilities, special districts, and railroad agencies whose facilities and work may be affected by Work under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall also comply with all Federal, state and local laws and ordinances.

B. Government regulations that directly affect the CONTRACTOR'S performance of this contract and unforeseen impacts, which neither party could have contemplated at the onset of the contract and have an unconscionable impact on the CONTRACTOR may be given special pricing consideration. The parties, in good faith, shall review established rates and may adopt any mutually agreed new rates, which shall only be effective as agreed upon by the parties. Thorough documentation including all cost elements is required to support the Contractor's claim to any relief under this clause.

28. COMPLIANCE WITH LOBBYING POLICIES

- A. CONTRACTOR agrees that if it is a Lobbyist Employer or if it has retained a Lobbying Firm or Lobbyist, as such terms are defined by OMNITRANS in its Ethics Policy, it shall comply or ensure that its Lobbying Firm and Lobbyist complies with OMNITRANS' Ethics Policy.
- B. If CONTRACTOR (Lobbyist Employer) or its Lobbying Firm or Lobbyist fails to comply, in whole or in part, with OMNITRANS' Ethics Policy, such failure shall be considered a material breach of this Agreement and OMNITRANS shall have the right to immediately terminate or suspend this Agreement.

29. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT

- A. All records, documents, drawings, plans, specifications and other material relating to conduct of OMNITRANS' business, including materials submitted by CONTRACTOR in its proposal and during the course of performing the Work under this Agreement, shall become the exclusive property of OMNITRANS and may be deemed public records. Said materials may be subject to the provisions of the California Public Records Act. OMNITRANS' use and disclosure of its records are governed by this Act.
- B. OMNITRANS will not advise as to the nature or content of documents entitled to protection from disclosure under the California Public Records Act, including interpretations of the Act or the definitions of trade secret, confidential or proprietary. OMNITRANS will accept materials clearly and prominently labeled "TRADE SECRET" or "CONFIDENTIAL" or "PROPRIETARY" as determined by CONTRACTOR. OMNITRANS will endeavor to notify CONTRACTOR of any request of the disclosure of such materials. Under no circumstances, however, will OMNITRANS be liable or responsible for the disclosure of any labeled materials whether the disclosure is required by law or a court order or occurs through inadvertence, mistake or negligence on the part of OMNITRANS or its officers, employees and/or contractors.

C. In the event of litigation concerning the disclosure of any material submitted by CONTRACTOR, OMNITRANS' sole involvement will be as a stake holder, retaining the material until otherwise ordered by a court. CONTRACTOR, at its sole expense and risk, shall be responsible for prosecuting or defending any action concerning the materials, and shall defend, indemnify and hold OMNITRANS harmless from all costs and expenses, including attorneys' fees, in connection with such action.

30. WAIVER/INVALIDITY

No waiver of a breach of any provision of this Agreement by either party shall constitute a waiver of any other breach of the provision, or of any other breach of the provision of the Agreement. Failure of either party to enforce any provision of this Agreement at any time shall not be construed as a waiver of that provision.

The invalidity in whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision.

31. FORCE MAJEURE

Performance of each and all CONTRACTOR's and OMNITRANS' covenants herein shall be subject to such delays as may occur without CONTRACTOR's or OMNITRANS' fault from acts of God, strikes, riots, or from other similar causes beyond CONTRACTOR's or OMNITRANS' control.

32. CONFIDENTIALITY

CONTRACTOR agrees that for and during the entire term of this Agreement, any information, data, figures, records, findings and the like received or generated by CONTRACTOR in the performance of this Agreement, shall be considered and kept as the private and privileged records of OMNITRANS and will not be divulged to any person, firm, corporation, or other entity except on the direct prior written authorization of OMNITRANS. Further, upon expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason, CONTRACTOR agrees that it will continue to treat as private and privileged any information, data, figures, records, findings and the like, and will not release any such information to any person, firm, corporation or other entity, either by statement, deposition, or as a witness, except upon direct prior written authority of OMNITRANS.

33. CONTRACTOR'S INTERACTION WITH THE MEDIA AND THE PUBLIC

A. OMNITRANS shall review and approve in writing all OMNITRANS related copy proposed to be used by CONTRACTOR for advertising or public relations purposes prior to publication. CONTRACTOR shall not allow OMNITRANS related copy to be published in its advertisements and public relations programs prior to receiving such approval. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all published information is factual and that it does not in any way imply that OMNITRANS endorses CONTRACTOR's firm, service, and/or product.

- B. CONTRACTOR shall refer all inquiries from the news media to OMNITRANS, and shall comply with the procedures of OMNITRANS' Public Affairs staff regarding statements to the media relating to this Agreement or the Work.
- C. If CONTRACTOR receives a complaint from a citizen or the community, CONTRACTOR shall inform OMNITRANS as soon as possible and inform OMNITRANS of any action taken to alleviate the situation.
- D. The provisions of this Article shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

34. GOVERNING LAW

The validity of this Agreement and of any of its terms or provisions, as well as the rights and duties of the parties hereunder, shall be governed by the laws of the State of California, and the proper venue of any action brought hereunder is and shall be the County of San Bernardino, California.

35. MODIFICATIONS TO AGREEMENT

Unless specified otherwise in the Agreement, this Agreement may only be modified by written mutual consent evidenced by signatures of representatives authorized to enter into and modify the Agreement. In order to be effective, amendments may require prior approval by OMNITRANS' Board of Directors, and in all instances require prior signature of an authorized representative of OMNITRANS.

36. LICENSING, PERMITS AND INSPECTION COSTS

Α. The CONTRACTOR warrants that it has all necessary licenses and permits required by the laws of the United States, State of California, and the County of San Bernardino, the Local Jurisdictions, and all other appropriate governmental agencies, and agrees to maintain these licenses and permits in effect for the duration of the Agreement. Further, FIRM warrants that its employees, agents, and contractors and subcontractors shall conduct themselves in compliance with such laws and licensure requirements including, without limitation, compliance with laws applicable to nondiscrimination, sexual harassment and ethical behavior throughout the duration of this Agreement. CONTRACTOR further warrants that it shall not retain or employ an unlicensed subcontractor to perform work on this Project. CONTRACTOR shall notify OMNITRANS immediately and in writing of its employees', agents', contractors' or subcontractors' inability to obtain or maintain, irrespective of the pendency of any appeal, any such licenses, permits, approvals, certificates, waivers, exemptions. Such inability shall be cause for termination of this Agreement.

B. CONTRACTOR shall procure all permits and licenses; pay all charges, assessments and fees, as may be required by the ordinances and regulations of the public agencies having jurisdiction over the areas in which the work is located, and shall comply with all the terms and conditions thereof and with all lawful orders and regulations of each such public agency relating to construction operations under the jurisdiction of such agency.

37. PRECEDENCE

Conflicting provisions hereof, if any, shall prevail in the following descending order of precedence: (1) the provisions of this Agreement, and any and all of its Amendments, Appendices, Exhibits and Attachments; (2) provisions of RFQ-MNT19-44 and any and all of its Addenda, Appendices, Exhibits and Attachments; and (3) CONTRACTOR's bid dated November 14, 2018 and its Appendices, Exhibits, and Attachments.

38. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement, and any attachments or documents incorporated herein by inclusion or by reference, constitutes the complete and entire agreement between OMNITRANS and CONTRACTOR and supersedes any prior representations, understandings, communications, commitments, agreements or proposals, oral or written.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed on the date shown below, and effective on the date first hereinabove written.

OMNITRANS	6C Technologies, Corp. dba Enviroform Industries		
P. Scott Graham CEO/General Manager	Victor Shane President		
Date	Date Federal Tax I.D. No. <u>82-1831924</u>		
CM			

ATTACHMENT A – SCOPE OF WORK

MNT19-44

INDUSTRIAL CHEMICALS

1. INTRODUCTION

Contractor shall provide industrial chemicals comprised of bulk cleaning chemical service to include cleaning products, refillable storage containers, dispensing equipment and monthly service to replenish products as needed, no guarantee of usage. These products will be utilized for bus cleaning (interior & exterior), as well as for general cleaning purposes within the garage areas.

2. LOCATIONS

- A. Omnitrans (East Valley) 1700 West 5th Street San Bernardino, CA 92411
- B. Omnitrans (West Valley) 4748 Arrow Highway Montclair, CA 91763

3. CLEANING PRODUCTS

The following list of bulk cleaning chemicals is the type of products that are currently being used by Omnitrans for the various cleaning applications. The list shows the salient characteristics of the products and the estimated annual usage. All products shall meet these minimum specifications, or be "approved equal" as determined by Omnitrans based on chemical manufacturers' tech data sheets and safety data sheets (SDS). Contractor shall provide manufacturers' tech data sheets & SDS for all chemical types to be used.

A. Bus Wash:

1) Used For:

Used in a drive through bus wash system (friction type) application.

2) Estimated Annual Usage:

650 gallons

3) Product Description

- a) A highly concentrated alkaline cleaner formulated specifically for use general purpose vehicle cleaning.
- b) Especially effective in vehicle cleaning applications for presoaking, degreasing and wheel cleaning. Scientifically formulated to remove oils and grease, can be used to remove a wide range of soils on a variety of surfaces.
- c) A balanced blend of biodegradable surfactants, water conditioning agents and alkaline builders, generates thick foam that clings to vertical surfaces and rinses easily.

4) Features and Benefits

- a) Liquid Convenient to use, easy dispensing and controlling.
- b) Self-Foaming Effectively penetrates and removes heavy grease and deposits.
- c) Chelated No filming or spotting even in hard water.

5) <u>Dilution</u>

1:10 typical

B. General Purpose Cleaner:

1) <u>Used For:</u>

Cleaning of bus interiors (hard surfaces and rubber floors).

2) Estimated Annual Usage:

1725 gallons

3) Product Description

- a) A highly concentrated product formulated specifically for use in line sprayer systems, tote-mounted foggers and direct applications.
- b) It controls malodors present in refuse containers, waste hauling vehicles, transfer stations, landfills, waste treatment facilities, chemical plants and facility perimeters where fugitive odors may be present.
- c) Counteracts malodors in the atmosphere immediately and effectively.

4) Features and Benefits

- a) Scented Counteracts fugitive odors, including sulfides, amines and mercaptans.
- b) Liquid Convenient to use, easy dispensing and controlling.

5) Dilution

1:20 typical

C. Degreaser:

1) Used For:

- a) Removing grease & oil off of bus exteriors.
- b) Steam cleaning engines.
- c) Mopping up garage/shop floors.

2) Estimated Annual Usage:

1425 gallons

3) Product Description

- a) A highly concentrated, alkaline cleaner formulated specifically for use as a foaming degreaser.
- b) Especially effective in applications such as presoak and pressure washing.
- c) Product can also be used in mop buckets, spray bottles and automatic scrubbers.
- d) Product is a balanced blend of biodegradable surfactants, water soluble solvents and alkaline builders. It generates moderate foam that clings to vertical surfaces and rinses easily.
- e) When used as directed, product conforms to former USDA A-1 guidelines for use in all departments of official establishments operating under the Federal meat, poultry, shell egg grading and egg products inspection programs.

4) Features and Benefits

- a) Reserve Alkalinity Penetrates and removes grease and oil deposits.
- b) Liquid Convenient to use, easy dispensing and controlling.

5) Dilution

1:10 typical

6) Steam Cleaning Areas

- a) <u>Degreaser Storage Containers</u>: There are three separate steam cleaning areas, two (2) at East Valley location and one (1) at West Valley location. These areas require their own separate storage containers and dispensers. For the storage areas at the East Valley location, one area will be suitable for a 275-gallon tote, and the other area will only be suitable for a 55-gallon drum. For the West Valley location, there is suitable storage for a 275-gallon tote.
- b) <u>Dispensers:</u> In the steam cleaner areas, a spray wand type of dispenser system shall be provided and maintained to apply the diluted degreaser solution to the items that are to be steam cleaned. The system shall be tied into whatever utilities are required for proper operation i.e. water supply, compressed air, etc. The system shall have the capability to change dilution ratios, but not be readily accessible to the end user to change. These dispensers shall meet the same criteria in Section 5. Dispensing Equipment, with the exception that they must be outfitted with a spray wand.

D. Aluminum Brightener:

1) Used For:

To clean and brighten aluminum wheels on buses. Omnitrans' aluminum wheels are polished but not coated.

2) Estimated Annual Usage:

160 gallons

3) Product Description

- a) A highly concentrated, self-foaming, acid-intensified cleaner formulated specifically for applications such as pressure spraying or foam spraying of painted construction equipment.
- b) Can be used to remove a wide range of soils on aluminum, stainless steel, walls, floors, piping, painted surfaces, and other hard-to-reach areas.
- c) Generates medium foam that clings to vertical surfaces. It is a scientifically balanced blend of biodegradable surfactants and aluminum safe acids, and is economical to use at all temperatures.
- d) Contains no HF or HCL acids.

4) Features and Benefits

- a) High Reserve Acidity Effective on grease and carbonaceous soils.
- b) Self-Foaming Effective in foam cleaning or spray applications.
- c) Aluminum Safe Can be used on all types of equipment.
- d) Hard Water Tolerant No filming or spotting.

5) Dilution

1:10 typical

4. STORAGE CONTAINERS

- A. Storage containers shall be provided and maintained by Contractor.
- B. Storage containers shall be refillable type and made of materials suitable for products contained.
- C. The West Valley location storage area is limited to three (3), 130-gallon containers, one each for the general purpose cleaner, degreaser, and aluminum brightener. The bus wash system has two (2) bus wash soap container areas, one limited to 130 gallons and the other would be suitable for a container/tote up to 270 gallons.
- D. The East Valley location storage area for the general purpose cleaner, degreaser, and aluminum brightener would be suitable for containers/totes up to 270 gallons. The bus wash system has a 500 gallon bus wash soap container.

5. DISPENSING EQUIPMENT

- A. Shall be provided and maintained by Contractor.
- B. Must be water-driven venture proportioners that accurately dilute chemical concentrations to required ratios and fill any size container with diluted, ready-to-use (RTU) chemical solutions.
- C. Designed to endure heavy usage in industrial settings with minimal maintenance requirements.
- D. Material selection for optimum chemical and industry compatibility, with all wetted parts chemically resistant.
- E. Provide manufacturers' tech data sheets for all dispenser types to be used.

6. TRAINING

Contractor shall provide specific product safety handling and usage training on all products for all shifts at both locations. Training shall be done at initial startup and on an annual basis thereafter. Dates and times shall be coordinated with the Project Manager or his/her designee.

A. Shift Information:

- 1) East Valley
 - a) Graveyard, Day, & Swing
 - b) Seven (7) days a week.
- 2) West Valley
 - a) Day & Swing
 - b) Seven (7) days a week.

7. RESPONSE TIME

Contractor shall respond to requests of low product levels, dispenser issues, or storage container issues within 24 hours after being contacted, by coming on site, making an assessment of the situation and establishing an agreeable solution and timeframe with the Project Manager or his/her designee.

8. INVENTORY CONTROL

- A. Contractor shall be solely responsible for maintaining proper inventory levels of all products to ensure product availability at all times.
- B. Contractor shall employ either a manual inventory or automated system to meet this requirement.
- C. Contractor shall track monthly/annual usage of all products, and periodically provide reports as requested by Omnitrans.

9. DILUTION RATIOS

- A. Contractor shall inform Omnitrans of the dilution ratio starting point for each product, and shall consult with the Project Manager or designee prior to making any adjustments. Only the Project Manager or his/her designee can request/agree with any dilution ratios adjustments to be made.
- B. Contractor shall record, and track any/all dilution ratio adjustments for all products, and periodically provide reports as requested by Omnitrans.

10. PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE

All products shall perform in a manner consistent with what is stated in the manufacturer's technical data sheets, and the desired results are expected to be obtained within the manufacturer's published recommended dilution ratios.

11. WORKPLACE SAFETY

Contractor shall ensure that all of his operations strictly adhere to all Federal, State, and Local safety and environmental laws and regulations. Omnitrans, in accordance with the dual employer provision, reserves the right to correct unsafe practices by the contractor's employees, or to stop work until the Contractor makes the necessary corrections. In addition:

A. Smoking

Omnitrans uses designated areas for smoking. Smoking is not allowed at any time in the bus yard, on or in any buildings, or by the entrances to any buildings. Smoking by employees of the Contractor, or his sub-contractors, shall not create a hazardous condition for themselves, co-workers, or employees and property of Omnitrans.

B. Eye Protection

- 1) Per Omnitrans eye protection policy, ANSI Z87 approved eye protection shall be worn by all persons while conducting business outside the boundaries of the established "green zone". The policy also requires that eye protection be utilized if hazardous work is being conducted within the "green zone". The Contractor shall ensure that all of its employees have been provided eye protection that meets the requirement.
- 2) The project manager, or his/her designee, reserves the right to stop the contractor's work in the event that a contractor employee is in violation, and that work will remain stopped until the violation is corrected.

C. Vests

- 1) Contractors and their employees working or performing services in outside work zones shall wear ANSI Class 2 Safety Vests. ANSI Class 2 Safety Vests must be worn at all times in the bus yard and in the relief vehicle locations.
- 2) Safety Vests are not required while in designated, marked with painted green borders Safety Zones on Agency property or while on sidewalks, curbs, or raised pavement.

End of Scope of Work

ATTACHMENT C - PRICING MNT19-44 INDUSTRIAL CHEMICALS

	Unit of	
Product	Measure	Price
Bus Wash	Gallon	\$4.68
General Purpose Cleaner	Gallon	\$4.05
Degreaser	Gallon	\$4.05
Aluminum Brightener	Gallon	\$3.92



POLICY 707 PAGE 1 OF 6

SUBJECT

PROHIBITING WEAPONS IN THE WORKPLACE

APPROVED BY OMNITRANS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DATE: June 7, 2017

I. Purpose

It is the policy of Omnitrans to maintain a work environment that is safe for all persons, including the community, and conducive to attaining high work standards. To achieve these objectives, the Agency prohibits the possession of firearms and weapons in the work place, regardless of any license or permit that an individual may have which otherwise authorizes the individual to carry firearms or weapons.

It is illegal and a criminal violation to possess weapons in public buildings (California Penal Code 171b and 171.7).

II. Scope

This policy applies to all Omnitrans employees, including but not limited to staffing agency workers and contractors working for or with the Agency at any time, regardless of whether the Agency is the actual employer.

Possession of firearms and weapons is prohibited at all Omnitrans' offices, parking lots, agency vehicles and job sites, and in all Agency vehicles.

The following person/s are exempt from this policy as stated: a guard of a contract carrier operating an armored vehicle, and any law enforcement officer who is carrying out official duties engaged in protecting and preserving property or life within the scope of his or her employment.

Omnitrans will strictly enforce this policy. Violation of this policy will result in immediate disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

III. Procedure

A. COMMUNICATION OF POLICY

- (a) Each employee of the Agency shall receive a copy of this policy at the time of his/her hire and shall sign a copy of the acknowledgment. Employees who were employed before the effective date of this policy shall also receive a copy of this policy and shall sign a copy of the acknowledgment. A copy of the signed acknowledgment and of all new and revised policies throughout the employee's employment shall be maintained in each employee's personnel file.
- (b) A copy of this policy shall be attached to each contractor's contract, and shall become a part of its contract. The contractor shall be responsible for communicating this policy to its employees and any subcontractors to which the contractor sublets any portion of its contract.



POLICY 707 PAGE 2 OF 6

SUBJECT

PROHIBITING WEAPONS IN THE WORKPLACE

APPROVED BY OMNITRANS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DATE: June 7, 2017

B. PROHIBITED CONDUCT

- (a) The transportation of firearms or weapons in Agency vehicles is prohibited. This includes but is not limited to:
 - (1) to and from work,
 - (2) when conducting Agency business,
 - (3) at all times in Agency-owned or leased vehicles.
- (b) The possession or carrying of permitted and non-permitted firearms or weapons while at Agency buildings, parking lots, sponsored events, and job sites.
- (c) Exception: Power actuated tools which are manufactured for the use of fastening building materials and sanctioned tools for the purpose of performing Agency job duties are not subject to this policy.

C. SEARCH

- (a) Omnitrans reserves the right to conduct reasonable, unannounced searches of Agency premises and personal searches of employees and others while entering, on, or leaving Agency premises, including, but not limited to, personal effects, vehicles, lockers, desks, tool boxes, clothing, meal containers, and baggage. Searches will be conducted when the Agency has a reasonable suspicion to believe that a particular employee may be in possession of a weapon or firearm.
- (b) "Reasonable suspicion" is defined as a suspicion that is based on specific personal observations such as an employee's manner, disposition, behavior, speech, information provided to management by an employee, by law enforcement officials, by a security service, or by other persons believed to be reliable, or a suspicion that is based on other surrounding circumstances.
- (c) Individuals refusing to allow an inspection will not be detained or forced to submit to the inspection. Refusal violates Agency policy and constitutes an act of insubordination constituting disciplinary action, up to and including separation of the employment relationship. Non-employees who refuse to allow an inspection will not be permitted on Agency premises and will be required to immediately leave the premises. Employees will be relieved of all duties while pending investigation.

D. <u>DISCIPLINE</u>

(a) Violations of any portion of this policy will subject the employee to discipline,



POLICY 707 PAGE 3 OF 6

SUBJECT

PROHIBITING WEAPONS IN THE WORKPLACE

APPROVED BY OMNITRANS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DATE: June 7, 2017

up to and including separation of employment.

(b) Violations by a contractor's employee or subcontractor of any portion of this policy may constitute a breach of contract and regardless will mandate the immediate removal of the contractor's employee from Agency premises, prohibition against the individual accessing Agency premises in the future, and may also constitute a breach of contract.

E. REPORT OF VIOLATIONS

1. Employee Violations

Employees are required to report violations of this policy without regard to the relationship between the individual who initiates the prohibited behavior and the individual reporting it. An employee who believes that another employee may be in violation of this policy must report the alleged violation to the employee's manager or supervisor, the department director, security, or the appropriate departmental Human Resources representative.

Departments are responsible for implementing this policy. The Agency will promptly investigate allegations of violations of this policy.

Omnitrans reserves the right to authorize searches for prohibited weapons on its property when a violation is reported or when probable cause or reasonable suspicion is present consistent with law.

Employees should be aware that there is no reasonable expectation of privacy with respect to weapons in the workplace. The Agency's right to conduct searches includes, but is not limited to, such areas and items as lockers, desks, workstations, offices, purses, briefcases, bags, toolboxes, and lunch bags.

Searches of the employee's work area and belongings, as described above, may be conducted by the Security & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator, or designee. Searches of all types, including surrounding agency property, personal property and the employee may be conducted by law enforcement in accordance with law should reasonable suspicion be present. Any weapon found in violation of this policy may be confiscated. Refusal to permit a search may result in discipline, up to and including separation.

2. Visitor Violations

Visitors are not allowed to carry a weapon on the premises. Any visitor carrying a weapon into a posted no-carry agency facility is creating an elevated risk to security and safety that warrants a response leading to compliance with the law. If the visitor



POLICY 707 PAGE 4 OF 6

SUBJECT

PROHIBITING WEAPONS IN THE WORKPLACE

APPROVED BY OMNITRANS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DATE: June 7, 2017

poses an immediate risk to security or safety, law enforcement shall be notified immediately by calling 9-911. The visitor shall be considered an immediate risk to safety and security if he/she is acting in an aggressive, belligerent, confrontational, suspicious or in an otherwise questionable manner while carrying a weapon.

F. FALSE REPORTS

Employees making intentionally false and malicious complaints of weapons in the workplace will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including separation and/or will be reported to the proper authorities as appropriate.

G. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Employees are responsible for understanding and complying with the Policy Prohibiting Weapons in the Workplace.

Whenever there is a question as to whether an instrument, article or substance is considered a weapon in violation of this policy, it is the employee's responsibility to seek clarification. Employees seeking clarification should direct their questions to the agency's Security & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator at 909-379-7117 prior to bringing the item(s) to Omnitrans work sites and events, as well as agency-owned or leased facilities or vehicles.

H. SAFETY FIRST

In applying this policy, no employee shall take any action that will risk his or her own safety or the safety of other individuals. No attempt should ever be made by an employee to restrain or forcibly evict an armed person from agency premises.

An individual's continued non-compliance after being properly informed of the law (California Penal Code 171 (b)) will result in notification to law enforcement and discipline, up to and including separation of employment. Employees should notify security immediately.

An employee who feels an imminent danger to his or her own safety or the safety or security of others, should avoid any interaction with the individual. Immediately contact law enforcement by calling 9-911 and security at 909-379-7117.

I. ANTI-RETALIATION PROVISION

Omnitrans strictly prohibits any retaliation against an employee who has reported a possible breach of policy. If an employee feels that he or she has been subjected to retaliation in violation of this policy, the employee must immediately report it to his or her supervisor or other designated Human Resources representative.



PERSONNEL POLICY MANUAL

POLICY 707 PAGE 5 OF 6

SUBJECT

PROHIBITING WEAPONS IN THE WORKPLACE

APPROVED BY OMNITRANS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DATE: June 7, 2017

J. DEFINITIONS

- 1. **Firearm or weapon includes, but is not limited to:** A weapon, a pistol or rifle, whether loaded or unloaded, capable of firing a projectile and using an explosive as a propellant.
 - A firearm, whether loaded or unloaded, from which a shot may be discharged including but not limited to handguns, pistols, revolvers, shotguns, rifles, and bb guns;
 - A gun that can discharge a shot or a projectile by means of an explosive or gas, or compressed air;
 - A device designed to be used as a weapon, from which can be expelled a
 projectile by the force of any explosion or force of combustion;
 - Any weapon (including a starter gun) which will or is designed to or may readily be converted to expel a projectile by the action of an explosive;
 - Any destructive device;
 - Any device designed as a weapon and capable of producing great bodily harm, including but not limited to, stun guns, stun batons;
 - An electric weapon such as a taser gun;
 - Any combustible or flammable liquid, or other substance, device, or instrumentality that, in a manner it is used or intended to be used, is calculated or likely to produce death or great bodily harm, or any fire that is used to produce death or great bodily harm;
 - Any knife that is carried with intention or calculation to produce death or great bodily harm having a blade length in excess of four (4) inches, the blade of which is fixed or is capable of being fixed in an unguarded position by the use of one or two hands. Switchblades are specifically prohibited. (Knives intended to be used as eating utensils, and stored or maintained in office kitchens or lunchrooms do not represent a violation of this policy.)
- 2. **Office**: All permanent facilities, all mobile facilities, all leased facilities, and any facility designated as an office by the agency.
- 3. **Parking lot**: All lots at permanent facility, park and rides, lots at project sites, any lot that the agency designates as a parking lot that is not at a permanent facility or project site.
- 4. Agency vehicle: All agency-owned buses/vehicles, all agency-leased buses/vehicles, all agency-rental buses/vehicles, and all personal vehicles for which the owner receives a vehicle allowance, all personal vehicles where the owner receives reimbursement for mileage.



PERSONNEL POLICY MANUAL

POLICY 707 PAGE 6 OF 6

SUBJECT

PROHIBITING WEAPONS IN THE WORKPLACE

APPROVED BY OMNITRANS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DATE: June 7, 2017

- 5. **Search**: To examine in order to find something concealed.
- 6. **Job sites**: Any and all locations where the agency conducts business.

SIGNS

- 1. At each entrance to buildings, parking lots, and project sites, a sign shall be posted in a location that is conspicuous to all who could enter a building, parking lot, or project site.
- 2. Signs shall have wording or pictogram that prohibits firearms, weapons and give notice of video surveillance. Signs shall be vandalism resistant and of the quality that they will not fade due to the elements.

Page 1 of 5

S & A SYSTEMS, INC. SOFTWARE LICENSE AGREEMENT

This is a legal agreement between <u>Omnitrans</u>, the end user, and **S & A Systems, Inc**. WITH PAYMENT OF THE LICENSE FEE AND BY USING THIS SOFTWARE, YOU ARE AGREEING TO BE BOUND BY THE TERMS OF THIS AGREEMENT.

S & A SYSTEMS, INC. SOFTWARE LICENSE

- 1. <u>GRANT OF LICENSE</u>. S & A Systems grants to you the right to use multiple copies of the supplied **FLEETWATCH** software program (the "SOFTWARE") on multiple computers within your company or agency.
- 2. <u>SOFTWARE LICENSE RENEWAL</u>. The initial term of this software license is for a period of <u>One Year</u>. This One (1) Year is included in the base system purchase price. The Software License period begins <u>March 17, 2019</u> and renews on <u>March 17, 2020</u>. Renewal of this license agreement is payable annually, two (2) months prior to the anniversary date of renewal in the amount of <u>\$11,975.00</u>. Optionally, this license agreement may be extended to include 2020-2021 for an additional price of <u>\$12,274.00</u> and for 2021-2022 at an additional price of <u>\$12,581.00</u>. This amount may be adjusted annually to compensate for changes in the number of users and/or system configuration. Any adjustments will be presented to Omnitrans a minimum of ninety (90) days prior to anniversary date of license renewal.
- 3. The annual Software License Fee includes <u>Software Maintenance and Support</u> as defined in the attached <u>Software Maintenance and Support Agreement.</u>
- 4. <u>OTHER RESTRICTIONS</u>. You may not rent, lease, or otherwise transfer the SOFTWARE to any other company, agency, or individual.
- <u>LIMITED WARRANTY</u>. S & A Systems, Inc. warrants that the SOFTWARE will perform substantially in accordance with the accompanying written material. Any implied warranties on the SOFTWARE are limited to the terms of this agreement. Some states do not allow limitations on duration of an implied warranty, so the above limitation may not apply to you.
- <u>CUSTOMER REMEDIES</u>. S & A Systems' entire liability and your exclusive remedy shall be, at S & A Systems' option, either (a) return of the price paid or (b) repair or replacement of the SOFTWARE that does not meet S & A Systems' Limited Warranty and which is returned to S & A Systems with a copy of your receipt.

This Limited Warranty is void if failure of the SOFTWARE has resulted from accident, abuse, or misapplication. Any replacement SOFTWARE will be warranted for the remainder of the original warranty period or 30 days, whichever is longer.

NO OTHER WARRANTIES. S & A SYSTEMS, INC. DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER WARRANTIES, EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, WITH RESPECT TO THE SOFTWARE, THE ACCOM- PANYING WRITTEN MATERIALS, AND ANY ACCOMPANYING HARDWARE. THIS LIMITED WARRANTY GIVES YOU SPECIFIC LEGAL RIGHTS. YOU MAY HAVE OTHERS, WHICH VARY, FROM STATE TO STATE.

NO LIABILITY FOR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES. IN NO EVENT SHALL S & A SYSTEMS, INC. OR ITS SUPPLIERS BE LIABLE FOR ANY DAMAGES WHAT- SOEVER (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, DAMAGES FOR LOSS OF BUSI-NESS PROFITS, BUSINESS INTERRUPTION, LOSS OF BUSINESS INFORMA- TION, OR OTHER PECUNIARY LOSS)

Page 2 of 5

S & A SYSTEMS SOFTWARE LICENSE AGREEMENT (CONTINUED)

ARISING OUT OF THE USE OF OR INABILITY TO USE THIS S & A SYSTEMS, INC. PRODUCT, EVEN IF S & A SYSTEMS, INC. HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. BECAUSE SOME STATES DO NOT ALLOW THE EXCLUSION OR LIMITATION OF LIABILITY FOR CONSEQUENTIAL OR INCIDENTAL DAMAGES, THE ABOVE LIMITATION MAY NOT APPLY TO YOU.

Should you have any questions concerning this Agreement, or if you desire to contact S & A Systems, Inc., FO Box 1928, Rockwall, Texas 75087. If you need technical support please call 972/722-1009.

All S & A Systems products are trademarks or registered trademarks of S & A Systems, Inc. All other brand and product names are trademarks or registered trademarks of their respective holders.

Page 3 of 5

STANDARD S & A SYSTEMS TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT AGREEMENT

All Software Maintenance and Support is provided subject to the attached Software License Agreement and the following Standard Terms and Conditions. These provisions set forth are only obligations of S & A Systems regarding Software Maintenance and Support. For purposes of this Agreement, "You" or "Your" shall refer to the entity entitled to receive Maintenance and Support hereunder.

I. S & A SYSTEMS SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE SERVICES:

- 1. Use of S & A Systems' online support is unlimited, however telephone support is limited to 15 hours per month. This includes receiving technical assistance and/or general consultation with regard to software You have licensed from S & A Systems and for which You have elected to receive Maintenance and Support (the "Covered Software"). Additional telephone support, if needed, is billed at \$140 per hour, with a minimum charge of one hour. After the first hour, support is billed in 15-minute increments of \$35.00 each.
- 2. As they become available, S & A Systems will provide new versions, updates and/or enhancements to current versions of the Covered Software. Some new versions, updates and/or enhancements may require more advanced or larger capacity equipment and/or third party software. Equipment and software compatibility shall be your sole responsibility.

Note: Covered Software includes firmware contained within Covered Hardware including, but not limited to, Model 3000R Remote Island Head units and Model FR55 Fixed Receivers.

- 3. As they become available, S & A Systems will provide updates and enhancements to existing documentation.
- 4. S & A Systems will take all reasonable steps to correct defects in the Covered Software that are directly attributable to programming if S & A Systems, in its sole discretion, recognizes them as having a materially detrimental effect on the performance of the Covered Software.
- 5. S & A Systems will take all reasonable steps to have data anomalies repaired and data loss in the Covered Software directly attributable to programming minimized. This provision is subject to Your performance of scheduled data backups using a prudent method of media rotation.

II. EXCLUSIONS FROM S & A SYSTEMS SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE SERVICE

The following is expressly excluded from the terms of this Agreement:

- 1. Provision, installation and/or support of new versions and/or enhancements to current versions of non-S & A Systems software. Non-S & A Systems software includes but shall not be limited to, operating system software, word processing, spreadsheet, reporting and/or database software.
- 2. On-site Installation of new versions, updates and enhancements to S & A Systems software and firmware. Telephone and online support within the limits of the amounts specified in this agreement may be used during installation of updates and enhancements.

(Note: *On-Site* is defined as any personnel from S & A Systems traveling to Your location and working on Your premises.)

3. Upgrading any hardware and memory on the system on which You use the Covered Software and Firmware.

Page 4 of 5

SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT AGREEMENT (Cont'd)

- 4. If You are using S & A Systems products that require a common database, You must remain current on Maintenance for all products for as long as the Covered Software is in use in order to assure the integrity of Your Covered Software. Cancellation of Maintenance on any one system may cause incompatibilities with related products, and performance of all Covered Software could be adversely affected.
- 5. Repair of the Covered Software and data if S & A Systems determines the failure is related to:
- (a) the equipment or supplies You are using.
- (b) misuse or neglect of the covered Software including, but not limited to, failure to perform scheduled data backups using a prudent method of media rotation.
- (c) anyone other than a member of S & A Systems' staff making any alteration to the Covered Software or to the system files which may affect the Covered Software.
- (d) environmental conditions, including, but not limited to, insufficient, excessive, or irregular electrical power, failure of air conditioning, excessive heat or humidity, flood, water, wind or lightening.
- (e) use of the Covered Software for purposes other than those which it was expressly designed.
- (f) the relocation or reinstallation of the Covered Software.
- (g) the use of any software other than the Covered Software.
- 6. S & A Systems reserves the right to charge additional support fees at its then standard rates for services performed in connection with reported incidents that are later determined to have been due to hardware or software not supplied by S & A Systems. Notwithstanding the foregoing, S & A Systems has no obligation to perform support services in connection with issues resulting from hardware or software not supplied by S & A Systems.

III. SOFTWARE MODIFICATIONS

Any modifications that You make to the Software, including any modifications to any third party licensed software included with or embedded in the Software, will render any Maintenance or Warranty obligations contained in this Agreement null and void. S & A Systems will not be liable, in any respect, for any such modifications or any errors, losses or damage resulting from such modifications. S & A Systems has no other responsibilities with respect to Maintenance other than those specified in this Section and will not be responsible for maintaining other than the most current, unaltered release of the Software.

IV. DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES; LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

1. NO WARRANTIES: S & A SYSTEMS DOES NOT AND CANNOT WARRANT THE PERFORMANCE OR RESULTS OBTAINED BY YOU IN USING THE SOFTWARE, THAT THE SOFTWARE WILL MEET YOUR REQUIREMENTS, OR THAT THE OPERATION OF THE SOFTWARE WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED OR ERROR FREE. THE SOFTWARE IS LICENSED "AS IS" AND THE MAINTENANCE SERVICES PROVIDED HEREUNDER SHALL BE PERFORMED IN A WORKMANLIKE MANNER. S & A SYSTEMS EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS

Page 5 of 5

SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT AGREEMENT (Cont'd)

ANY AND ALL OTHER WARRANTIES WITH RESPECT TO THE SOFTWARE AND SERVICES, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE.

2. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY. IN NO EVENT WILL S & A SYSTEMS BE LIABLE FOR ANY LOSS OF PROFITS, LOSS OF USE, BUSINESS INTERRUPTION, LOSS OF DATA, COST OF COVER OR OTHER INDIRECT, SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF THE DELIVERY OF MAINTENANCE SERVICES OR ANY DELAY IN DELIVERY OF THE MAINTENANCE SERVICES. S & A SYSTEMS' MAXIMUM AGGREGATE LIABILITY (WHETHER IN CONTRACT OR IN TORT OR UNDER ANY OTHER FORM OF LIABILITY) FOR DAMAGES OR LOSS, HOWSOEVER ARISING OR CAUSED, SHALL IN NO EVENT EXCEED THE AMOUNT OF THE INSURANCE LIMITS IN PLACE AT THE TIME OF THIS MAINTENANCE SERVICE.

V. GENERAL

- 1. Delivery of any Software Maintenance service to You by S & A Systems is subject to conditions beyond the control of S & A Systems or its agents, including but not limited to, Acts of God, acts of any public enemy, fire, flood, epidemic or quarantine restrictions, strikes, riots or civil commotion, freight or other embargoes, weather conditions or any failures by S & A Systems' subcontractors or suppliers.
- 2. You may not sub-license, sell, rent, lend or lease any portion of the Covered Software. You may not translate or create derivative works based on the Covered Software.
- 3. All provisions of this agreement shall be governed by the laws of California.
- 4. If You choose not to install the latest version of the Covered Software, S & A Systems reserves the right to limit the scope of the Maintenance services provided.
- 5. Please e-mail all Signed Agreements and Purchase Orders to orders@fleetwatch.com.

CUSTOMER:	SERVICER:		
(Authorized Signature & Title)	(Authorized Signature & Title)		
DATE:	DATE :December 11, 2018		

BASIC SERVICE AGREEMENT

CUSTOMER INSTALLATION LOCATION

Omnitrans Contact: Caroljo Mitcham 1700 West Fifth Street San Bernardino, CA 92411

FIELD SERVICE LOCATION

S & A SYSTEMS, INC. 992 SID'S ROAD ROCKWALL, TEXAS 75032-6512 972/722-1009

CONTACT: BRYAN LAUDUN

S & A Systems, Inc. (S & A) agrees to provide and the customer agrees to accept Maintenance Service and Technical Support (as defined by the terms of the attached Terms and Conditions for Technical Support) on the equipment listed below at the charge indicated below. The terms and conditions of this Basic Service Agreement are stated herein. Any failed units which are not field repairable will be returned to S & A's Maintenance Facility located at 992 Sid's Road, Rockwall, TX 75032 for repair or replacement of any unit that has failed in normal use. S & A will pay all shipping charges for return of equipment as long as shipping instructions provided by S & A are followed. In the event of failure of any installed **FLEETWATCH** equipment covered under this agreement which cannot be shipped, S & A will send maintenance personnel to the installation location within 72 hours of notification of equipment malfunction (with the exception of vehicle equipment). S & A agrees to maintain a supply of replacement parts and components for the equipment listed below as long as this Basic Service Agreement is in effect.

This agreement is specifically limited to **FLEETWATCH** equipment that has been installed and used in accordance with S & A Systems instructions. This agreement is void for equipment that has not been installed according to S & A Systems instructions. This agreement is void if any unauthorized alterations or additions have been made to the FMS equipment or if it has been subjected to damage caused by accident, abuse, misapplication, or improper operation.

This agreement does not cover any indirect or consequential damage or loss of product or business. S & A Systems assumes no other liabilities in connection with the FMS equipment.

The equipment listed below will be covered for <u>Year ONE (1)</u> at a price of <u>\$53,746.00</u>. Optionally, this equipment coverage may be extended from March 17, 2020 through March 17, 2021 for an additional price of <u>\$16,946.00</u> and from March 17, 2023 through March 17, 2024 at an additional price of \$17,370.00.

Model 3000R Remote Island Head unit – 6 Quantity (Refurbished in Year 1) Bulk Fluid Controller – 2 Quantity (Refurbished in Year 1) FR55 Fixed Receiver – 6 Quantity MR55 Mobile Receiver – 8 Quantity GP55 Data Logger – 389 Quantity (Parts Only – No Labor)

CUSTOMER:	SERVICER:			
	Don Lysly			
	President			
(Authorized Signature & Title)	(Authorized Signature & Title)			
DATE:	DATE : <u>December 11, 2018</u>			

STANDARD S & A SYSTEMS TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR TECHNICAL SUPPORT

All Technical Support is provided subject to the following Standard Terms and Conditions. These provisions set forth are only obligations of S & A Systems regarding Technical Support.

I. S & A SYSTEMS TECHNICAL SUPPORT SERVICES:

- 1. Use of S & A Systems' online support is unlimited, however telephone support is limited to 15 hours per month. This includes receiving technical assistance, troubleshooting and/or general consultation with regard to system equipment Omnitrans has in use and for which Omnitrans has elected to receive Technical Support (the "Covered System"). Additional telephone support, if needed, is billed at \$140 per hour, with a minimum charge of one hour. After the first hour, support is billed in 15-minute increments of \$35.00 each.
- 2. S & A Systems will provide remote System Performance Reviews on a monthly basis. These reviews will be accomplished through the use of remote login software provided by Omnitrans to run diagnostic/informational reports, inspect/test hardware, test communications and otherwise determine the health of the Covered System.
- 3. As they become available, S & A Systems will provide updates and enhancements to existing documentation.
- 4. This agreement is made a part of the Basic Service Agreement by mention herein.

II. CHARGES

- 1. The Technical Support period begins on <u>March 17, 2019</u> and ends on <u>March 17, 2020</u>. Optional years of coverage may be elected to cover the period of <u>March 17, 2020</u> through <u>March 17, 2021</u> and the period of <u>March 17, 2021</u> through <u>March 17, 2022</u>.
- 2. The initial Technical Support fee is a fixed price contract for the period described above and shall run concurrently with the Basic Service Agreement to which it is attached. Renewal fees are calculated three months prior to contract expiration and may be subject to an inflationary adjustment defined at the time of renewal.
- 3. All charges for Technical Support are included in the attached Basic Service Agreement.

III. EXCLUSIONS FROM S & A SYSTEMS TECHNICAL SUPPORT SERVICE

The following is expressly excluded from the terms of this Agreement:

1. Support, troubleshooting and diagnostics of non-S & A Systems hardware. Non-S & A Systems hardware includes but shall not be limited to fuel dispensers, fluid dispensing equipment, underground storage tank monitoring systems, submerged pumps or any other equipment used in the dispensing of fuels and fluids.

STANDARD S & A SYSTEMS TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR TECHNICAL SUPPORT (Cont'd)

- 2. S & A Systems reserves the right to charge additional support fees at its then standard rates for services performed in connection with reported incidents that are later determined to have been due to hardware not supplied by S & A Systems. Notwithstanding the foregoing, S & A Systems has no obligation to perform support services in connection with issues resulting from hardware not supplied by S & A Systems.
- 3. Vehicle Mounted Equipment, including but not limited to JX55 Data Loggers and GP55 Mileage Modules, are depot coverage only. Any unit returned by Omnitrans as defective will be repaired or replaced in the event equipment malfunction or defect. All forms of physical damage are specifically excluded.

IV. LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

NEITHER PARTY SHALL BE LIABLE FOR INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES RELATING TO OR ARISING OUT OF ANY BREACH OF OBLIGATIONS UNDER THE AGREEMENT AND IN NO EVENT SHALL S & A SYSTEMS' LIABILITY EXCEED THE AMOUNT PAID BY OMNITRANS FOR THE SERVICES DESCRIBED HEREIN.

V. GENERAL

- 1. Delivery of any Technical Support service to Omnitrans by S & A Systems is subject to conditions beyond the control of S & A Systems or its agents, including but not limited to, Acts of God, acts of any public enemy, fire, flood, epidemic or quarantine restrictions, strikes, riots or civil commotion, freight or other embargoes, weather conditions or any failures by S & A Systems' subcontractors or suppliers.
- 2. All provisions of this agreement shall be governed by the laws of California.

VI. RIH REFURBISHMENT RIDER

Attached and made a part of this agreement is the Remote Island Head Refurbishment rider to provide for the refurbishment of all Remote Island Head units covered under this agreement.

Remote Island Head Unit Refurbish/Upgrade Program

The A30 board set in our RIH3000R Remote Island Heads has reached its End of Life (EOL). Components for this board are no longer available and the board can no longer be manufactured. We are pleased to provide you with the following services for refurbishment and upgrade of your existing Remote Island Head units:

Contract Refurbishment/Upgrade - RIH3000R Remote Island Head - \$5,500.00

(Included in the Year 1 Price of your Hardware Service Agreement

- Replacement of all PC Boards inside the RIH (includes modifications to PC Board mounting inside RIH)
- Replacement of Keypad, Display, and Card Reader
- Replacement of connectors and wiring harness
- Refinishing of RIH cabinet
- Return Shipping
- One-year new unit warranty

You have entered into a contract for the refurbish/upgrade of all your RIH units over a 12 – 18-month period.

Please note, as current board stock allows, we will continue to support existing RIH units in operation at our customers. However, once all stock of the A30 board set is exhausted, if a new A30 board set is required for RIH repair, the only option will be to Refurbish/Upgrade the unit as described above.

The FLEETWATCH® system, as manufactured by S & A Systems, Inc., utilizes proprietary software and firmware, written by S & A Systems. No other agency or third-party support is available for the maintenance and support of this software or firmware. When your software was purchased, an S & A Systems software license agreement was provided. Please refer to this license agreement for a complete description of your rights of ownership. Please note that some rights vary by state.

This product meets all required specifications and Buy America requirements. S & A Systems, Inc. is the original equipment manufacturer of the FLEETWATCH® Fuel and Fluid Management Systems and related equipment. FLEETWATCH® is a registered trademark for our Fuel and Fluid Management Systems line of products. Anyone offering similar products as a "Fleetwatch" product is in strict violation of this trademark. S & A Systems will not be held responsible for any liabilities or damages incurred by the purchase of non-FLEETWATCH® systems.

All refurbished equipment is warranted for one (1) year from the date of shipment.

Thank you for your continuing support of the FLEETWATCH family of products.



S & A SYSTEMS, INC. FLEETWATCH FLUID MANAGEMENT SYSTEM EQUIPMENT LIMITED WARRANTY

S & A Systems, Inc. guarantees all **FLEETWATCH** Fluid Management System (FMS) equipment refurbished by S & A Systems for a period of one year from the date shipped to the original user by S & A Systems. S & A Systems will repair or replace, at S & A Systems' discretion, any FMS equipment supplied by S & A which is proved defective in material or workmanship during the warranty period, provided the FMS equipment is returned to the factory at Rockwall, Texas, transportation charges prepaid. The repaired or replaced FMS equipment will be shipped to the original user with no charge except for transportation.

This warranty is specifically limited to FMS equipment that has been installed and used in accordance with S & A Systems' instructions. This warranty is void for equipment that has not been installed according to S & A Systems' instructions. This warranty is void if any unauthorized alterations or additions have been made to the FMS equipment or if it has been subjected to damage caused by accident, abuse, misapplication, or improper operation.

You may have additional rights, which vary, from state to state.

Attachment B REGULATORY REQUIREMENT Table of Contents

4			4			4	
	A	n	Ŧ	Δ	n	Ŧ	C
ч							

NO FEDERAL OBLIGATION TO THIRD PARTIES	2
FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS OR CLAIMS – CIVIL AND CRIMINAL FRAUD	2
ACCESS TO THIRD PARTY CONTRACT RECORDS	3
FEDERAL FUNDING, INCORPORATION OF FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINSITRATION (FTA) TERMS, AND FEDERAL CHANGES	4
CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS (TITLE VI, ADA, EEO (EXCEPT SPECIAL DOL CONSTRUCTION CLAUSE	4
DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE)	5
DAVIS-BACON AND COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACTS	7
TERMINATION 49 U.S.C. Part 18 FTA Circular 4220.1F	14
SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT	16
CLEAN WATER AND CLEAN AIR REQUIREMENTS	17
BUY AMERICA	18
BREACHES AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 49 CFR Part 18 FTA Circular 4220.1F	19
CARGO PREFERENCE	20
FLY AMERICA	20
DAVIS-BACON AND COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACTS	21
CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT	28
BONDING REQUIREMENTS	29
SEISMIC SAFETY REQUIREMENTS 42 U.S.C. 7701 et seq. 49 CFR Part 41	30
TRANSIT EMPLOYEE PROTECTIVE ARRANGEMENTS	31
ALCOHOL AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE PROGRAM	33
ENERGY CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS	38
RECYCLED PRODUCTS	38
NATIONAL INTELLIGENT TRANSPORTATION SYSTEMS ARCHITECTURE AND STANDAR	
ADA ACCESS	
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE	40
DISCRIMINATION	41
WHISTLEBLOWER REQUIREMENTS	41
PUBLIC RECORDS ACT	42
PRIVACY ACT - 5 U.S.C. 552	42
VETER AND DREED ENGE	42

REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

* Marks Required Subcontract Provisions that must flow down to all subcontracts as defined in the Article entitled SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS herein.

Required Clauses for All FTA-Assisted Third-Party Contracts and Subcontracts

RR-01

NO FEDERAL OBLIGATION TO THIRD PARTIES *

In connection with the Project, the Recipient agrees that, absent the Federal Government's express written consent, the Federal Government shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to any subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, or other participant at any tier of the Project, or other person or entity that is not a party to the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement for the Project. Notwithstanding that the Federal Government may have concurred in or approved any solicitation, subagreement, lease, third party contract, or arrangement at any tier, the Federal Government has no obligations or liabilities to any entity other than the Recipient, including any subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, or other participant at any tier of the Project.

RR-02

FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS OR CLAIMS – CIVIL AND CRIMINAL FRAUD *

A. Civil Fraud.

The Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as amended, 31 U.S.C. §§ 3801 et seq., and U.S. DOT regulations, "Program Fraud Civil Remedies," 49 C.F.R. Part 31, apply to the Recipient's activities in connection with the Project. By executing the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement for the Project, the Recipient certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each statement it has made, it makes, or it may make in connection with the Project. In addition to other penalties that may apply, the Recipient also acknowledges that if it makes a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, certification, assurance, or representation to the Federal Government, the Federal Government reserves the right to impose on the Recipient the penalties of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as amended, to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate.

B. Criminal Fraud.

If the Recipient makes a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, certification, assurance, or representation to the Federal Government or includes a false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement or representation in any agreement with the Federal Government in connection with a Project authorized under 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 or any other Federal law, the Federal Government reserves the right to impose on the Recipient

RR – Page 2 Updated: 11132018

- the penalties of 49 U.S.C. § 5323(1), 18 U.S.C. § 1001, or other applicable Federal law to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate.
- C. Contractor shall include this Article in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. Contractor shall not modify the Article, except to identify the Subcontractor who will be subject to the provisions.

RR-03 ACCESS TO THIRD PARTY CONTRACT RECORDS *

A. Access to Third Party Contract Records.

The Recipient agrees to require, and assures that its subrecipients require, their third party contractors and third party subcontractors at each tier to provide to the U.S. Secretary of Transportation and the Comptroller General of the United States or their duly authorized representatives, access to all third party contract records as required by 49 U.S.C. § 5325(g). The Recipient further agrees to require, and assures that its subrecipients require, their third party contractors and third party subcontractors, at each tier, to provide sufficient access to third party procurement records as needed for compliance with Federal laws and regulations or to assure proper Project management as determined by FTA.

Contractor agrees to provide Omnitrans, the FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General of the United States or any of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this Contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. Contractor also agrees, pursuant to 49 C. F. R. 633.17 to provide the FTA Administrator or the FTA's authorized representatives, including any FTA Project Management Oversight Contractor, access to Contractor's records and construction sites pertaining to a major capital project, defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a) 1, which is receiving federal financial assistance through the programs described at 49 U.S.C. 5307, 5309 or 5311.

- B. If this Contract is for a capital project or improvement (defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a) 1) and was entered in to through other than competitive bidding, the Contractor shall make records related to this Contract available to Omnitrans, the Secretary of Transportation and the Comptroller General or any authorized officer or employee of any of them for the purposes of conducting an audit and inspection.
- C. Contractor shall maintain all books, records, accounts and reports required under this Contract for a period of not less than three years after the date of termination or expiration of this Contract, except in the event of litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of this Contract, in which case Contractor agrees to maintain same until Omnitrans, the FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General, or any of their duly authorized representatives, have disposed of all such litigation, appeals, claims or exceptions related thereto.

RR – Page 3 Updated: 11132018

RR-04 FEDERAL FUNDING, INCORPORATION OF FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINSITRATION (FTA) TERMS, AND FEDERAL CHANGES

- A. This Contract includes, in part, certain Standard Terms and Conditions required by DOT, whether or not expressly set forth in the Contract provisions. All contractual provisions required by DOT, as set forth in FTA Circular 4220.1F, dated November 1, 2008 and revised March 18, 2013 (including any changes), and are hereby incorporated by reference. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, all FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control in the event of a conflict with other provisions contained in this Contract. Contractor shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act, or refuse to comply with any Omnitrans requests which would cause Omnitrans to be in violation of the FTA terms and conditions.
- B. Federal Transit Administration of the US Department of Transportation and all laws, regulations, guidelines, and provisions of the financial assistance agreement apply to this Contract and are incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein.
- C. Contractor shall at all times comply with all applicable federal laws and regulations, including without limitation FTA regulations, policies, procedures and directives, including those listed directly or by reference in Applicable Grant Agreements between Omnitrans and FTA, as they may be amended or promulgated from time to time during the term of this Contract collectively "Federal Requirements". These Federal Requirements may change and the changed Federal Requirements will apply to this Contract as required unless the Federal Government determines otherwise. Contractor's failure to so comply with the Federal Requirements shall constitute a material breach of this Contract.

RR-05 CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS (TITLE VI, ADA, EEO (EXCEPT SPECIAL DOL CONSTRUCTION CLAUSE *

A. Nondiscrimination - In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d, section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6102, section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12132, and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, national origin, sex, age, or disability. In addition, Contractor shall comply with applicable Federal implementing regulations and other implementing requirements FTA may issue.

B. Equal Employment Opportunity

(a) Race, Color, Creed, National Origin, Sex - In accordance with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, and Federal transit laws at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, Contractor shall comply with all applicable equal employment opportunity requirements of U.S. Department of Labor (U.S. DOL) regulations, "Office of

RR – Page 4 Updated: 11132018 Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor," 41 C.F.R. Parts 60 et seq., (which implement Executive Order No. 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive Order No. 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note), and with any applicable Federal statutes, executive orders, regulations, and Federal policies that may in the future affect activities undertaken in the course of the Contract. Contractor shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, creed, national origin, sex, or age. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. In addition, Contractor shall comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.

- (b) Age In accordance with section 4 of the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 623 and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, Contractor shall refrain from discrimination against present and prospective employees for reason of age. In addition, Contractor shall comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.
- (c) Disabilities In accordance with section 102 of the Americans with Disabilities Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 12112, Contractor shall comply with the requirements of U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, "Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment Provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act," 29 C.F.R. Part 1630, pertaining to employment of persons with disabilities. In addition, Contractor shall comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.
- (d) Contractor shall include these requirements in each subcontract, modified only if necessary to identify parties, as required by Federal regulations.

RR-06 DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) 49 CFR Part 26

Disadvantaged Business Enterprises

- A. This Contract is subject to the requirements of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 26, Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of Transportation Financial Assistance Programs. The agency's overall goal for DBE participation is 1%.
- B. Contractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. Contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of this DOT-assisted Contract. Failure by Contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this Contract, which may result in the termination of this Contract or such other remedy as Omnitrans deems

RR – Page 5 Updated: 11132018

- appropriate. Each subcontract Contractor signs with a subcontractor must include the assurance in this paragraph (*see* 49 CFR 26.13(b)).
- C. Bidders are required to document sufficient DBE participation to meet these goals or, alternatively, document adequate good faith efforts to do so, as provided for in 49 CFR 26.53. Award of this contract is conditioned on submission of the following concurrent with and accompanying sealed bid concurrent with and accompanying an initial proposal prior to award:
 - 1. The names and addresses of DBE firms that will participate in this contract;
 - 2. A description of the work each DBE will perform;
 - 3. The dollar amount of the participation of each DBE firm participating;
 - 4. Written documentation of the bidder's commitment to use a DBE subcontractor whose participation it submits to meet the contract goal;
 - 5. Written confirmation from the DBE that it is participating in the contract as provided in the prime contractor's commitment; and
 - 6. If the contract goal is not met, evidence of good faith efforts to do so.

Bidders must present the information required above as a matter of responsiveness with initial proposals prior to contract award] (see 49 CFR 26.53(3)).

The successful bidder will be required to report its DBE participation obtained through race-neutral means throughout the period of performance.

- D. Contractor is required to pay its subcontractors performing work related to this contract for satisfactory performance of that work no later than 7 days after the contractor's receipt of payment for that work from the Omnitrans. In addition, Contractor is required to return any retainage payments to those subcontractors within 30 days after the subcontractor's work related to his contract is satisfactorily completed.
- E. Contractor must promptly notify Omnitrans whenever a DBE subcontractor performing work related to this contract is terminated or fails to complete its work, and must make good faith efforts to engage another DBE subcontractor to perform at least the same amount of work. Contractor may not terminate any DBE subcontractor and perform that work through its own forces or those of an affiliate without prior written consent of Omnitrans.

RR – Page 6 Updated: 11132018

Required Clauses for Awards Exceeding \$2,000

RR-07

DAVIS-BACON AND COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACTS

Background and Application

The Davis-Bacon and Copeland Acts are codified at 40 USC 3141, et seq. and 18 USC 874. The Acts apply to grantee construction contracts and subcontracts that "at least partly are financed by a loan or grant from the Federal Government." 40 USC 3145(a), 29 CFR 5.2(h), 49 CFR 18.36(i) (5). The Acts apply to any construction contract over \$2,000. 40 USC 3142(a), 29 CFR 5.5(a). 'Construction,' for purposes of the Acts, includes "actual construction, alteration and/or repair, including painting and decorating." 29 CFR 5.5(a). The requirements of both Acts are incorporated into a single clause (see 29 CFR 3.11) enumerated at 29 CFR 5.5(a) and reproduced below.

The clause language is drawn directly from 29 CFR 5.5(a) and any deviation from the model clause below should be coordinated with counsel to ensure the Acts' requirements are satisfied.

Clause Language

Davis-Bacon and Copeland Anti-Kickback Acts

(1) **Minimum wages** - (i) All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR part 3)), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and mechanics.

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of paragraph (1)(iv) of this section; also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided that the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional

RR – Page 7 Updated: 11132018 classifications and wage rates conformed under paragraph (1)(ii) of this section) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the workers.

- (ii)(A) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefore only when the following criteria have been met:
- (1) Except with respect to helpers as defined as 29 CFR 5.2(n)(4), the work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and (2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and
- (3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination; and
- (4) With respect to helpers as defined in 29 CFR 5.2(n)(4), such a classification prevails in the area in which the work is performed.
- (B) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (C) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs (a)(1)(ii) (B) or (C) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.
- (iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.

RR – Page 8 Updated: 11132018

- (iv) If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program.
- (v)(A) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits only when the following criteria have been met:
- (1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and
- (2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and
- (3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.
- (B) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (C) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination with 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs (a) (1) (v) (B) or (C) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the Classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.
- (2) Withholding Omnitrans shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized

RR – Page 9 Updated: 11132018 representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor under this contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor, so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working on the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), all or part of the wages required by the contract, Omnitrans may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased.

- (3) Payrolls and basic records (i) Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937, or under the Housing Act of 1949, in the construction or development of the project). Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in section 1(b) (2) (B) of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.
- (ii)(A) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to the Omnitrans for transmission to the Federal Transit Administration. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under section 5.5(a) (3) (i) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5. This information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose and may be purchased from the Superintendent of Documents (Federal Stock Number 029-005-00014-1), U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, DC 20402. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors.
- (B) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following:

RR – Page 10 Updated: 11132018

- (1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be maintained under section 5.5(a)(3)(i) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5 and that such information is correct and complete;
- (2) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in Regulations, 29 CFR part 3;
- (3) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.
- (C) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by paragraph (a)(3)(ii)(B) of this section.
- (D) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under section 1001 of title 18 and section 231 of title 31 of the United States Code.
- (iii) The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph (a)(3)(i) of this section available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the Federal Transit Administration or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, the Federal agency may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.
- (4) Apprentices and trainees (i) Apprentices Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Bureau, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification

RR – Page 11 Updated: 11132018

of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the contractor's or subcontractors registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division of the U.S. Department of Labor determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination. In the event the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Bureau, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

(ii) <u>Trainees</u> - Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate that is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

(iii) <u>Equal employment opportunity</u> - The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under this part shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended and 29 CFR part 30.

RR – Page 12 Updated: 11132018

- (5) Compliance with Copeland Act requirements The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR part 3, which are incorporated by reference in this contract.
- (6) **Subcontracts** The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1) through (10) and such other clauses as the Federal Transit Administration may by appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5.
- (7) Contract termination: debarment A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.
- (8) Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract.
- (9) **Disputes concerning labor standards** Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting agency, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.
- (10) **Certification of eligibility** (i) By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
- (ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
- (iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001.

RR – Page 13 Updated: 11132018

RR-08

SEISMIC SAFETY REQUIREMENTS 42 U.S.C. 7701 et seq. 49 CFR Part 41

Applicability to Contracts

The Seismic Safety requirements apply only to contracts for the construction of new buildings or additions to existing buildings.

Flow Down

The Seismic Safety requirements flow down from FTA recipients and subrecipients to first tier contractors to assure compliance, with the applicable building standards for Seismic Safety, including the work performed by all subcontractors.

Model Clauses/Language

The regulations do not provide suggested language for third-party contract clauses. The following language has been developed by FTA.

Seismic Safety - The contractor agrees that any new building or addition to an existing building will be designed and constructed in accordance with the standards for Seismic Safety required in Department of Transportation Seismic Safety Regulations 49 CFR Part 41 and will certify to compliance to the extent required by the regulation. The contractor also agrees to ensure that all work performed under this contract including work performed by a subcontractor is in compliance with the standards required by the Seismic Safety Regulations and the certification of compliance issued on the project.

Required Clauses for Awards Exceeding \$10,000

RR-09

TERMINATION 49 U.S.C. Part 18 FTA Circular 4220.1F

Applicability to Contracts

All contracts (with the exception of contracts with nonprofit organizations and institutions of higher education,) in excess of \$10,000 shall contain suitable provisions for termination by the grantee including the manner by which it will be effected and the basis for settlement. (For contracts with nonprofit organizations and institutions of higher education the threshold is \$100,000.) In addition, such contracts shall describe conditions under which the contract may be terminated for default as well as conditions where the contract may be terminated because of circumstances beyond the control of the contractor.

Flow Down

The termination requirements flow down to all contracts in excess of \$10,000, with the exception of contracts with nonprofit organizations and institutions of higher learning.

RR – Page 14 Updated: 11132018

- a. **Termination for Convenience (General Provision)** Omnitrans may terminate this contract, in whole or in part, at any time by written notice to the Contractor when it is in the Government's best interest. The Contractor shall be paid its costs, including contract close-out costs, and profit on work performed up to the time of termination. The Contractor shall promptly submit its termination claim to Omnitrans to be paid the Contractor. If the Contractor has any property in its possession belonging to the Omnitrans, the Contractor will account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner the Omnitrans directs.
- b. **Opportunity to Cure (General Provision)** Omnitrans in its sole discretion may, in the case of a termination for breach or default, allow the Contractor an appropriately short period of time in which to cure the defect. In such case, the notice of termination will state the time period in which cure is permitted and other appropriate conditions

If Contractor fails to remedy to Omnitrans' satisfaction the breach or default of any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this Contract within ten (10) days after receipt by Contractor of written notice from Omnitrans setting forth the nature of said breach or default, Omnitrans shall have the right to terminate the Contract without any further obligation to Contractor. Any such termination for default shall not in any way operate to preclude Omnitrans from also pursuing all available remedies against Contractor and its sureties for said breach or default.

- c. Waiver of Remedies for any Breach In the event that Omnitrans elects to waive its remedies for any breach by Contractor of any covenant, term or condition of this Contract, such waiver by Omnitrans shall not limit Omnitrans remedies for any succeeding breach of that or of any other term, covenant, or condition of this Contract.
- d. **Termination for Default (Construction)** If the Contractor refuses or fails to prosecute the work or any separable part, with the diligence that will insure its completion within the time specified in this contract or any extension or fails to complete the work within this time, or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of this contract, Omnitrans may terminate this contract for default. Omnitrans shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature of the default. In this event, Omnitrans may take over the work and compete it by contract or otherwise, and may take possession of and use any materials, appliances, and plant on the work site necessary for completing the work. The Contractor and its sureties shall be liable for any damage to Omnitrans resulting from the Contractor's refusal or failure to complete the work within specified time, whether or not the Contractor's right to proceed with the work is terminated. This liability includes any increased costs incurred by the Omnitrans in completing the work.

The Contractor's right to proceed shall not be terminated nor the Contractor charged with damages under this clause if-

RR – Page 15 Updated: 11132018

- 1. The delay in completing the work arises from unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Contractor. Examples of such causes include: acts of God, acts of the Recipient, acts of another Contractor in the performance of a contract with the Recipient, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes; and
- 2. The contractor, within [10] days from the beginning of any delay, notifies Omnitrans in writing of the causes of delay. If in the judgment of Omnitrans, the delay is excusable, the time for completing the work shall be extended. The judgment of Omnitrans shall be final and conclusive on the parties, but subject to appeal under the Disputes clauses.

If, after termination of the Contractor's right to proceed, it is determined that the Contractor was not in default, or that the delay was excusable, the rights and obligations of the parties will be the same as if the termination had been issued for the convenience of Omnitrans.

Required Clauses for Awards Exceeding \$25,000

SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT*

- A. This Contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 49 CFR Part 29. As such, Contractor shall verify that none of the Contractor, its principals, as defined at 49 CFR 29.995, or affiliates, as defined at 49 CFR 29.905, are excluded or disqualified as defined at 49 CFR 29.940 and 29.945.
 - Contractor shall comply with 49 CFR 29, Subpart C and shall include the requirement to comply with 49 CFR 29, Subpart C in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into.
- B. By entering into this Contract, Contractor certifies that it shall comply with the requirements of 49 CFR 29, Subpart C throughout the period of this Contract. This certification is a material representation of fact relied upon by Omnitrans. If it is later determined that Contractor knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to remedies available to Omnitrans, the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment.

RR – Page 16 Updated: 11132018

Awards Exceeding \$100,000 by Statute

RR-011 COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL LOBBYING POLICY *

A. The Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C. 1352, requires that Contractors who apply or bid for an award of \$100,000 or more shall file the certification required by 49 CFR Part 20, "New Restrictions on Lobbying," attached hereto as the certification entitled, "Certification of Compliance with Federal Lobbying Requirements." As set forth in the certifications, each tier of subcontractors shall certify to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier shall also disclose the name of any registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 who has made lobbying contacts on its behalf with non-Federal funds with respect to that Federal contract, grant or award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Such disclosures shall be forwarded from tier to tier up to Omnitrans.

RR-012 CLEAN WATER AND CLEAN AIR REQUIREMENTS*

A. CLEAN WATER REQUIREMENTS

Contractor shall comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq., and all applicable clean water standards of the State of California and any state or local agency having jurisdiction. Contractor shall report each violation to Omnitrans. Omnitrans will, in turn, report each violation as required to FTA and the appropriate EPA Regional Office, and all other agencies having jurisdiction.

B. CLEAN AIR

Contractor shall comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 et seq. and all applicable Clean Air Standards of the State of California or any state or local agency having jurisdiction. Contractor shall report each violation to Omnitrans. Omnitrans will, in turn, report each violation as required to FTA, the appropriate EPA Regional Office and all other agencies having jurisdiction.

C. Contractor shall include this Article in each subcontract exceeding \$100,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.

RR – Page 17 Updated: 11132018

RR-013 NON-CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES

Activities Not Involving Construction. The Recipient agrees to comply, and assures the compliance of each subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, and other participant at any tier of the Project, with the employee protection requirements for nonconstruction employees of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, as amended, 40 U.S.C. §§ 3701 *et seq.*, in particular with the wage and hour requirements of section 102 of that Act at 40 U.S.C. § 3702, and with implementing U.S. DOL regulations, "Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Governing Federally Financed and Assisted Construction (also Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Nonconstruction Contracts Subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act)," 29 C.F.R. Part 5.

Required Clauses for Awards Exceeding the Simplified Acquisition Threshold (\$150,000)

RR-014 BUY AMERICA *

A. Contractor shall comply with 49 U.S.C. 5323(j) and 49 CFR Part 661, which provide that Federal funds may not be obligated unless steel, iron, and manufactured products used in FTA-funded projects are produced in the United States, unless a waiver has been granted by FTA or the product is subject to a general waiver. General waivers are listed in 49 C.F.R. 661.7, and include final assembly in the United States for 15 passenger vans and 15 passenger wagons produced by Chrysler Corporation, and microcomputer equipment and software. Separate requirements for rolling stock are set out at 49 U.S.C. 5323(j)(2)(C) and 49 C.F.R. 661.11. Rolling stock must be assembled in the United States and have a 60 percent domestic content.

Omnitrans may investigate Contractor's, any Subcontractor's, and any Supplier's compliance with this Article. If an investigation is initiated, Contractor, Subcontractor, or Supplier shall document its compliance, in accordance with 49 CFR 661.15, and cooperate with the investigation. Contractor shall incorporate the Buy America conditions set forth in this Article in every subcontract or purchase order and shall enforce such conditions.

B. FTA requires a Buy America certification to be submitted with the proposal, or the proposal shall be considered non-responsive.

RR – Page 18 Updated: 11132018

RR-015

BREACHES AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 49 CFR Part 18 FTA Circular 4220.1F

Applicability to Contracts

All contracts in excess of \$100,000 shall contain provisions or conditions which will allow for administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as may be appropriate. This may include provisions for bonding, penalties for late or inadequate performance, retained earnings, liquidated damages or other appropriate measures.

Flow Down

The Breaches and Dispute Resolutions requirements flow down to all tiers.

Disputes - Disputes arising in the performance of this Contract which are not resolved by agreement of the parties shall be decided in writing by the Omnitrans. This decision shall be final and conclusive unless within ten (10) days from the date of receipt of its copy, the Contractor mails or otherwise furnishes a written appeal to Omnitrans Construction Manager. In connection with any such appeal, the Contractor shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard and to offer evidence in support of its position. The decision of Omnitrans Project Manager shall be binding upon the Contractor and the Contractor shall abide be the decision.

Performance During Dispute - Unless otherwise directed by Omnitrans, Contractor shall continue performance under this Contract while matters in dispute are being resolved.

Claims for Damages - Should either party to the Contract suffer injury or damage to person or property because of any act or omission of the party or of any of his employees, agents or others for whose acts he is legally liable, a claim for damages therefore shall be made in writing to such other party within a reasonable time after the first observance of such injury of damage.

Remedies - Unless this contract provides otherwise, all claims, counterclaims, disputes and other matters in question between Omnitrans and the Contractor arising out of or relating to this agreement or its breach will be decided by arbitration if the parties mutually agree, or in a court of competent jurisdiction within the State in which Omnitrans is located.

Rights and Remedies - The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and remedies available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. No action or failure to act by Omnitrans, or Contractor shall constitute a waiver of any right or duty afforded any of them under the Contract, nor shall any such action or failure to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in writing.

RR – Page 19 Updated: 11132018

Transport of Property or Persons

RR-016 CARGO PREFERENCE*

A. Applicability

The following Article applies to federally funded contracts involving equipment, materials, or commodities which may be transported by ocean vessels

B. USE OF UNITED STATES FLAG VESSELS

Contractor shall use privately owned United States-Flag commercial vessels to ship at least 50 percent of the gross tonnage (computed separately for dry bulk carriers, dry cargo liners, and tankers) involved, whenever shipping any equipment, material, or commodities pursuant to this Contract to the extent such vessels are available at fair and reasonable rates for United States-Flag commercial vessels.

Contractor shall furnish within 20 working days following the date of loading for shipments originating within the United States or within 30 working days following the date of leading for shipments originating outside the United States, a legible copy of a rated, "onboard" commercial ocean bill-of-lading in English for each shipment of cargo described in the preceding paragraph to the Division of National Cargo, Office of Market Development, Maritime Administration, Washington, DC 20590 and to Omnitrans (through Contractor in the case of a subcontractor's bill-of-lading.)

Contractor shall include these requirements in all subcontracts issued pursuant to this Contract when the subcontract may involve the transport of equipment, material, or commodities by ocean vessel.

RR-017 FLY AMERICA

A. Applicability

This Article applies to federally funded contracts if the contract or subcontracts may involve the international transportation of goods, equipment, or personnel by air.

B. Contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. 40118 (the "Fly America" Act) in accordance with the General Services Administration's regulations at 41 CFR Part 301-10, which provide that recipients and sub recipients of Federal funds and their contractors are required to use U.S. Flag air carriers for U.S Government-financed international air travel and transportation of their personal effects or property, to the extent such service is available, unless travel by foreign air carrier is a matter of necessity, as defined by the Fly America Act. Contractor shall submit, if a foreign air carrier was used, an appropriate certification or memorandum adequately explaining why service by a U.S. flag air carrier was not

RR – Page 20 Updated: 11132018 available or why it was necessary to use a foreign air carrier and shall, in any event, provide a certificate of compliance with the Fly America requirements. Contractor agrees to include the requirements of this section in all subcontracts that may involve international air transportation.

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES

RR-018

DAVIS-BACON AND COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACTS

Background and Application

The Davis-Bacon and Copeland Acts are codified at 40 USC 3141, *et seq.* and 18 USC 874. The Acts apply to grantee construction contracts and subcontracts that "at least partly are financed by a loan or grant from the Federal Government." 40 USC 3145(a), 29 CFR 5.2(h), 49 CFR 18.36(i) (5). The Acts apply to any construction contract over \$2,000. 40 USC 3142(a), 29 CFR 5.5(a). 'Construction,' for purposes of the Acts, includes "actual construction, alteration and/or repair, including painting and decorating." 29 CFR 5.5(a). The requirements of both Acts are incorporated into a single clause (*see* 29 CFR 3.11) enumerated at 29 CFR 5.5(a) and reproduced below.

The clause language is drawn directly from 29 CFR 5.5(a) and any deviation from the model clause below should be coordinated with counsel to ensure the Acts' requirements are satisfied.

Clause Language

Davis-Bacon and Copeland Anti-Kickback Acts

(1) **Minimum wages** - (i) All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR part 3)), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and mechanics.

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of paragraph (1)(iv) of this section; also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics

RR – Page 21 Updated: 11132018

shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided that the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional classifications and wage rates conformed under paragraph (1)(ii) of this section) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the workers.

- (ii)(A) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefore only when the following criteria have been met:
- (1) Except with respect to helpers as defined as 29 CFR 5.2(n)(4), the work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and
- (2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and
- (3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination; and
- (4) With respect to helpers as defined in 29 CFR 5.2(n)(4), such a classification prevails in the area in which the work is performed.
- (B) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (C) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination. Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs (a)(1)(ii) (B) or (C) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification

RR – Page 22 Updated: 11132018 under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.

- (iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.
- (iv) If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program.
- (v)(A) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits only when the following criteria have been met:
- (1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and
- (2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and
- (3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.
- (B) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (C) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination with 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.

RR – Page 23 Updated: 11132018

- (D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs (a) (1) (v) (B) or (C) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the Classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.
- (2) Withholding Omnitrans shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor under this contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor, so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working on the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), all or part of the wages required by the contract, Omnitrans may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased.
- (3) Payrolls and basic records (i) Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937, or under the Housing Act of 1949, in the construction or development of the project). Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in section 1(b) (2) (B) of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.

(ii)(A) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to the Omnitrans for transmission to the Federal Transit Administration. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under section 5.5(a) (3) (i) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5. This information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose and may be purchased from the Superintendent of Documents (Federal Stock Number 029-005-00014-1), U.S.

RR – Page 24 Updated: 11132018 Government Printing Office, Washington, DC 20402. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors.

- (B) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following:
- (1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be maintained under section 5.5(a)(3)(i) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5 and that such information is correct and complete;
- (2) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in Regulations, 29 CFR part 3;
- (3) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.
- (C) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by paragraph (a)(3)(ii)(B) of this section.
- (D) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under section 1001 of title 18 and section 231 of title 31 of the United States Code.
- (iii) The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph (a)(3)(i) of this section available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the Federal Transit Administration or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, the Federal agency may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.
- (4) **Apprentices and trainees** (i) <u>Apprentices</u> Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Bureau, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the

RR – Page 25 Updated: 11132018

Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the contractor's or subcontractors registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division of the U.S. Department of Labor determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination. In the event the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Bureau, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

(ii) Trainees - Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate that is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no longer be

> RR – Page 26 Updated: 11132018

permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

- (iii) <u>Equal employment opportunity</u> The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under this part shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended and 29 CFR part 30.
- (5) Compliance with Copeland Act requirements The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR part 3, which are incorporated by reference in this contract.
- (6) **Subcontracts** The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1) through (10) and such other clauses as the Federal Transit Administration may by appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5.
- (7) Contract termination: debarment A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.
- (8) Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract.
- (9) **Disputes concerning labor standards** Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting agency, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.
- (10) Certification of eligibility (i) By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
- (ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
- (iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001.

RR – Page 27 Updated: 11132018

RR-019 CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT *

A. Applicability

This Article applies to federally funded construction contracts over \$2,000 (including ferry vessels), rolling stock purchases over \$2,500 and to operations/management contracts over \$2,500 (except transportation services)

- B. Pursuant to the Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Non-construction Contracts subject to the Federal Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, 40 U.S.C.A. § 327 through 332 as implemented by U.S. Department of Labor regulations, 29 CFR 5.5 (b) and (c) Contractor and Subcontractor's contracting for any part of the Contract work shall comply with the following:
 - 1. **Overtime requirements** Neither Contractor nor any Subcontractor contracting for any part of the Contract work that requires or involves the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.
 - 2. Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages In the event of any violation of the Article set forth in paragraph (1) of this Article Contractor and any Subcontractor responsible therefore shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, Contractor and Subcontractor shall be liable to the United States for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this Article, in the sum of ten dollars (\$10) for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this Article.
 - 3. Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages Omnitrans shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any monies payable on account of work performed by Contractor or Subcontractor under the Contract or any other Federal contract with Contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by Contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of Contractor or Subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2) of this Article.

RR – Page 28 Updated: 11132018

- 4. **Subcontracts** Contractor or Subcontractor shall insert this Article in any Subcontracts and also an Article requiring the Subcontractors to include this Article in any lower tier Subcontracts. Contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any Subcontractor or lower tier Subcontractor with this Article.
- 5. **Payrolls and basic records** The records to be maintained hereinabove shall be made available by Contractor or Subcontractor for inspection, copying, or transcription by Omnitrans and U.S. Dept. of Labor. Contractor and Subcontractor shall maintain payrolls and basic records during the course of the work and shall preserve them for a period of three (3) years from the completion of the Contract for all laborers and mechanics, including guards and watchmen, working on the Contract. Such records shall contain the name and address of each such employee, social security number, correct classifications, hourly rates of wages paid, daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid.

RR-020 BONDING REQUIREMENTS

Applicability to Contracts

For those construction or facility improvement contracts or subcontracts exceeding \$100,000, FTA may accept the bonding policy and requirements of the recipient, provided that they meet the minimum requirements for construction contracts as follows:

- A. A bid guarantee from each bidder equivalent to five (5) percent of the bid price. The "bid guarantees" shall consist of a firm commitment and may be in any of the following forms:

 (a) cash; (b) cashier's check payment to Omnitrans; (c) a certified check payable to the city; or (d) a bidder's bond executed by an admitted surety insurer. Such as a bid bond, certifies check, or other negotiable instrument accompanying a bid as assurance that the bidder will, upon acceptance of his bid, execute such contractual documents as may be required within the time specified.
- B. A performance bond on the part of the Contractor for 100 percent of the contract price. A "performance bond" is one executed in connection with a contract to secure fulfillment of all the contractor's obligations under such contract.
- C. A payment bond on the part of the Contractor for 100 percent of the contract price. A "payment bond" is one executed in connection with a contract to assure payment, as required by law, of all persons supplying labor and material in the execution of the work provided for in the contract.

RR – Page 29 Updated: 11132018

RR-021

SEISMIC SAFETY REQUIREMENTS 42 U.S.C. 7701 et seq. 49 CFR Part 41

Applicability to Contracts

The Seismic Safety requirements apply only to contracts for the construction of new buildings or additions to existing buildings.

Flow Down

The Seismic Safety requirements flow down from FTA recipients and subrecipients to first tier contractors to assure compliance, with the applicable building standards for Seismic Safety, including the work performed by all subcontractors.

Model Clauses/Language

The regulations do not provide suggested language for third-party contract clauses. The following language has been developed by FTA.

Seismic Safety - The contractor agrees that any new building or addition to an existing building will be designed and constructed in accordance with the standards for Seismic Safety required in Department of Transportation Seismic Safety Regulations 49 CFR Part 41 and will certify to compliance to the extent required by the regulation. The contractor also agrees to ensure that all work performed under this contract including work performed by a subcontractor is in compliance with the standards required by the Seismic Safety Regulations and the certification of compliance issued on the project.

NON-CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES

Activities Not Involving Construction. The Recipient agrees to comply, and assures the compliance of each subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, and other participant at any tier of the Project, with the employee protection requirements for nonconstruction employees of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, as amended, 40 U.S.C. §§ 3701 *et seq.*, in particular with the wage and hour requirements of section 102 of that Act at 40 U.S.C. § 3702, and with implementing U.S. DOL regulations, "Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Governing Federally Financed and Assisted Construction (also Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Nonconstruction Contracts Subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act)," 29 C.F.R. Part 5.

RR – Page 30 Updated: 11132018

TRANSIT OPERATIONS

RR-022 TRANSIT EMPLOYEE PROTECTIVE ARRANGEMENTS *

A. Applicability

Subject to the limitations in Sections B, C, and D, this Article applies if this Contract involves transit operations to be performed by employees of a Contractor recognized by FTA to be a transit operator, and if FTA has determined that it is financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance.

B. General Transit Employee Protective Requirements

If FTA has determined that this Contract involves transit operations financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance (other than Federal assistance authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5310(a)(2) or 49 U.S.C. § 5311), and if the U.S. Secretary of Transportation has determined that the employee protective requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b) are necessary or appropriate for Omnitrans under this Contract, then Contractor shall perform the transit operations work under the Contract in compliance with terms and conditions, (a) determined by the U.S. Secretary of Labor to meet the employee protective requirements of 49 U.S.C. A 5333(b), and U.S. Department of Labor ("U. S. DOL") guidelines at 29 C.F.R. Part 215, and any amendments thereto, and (b) stated in a U. S. DOL letter of certification to FTA, the date of which is set forth in the applicable Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement with Omnitrans, and which is incorporated in the Form of Contract as a Contract Document entitled "U. S. DOL Certification".

C. Transit Employee Protective Requirements for Projects Authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5310(a) (2) for Elderly Individuals and Individuals with Disabilities

If FTA has determined that this Contract involves transit operations financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5310(a)(2), and if the U.S. Secretary of Transportation has determined or determines in the future that the employee protective requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b) are necessary or appropriate for Omnitrans under the Contract, Contractor shall perform the Work in compliance with the terms and conditions determined, (a) by the U.S. Secretary of Labor to meet the requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b), U.S. DOL guidelines at 29 C.F.R. Part 215, and any amendments thereto, and (b) stated in the U.S. DOL's letter of certification to FTA, the date of which is set forth in the applicable Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement with Omnitrans, and which is incorporated in the Form of Contract as a Contract Document entitled "U. S. DOL Certification".

RR – Page 31 Updated: 11132018

D. Transit Employee Protective Requirements for Projects Authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5311 in Nonurbanized Areas

If FTA has determined that this Contract involves transit operations financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5311, Contractor shall comply with the terms and conditions of the Special Warranty for the Nonurbanized Area Program agreed to by the U.S. Secretaries of Transportation and Labor, dated May 31, 1979, and the procedures implemented by U.S. DOL or any revision thereto.

E. **Indemnity**

Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless Omnitrans, and its Board Members, employees and agents from and against all liability, claims, demands actions, costs, judgments, penalties, damages, losses and expenses arising out of or in connection with Contractor's failure to comply with or failure to carry out its responsibilities under all applicable provisions of Sections B, C and D of this Article.

CHARTER BUS OPERATION

Charter Service Operations.

The Recipient agrees that neither it nor any public transportation operator performing work in connection with a Project financed under 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 or under 23 U.S.C. §§ 133 or 142, will engage in charter service operations, except as authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5323(d) and FTA regulations, "Charter Service," 49 C.F.R. Part 604, and any Charter Service regulations or FTA directives that may be issued, except to the extent that FTA determines otherwise in writing. The Charter Service Agreement the Recipient has selected in its latest annual Certifications and Assurances is incorporated by reference and made part of the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement for the Project. If the Recipient has failed to select the Charter Service Agreement in its latest annual Certifications and Assurances to FTA and does conduct charter service operations prohibited by FTA's Charter Service regulations, the Recipient understands and agrees that: (1) the requirements of FTA's Charter Service regulations and any amendments thereto will apply to any charter service it or its subrecipients, lessees, third party contractors, or other participants in the Project provide; (2) the definitions of FTA's Charter Service regulations will apply to the Recipient's charter operations, and (3) a pattern of violations of FTA's Charter Service regulations may require corrective measures and imposition of remedies, including barring the Recipient, subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, or other participant in the Project operating public transportation under the Project from receiving Federal financial assistance from FTA, or withholding an amount of Federal assistance as set forth in Appendix D to FTA's Charter Service regulations.

> RR – Page 32 Updated: 11132018

SCHOOL BUS OPERATIONS

The Recipient agrees that neither it nor any public transportation operator performing work in connection with a Project financed under 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 or under 23 U.S.C. §§ 133 or 142, will engage in school transportation operations for the transportation of students or school personnel exclusively in competition with private school transportation operators, except as authorized by 49 U.S.C. §§ 5323(f) or (g), as applicable, and FTA regulations, "School Bus Operations," 49 C.F.R. Part 605 to the extent consistent with 49 U.S.C. §§ 5323(f) or (g), in accordance with any School Transportation Operations regulations or FTA directives that may be issued at a later date, except to the extent that FTA determines otherwise in writing. The School Transportation Operations Agreement the Recipient has selected in its latest annual Certifications and Assurances is incorporated by reference and made part of the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement for the Project. If the Recipient has failed to select the School Transportation Agreement in its latest annual Certifications and Assurances to FTA and does conduct school transportation operations prohibited by FTA's School Bus Operations regulations, 49 C.F.R. Part 605, to the extent those regulations are consistent with 49 U.S.C. §§ 5323(f) or (g), the Recipient understands and agrees that: (1) the requirements of FTA's School Bus Operations regulations, 49 C.F.R. Part 605, to the extent consistent with 49 U.S.C. §§ 5323(f) or (g), will apply to any school transportation service it or its subrecipients, lessees, third party contractor, or other participants in the project provide, (2) the definitions of FTA's School Bus Operations regulations will apply to the Recipient's school transportation operations, and (3) if there is a violation of FTA's School Bus Operations regulations, to the extent consistent with 49 U.S.C. §§ 5323(f) or (g), FTA will bar the Recipient, subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, or other Project participant operating public transportation that has violated FTA's School Bus Operations regulations, 49 C.F.R. Part 605, to the extent consistent with 49 U.S.C. §§ 5323(f) or (g), from receiving Federal transit assistance in an amount FTA considers appropriate.

RR-023 ALCOHOL AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE PROGRAM *

A. Applicability

This Article applies to federally funded contracts for transit operations.

B. FTA Prevention of Alcohol Misuse and Prohibited Drug Use in Transit Operations Regulations

Contractor and its Subcontractors shall comply with the FTA anti-drug and alcohol misuse regulations (49 CFR Part 655) and the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) Procedures for Transportation Workplace Drug and Alcohol Testing Programs (49 CFR Part 40) to the full extent that they are, by their terms, applicable to Contractor and its Subcontractors. The regulations apply to all "contractors" that have "covered employees" that perform "safety sensitive functions" as those terms are defined in the regulations.

RR – Page 33 Updated: 11132018

C. Certificate of Compliance

The CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH 49 CFR PARTS 655, PREVENTION OF ALCOHOL MISUSE AND PROHIBITED DRUG USE IN TRANSIT, submitted by Contractor prior to award, is incorporated as part of the Contract Documents.

D. Drug and Alcohol Testing Program

In the event that any part of the Work under this Contract falls within the scope of 49 CFR Part 655, Contractor, and its Subcontractors (as applicable), shall establish and implement a drug and alcohol testing program that complies with 49 CFR Parts 653 and 654, produce any documentation necessary to establish its compliance with Parts 653 and 654, and permit any authorized representative of the United States Department of Transportation or its operating administrations, the State Oversight Agency of California, or Omnitrans, to inspect the facilities and records associated with the implementation of the drug and alcohol testing program as required under 49 CFR Parts 653 and 654 and review the testing process. Contractor shall annually certify its compliance with Parts 653 and 65. To certify compliance the contractor shall use the "Substance Abuse Certifications" in the "Annual List of Certifications and Assurances for Federal Transit Administration Grants and Cooperative Agreements," which is published annually in the Federal Register.

E. Alcohol and Drug Free Workplace Program

In addition to the above, for Work performed on Omnitrans property, Contractor shall provide an Alcohol and Drug-free Workplace Program in accordance with FTA requirements found at http://transit-safety.fta.dot.gov/DrugAndAlcohol/default.asp

PLANNING, RESEARCH, DEVELOPMENT AND DEMONSTRATION PROJECTS

PATENT RIGHTS

a. General. If any invention, improvement, or discovery of the Recipient or of any subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, or other participant at any tier of the Project is conceived or first actually reduced to practice in the course of or under the Project, and that invention, improvement, or discovery is patentable under the laws of the United States of America or any foreign country, the Recipient agrees to notify FTA immediately and provide a detailed report in a format satisfactory to FTA.

b. Federal Rights. The Recipient agrees that its rights and responsibilities, and those of each

RR – Page 34 Updated: 11132018 subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, or other participant at any tier of the Project, pertaining to that invention, improvement, or discovery will be determined in accordance with applicable Federal laws and regulations, including any waiver thereof. Absent a determination in writing to the contrary by the Federal Government, the Recipient agrees to transmit to FTA those rights due the Federal Government in any invention, improvement, or discovery resulting from that subagreement, third party contract, third party subcontract, or arrangement, as specified in 35 U.S.C. §§ 200 et seq., and U.S. Department of Commerce regulations, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," 37 C.F.R. Part 401, irrespective of the status of the Recipient, subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor or other participant in the Project (i.e., a large business, small business, State government, State instrumentality, local government, Indian tribe, nonprofit organization, institution of higher education, or individual).

c. License Fees and Royalties. FTA considers income earned from license fees and royalties for patents, patent applications, and inventions produced under the Project to be program income. Except to the extent FTA determines otherwise in writing, as provided in 49 C.F.R. Parts 18 and 19, the Recipient has no obligation to the Federal Government with respect to that program income, apart from compliance with 35 U.S.C. §§ 200 et seq., which applies to patent rights developed under a research project.

RIGHTS IN DATA AND COPYRIGHTS

a. Definition. The term "subject data," as used in this Section 18 of this Master Agreement means recorded information, whether or not copyrighted, that is delivered or specified to be delivered under the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement for the Project. Examples include, but are not limited to: computer software, standards, specifications, engineering drawings and associated lists, process sheets, manuals, technical reports, catalog item identifications, and related information. "Subject data" do not include financial reports, cost analyses, or other similar information used for Project administration.

b. General. The following restrictions apply to all subject data first produced in the performance of the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement for the Project:

- (1) Except for its own internal use, the Recipient may not publish or reproduce subject data in whole or in part, or in any manner or form, nor may the Recipient authorize others to do so, without the prior written consent of the Federal Government, unless the Federal Government has previously released or approved the release of such data to the public.
- (2) The restrictions on publication of Paragraph 18.b(1) of this Master Agreement, however, do not apply to a Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement with an institution of higher learning.
- c. Federal Rights in Data and Copyrights. The Recipient agrees to provide to the Federal Government a royalty-free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, for Federal Government purposes the subject data described in this Subsection 18.c of this Master Agreement. As used herein, "for Federal Government purposes," means use only for the direct purposes of the Federal Government. Without the copyright owner's

RR – Page 35 Updated: 11132018 consent, the Federal Government may not provide or otherwise extend to other parties the Federal Government's license to:

- (1) Any subject data developed under the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement for the Project, or under a subagreement, lease, third party contract or other arrangement at any tier of the Project, supported with Federal assistance derived from the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement for the Project, whether or not a copyright has been obtained; and
- (2) Any rights of copyright to which a Recipient, subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, or other participant at any tier of the Project purchases ownership using Federal assistance.
- d. Special Federal Rights in Data for Research, Development, Demonstration, and Special Studies Projects. In general, FTA's purpose in providing Federal assistance for a research, development, demonstration, or special studies Project is to increase transportation knowledge, rather than limit the benefits of the Project to Project participants. Therefore, when the Project is completed, the Recipient agrees to provide a Project report that FTA may publish or make available for publication on the Internet. In addition, the Recipient agrees to provide other reports pertaining to the Project that FTA may request. The Recipient agrees to identify clearly any specific confidential, privileged, or proprietary information it submits to FTA. In addition, except to the extent that FTA determines otherwise in writing, the Recipient of Federal assistance to support a research, development, demonstration, or a special studies Project agrees that, in addition to the rights in data and copyrights that it must provide to the Federal Government as set forth in Subsection 18.c of this Master Agreement, FTA may make available to any FTA recipient, subrecipient, third party contractor, third party subcontractor or other participant at any tier of the Project, either FTA's license in the copyright to the subject data or a copy of the subject data. If the Project is not completed for any reason whatsoever, all data developed under the Project shall become subject data as defined in Subsection 18.a of this Master Agreement and shall be delivered as the Federal Government may direct. This Subsection 18.d, however, does not apply to adaptations of automatic data processing equipment or programs for the Recipient's use when the costs thereof are financed with Federal assistance through an FTA capital program.
- e. License Fees and Royalties. FTA considers income earned from license fees and royalties for copyrighted material, or trademarks produced under the Project to be program income. Except to the extent FTA determines otherwise in writing, as provided in 49 C.F.R. Parts 18 and 19, the Recipient has no obligation to the Federal Government with respect to that program income, apart from compliance with 35 U.S.C. §§ 200 et seq., which applies to patent rights developed under a research project.
- f. Hold Harmless. Except as prohibited or otherwise limited by State law or except to the extent that FTA determines otherwise in writing, upon request by the Federal Government, the Recipient agrees to indemnify, save, and hold harmless the Federal Government and its officers, agents, and employees acting within the scope of their official duties against any liability, including costs and expenses, resulting from any willful or intentional violation by the Recipient of proprietary rights, copyrights, or right of privacy, arising out of the publication, translation, reproduction, delivery, use, or disposition of any data furnished under the Project. The Recipient shall not be required to indemnify the Federal Government for any such liability caused by the wrongful acts of Federal employees or agents.

RR – Page 36 Updated: 11132018

- g. Restrictions on Access to Patent Rights. Nothing in Section 18 of this Master Agreement pertaining to rights in data shall either imply a license to the Federal Government under any patent or be construed to affect the scope of any license or other right otherwise granted to the Federal Government under any patent.
- h. Data Developed Without Federal Funding or Support. In connection with the Project, the Recipient may find it necessary to provide data to FTA developed without any Federal funding or support by the Federal Government. The requirements of Subsections 18.b, 18.c, and 18.d of this Master Agreement do not apply to data developed without Federal funding or support by the Federal Government, even though that data may have been used in connection with the Project. Nevertheless, the Recipient understands and agrees that the Federal Government will not be able to protect data from unauthorized disclosure unless that data is clearly marked "Proprietary" or "Confidential."
- i. Requirements to Release Data. To the extent required by U.S. DOT regulations, "Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Agreements with Institutions of Higher Education, Hospitals, and Other Non-Profit Organizations," at 49 C.F.R. § 19.36(d), or other applicable Federal laws or Federal regulations, the Recipient understands and agrees that the data and information it submits to the Federal Government may be required to be released in accordance with the Freedom of Information Act (or another Federal law or Federal regulation providing access to such records).

SPECIAL NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS FOR STATES

SPECIAL NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS FOR STATES

To the extent required by Federal law, the State agrees that, in administering any Federal assistance Program or Project supported by the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement, any request for proposals, solicitation, grant application, form, notification, press release, or other publication involving the distribution of FTA assistance for the Program or the Project shall indicate that FTA is the Federal agency that is providing the Federal assistance, the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number of the program from which the Federal assistance is authorized, as may be applicable, and the amount of Federal assistance FTA provided.

RR – Page 37 Updated: 11132018

MISCELLANEOUS SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

RR-024 ENERGY CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS

A. Applicability

This Article applies to all federally funded contracts.

B. Contractor shall comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act 42 USC §6321 et seq.

RR-025 RECYCLED PRODUCTS

A. Applicability

This Article applies to federally funded operations/management, construction, or materials & supplies contracts for items designated by the Environmental Protection Agency, when procuring \$10,000 or more per year.

- B. To the extent practicable and economically feasible, a competitive preference shall be given for products and services that conserve natural resources and protect the environment and are energy efficient.
- C. The Contractor agrees to comply with all the requirements of Section 6002 of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), as amended (42 U.S.C. 6962), including but not limited to the regulatory provisions of 40 CFR Part 247, and Executive Order 12873, as they apply to the procurement of the items designated in Subpart B of 40 CFR Part 247.

NATIONAL INTELLIGENT TRANSPORTATION SYSTEMS ARCHITECTURE AND STANDARDS

To the extent applicable, the Recipient agrees to conform to the National Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) Architecture and Standards as required by SAFETEA-LU § 5307(c), 23 U.S.C. § 512 note, and follow the provisions of FTA Notice, "FTA National ITS Architecture Policy on Transit Projects," 66 Fed. Reg. 1455 et seq., January 8, 2001, and any other implementing directives FTA may issue at a later date, except to the extent FTA determines otherwise in writing.

RR – Page 38 Updated: 11132018

RR-026 ADA ACCESS

A. Applicability

This Article applies to federally funded Architect & Engineer, Operations/Management, Rolling Stock Purchase, and Construction contracts

B. Access Requirements for Persons with Disabilities

Contractor shall comply with:

- 1. The requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5301(d), which states the Federal policy that elderly persons and persons with disabilities have the same right as other persons to use mass transportation service and facilities, and that special efforts shall be made in planning and designing those services and facilities to implement that policy;
- 2. All applicable requirements of section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 794, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps;
- 3. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq., which requires that accessible facilities and services be made available to persons with disabilities, including any subsequent amendments to that Act;
- 4. The Architectural Barriers Act of 1968, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4151 et seq., which requires that buildings and public accommodations be accessible to persons with disabilities, including any subsequent amendments to that Act; and
- 5. All applicable requirements of the following regulations and any subsequent amendments thereto:
 - (1) U.S. DOT regulations, "Transportation Services for Individuals with Disabilities (ADA)," 49 C.F.R. Part 37;
 - (2) U.S. DOT regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in Programs and Activities Receiving or Benefiting from Federal Financial Assistance," 49 C.F.R. Part 27;
 - (3) Joint U.S. Architectural and Transportation Barriers Compliance Board (U.S. ATBCB)/U.S. DOT regulations, "Americans With Disabilities (ADA) Accessibility Specifications for Transportation Vehicles," 36 C.F.R. Part 1192 and 49 C.F.R. Part 38;

RR – Page 39 Updated: 11132018

- (4) U.S. DOJ regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability in State and Local Government Services," 28 C.F.R. Part 35;
- (5) U.S. DOJ regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability by Public Accommodations and in Commercial Facilities," 28 C.F.R. Part 36;
- (6) U.S. General Services Administration (U.S. GSA) regulations, "Accommodations for the Physically Handicapped," 41 C.F.R. Subpart 101-19;
- (7) U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, "Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment Provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act," 29 C.F.R. Part 1630;
- (8) U.S. Federal Communications Commission regulations, "Telecommunications Relay Services and Related Customer Premises Equipment for the Hearing and Speech Disabled," 47 C.F.R. Part 64, Subpart F; and
- (9) U.S. ATBCB regulations, "Electronic and Information Technology Accessibility Standards," 36 C.F.R. Part 1194; and
- (10) FTA regulations, "Transportation for Elderly and Handicapped Persons," 49 C.F.R. Part 609;
- (11) Any implementing requirements FTA may issue.

NOT INCLUDED IN UPDATED POLICY

RR-01 ADMINISTRATIVE CODE *

A. Applicability

This Article applies to all contracts.

B. Compliance with §§1090 et. seq. and §§87100 et. seq. of the California Government Code

Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of §§1090 et. seq. and §§87100 et. seq. of the California Government Code. Without reducing or affecting its obligation to comply with any and all of said provisions, Contractor specifically covenants:

RR – Page 40 Updated: 11132018

- 1. Contractor shall not cause or permit any member, officer, or employee of Omnitrans to have any financial interest in the Contract;
- 2. Contractor shall not enter into any Subcontract involving services or property with a person or business prohibited from transacting such business with Omnitrans;
- 3. Contractor warrants and represents that to its knowledge no Board member, officer, or employee of Omnitrans has any interest, whether contractual, non-contractual, financial or otherwise, in this Contract, or in the business or any other contract or transaction of the Contractor or any Subcontractor and that if any such interest comes to Contractor's knowledge at any time, Contractor shall make a full and complete disclosure of all such information in writing to Omnitrans.

C. Campaign Contributions

Neither Contractor nor its Agents shall give or offer to give any campaign contribution to any member of Omnitrans Board of Directors in violation of the California Government Code §§84300 et seq., or of the Administrative Code. Contractor shall submit a Certification of Campaign Contributions with all COs of two hundred thousand dollars (\$200,000) or more.

RR-02 DISCRIMINATION *

A. Applicability

This Article applies to all contracts.

B. In connection with the performance of Work provided for under this Contract, Contractor agrees that it will not, on the grounds of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, medical condition, marital status, sex, sexual orientation, or age, discriminate or permit discrimination against any person or group of persons in any manner prohibited by Federal, State or local laws.

RR-03 WHISTLEBLOWER REQUIREMENTS *

A. Applicability

This Article applies to all contracts.

B. Contractor shall not adopt any rule, regulation, or policy preventing an employee from disclosing information to a government or law enforcement agency, where the employee believes the information discloses violation or noncompliance with a state or Federal regulation; nor shall Contractor retaliate against an employee for taking such actions as set forth in the t. seq.

RR – Page 41 Updated: 11132018

RR-04 PUBLIC RECORDS ACT *

A. Applicability

This Article applies to all contracts.

- B. Except as otherwise provided herein, all records, documents, drawings, plans, specifications, and all other information relating to the conduct of Omnitrans business, including all information and documents submitted by Contractor ("Records"), shall become the exclusive property of Omnitrans and shall be deemed public records. Said Records are subject to the provisions of the California Public Records Act (Government Code §6250 et. seq.). Omnitrans use and disclosure of its records are governed by this Act. Omnitrans will use its best efforts to inform the Contractor of any request for any financial records or documents marked "Trade Secret", "Confidential" or "Proprietary" provided by Contractor to Omnitrans. Omnitrans will not advise as to the nature or content of documents entitled to protection from disclosure under the California Public Records Act.
- C. In the event of litigation concerning the disclosure of any Records, Omnitrans sole involvement will be as a stakeholder, retaining the Records until otherwise ordered by a court. The submitting party, at its sole expense and risk, shall be fully responsible for any and all fees for prosecuting or defending any action concerning the Records and shall indemnify and hold Omnitrans harmless from all costs and expenses including attorney's fees in connection with any such action.

RR-05 PRIVACY ACT - 5 U.S.C. 552

Applicability to Contracts

When a grantee maintains files on drug and alcohol enforcement activities for FTA, and those files are organized so that information could be retrieved by personal identifier, the Privacy Act requirements apply to all contracts.

Flow Down

The Federal Privacy Act requirements flow down to each third party contractor and their contracts at every tier.

Model Clause/Language

The text of the following clause has not been mandated by statute or specific regulation, but has been developed by FTA.

Contracts Involving Federal Privacy Act Requirements - The following requirements apply to the Contractor and its employees that administer any system of records on behalf of the Federal Government under any contract:

RR – Page 42 Updated: 11132018

- (1) The Contractor agrees to comply with, and assures the compliance of its employees with, the information restrictions and other applicable requirements of the Privacy Act of 1974,
 - 5 U.S.C. § 552a. Among other things, the Contractor agrees to obtain the express consent of the Federal Government before the Contractor or its employees operate a system of records on behalf of the Federal Government. The Contractor understands that the requirements of the Privacy Act, including the civil and criminal penalties for violation of that Act, apply to those individuals involved, and that failure to comply with the terms of the Privacy Act may result in termination of the underlying contract.
- (2) The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract to administer any system of records on behalf of the Federal Government financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.

RR-06

VETERANS PREFERENCE

<u>Veterans Employment</u>. Contractors working on a capital project funded using FTA assistance shall give a hiring preference, to the extent practicable, to veterans (as defined in section 2108 of title 5) who have the requisite skills and abilities to perform the construction work required under the contract. This subsection shall not be understood, construed or enforced in any manner that would require an employer to give preference to any veteran over any equally qualified applicant who is a member of any racial or ethnic minority, female, an individual with a disability, or former employee.

END OF REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

RR – Page 43 Updated: 11132018



CONTRACT AGREEMENT

between

CONTRACTOR Bridgestone Americas Tire Operations, LLC) CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
200 4 th Avenue South – Mileage Sales Nashville, TN 37201	CONTRACT NO. MNT19-02
(hereinafter "CONTRACTOR") Contact: Rod Cravens, Field Manager Telephone: (951) 757-5574 Email: cravensrod@bfusa.com	Bus Tire Lease and Services))))))))))
And) Contract Amount: \$1,546,670)))))
Omnitrans 1700 West Fifth Street San Bernardino, CA 92411 (hereinafter "OMNITRANS")	Omnitrans Project Manager: Name: Omar Bryant Title: Maintenance Manager Telephone: (909) 379-7482 Email: omar.bryant@omnitrans.org Contract Administrator: Name: Christine Van Matre Title: Contract Administrator Telephone: (909) 379-7122 Email: christine.vanmatre@omnitrans.org



TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	SCOPE OF WORK	3
2.	PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE	3
3.	CONTRACT OPTIONS	4
4.	COMPENSATION	4
5.	INVOICING	4
6.	PAYMENT	5
7.	PERSONNEL ACCEPTANCE BY OMNITRANS	5
8.	ALCOHOL AND DRUG POLICY	6
9.	AUDIT AND INSPECTION OF RECORDS	7
10.	NOTIFICATION	7
11.	OMNITRANS' AND CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIVES	8
12.	DISPUTE RESOLUTION	9
13.	TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE	9
14.	TERMINATION FOR BREACH OF AGREEMENT	9
15.	ASSIGNMENT	. 11
16.	SUBCONTRACTING	. 11
17.	INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR	. 11
18.	INSURANCE	.12
19.	INDEMNITY	. 14
20.	REVISIONS	.14

21.	RIGHTS IN TECHNICAL DATA [this section intentionally left blank]	15
22.	OWNERSHIP OF REPORTS AND DOCUMENTS	15
23.	OWNERSHIP RIGHTS [this section intentionally left blank]	15
24.	WORK FOR HIRE	15
25.	SUBMITTAL OF CLAIMS BY CONTRACTOR	15
26.	EQUAL OPPORTUNITY	. 16
27.	STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE	. 16
28.	NOTIFICATION OF EMPLOYMENT OF OMNITRANS BOARD MEMBERS/ALTERNATES AND EMPLOYEES	. 16
29.	DISQUALIFYING POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS	. 17
30.	COMPLIANCE WITH LAW	. 17
31.	ADDITIONAL REGULATIONS	. 17
32.	COMPLIANCE WITH LOBBYING POLICIES	. 17
33.	PUBLIC RECORDS ACT	.18
34.	WAIVER/INVALIDITY	. 18
35.	FORCE MAJEURE	. 19
36.	CONFIDENTIALITY	. 19
37.	CONTRACTOR'S INTERACTION WITH THE MEDIA AND THE PUBLIC	. 19
38.	GOVERNING LAW	.20
39.	MODIFICATIONS TO AGREEMENT	.20
40.	PRECEDENCE	.20
41.	ENTIRE AGREEMENT	.20
ATTAC ATTAC	HMENT A – SCOPE OF WORK/TECHNICAL SPECIFICIATIONS HMENT B – REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS HMENT C – PRICING SCHEDULE	
$\Delta TT \Delta C$	HMENT D - PROHIBITING WEADONS IN THE WORKDLACE DOLLOW 707	

This Agreement is made and entered into as of this 1st day of February, 2019 by and between Omnitrans (hereinafter referred to as "OMNITRANS") and Bridgestone Americas Tire Operations, LLC (hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, OMNITRANS is a joint powers authority organized under Sections 6500 et seq. of the California Government Code with power to contract for services described in Exhibit A to this Agreement entitled "Attachment A, Scope of Work" (hereinafter referred to as "Work");

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR has indicated it is qualified to perform such services and (1) has reviewed all the available data furnished by OMNITRANS pertinent to the Work to be rendered; (2) has inspected and reviewed the Work to be rendered; (3) will exercise the ordinary care and skill expected of a practitioner in its profession; and (4) is willing to accept responsibility of performing the Work set forth in this Agreement for the compensation and in accordance with the terms, requirements and conditions herein specified;

NOW, THEREFORE, for the consideration hereinafter stated, the parties agree as follows:

1. SCOPE OF WORK

- A. CONTRACTOR will perform the Work and related tasks as described in Attachment A, Scope of Work hereto and is incorporated by reference into and made a part of this Agreement.
- B. This is a non-exclusive Agreement, whereby OMNITRANS may, at its sole discretion, augment or supplant the Work with its own forces. CONTRACTOR shall cooperate fully with OMNITRANS' staff that may be providing similar or the same Work for OMNITRANS.

2. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE

The term of this Agreement shall be from the date of execution of this Agreement and continue in effect through January 31, 2022, unless terminated as specified in Sections 13 and 14. All applicable indemnification provisions in this Agreement shall remain in effect following the termination of this Agreement.

Omnitrans' election to extend the Agreement beyond the Initial Term shall not diminish its right to terminate the Agreement for Omnitrans' convenience or CONTRACTORS default as provided elsewhere in this Agreement. The "maximum term" of this Agreement shall be the period extended from the date of execution through January 31, 2024, which encompasses the Initial Term, Option Year One and Option Year Two.

3. CONTRACT OPTIONS

- A. Omnitrans will have the unilateral right in the contract by which, for a specified time, Omnitrans may elect to purchase additional services called for by the contract, or may elect to extend the term of the contract. The requirements below apply:
 - Any options that were requested by Omnitrans and/or contained in the Contractor's PROPOSAL or offer must have been evaluated in making the contract award prior to exercising any such options.
 - 2) Since Contractor's proposed pricing for the option years and additional services are considered in evaluating the Contractor's original proposal and form the basis for awarding the contract, Contractor shall be bound by the proposal pricing for additional services and/or option years, unless otherwise provided herein.
- B. Omnitrans will provide a minimum of thirty days (30) written notice to the Contractor of Omnitrans' exercise of its option to extend the contract years. Omnitrans may give notice of its exercise of the option for additional services at any time during the term of the contract. The minimum time for the written notice may be waived by mutual agreement.

4. COMPENSATION

For CONTRACTOR's full and complete performance of its obligations under this Agreement, OMNITRANS shall pay CONTRACTOR on a FIXED PRICE basis at the fully burdened fixed rates shown in Attachment C, and subject to the maximum cumulative payment obligation.

OMNITRANS' maximum cumulative payment obligation under this Agreement shall not exceed One Million Five Hundred Forty-Three Thousand Six Hundred Seventy Dollars (\$1,543,670), including all amounts payable to CONTRACTOR for all costs, including but not limited to direct labor, other direct costs, subcontracts, indirect costs including, but not limited to, leases, materials, taxes, fees, insurance, and profit.

5. INVOICING

- A. Omnitrans will submit the Mileage Accounting to the Contractor monthly for invoice preparation.
- B. Contractor shall provide an invoice each month for the previous month's tire service charges and lease.
- C. Contractor shall submit invoices monthly in duplicate to:

OMNITRANS
Attn: Accounts Payable
1700 West Fifth Street
San Bernardino, CA 92411
Accountspayable@omnitrans.org

and

OMNITRANS
Attn: Maintenance Dept.
1700 West Fifth Street
San Bernardino, CA 92411

- D. Each invoice shall include, at minimum, the following information:
 - Contract number
 - Invoice number
 - Description of delivery
 - Delivery Date
 - Miles operated
 - Unit Price, extended price and applicable taxes and fees
 - Information as requested by OMNITRANS
 - Purchase Order Number

6. PAYMENT

OMNITRANS shall remit payment within thirty (30) calendar days of approval of the invoices by OMNITRANS' Project Manager.

In the event OMNITRANS should overpay CONTRACTOR, such overpayment shall not be construed as a waiver of OMNITRANS' right to obtain reimbursement for the overpayment. Upon discovering any overpayment, either on its own or upon notice of OMNITRANS, CONTRACTOR shall immediately reimburse OMNITRANS the entire overpayment or, at its sole discretion, OMNITRANS may deduct such overpayment amount from monies due to CONTRACTOR under this Agreement or any other Agreement between OMNITRANS and CONTRACTOR.

7. PERSONNEL ACCEPTANCE BY OMNITRANS

A. Omnitrans reserves the right to require the Contractor to rotate assignment of Contractor personnel or remove any such personnel from further duty at Omnitrans, without cause and without the right to recover damages by such personnel or by the Contractor from Omnitrans. Omnitrans will not engage

in any unlawful discriminatory practices in requiring the removal or rotation of personnel.

- B. If Omnitrans requires the removal of any Contractor personnel from duty, Omnitrans will attempt to provide the Contractor reasons for the removal demand. However, Omnitrans is not required to provide such reasons, the Contractor may not challenge such reasons, and the Contractor shall immediately remove and replace the individual personnel when requested to do so by Omnitrans.
- C. Contractor's personnel will be permanently assigned to Omnitrans, and all changes in assignment must be cleared by Omnitrans' Maintenance Manager or his/her designee. Omnitrans must be notified in writing when an assigned personnel resigns or when the Contractor terminates / removes any personnel assigned to the Agency.
- D. Contractor's personnel must be accepted by the Maintenance Manager or his/her designee prior to being assigned to Omnitrans.

8. ALCOHOL AND DRUG POLICY

Contractor shall establish and implement an alcohol and drug program that complies with 42 U.S.C. section 701-707, (the Drug Free Workplace Act of 1988). Contractor shall produce any documentation necessary to establish its compliance with sections 701-707. Failure to comply may result in non-payment or termination of the Agreement.

A. On an annual basis, and no later than February 15 of each year, Contractor shall submit to Project Manager and electronically to the Department of Transportation annual drug and alcohol testing data using the appropriate FTA prescribed forms. The report shall cover testing conducted during the previous calendar year. It shall be addressed as follows:

Omnitrans
Attn: Director of Maintenance
1700 West 5th Street
San Bernardino, CA 92411

B. Using the EZ format prescribed by the FTA for the annual report, Contractor shall send a quarterly drug and alcohol testing report to the Project Manager, with a copy to Omnitrans' Director of Human Resources. The quarterly report must be submitted no later than the 15th of the month following the close of each quarter (April, July, October, January).

9. AUDIT AND INSPECTION OF RECORDS

During normal business hours, Contractor agrees to provide Omnitrans, the FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General of the United States or any of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this Contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. Contractor also agrees, pursuant to 49 C. F. R. 633.17 to provide the FTA Administrator or the FTA's authorized representatives, including any FTA Project Management Oversight Contractor, access to Contractor's records and construction sites pertaining to a major capital project, defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a)1, which is receiving federal financial assistance through the programs described at 49 U.S.C. 5307, 5309 or 5311.

Contractor shall permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed.

Contractor shall maintain all books, records, accounts and reports required under this Contract for a period of not less than three years after the date of termination or expiration of this Contract, except in the event of litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of this Contract, in which case Contractor agrees to maintain same until Omnitrans, the FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General, or any of their duly authorized representatives, have disposed of all such litigation, appeals, claims or exceptions related thereto.

10. NOTIFICATION

All notices hereunder concerning this Agreement and the Work to be performed shall be physically transmitted by courier, overnight, registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid and addressed as follows:

To OMNITRANS:

To CONTRACTOR:

Omnitrans 1700 West Fifth Street San Bernardino, CA 92411 Attn: Christine Van Matre Contract Administrator

Bridgestone Americas Tire Operations, LLC 200 4th Avenue South – Mileage Sales Nashville, TN 37201 Attn: T.J. Morgan Contract Administrator (615) 937-1647 morganti@bfusa.com

11. OMNITRANS' AND CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIVES

A. OMNITRANS' Project Manager

Contracting Officer: OMNITRANS' CEO/General Manager or his authorized designee who has authority to execute contracts on behalf of OMNITRANS.

Project Manager: Omar Bryant, Maintenance Manager

- a. Except as expressly specified in this Agreement, the Contracting Officer may exercise any powers, rights and/or privileges that have been lawfully delegated by OMNITRANS. Nothing in this Agreement should be construed to bind OMNITRANS for acts of its officers, employees, and/or agents that exceed the delegation of authority specified herein.
- b. The Contracting Officer has delegated to the Project Manager certain powers and duties in connection with this Agreement. The Project Manager is the authorized representative of the Contracting Officer for matters related to this Agreement. The Project Manager or his/her designee is empowered to:
 - 1. Have general oversight of the Work and this Agreement, including the power to enforce compliance with this Agreement.
 - 2. Reserve the right to remove any portion of the Work from CONTRACTOR which have not been performed in accordance with the agreed upon specifications and subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
 - 3. Subject to the review and acceptance by OMNITRANS, negotiate with CONTRACTOR all adjustments pertaining to this Agreement for revision.
- c. In addition to the foregoing, the Project Manager shall have those rights and powers expressly set forth in other sections of this Agreement.

B. Contractor's Key Personnel

The following are CONTRACTOR's key personnel and their associated roles in the Work to be provided:

Name Role

Joe Leipart Division Manager (262) 490-3803

liepartjoe@bfusa.com
Warren Dickinson

(530)306-9483 dickinsonwarren@bfusa.com

Mileage Sales Manager

12. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Any disputes between the successful CONTRACTOR and OMNITRANS relating to the implementation or administration of the Contract shall be resolved in accordance with this section.

- A. The parties shall first attempt to resolve the dispute informally in meetings or communications between proposer and OMNITRANS.
- B. If the dispute remains unresolved fifteen (15) days after it first arises, proposer may request that Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager issue a recommended decision on the matter in dispute. Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager shall issue the recommended decision in writing and provide a copy to proposer.
- C. If the dispute remains unresolved after review by Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager, either party may seek judicial resolution of the dispute in an appropriate Court of the State of California.
- D. Pending final resolution of a dispute under this section, proposer shall proceed diligently with performance in accordance with the Contract and Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager's recommended decision.

13. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE

OMNITRANS may terminate this Agreement in whole but not in part for OMNITRANS' convenience. Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager shall terminate this Agreement by a thirty (30) days prior written Notice of Termination to CONTRACTOR specifying the nature, extent, and effective date of the termination. Upon the effective date of termination, CONTRACTOR shall immediately discontinue all Work affected and deliver all data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries, and other information and materials accumulated in

performing this Agreement, whether completed or in process, to Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager. Furthermore, CONTRACTOR shall be paid its close out costs including the remaining value of tread on leased tires mounted on buses and in spare stock retained by Omnitrans. OMNITRANS shall make an equitable adjustment in the Agreement for Work already performed but shall not allow anticipated profit on unperformed services other than those damages allowed in inventory buyout. Force Majeure shall apply.

14. TERMINATION FOR BREACH OF AGREEMENT

- A. If CONTRACTOR fails to perform any of the provisions of this Agreement or so fails to make progress as to endanger timely performance of this Agreement, OMNITRANS may give CONTRACTOR written notice of such default. If CONTRACTOR does not cure such default or provide a plan to cure such default which is acceptable to OMNITRANS within ten (10) calendar days permitted by OMNITRANS, then OMNITRANS may terminate this Agreement due to CONTRACTOR's breach of this Agreement.
- B. If a federal or state proceeding for relief of debtors is undertaken by or against CONTRACTOR, or if CONTRACTOR makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, then OMNITRANS may immediately terminate this Agreement.
- C. If CONTRACTOR violates Section 32, Compliance with Lobbying Policies, of this Agreement, then OMNITRANS may immediately terminate this Agreement.
- D. In the event OMNITRANS terminates this Agreement as provided in this Section, OMNITRANS may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as OMNITRANS may deem appropriate, Work similar in scope and level of effort to those so terminated for a reasonable period of time during the reprocurement process, and the CONTRACTOR shall be liable to OMNITRANS for all of its reasonable costs and damages.
- E. Upon payment in full for leased tires on buses and spare stock, all finished documents and materials procured under this Agreement shall become OMNITRANS' property upon date of such termination. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor retains any and all intellectual property rights that may be contained in such documents and materials that may be procured hereunder.
- F. If, after notice of termination of this Agreement under the provisions of this Section, it is determined for any reason that CONTRACTOR was not in default under the provisions of this Section, or that the default was excusable under the terms of this Agreement, the rights and obligations of

the parties shall be the same as if the notice of termination had been issued pursuant to Section 13, Termination for Convenience.

G. The rights and remedies of the parties provided in this Article shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this Agreement.

15. ASSIGNMENT

This Agreement, any interest herein or claim hereunder, may not be assigned by CONTRACTOR either voluntarily or by operation of law, nor may all or any part of this Agreement be subcontracted by CONTRACTOR, without the prior written consent of OMNITRANS. Consent by OMNITRANS shall not be deemed to relieve CONTRACTOR of its obligations to comply fully with all terms and conditions of this Agreement.

16. SUBCONTRACTING

OMNITRANS hereby consents to CONTRACTOR's subcontracting of portions of the Work to the parties identified below for the functions described in CONTRACTOR's proposal. CONTRACTOR shall include in each subcontract agreement the stipulation that CONTRACTOR, not OMNITRANS, is solely responsible for payment to the subcontractor for all amounts owing and that the subcontractor shall have no claim, and shall take no action against OMNITRANS, Member Agencies or officers, directors, employees or sureties thereof for nonpayment by CONTRACTOR.

Subcontractor's Name and Address

Work to Be Performed

N/A

17. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

CONTRACTOR's relationship to OMNITRANS in the performance of this Agreement is that of an independent Contractor. CONTRACTOR's personnel performing Work under this Agreement shall at all times be under CONTRACTOR's exclusive direction and control and shall be employees of CONTRACTOR and not employees of OMNITRANS. CONTRACTOR shall pay all wages, salaries and other amounts due its employees in connection with this Agreement and shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting them, such as social security, income tax withholding, unemployment compensation, workers' compensation and similar matters.

18. INSURANCE

A. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

1) General Requirements for Contractor

- a. Without limiting or diminishing the Contractor's obligation to indemnify or hold Omnitrans harmless, Contractor shall procure, prior to commencement of the services required under this contract and maintain for the duration of the contract at its own expense, insurance of the kinds and in the amounts as indicated below:
- Provide Omnitrans with valid original certificates of insurance and endorsements or copies of policy language showing Omnitrans as an additional insured.

2) Deductibles or Self-Insured Retention (SIR)

Any deductibles, self-insured retentions or programs of self-insurance must be declared to, and amounts over \$25,000 approved by Omnitrans. At the option of Omnitrans, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or SIR or Contractor shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration and defense expenses.

3) Other Insurance Provisions

a. Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability

Commercial General Liability insurance coverage, including but not limited to, premises liability, contractual liability, products and completed operations liability, personal and advertising injury covering claims which may arise from or out of Contractor's performance of its obligations hereunder and if Contractor's vehicles or mobile equipment are used in the performance of the obligations under this Agreement, then Contractor shall maintain liability insurance for all owned, non-owned or hired vehicles so used. Policy shall name Omnitrans, its officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers as additional insured as respects: liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of Contractor; products and completed operations of Contractor; premises owned, occupied or used by Contractor; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by Contractor. The coverage shall contain no special limitations of the scope of protection afforded Omnitrans, its officers. officials, employees, agents, and volunteers.

 For any claims related to this project, Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects Omnitrans, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers. Any insurance and/or deductibles and/or self-insured retentions or self-insured programs maintained by Omnitrans, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess of Contractor's insurance and shall not be construed as contributory.

- Contractor's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.
- 3. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled by either party, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to Omnitrans. If Contractor's insurer will not provide such endorsement, Contractor shall be obligated to provide immediate notice to Omnitrans of any action by the insurer to suspend, void, or cancel coverage.

b. Workers' Compensation

If the Contractor has employees as defined by the State of California, the Contractor shall maintain statutory Workers' compensation Insurance (Coverage A) as prescribed by the laws of the State of California. Policy shall include Employers' Liability (Coverage B) including Occupational Disease with limits not less than \$1,000,000 per person per accident. The policy shall be endorsed to waive subrogation in favor of Omnitrans and, if applicable, to provide a Borrowed Servant/Alternate Employer Endorsement.

c. Care, Custody, and Control

Contractor shall insure any Omnitrans property while under its Care, Custody, and Control according to the requirements listed in the insurance coverage required.

4) Acceptability of Insurers

Insurance companies shall be State of California admitted or approved and have a current **A.M. Best's** rating of no less than **A:VIII.**

5) Verification of Coverage

- a. Contractor shall furnish Omnitrans with original endorsements affecting coverage required by this clause. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. All insurance certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by Omnitrans before work commences.
- b. As an alternative, Contractor's insurer may provide complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the coverage required by these specifications.

c. In lieu of purchasing insurance and providing original endorsements and or certificates of insurance, the Contractor may provide proof of self-insurance; such proof must be to the satisfaction of Omnitrans.

6) Subcontractors

Contractor shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its policies or shall furnish separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor. All coverage for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein.

7) Notification of Terminated Insurance

Insurance shall not be terminated or expire without thirty (30) days written or electronic notice, and are required to be maintained in force until completion of the contract.

B. MINIMUM INSURANCE COVERAGE

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimum requirements shown below, Omnitrans requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or higher limits maintained by the Contractor.

- 1) Commercial General Liability including Products/Completed Operations: \$1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily and property damage liability and \$2,000,000 aggregate; Omnitrans shall be named as additional insured; provide sufficient documentation to evidence the required coverage.
- 2) Automobile Liability: \$1,000,000 combined single limit bodily and property damage liability per accident; *Omnitrans shall be named as Additional Insured;* provide sufficient documentation for Omnitrans to guarantee coverage.
- 3) Workers' Compensation: statutory limits or, a State-Approved program in an amount and form that meets all applicable requirements of the Labor Code of the State of California; waiver of subrogation that includes Omnitrans.
- **4) Employers Liability** Applicable to the work being performed, with a limit no less than \$1,000,000 per occurrence.

19. INDEMNITY

Except to the extent of negligence on the part of Omnitrans, and its member agencies, and their officers, directors, employees and agents, CONTRACTOR shall to the fullest extent permitted by law, indemnify, defend and hold harmless OMNITRANS, and its member agencies, and their officers, directors, employees and agents from and against any and all liability, expense (including, but not limited to, defense costs and reasonable attorneys' fees), third party claims of liability, expense (including but not limited to, reasonable defense costs and reasonable

attorneys' fees), claims, causes of action, and lawsuits for damages of any nature whatsoever, including, but not limited to, bodily injury, death, personal injury or property damage (including property of CONTRACTOR) arising out of, or resulting from any act, omission, fault, or negligence of CONTRACTOR, its officers, directors, employees, agents, Subcontractors or suppliers in the performance of this contract. This indemnity shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement and/or final payment thereunder.

20. REVISIONS

By written notice or order, OMNITRANS may, from time to time, order work suspension or make changes to this Agreement. Changes shall be mutually agreed to and incorporated into an amendment to this Agreement. Upon execution of an amendment, CONTRACTOR shall perform the Work, as amended.

Price Adjustments:

- A. Any change in the contract that causes an increase or decrease in price to Omnitrans, or the time required for the performance of the contract, must be approved as prescribed herein.
- B. An equitable adjustment in the compensation and schedule will be made upon an approved amendment.
- C. Contractor shall be liable for all costs resulting from, or for satisfactorily correcting, any and all unauthorized specification changes not properly ordered by written modification to the contract.
- D. Except as otherwise expressly provided in the Contract, when costs are a factor in any determination of a contract price adjustment, such costs shall be in accordance with the applicable cost principles of Subpart 31.2 of the Federal Acquisition Regulations (*FAR*) in effect at the onset of the Contract.

21. RIGHTS IN TECHNICAL DATA [this section intentionally left blank]

22. OWNERSHIP OF REPORTS AND DOCUMENTS

The originals of all letters, documents, reports and data produced under this Agreement shall be delivered to, and become the sole and exclusive property of OMNITRANS. Copies may be made for CONTRACTOR's records, but shall not be furnished to others without prior written authorization from OMNITRANS.

- 23. OWNERSHIP RIGHTS [this section intentionally left blank]
- 24. WORK FOR HIRE [this section intentionally left blank]

25. SUBMITTAL OF CLAIMS BY CONTRACTOR

CONTRACTOR shall file any and all claims with OMNITRANS' Project Manager in writing within sixty (60) days of the event or occurrence giving rise to the claim.

The claim shall be in sufficient detail to enable OMNITRANS to ascertain the claim's basis and amount, and shall describe the date, place and other pertinent circumstances of the event or occurrence giving rise to the claim and the indebtedness, obligation, injury, loss or damages allegedly incurred by CONTRACTOR.

Even though a claim may be filed and/or in review by OMNITRANS, CONTRACTOR shall continue to perform in accordance with this Agreement.

26. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

CONTRACTOR shall not discriminate against, or grant preferential treatment to, any individual or group, or any employee or applicant for employment because of race, age, religion, color, ethnicity, sex, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, political affiliation, sexual orientation, marital status or other status protected by law. CONTRACTOR shall take action to ensure that applicants and employees are treated without regard to the above.

27. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE

- A. CONTRACTOR shall perform and exercise, and require its subcontractors to perform and exercise due professional care and competence in the performance of the Work in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, completeness and coordination of the Work, it being understood that OMNITRANS will be relying upon such professional quality, accuracy, completeness and coordination in utilizing the Work. The foregoing obligations and standards shall constitute the "Standard of Performance" for purposes of this Agreement. The provisions of this paragraph shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement and/or final payment thereunder.
- B. All workers shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the Work assigned to them. OMNITRANS shall have the right, at its sole discretion, to require the immediate removal of CONTRACTOR's personnel at any level assigned to the performance of the Work at no additional fee or cost to OMNITRANS, if OMNITRANS considers such removal in its best interests and requests such removal in writing and such request is not done for illegal reasons. Further, an employee who is removed from performing Work under this Agreement under this Article shall not be re-assigned to perform Work in any other capacity under this Agreement without OMNITRANS' prior written approval.

28. NOTIFICATION OF EMPLOYMENT OF OMNITRANS BOARD MEMBERS/ALTERNATES AND EMPLOYEES

To ensure compliance with OMNITRANS' Ethics Policy, CONTRACTOR shall provide written notice to OMNITRANS disclosing the identity of any individual who

CONTRACTOR desires to employ or retain under a contract, and who (1) presently serves as a Board Member/Alternate or an employee of OMNITRANS, or (2) served as a Board Member/Alternate or an employee of OMNITRANS within the previous 12 months of the date of the proposed employment or retention by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR's written notice shall indicate whether the individual will be an officer, principal or shareholder of the entity and/or will participate in the performance of this Agreement.

29. DISQUALIFYING POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS

In the event of a proposed amendment to this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall provide prior to the execution of such amendment, a written statement disclosing any contribution(s) of \$250 or more made by CONTRACTOR or its subcontractor(s) to Omnitrans Board Members/Alternates or employees within the preceding twelve (12) months of the date of the proposed amendment. Applicable contributions include those made by any agent/person/entity on behalf of CONTRACTOR or subcontractor(s).

30. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW

CONTRACTOR shall familiarize itself with and perform the Work required under this Agreement in conformity with requirements and standards of OMNITRANS, municipal and public agencies, public and private utilities, special districts, and railroad agencies whose facilities and work may be affected by Work under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall also comply with all applicable Federal, state and local laws and ordinances.

31. ADDITIONAL REGULATIONS

- A. Additional regulatory requirements may be contained in the other contract sections and attachments hereto.
- B. Other regulations contain additional requirements for the Contractor regarding transportation services. Those include, but are not limited to:
 - California State Department of Transportation (DOT);
 - 2) Department of Motor Vehicles: and
 - 3) California Highway Patrol;
- C. The preceding list of requirements is not all-inclusive and the Contractor is required to stay up-to-date on regulations and must abide by any future regulations.

32. COMPLIANCE WITH LOBBYING POLICIES

A. CONTRACTOR agrees that if it is a Lobbyist Employer or if it has retained a Lobbying Firm or Lobbyist, as such terms are defined by OMNITRANS in

- its Ethics Policy, it shall comply or ensure that its Lobbying Firm and Lobbyist complies with OMNITRANS' Ethics Policy.
- B. If CONTRACTOR (Lobbyist Employer) or its Lobbying Firm or Lobbyist fails to comply, in whole or in part, with OMNITRANS' Ethics Policy, such failure shall be considered a material breach of this Agreement and OMNITRANS shall have the right to immediately terminate or suspend this Agreement.

33. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT

- A. All records, documents, drawings, plans, specifications and other material relating to conduct of OMNITRANS' business, including materials submitted by CONTRACTOR in its proposal and during the course of performing the Work under this Agreement, shall become the exclusive property of OMNITRANS and may be deemed public records. Said materials may be subject to the provisions of the California Public Records Act. OMNITRANS' use and disclosure of its records are governed by this Act.
- B. OMNITRANS will not advise as to the nature or content of documents entitled to protection from disclosure under the California Public Records Act, including interpretations of the Act or the definitions of trade secret, confidential or proprietary. OMNITRANS will accept materials clearly and prominently labeled "TRADE SECRET" or "CONFIDENTIAL" or "PROPRIETARY" as determined by CONTRACTOR. OMNITRANS will endeavor to notify CONTRACTOR of any request of the disclosure of such materials. Under no circumstances, however, will OMNITRANS be liable or responsible for the disclosure of any labeled materials whether the disclosure is required by law or a court order or occurs through inadvertence, mistake or negligence on the part of OMNITRANS or its officers, employees and/or contractors.
- C. In the event of litigation concerning the disclosure of any material submitted by CONTRACTOR, OMNITRANS' sole involvement will be as a stake holder, retaining the material until otherwise ordered by a court. CONTRACTOR, at its sole expense and risk, shall be responsible for prosecuting or defending any action concerning the materials, and shall defend, indemnify and hold OMNITRANS harmless from all costs and expenses, including attorneys' fees, in connection with such action.

34. WAIVER/INVALIDITY

No waiver of a breach of any provision of this Agreement by either party shall constitute a waiver of any other breach of the provision, or of any other breach of the provision of the Agreement. Failure of either party to enforce any provision of this Agreement at any time shall not be construed as a waiver of that provision.

The invalidity in whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision.

35. FORCE MAJEURE

Performance of each and all CONTRACTOR's and OMNITRANS' covenants herein shall be subject to such delays as may occur without CONTRACTOR's or OMNITRANS' fault from acts of God, strikes, lockouts, riots, acts of war or terrorism or from other similar causes beyond CONTRACTOR's or OMNITRANS' control.

36. CONFIDENTIALITY

CONTRACTOR agrees that for and during the entire term of this Agreement, any information, data, figures, records, findings and the like received or generated by CONTRACTOR in the performance of this Agreement, shall be considered and kept as the private and privileged records of OMNITRANS and will not be divulged to any person, firm, corporation, or other entity except on the direct prior written authorization of OMNITRANS. Further, upon expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason, CONTRACTOR agrees that it will continue to treat as private and privileged any information, data, figures, records, findings and the like, and will not release any such information to any person, firm, corporation or other entity, either by statement, deposition, or as a witness, except upon direct prior written authority of OMNITRANS.

37. CONTRACTOR'S INTERACTION WITH THE MEDIA AND THE PUBLIC

- A. OMNITRANS shall review and approve in writing all OMNITRANS related copy proposed to be used by CONTRACTOR for advertising or public relations purposes prior to publication. CONTRACTOR shall not allow OMNITRANS related copy to be published in its advertisements and public relations programs prior to receiving such approval. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all published information is factual and that it does not in any way imply that OMNITRANS endorses CONTRACTOR's firm, service, and/or product.
- B. CONTRACTOR shall refer all inquiries from the news media to OMNITRANS, and shall comply with the procedures of OMNITRANS' Public Affairs staff regarding statements to the media relating to this Agreement or the Work.
- C. If CONTRACTOR receives a complaint from a citizen or the community, CONTRACTOR shall inform OMNITRANS as soon as possible and inform OMNITRANS of any action taken to alleviate the situation.
- D. The provisions of this Article shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

38. GOVERNING LAW

The validity of this Agreement and of any of its terms or provisions, as well as the rights and duties of the parties hereunder, shall be governed by the laws of the State of California, and the proper venue of any action brought hereunder is and shall be the County of San Bernardino, California.

39. MODIFICATIONS TO AGREEMENT

Unless specified otherwise in the Agreement, this Agreement may only be modified by written mutual consent evidenced by signatures of representatives authorized to enter into and modify the Agreement. In order to be effective, amendments may require prior approval by OMNITRANS' Board of Directors, and in all instances require prior signature of an authorized representative of OMNITRANS.

40. PRECEDENCE

Conflicting provisions hereof, if any, shall prevail in the following descending order of precedence: (1) the provisions of this Agreement, and any and all of its Amendments, Appendices, Exhibits and Attachments; (2) provisions of IFB-MNT19-02 and any and all of its Addenda, Appendices, Exhibits and Attachments; and (3) Contractor's bid dated November 19, 2018 and its Appendices, Exhibits, Attachments.

41. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement, and any attachments or documents incorporated herein by inclusion or by reference, constitutes the complete and entire agreement between OMNITRANS and CONTRACTOR and supersedes any prior representations, understandings, communications, commitments, agreements or proposals, oral or written.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed on the date shown below, and effective on the date first hereinabove written.

OMNITRANS	BRIDGESTONE AMERICAS TIRE OPERATIONS, LLC
P. Scott Graham CEO/General Manager	Chris Ripani Sr.Vice President – Fleet Mgmt. Solutions
Date	Date

Federal Tax I.D. No. 88-0335067

ATTACHMENT A - SCOPE OF WORK MNT19-02 BUS TIRE LEASE AND SERVICES

1. BACKGROUND

- 1.1 Omnitrans' bus fleet travels on city streets, highways, and freeways in its service area. The buses make frequent starts, stops, and turns at bus stops, stop signs, traffic signals, and the like.
- 1.2 The road conditions in which the tires operate are typical for a metropolitan area: the temperature extremes range from 40° to 110° Fahrenheit, occasionally reaching the 115° bracket. Rainfall is typical for the Southern California area; snow is rare in the service area.
- 1.3 Omnitrans' current bus fleet: (174) New Flyer Low Floor 40-foot buses and (15) New Flyer Low Floor 60-foot articulating buses.
- 1.4 Over the next five years, the annual tire mileage projection increases from 9,380,000 to 9,470,816 tire miles. Omnitrans makes no usage guarantee and Omnitrans is not obligated to pay for more than the actual mileage used.

2. TIRE SPECIFICATIONS

- 2.1 Tires shall be of high quality, radial tire design suitable for Omnitrans use in its Transit Operations.
- 2.2 The leased tires shall provide reliable transit bus service, free from excessive noise and vibration, and free from defects in material and construction.
- 2.3 Contractor shall provide tires meeting all applicable laws and regulations in the State of California and the Federal Government. Contractor shall maintain tires in a condition that meets or exceeds these laws and regulations at all times.
- 2.4 All tires provided are to be factory molded and Department of Transportation (D.O.T) approved for 55 miles per hour (MPH) city and suburban use. All tires shall be capable of 65 MPH sustained operation.
- 2.5 Omnitrans shall not be precluded during the life of the contract, from including in the contract new or improved tires that may be developed by the industry. Contractor shall provide and service such tires that Omnitrans may add, at Omnitrans' sole discretion, to its fleet. The terms specified herein shall likewise be applicable to such additional tires.
- 2.6 If during the term of the contract, Omnitrans purchases new buses, Contractor shall deliver to the North American bus manufacturer or port of demarcation the new tires required, if in Contractor's product line. Omnitrans will give Contractor not less than a sixty (60) day written notification of tire quantities and delivery location and dates.

- 2.7 If any such buses equipped with tires furnished by the Contractor shall be driven over land instead of being shipped by the manufacturer, Omnitrans will pay the Contractor for use of the tires.
- 2.8 Any tires lost, stolen, or damaged while in the possession of the bus manufacturer, dealer or seller, or while the bus is being delivered shall not be paid for by Omnitrans.
- 2.9 Terms shall be negotiated for any other make/model vehicles or different size and/or construction type of tire not currently shown in specifications, which are placed in service during the term of the contract.
- 2.10 Omnitrans will not transfer, sublet, or lend the tires furnished by, or permit the tires to be used by, anyone other than Omnitrans, or its agents, without the prior written approval of the Contractor.
- 2.11 All tires furnished for use by Omnitrans shall be delivered to Omnitrans and freight and delivery charges shall be paid by the Contractor.
- 2.12 Tires shall be loaded and off-loaded at Omnitrans property by Contractor's personnel only. Contractor shall make prior arrangements to ensure staff is available to accept new tire deliveries and scrap tire disposal shipments. Omnitrans personnel will not accept or be responsible for deliveries or shipments.

3. <u>TIRE TYPE AND SIZE</u>

3.1 Estimated bus inventory for contract term:

Bus Series	Model	Tire Size	Pre-	Installation	Number
Type			Torque (ft-	Torque (ft-	of Buses
			lb)	lb)	
0100's	New Flyer	275/70R22.5	300	500+25	20
	40ft CNG				
0150's	New Flyer	275/70R22.5	300	500+25	22
	40ft CNG				
1200's	New Flyer	305/70R22.5	300	500+25	27
	40ft CNG				
1230's	New Flyer	275/70R22.5	300	500+25	9
	40ft CNG				
1240's	New Flyer	275/70R22.5	300	500+25	8
	40ft CNG				
1250's	New Flyer	305/70R22.5	300	500+25	20
	40ft CNG				
6000's	New Flyer	305/70R22.5	300	500+25	15
	60ft CNG				
1280's	New Flyer	305/70R22.5	300	500+25	16
	40ft CNG				

Bus Series	Model	Tire Size	Pre-	Installation	Number
Type			Torque (ft-	Torque (ft-	of Buses
			lb)	lb)	
1301's	New Flyer	305/70R22.5	300	500+25	15
	40ft CNG				
1320's	New Flyer	305/70R22.5	300	500+25	13
	40ft CNG				
1341's	New Flyer	305/70R22.5	300	500+25	24
	40ft CNG				

Above quantities are projected and estimated quantities only and subject to change.

4. <u>TIRE SERVICES</u>

- 4.1 Contractor shall provide personnel trained in the performance requirements in Section 4.2 who will be regularly assigned to Omnitrans property in order to perform all of the required tire services and safely operate the required vehicles. Contractor's short term temporary or substitute personnel brought in to replace regular assigned personnel shall be under the direction of a qualified lead or supervisory personnel of the Contractor. Contractor's personnel must be familiar with Omnitrans facilities, vehicles, and equipment. Omnitrans' as well as the Contractor's safety rules, policies, and procedures apply. Contractor's personnel, regular as well as temporary or substitute, shall have a valid California Driver's License. A Department of Motor Vehicles current driver's license status report shall be available as requested by Omnitrans. Contractor shall provide training to its personnel for the operation of Omnitrans vehicles and they must demonstrate the ability to operate buses when requested.
 - 4.1.1 Contractor shall provide labor for tire services; two fulltime (40 hours per week each) personnel trained in the performance requirements in Section 4.2, one at each location. Contractor shall discuss with Omnitrans its general work schedule at each facility, including scheduled days off, start and stop times and any changes thereof.
 - 4.1.2 Contractor shall provide a service person to cover extended absences due to illness or injury within seven (7) business days.
 - 4.1.3 Hours are to be designated by mutual agreement of the Maintenance Manager at each location and Contractor. Personnel shall check in and out with the Omnitrans Supervisor on-duty. The shifts may vary by location, but tire service personnel shall be required on a five-day work week basis.
 - 4.1.4 Contractor shall comply with Omnitrans' Holiday schedules. Omnitrans observes approximately seven (7) holidays annually. Contractor will be issued current year schedule each January.

- 4.1.5 Omnitrans will provide a shop area with compressed air, electricity, electronic balancing machine, hydraulic lift, and a tire inflation safety cage required to be used. All other equipment and furniture necessary to perform the requirements of the tasks identified shall be supplied by the Contractor. The equipment provided by the Contractor may be new or used, but must be properly maintained.
- 4.1.6 Omnitrans reserves the right to drive the vehicles for Contractor, or have Contractor discontinue driving vehicles, at any time during this contract.
- 4.1.7 Contractor's personnel shall provide documentation demonstrating the ability to operate lifting equipment and operation of Omnitrans buses when requested. Contractor shall provide a detailed list of the equipment provided at each shop to perform the duties as described in this scope of work.
- 4.1.8 Contractor shall conduct criminal background checks for all personnel assigned to Omnitrans. Contractor is required to determine those convictions that would disqualify personnel from working on Omnitrans property. Convictions that have been subsequently dismissed, sealed, expunged, pardoned or statutorily eradicated need not be listed. California residents need not list convictions for marijuana-related misdemeanor offenses that are more than two years old. *If an applicant states they have been convicted of a crime, the applicant is required to state nature of the crime(s), when and where convicted, and disposition of the case. *No applicant can be automatically denied employment with the Contractor solely on the grounds of conviction of a criminal offense. The nature of the offense, date of the offense, the surrounding circumstances and the relevance of the offense to the position(s) applied for may, however, be considered.
- 4.2 Contractor shall perform the following functions:
 - 4.2.1 Make all wheel changes.
 - 4.2.2 Balance all tires by spin balancing method.
 - 4.2.3 Keep tires inflated to recommended pressure and provide a regular and routine fleet check of tire pressures. Reports shall be submitted to Omnitrans at specified intervals. Reports shall be submitted on a weekly basis. At a minimum, tires shall be checked and pressures recorded at least once a month.
 - During the monthly tire check, if a tire is discovered to have been operated below 80% pounds per square inch (PSI), the tire shall be removed and inspected for damage caused by under-inflation to prevent incident.
 - 4.2.4 Make any repairs to tires to keep them in proper running condition.

- 4.2.5 Mount and dismount tires from wheels.
- 4.2.6 Clean wheels upon request.
- 4.2.7 Rotate tires according to manufacturer's recommended schedule.
- 4.2.8 Torque and re-torque wheels consistent with manufacturer's guidelines. (See 3.1 above).
 - 4.2.8.1 Contractor shall re-check torque on all wheels that have been removed and re-installed within 500 miles of installation.
 - 4.2.8.2 Omnitrans employees will torque wheels after completing brake work and other work that requires wheel removal but may request that the Contractor performs a re-check of torque.

5. DAMAGE, SALE OR PURCHASE OF TIRES

- 5.1 Contractor assumes the risk of road damage. The cost for damaged tires shall be included in the rate per tire mile. "Normal damage" shall be defined as partial or total destruction of a tire by means of other than normal wear, including irregular wear, damage, or heat, curbing, road hazards, and misalignment. Tires which are damaged beyond repair resulting from accident and fire or have been lost, sold, or purchased will be paid for by Omnitrans in accordance with 5.3. Contractor shall have title to and bear the risk of any loss or damage to the tires leased until they are mounted on rims and installed on the vehicle, at which point risk of loss shall pass from Contractor and Contractor's responsibility for loss or damage shall cease, except for loss or damage resulting from Contractor's negligence. Contractor assumes the liability of tires that are stolen from Omnitrans' property.
- 5.2 Omnitrans agrees to reasonably maintain vehicles' suspension and steering in accordance with the vehicle manufacturers' alignment specifications and keep brakes properly adjusted.
- 5.3 Tires which are lost by Omnitrans and sold or purchased by Omnitrans will be paid for by Omnitrans by paying for any mileage remaining thereon at the lease rate then in effect. The remaining mileage shall be prorated by determining the tread rubber remaining multiplied by contract fixed cost per 32nd of an inch. A weekly and monthly damaged tire report shall be maintained and turned in to the maintenance supervisor's office.

A casing charge will apply to the various sizes required.

Example: Tire size $\frac{\text{Cost per } 32^{\text{nd}}}{305/70\text{R}22.5}$ $\frac{\text{x. xx}}{\text{xx}}$

- 5.4 When a tire is not available for inspection to apply the above formula due to loss or damage by Omnitrans, or complete destruction of tire by Omnitrans, Omnitrans will not reimburse the Contractor in excess of fifty percent (50%) of the current value of a similar tire, unless the Contractor can provide an auditable accounting of the tire's accurate mileage prior to the loss. Omnitrans is not responsible for loss of tires that are in control of the Contractor.
- 5.5 When a bus is sold or removed from service for any reason, tires shall be removed from said vehicle by the Contractor and retained for future service. Scrap tires, if available, supplied by Contractor at no charge, shall be used for surplus vehicles. Contractor shall make every effort to use such scrap tires. In the event that such tires are in unsafe or unusable condition, or are not of a size or type which can be utilized on Omnitrans' current fleet, Omnitrans will reimburse the Contractor for such tires as indicated in item 5.3, above. When possible, Omnitrans will provide thirty (30) day advance notice when buses are to be removed from service.

Omnitrans agrees that (i) such scrap tires will be used for the sole and exclusive purpose of transporting and storing vehicles from garages to Auction, (ii) such scrap tires are provided as-is with no warranties as to the condition or fitness of such tires for continued use, and (iii) Omnitrans assumes all liability for use and possession of scrap tires furnished by the Contractor.

6. RESERVE TIRES

- 6.1 Contractor shall keep a sufficient reserve supply of tires adequate to insure proper tire service on all buses operating from each of two (2) locations: West Valley (Montclair) and East Valley (San Bernardino).
- 6.2 Contractor shall be responsible for covering the stored tires to prevent storm water run-off.
- Omnitrans will provide a safe and suitable area for the storage of spare tires and tires unfit for further service so that such tires may not be subject to damage by the elements. Contractor shall have title to and bear the risk of any loss or damage to the tires leased until they are mounted on rims and installed on the vehicle, at which point risk of loss shall pass from Contractor and Contractor's responsibility for loss or damage shall cease, except for loss or damage resulting from Contractor's negligence.
- 6.4 Decision as to the number of reserve tires to be supplied at each operating location is to be in accordance with accepted practices in the Industry, and to be in

concurrence with the Omnitrans' Maintenance Manager or his designated representative.

7. <u>TIRES UNFIT FOR SERVICE</u>

7.1 The Contractor shall remove tires from service immediately when determined unfit by either the Contractor or Omnitrans. Such tires shall be removed from Omnitrans property within 14 days of determination of being unfit, in accordance with applicable local, state and federal laws and regulations. If Contractor does not comply, Omnitrans will remove tires and bill Contractor accordingly.

8. WRITTEN INSTRUCTIONS

- 8.1 Contractor shall provide Omnitrans with written procedures setting forth the proper use, maintenance, and service of Contractor's tires.
 - 8.1.1 Include technical specifications of proposed tires, size, load, pressure, static radius, revolutions per mile, rim width, tread depth, mile per hour, etc.
 - 8.1.2 Tire characteristics relative to variety of road surfaces and conditions such as dry and wet.
 - 8.1.3 Detailed work plan to include Preventative Maintenance Plan, schedule, rotation, repair, wheel tightening, wheel inspection, etc.
 - 8.1.4 Organization structure including on-site tire personnel, lead person, supervisor, and area manager.

9. TIRE TESTING

- 9.1 Omnitrans, at its own expense, reserves the right to test tires other than the Contractor's on up to 10 percent of Omnitrans' fleet.
- 9.2 The Contractor shall not be responsible for any warranties or services and assumes no liability related to such test tires.

10. REPORTS

- 10.1 The Contractor shall submit the following reports listed below. Stationary, forms and miscellaneous office supplies shall be provided by Contractor.
 - 10.1.1 Tires On/Off Daily.
 - 10.1.2 Omnitrans Work Orders Signed-Off Daily.
 - 10.1.2 Fleet Inspection Report Weekly.

- 10.1.3 Fleet Summary of Tire Condition, to include at minimum air pressure, tread depth, cuts, sidewall damage, and obvious embedded objects Monthly.
- 10.2 Omnitrans will provide a monthly report listing individual vehicle numbers and total miles operated per month, plus records of any tire changes performed during unscheduled hours during bus maintenance or road calls, where conditions allow on the Contractor's forms.

11. <u>INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR</u>

- 11.1 Contractor's relationship to Omnitrans in the performance of this Agreement is that of an independent contractor. The personnel performing services under any resulting Agreement shall at all times be under the Contractor's exclusive direction and control and shall be employees of Contractor and not employees of Omnitrans. Contractor shall pay all wages, salaries and other amounts due its employees in connection with this Agreement and shall be responsible for all reports and obligations regarding the employees including social security, income tax withholding, and unemployment compensation.
- While on Omnitrans property, the Contractor will obey and follow all of Omnitrans' safety procedures and policies.
- 11.3 Contractor personnel shall check in and out with the on-duty maintenance supervisor. Failure to adhere to this requirement will lead to Contractor not being paid for the missed shift for the employee for the service portion of the bill.
- 11.4 Contractor personnel shall conduct business in a professional manner and refrain from confrontations either physical or verbal. Contractor's personnel shall adhere to the same rules and regulations that Omnitrans employees adhere to. For example, speed limit in bus yard is five (5) MPH, safety vests must be worn at all times while on Omnitrans property, steel toe shoes must be worn at all times while Contractor's personnel are on property, and safety glasses are required in designated areas.
- 11.5 Contractor personnel shall at all times dress in uniforms with clear identifying logos and name badges and carry proper identification while on Omnitrans property.

12. DISPOSITION OF TIRES AT TERMINATION

- 12.1 At such time as contract shall reach its expiration date, , Omnitrans will either:
 - (a) Within 30 days after submission of statement by Contractor, return all new and unused tires and pay for used, non-returnable tires in accordance with item 5.3 above;
 - (b) Make equal monthly payments over a 24-month period, exclusive of interest or any other additional charges; or

- (c) In the event Omnitrans changes suppliers, continue to use all tires furnished by the tire Contractor under such agreements in Omnitrans' possession on the expiration date for a period of 36-months from the expiration of the current contract.
- 12.2 In the event Omnitrans chooses to exercise option (c) above, the tire Contractor shall be relieved of any requirement to furnish Omnitrans with tires, service, equipment, or repair during said 36-month period, unless requested by Omnitrans and agreed to by the tire Contractor. The rate or rates per vehicle mile in effect for the 12-month period immediately preceding the termination of the contract shall be the rate or rates in effect for the 36-month run out period. It is understood that Omnitrans will continuously use such tires insofar as practicable on its highest mileage runs until such tires are rendered permanently unfit for service during said 36-month period.
- 12.3 The option contained in (c), above, would be exercised by Omnitrans upon a 30day written notice prior to the expiration date of the then current contract. Upon the expiration of said 36-month period, Omnitrans will pay for any then unused tire mileage in accordance with item 5.3 above. Omnitrans would then acquire each such used tire as is, and the tire Contractor would make no warranty as to the condition or fitness for continued use of such tires.

13. MOUNTING AND DISMOUNTING TIRES

The following are suggested guidelines for servicing, repairs and maintenance of tires. Contractor is responsible for maintaining tires consistent with industry standards and practices and manufacturer requirements.

- Beads should be well lubricated before applying the tire to rim. Avoid petroleum-based compounds. Vegetable-based compounds are recommended. Excess lubricant must be removed from the tire and rim.
- 13.2 Replace the metal valve stem on every wheel before mounting new tires. If any looseness, cracking or otherwise damaged conditions of the valve stem is noted at any time, replace the metal stem. Replace the valve core and grommet on all metal stems each time a tire is dismounted. Use of rubber stems are prohibited on Omnitrans fleet.
- 13.3 A new valve cap made of metal should be applied to the valve. Do not use plastic valve caps.
- 13.4 Contractor must use mounting equipment that has been designed for use with aluminum rims.
- 13.5 Safety inspection of each rim will be done at every mount and dismount for any discrepancy. If a discrepancy is found, that rim will be set aside, a new rim installed, and a Maintenance Supervisor notified.

- 13.5.1 Lug holes shall be inspected for excessive wear, out-of-round condition or damage and defects reported to Omnitrans' Supervisor.
- 13.6 Torque specifications will be set to wheel manufacturer specifications. All wheel nuts will be hand-torqued with a Ratchet Head (click type) or break away torque wrench. A Master Torque Wrench shall be certified annually, with all other torque wrenches to be checked monthly against the Master Torque Wrench. All torques wrenches shall be certified calibrated annually and the certificate shall be provided to Omnitrans shop supervisor's office annually.
- 13.7 Contractor shall re-check torque on all wheels that have been removed and reinstalled within 500 miles of installation. Omnitrans employees will torque wheels after completing brake work and other work that requires wheel removal but may request that Contractor perform a re-check of torque.

14. <u>TIRE INFLATION</u>

14.1 Initial Inflation

- 14.1.1 Recommended operation air pressure shall be in accordance to the load per tire as shown in the load/inflation tables of the Tire and Rim Association, Inc. Year Book, or as recommended by the wheel manufacturer.
- 14.1.2 When new tires are initially inflated, they shall be inflated two PSI higher than the recommended operating pressure. Mark initial inflation pressure on sidewall of tire with tire chalk.
- 14.1.3 When new mounted tires are applied, check inflation and adjust to two PSI higher than recommended operating pressure.
- 14.1.4 Recheck valve stem for proper seat and tightness. Reapply metal valve cap.

14.2 Inflation Maintenance

- 14.2.1 A <u>cold</u> inflation schedule shall be maintained according to recommendation.
- 14.2.2 If inflation is checked while tires are warm or hot, allowance shall be made for pressure build-up due to heat.
- 14.2.3 Do not bleed hot or warm tires.
- 14.2.4 Accuracy of the tire inflation service gauge shall be checked weekly with a "master" tire inflation gauge.

- 14.2.5 Gauge checking of all tires on all vehicles shall be done on a regular schedule. All tires on vehicles shall be checked at a minimum of once per month.
- 14.2.6 Remove and repair any tire found to have pressure below recommended pressure (80 PSI) than other tires on the same vehicle and inspect for damage thoroughly.
- 14.2.7 Maintain tire inflation pressure to vehicle manufacturer's standards. Never exceed Gross Vehicle Weight Rating (GVWR) of vehicle.
- 14.2.8 Each time a tire is checked:
 - 14.2.8.1 Check valve core.
 - 14.2.8.2 Check valve cap for proper seal.
 - 14.2.8.3 Check valve and valve cap threads.
 - 14.2.8.4 Make sure valve cap is tightened properly.
 - 14.2.8.5 Check condition of tire for wear, cuts, curb snags, etc.

15. <u>VALVE CAPS AND CORES</u>

- 15.1 Valve Caps
 - 15.1.1 When a new stem is applied, use core which is supplied.
 - 15.1.2 Replace valve core each time a new tire is mounted.
 - 15.1.3 Make certain valve stem is properly seated and tight.
 - 15.1.4 Do not reuse old valve cores.

16. TIRE APPLICATION

- 16.1 Front Tires shall be pulled (removal depths) from the steer axle at 5/32nds.
 - 16.1.1 New tires shall be applied to fronts in pairs.
 - 16.1.2 Make sure tire pressure is same on both positions and at the proper recommended pressure.
 - 16.1.3 Unusual wear patterns reflecting front end alignment problems shall be reported to Omnitrans Supervisors via the tire on-off report.

- 16.1.3.1 Check also for worn out or loose suspension parts and report defects to Omnitrans Supervisor before putting the vehicle back into service.
- 16.1.4 Balancing of front tires is mandatory when new tires are applied.
- 16.1.5 Check and adjust tire pressure previous to being reapplied or being placed in spare stock.
- 16.2 Rear Tire Servicing Rear tires will be pulled (removal depths) at 3/32.
 - 16.2.1 If rib design tires are used on both front and rear positions, rear tires shall be rotated from front positions. The need for rear tires shall determine when front tires are removed and reapplied to rear positions.
 - 16.2.2 Tires in dual assemblies shall be matched with regard to design and dimensional tolerances. Improperly matched duals may result in irregular wear, rapid wear, vehicle mechanical problems and premature tire failure. Failure to match tires in a dual assembly may result in sudden tire destruction.
- 16.3 Any Omnitrans Work Order (defines discrepancy with the tire) that is referred to the tire shop shall be completed during the course of the shift. If unable to do so, proper notification shall be made to Omnitrans' Supervisor on duty.

*End Scope of Work

Attachment B REGULATORY REQUIREMENT Table of Contents

		4		4
n	n	te	n	ts

NO FEDERAL OBLIGATION TO THIRD PARTIES	2
FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS OR CLAIMS – CIVIL AND CRIMINAL FRAUD	2
ACCESS TO THIRD PARTY CONTRACT RECORDS	3
FEDERAL FUNDING, INCORPORATION OF FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINSITRATION (FTA) TERMS, AND FEDERAL CHANGES	4
CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS (TITLE VI, ADA, EEO (EXCEPT SPECIAL DOL CONSTRUCTION CLAUSE	4
DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE)	5
DAVIS-BACON AND COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACTS	6
TERMINATION 49 U.S.C. Part 18 FTA Circular 4220.1F	14
SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT	14
CLEAN WATER AND CLEAN AIR REQUIREMENTS	15
BUY AMERICA	16
BREACHES AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 49 CFR Part 18 FTA Circular 4220.1F	16
CARGO PREFERENCE	16
FLY AMERICA	17
DAVIS-BACON AND COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACTS	17
CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT	24
BONDING REQUIREMENTS	26
SEISMIC SAFETY REQUIREMENTS 42 U.S.C. 7701 et seq. 49 CFR Part 41	26
TRANSIT EMPLOYEE PROTECTIVE ARRANGEMENTS	27
ALCOHOL AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE PROGRAM	29
ENERGY CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS	33
RECYCLED PRODUCTS	34
NATIONAL INTELLIGENT TRANSPORTATION SYSTEMS ARCHITECTURE AND STANDARI	
ADA ACCESS	
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE	36
DISCRIMINATION	37
WHISTLEBLOWER REQUIREMENTS	37
PUBLIC RECORDS ACT	37
PRIVACY ACT - 5 U.S.C. 552	38
VETED AND DECEDENCE	20

REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

* Marks Required Subcontract Provisions that must flow down to all subcontracts as defined in the Article entitled SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS herein.

Required Clauses for All FTA-Assisted Third-Party Contracts and Subcontracts

RR-01

NO FEDERAL OBLIGATION TO THIRD PARTIES *

In connection with the Project, the Recipient agrees that, absent the Federal Government's express written consent, the Federal Government shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to any subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, or other participant at any tier of the Project, or other person or entity that is not a party to the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement for the Project. Notwithstanding that the Federal Government may have concurred in or approved any solicitation, subagreement, lease, third party contract, or arrangement at any tier, the Federal Government has no obligations or liabilities to any entity other than the Recipient, including any subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, or other participant at any tier of the Project.

RR-02

FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS OR CLAIMS – CIVIL AND CRIMINAL FRAUD*

A. Civil Fraud.

The Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as amended, 31 U.S.C. §§ 3801 et seq., and U.S. DOT regulations, "Program Fraud Civil Remedies," 49 C.F.R. Part 31, apply to the Recipient's activities in connection with the Project. By executing the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement for the Project, the Recipient certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each statement it has made, it makes, or it may make in connection with the Project. In addition to other penalties that may apply, the Recipient also acknowledges that if it makes a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, certification, assurance, or representation to the Federal Government, the Federal Government reserves the right to impose on the Recipient the penalties of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as amended, to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate.

B. Criminal Fraud.

If the Recipient makes a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, certification, assurance, or representation to the Federal Government or includes a false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement or representation in any agreement with the Federal Government in connection with a Project authorized under 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 or any other Federal law, the Federal Government reserves the right to impose on the Recipient

RR – Page 2 Updated: 08082018

- the penalties of 49 U.S.C. § 5323(l), 18 U.S.C. § 1001, or other applicable Federal law to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate.
- C. Contractor shall include this Article in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. Contractor shall not modify the Article, except to identify the Subcontractor who will be subject to the provisions.

RR-03 ACCESS TO THIRD PARTY CONTRACT RECORDS *

A. Access to Third Party Contract Records.

The Recipient agrees to require, and assures that its subrecipients require, their third party contractors and third party subcontractors at each tier to provide to the U.S. Secretary of Transportation and the Comptroller General of the United States or their duly authorized representatives, access to all third party contract records as required by 49 U.S.C. § 5325(g). The Recipient further agrees to require, and assures that its subrecipients require, their third party contractors and third party subcontractors, at each tier, to provide sufficient access to third party procurement records as needed for compliance with applicable Federal laws and regulations or to assure proper Project management as determined by FTA.

Contractor agrees to provide Omnitrans, the FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General of the United States or any of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this Contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. Contractor also agrees, pursuant to 49 C. F. R. 633.17 to provide the FTA Administrator or the FTA's authorized representatives, including any FTA Project Management Oversight Contractor, access to Contractor's records and construction sites pertaining to a major capital project, defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a) 1, which is receiving federal financial assistance through the programs described at 49 U.S.C. 5307, 5309 or 5311.

- B. If this Contract is for a capital project or improvement (defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a) 1) and was entered in to through other than competitive bidding, the Contractor shall make records related to this Contract available to Omnitrans, the Secretary of Transportation and the Comptroller General or any authorized officer or employee of any of them for the purposes of conducting an audit and inspection.
- C. Contractor shall maintain all books, records, accounts and reports required under this Contract for a period of not less than three years after the date of termination or expiration of this Contract, except in the event of litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of this Contract, in which case Contractor agrees to maintain same until Omnitrans, the FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General, or any of their duly authorized representatives, have disposed of all such litigation, appeals, claims or exceptions related thereto.

RR – Page 3 Updated: 08082018

RR-04 FEDERAL FUNDING, INCORPORATION OF FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINSITRATION (FTA) TERMS, AND FEDERAL CHANGES

- A. This Contract includes, in part, certain Standard Terms and Conditions required by DOT, whether or not expressly set forth in the Contract provisions. All contractual provisions required by DOT, as set forth in FTA Circular 4220.1F, dated November 1, 2008 and revised March 18, 2013 (including any changes), and are hereby incorporated by reference. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, all FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control in the event of a conflict with other provisions contained in this Contract. Contractor shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act, or refuse to comply with any Omnitrans requests which would cause Omnitrans to be in violation of the FTA terms and conditions.
- B. Federal Transit Administration of the US Department of Transportation and all laws, regulations, guidelines, and provisions of the financial assistance agreement apply to this Contract and are incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein.
- C. Contractor shall at all times comply with all applicable federal laws and regulations, including without limitation FTA regulations, policies, procedures and directives, including those listed directly or by reference in Applicable Grant Agreements between Omnitrans and FTA, as they may be amended or promulgated from time to time during the term of this Contract collectively "Federal Requirements". These Federal Requirements may change and the changed Federal Requirements will apply to this Contract as required unless the Federal Government determines otherwise. Contractor's failure to so comply with the applicable Federal Requirements shall constitute a material breach of this Contract.

RR-05 CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS (TITLE VI, ADA, EEO (EXCEPT SPECIAL DOL CONSTRUCTION CLAUSE *

A. Nondiscrimination - In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d, section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6102, section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12132, and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, national origin, sex, age, or disability. In addition, Contractor shall comply with applicable Federal implementing regulations and other implementing requirements FTA may issue.

B. Equal Employment Opportunity

(a) Race, Color, Creed, National Origin, Sex - In accordance with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, and Federal transit laws at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, Contractor shall comply with all applicable equal employment opportunity requirements of U.S. Department of Labor (U.S. DOL) regulations, "Office of

RR – Page 4 Updated: 08082018 Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor," 41 C.F.R. Parts 60 et seq., (which implement Executive Order No. 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive Order No. 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note), and with any applicable Federal statutes, executive orders, regulations, and Federal policies that may in the future affect activities undertaken in the course of the Contract. Contractor shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, creed, national origin, sex, or age. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. In addition, Contractor shall comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.

- (b) Age In accordance with section 4 of the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 623 and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, Contractor shall refrain from discrimination against present and prospective employees for reason of age. In addition, Contractor shall comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.
- (c) Disabilities In accordance with section 102 of the Americans with Disabilities Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 12112, Contractor shall comply with the requirements of U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, "Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment Provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act," 29 C.F.R. Part 1630, pertaining to employment of persons with disabilities. In addition, Contractor shall comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.
- (d) Contractor shall include these requirements in each subcontract, modified only if necessary to identify parties, as required by Federal regulations.

RR-06 DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) 49 CFR Part 26

Disadvantaged Business Enterprises

- A. This Contract is subject to the requirements of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 26, Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of Transportation Financial Assistance Programs. The agency's overall goal for DBE participation is 1.0%.
- B. Contractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. Contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of this DOT-assisted Contract. Failure by Contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this Contract, which may result in the termination of this Contract or such other remedy as Omnitrans deems

RR – Page 5 Updated: 08082018

- appropriate. Each subcontract Contractor signs with a subcontractor must include the assurance in this paragraph (*see* 49 CFR 26.13(b)).
- C. Bidders are required to document sufficient DBE participation to meet these goals or, alternatively, document adequate good faith efforts to do so, as provided for in 49 CFR 26.53. Award of this contract is conditioned on submission of the following concurrent with and accompanying sealed bid concurrent with and accompanying an initial proposal prior to award:
 - 1. The names and addresses of DBE firms that will participate in this contract;
 - 2. A description of the work each DBE will perform;
 - 3. The dollar amount of the participation of each DBE firm participating;
 - 4. Written documentation of the bidder's commitment to use a DBE subcontractor whose participation it submits to meet the contract goal;
 - 5. Written confirmation from the DBE that it is participating in the contract as provided in the prime contractor's commitment; and
 - 6. If the contract goal is not met, evidence of good faith efforts to do so.

Bidders must present the information required above as a matter of responsiveness with initial proposals prior to contract award] (see 49 CFR 26.53(3)).

The successful bidder will be required to report its DBE participation obtained through race-neutral means throughout the period of performance.

- D. Contractor is required to pay its subcontractors performing work related to this contract for satisfactory performance of that work no later than 7 days after the contractor's receipt of payment for that work from the Omnitrans. In addition, Contractor is required to return any retainage payments to those subcontractors within 30 days after the subcontractor's work related to his contract is satisfactorily completed.
- E. Contractor must promptly notify Omnitrans whenever a DBE subcontractor performing work related to this contract is terminated or fails to complete its work, and must make good faith efforts to engage another DBE subcontractor to perform at least the same amount of work. Contractor may not terminate any DBE subcontractor and perform that work through its own forces or those of an affiliate without prior written consent of Omnitrans.

Required Clauses for Awards Exceeding \$2,000

RR-07

DAVIS-BACON AND COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACTS

Background and Application

The Davis-Bacon and Copeland Acts are codified at 40 USC 3141, *et seq.* and 18 USC 874. The Acts apply to grantee construction contracts and subcontracts that "at least partly are financed by a loan or grant from the Federal Government." 40 USC 3145(a), 29 CFR 5.2(h), 49 CFR 18.36(i)

RR – Page 6 Updated: 08082018 (5). The Acts apply to any construction contract over \$2,000. 40 USC 3142(a), 29 CFR 5.5(a). 'Construction,' for purposes of the Acts, includes "actual construction, alteration and/or repair, including painting and decorating." 29 CFR 5.5(a). The requirements of both Acts are incorporated into a single clause (*see* 29 CFR 3.11) enumerated at 29 CFR 5.5(a) and reproduced below.

The clause language is drawn directly from 29 CFR 5.5(a) and any deviation from the model clause below should be coordinated with counsel to ensure the Acts' requirements are satisfied.

Clause Language

Davis-Bacon and Copeland Anti-Kickback Acts

(1) **Minimum wages** - (i) All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR part 3)), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and mechanics.

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of paragraph (1)(iv) of this section; also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided that the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional classifications and wage rates conformed under paragraph (1)(ii) of this section) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the workers.

(ii)(A) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefore only when the following criteria have been met:

RR – Page 7 Updated: 08082018

- (1) Except with respect to helpers as defined as 29 CFR 5.2(n)(4), the work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and
- (2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and
- (3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination; and
- (4) With respect to helpers as defined in 29 CFR 5.2(n)(4), such a classification prevails in the area in which the work is performed.
- (B) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (C) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs (a)(1)(ii) (B) or (C) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.
- (iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.
- (iv) If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program.

RR – Page 8 Updated: 08082018

- (v)(A) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits only when the following criteria have been met:
- (1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and
- (2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and
- (3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.
- (B) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (C) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination with 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs (a) (1) (v) (B) or (C) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the Classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.
- (2) Withholding Omnitrans shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor under this contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor, so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working on the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), all or part of the

RR – Page 9 Updated: 08082018 wages required by the contract, Omnitrans may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased.

- (3) Payrolls and basic records (i) Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937, or under the Housing Act of 1949, in the construction or development of the project). Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in section 1(b) (2) (B) of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.
- (ii)(A) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to the Omnitrans for transmission to the Federal Transit Administration. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under section 5.5(a) (3) (i) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5. This information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose and may be purchased from the Superintendent of Documents (Federal Stock Number 029-005-00014-1), U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, DC 20402. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors.
- (B) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following:
- (1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be maintained under section 5.5(a)(3)(i) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5 and that such information is correct and complete;
- (2) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in Regulations, 29 CFR part 3;

RR – Page 10 Updated: 08082018

- (3) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.
- (C) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by paragraph (a)(3)(ii)(B) of this section.
- (D) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under section 1001 of title 18 and section 231 of title 31 of the United States Code.
- (iii) The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph (a)(3)(i) of this section available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the Federal Transit Administration or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, the Federal agency may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.
- (4) Apprentices and trainees (i) Apprentices Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Bureau, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the contractor's or subcontractors registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits,

RR – Page 11 Updated: 08082018 apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division of the U.S. Department of Labor determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination. In the event the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Bureau, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

- (ii) Trainees Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate that is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.
- (iii) <u>Equal employment opportunity</u> The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under this part shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended and 29 CFR part 30.
- (5) **Compliance with Copeland Act requirements** The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR part 3, which are incorporated by reference in this contract.
- (6) **Subcontracts** The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1) through (10) and such other clauses as the Federal Transit Administration may by appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5.

RR – Page 12 Updated: 08082018

- (7) **Contract termination: debarment** A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.
- (8) Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract.
- (9) **Disputes concerning labor standards** Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting agency, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.
- (10) **Certification of eligibility** (i) By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
- (ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
- (iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001.

RR-08

SEISMIC SAFETY REQUIREMENTS 42 U.S.C. 7701 et seq. 49 CFR Part 41

Applicability to Contracts

The Seismic Safety requirements apply only to contracts for the construction of new buildings or additions to existing buildings.

Flow Down

The Seismic Safety requirements flow down from FTA recipients and subrecipients to first tier contractors to assure compliance, with the applicable building standards for Seismic Safety, including the work performed by all subcontractors.

Model Clauses/Language

The regulations do not provide suggested language for third-party contract clauses. The following language has been developed by FTA.

Seismic Safety - The contractor agrees that any new building or addition to an existing building will be designed and constructed in accordance with the standards for Seismic Safety required in Department of Transportation Seismic Safety Regulations 49 CFR Part 41 and will certify to

RR – Page 13 Updated: 08082018 compliance to the extent required by the regulation. The contractor also agrees to ensure that all work performed under this contract including work performed by a subcontractor is in compliance with the standards required by the Seismic Safety Regulations and the certification of compliance issued on the project.

Required Clauses for Awards Exceeding \$10,000

RR-09

TERMINATION 49 U.S.C. Part 18 FTA Circular 4220.1F

Termination shall be addressed in accordance with Sections 13 and 14 of the Contract.

Required Clauses for Awards Exceeding \$25,000

RR-010

SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT*

- A. This Contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 49 CFR Part 29. As such, Contractor shall verify that none of the Contractor, its principals, as defined at 49 CFR 29.995, or affiliates, as defined at 49 CFR 29.905, are excluded or disqualified as defined at 49 CFR 29.940 and 29.945.
 - Contractor shall comply with 49 CFR 29, Subpart C and shall include the requirement to comply with 49 CFR 29, Subpart C in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into.
- B. By entering into this Contract, Contractor certifies that it shall comply with the requirements of 49 CFR 29, Subpart C throughout the period of this Contract. This certification is a material representation of fact relied upon by Omnitrans. If it is later determined that Contractor knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to remedies available to Omnitrans, the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment.

Awards Exceeding \$100,000 by Statute

RR-011

COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL LOBBYING POLICY*

A. The Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C. 1352, requires that Contractors who apply or bid for an award of \$100,000 or more shall file the certification required by 49 CFR Part 20, "New Restrictions on Lobbying," attached hereto as the certification entitled, "Certification of Compliance with Federal Lobbying Requirements." As set forth in the certifications, each tier of subcontractors shall certify to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31

RR – Page 14 Updated: 08082018 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier shall also disclose the name of any registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 who has made lobbying contacts on its behalf with non-Federal funds with respect to that Federal contract, grant or award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Such disclosures shall be forwarded from tier to tier up to Omnitrans.

RR-012 CLEAN WATER AND CLEAN AIR REQUIREMENTS*

A. CLEAN WATER REQUIREMENTS

Contractor shall comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq., and all applicable clean water standards of the State of California and any state or local agency having jurisdiction. Contractor shall report each violation to Omnitrans. Omnitrans will, in turn, report each violation as required to FTA and the appropriate EPA Regional Office, and all other agencies having jurisdiction.

B. CLEAN AIR

Contractor shall comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 et seq. and all applicable Clean Air Standards of the State of California or any state or local agency having jurisdiction. Contractor shall report each violation to Omnitrans. Omnitrans will, in turn, report each violation as required to FTA, the appropriate EPA Regional Office and all other agencies having jurisdiction.

C. Contractor shall include this Article in each subcontract exceeding \$100,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.

RR-013 NON-CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES

Activities Not Involving Construction. The Recipient agrees to comply, and assures the compliance of each subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, and other participant at any tier of the Project, with the employee protection requirements for nonconstruction employees of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, as amended, 40 U.S.C. §§ 3701 *et seq.*, in particular with the wage and hour requirements of section 102 of that Act at 40 U.S.C. § 3702, and with implementing U.S. DOL regulations, "Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Governing Federally Financed and Assisted Construction (also Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Nonconstruction Contracts Subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act)," 29 C.F.R. Part 5.

RR – Page 15 Updated: 08082018

Required Clauses for Awards Exceeding the Simplified Acquisition Threshold (\$150,000)

RR-014 BUY AMERICA *

A. Contractor shall comply with 49 U.S.C. 5323(j) and 49 CFR Part 661, which provide that Federal funds may not be obligated unless steel, iron, and manufactured products used in FTA-funded projects are produced in the United States, unless a waiver has been granted by FTA or the product is subject to a general waiver. General waivers are listed in 49 C.F.R. 661.7, and include final assembly in the United States for 15 passenger vans and 15 passenger wagons produced by Chrysler Corporation, and microcomputer equipment and software. Separate requirements for rolling stock are set out at 49 U.S.C. 5323(j)(2)(C) and 49 C.F.R. 661.11. Rolling stock must be assembled in the United States and have a 60 percent domestic content.

Omnitrans may investigate Contractor's, any Subcontractor's, and any Supplier's compliance with this Article. If an investigation is initiated, Contractor, Subcontractor, or Supplier shall document its compliance, in accordance with 49 CFR 661.15, and cooperate with the investigation. Contractor shall incorporate the Buy America conditions set forth in this Article in every subcontract or purchase order and shall enforce such conditions.

B. FTA requires a Buy America certification to be submitted with the proposal, or the proposal shall be considered non-responsive.

RR-015 BREACHES AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 49 CFR Part 18 FTA Circular 4220.1F

Disputes shall be addressed in accordance with Section 12 of the Contract.

Transport of Property or Persons

RR-016 CARGO PREFERENCE*

A. Applicability

The following Article applies to federally funded contracts involving equipment, materials, or commodities which may be transported by ocean vessels

B. USE OF UNITED STATES FLAG VESSELS

Contractor shall use privately owned United States-Flag commercial vessels to ship at least 50 percent of the gross tonnage (computed separately for dry bulk carriers, dry cargo liners, and tankers) involved, whenever shipping any equipment, material, or commodities

RR – Page 16 Updated: 08082018 pursuant to this Contract to the extent such vessels are available at fair and reasonable rates for United States-Flag commercial vessels.

Contractor shall furnish within 20 working days following the date of loading for shipments originating within the United States or within 30 working days following the date of leading for shipments originating outside the United States, a legible copy of a rated, "onboard" commercial ocean bill-of -lading in English for each shipment of cargo described in the preceding paragraph to the Division of National Cargo, Office of Market Development, Maritime Administration, Washington, DC 20590 and to Omnitrans (through Contractor in the case of a subcontractor's bill-of-lading.)

Contractor shall include these requirements in all subcontracts issued pursuant to this Contract when the subcontract may involve the transport of equipment, material, or commodities by ocean vessel.

RR-017 FLY AMERICA

A. **Applicability**

This Article applies to federally funded contracts if the contract or subcontracts may involve the international transportation of goods, equipment, or personnel by air.

B. Contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. 40118 (the "Fly America" Act) in accordance with the General Services Administration's regulations at 41 CFR Part 301-10, which provide that recipients and sub recipients of Federal funds and their contractors are required to use U.S. Flag air carriers for U.S Government-financed international air travel and transportation of their personal effects or property, to the extent such service is available, unless travel by foreign air carrier is a matter of necessity, as defined by the Fly America Act. Contractor shall submit, if a foreign air carrier was used, an appropriate certification or memorandum adequately explaining why service by a U.S. flag air carrier was not available or why it was necessary to use a foreign air carrier and shall, in any event, provide a certificate of compliance with the Fly America requirements. Contractor agrees to include the requirements of this section in all subcontracts that may involve international air transportation.

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES

RR-018 DAVIS-BACON AND COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACTS

Background and Application

The Davis-Bacon and Copeland Acts are codified at 40 USC 3141, *et seq.* and 18 USC 874. The Acts apply to grantee construction contracts and subcontracts that "at least partly are financed by

RR – Page 17 Updated: 08082018 a loan or grant from the Federal Government." 40 USC 3145(a), 29 CFR 5.2(h), 49 CFR 18.36(i) (5). The Acts apply to any construction contract over \$2,000. 40 USC 3142(a), 29 CFR 5.5(a). 'Construction,' for purposes of the Acts, includes "actual construction, alteration and/or repair, including painting and decorating." 29 CFR 5.5(a). The requirements of both Acts are incorporated into a single clause (*see* 29 CFR 3.11) enumerated at 29 CFR 5.5(a) and reproduced below.

The clause language is drawn directly from 29 CFR 5.5(a) and any deviation from the model clause below should be coordinated with counsel to ensure the Acts' requirements are satisfied.

Clause Language

Davis-Bacon and Copeland Anti-Kickback Acts

(1) **Minimum wages** - (i) All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR part 3)), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and mechanics.

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of paragraph (1)(iv) of this section; also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided that the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional classifications and wage rates conformed under paragraph (1)(ii) of this section) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the workers.

(ii)(A) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefore only when the following criteria have been met:

RR – Page 18 Updated: 08082018

- (1) Except with respect to helpers as defined as 29 CFR 5.2(n)(4), the work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and
- (2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and
- (3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination; and
- (4) With respect to helpers as defined in 29 CFR 5.2(n)(4), such a classification prevails in the area in which the work is performed.
- (B) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (C) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs (a)(1)(ii) (B) or (C) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.
- (iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.
- (iv) If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program.

RR – Page 19 Updated: 08082018

- (v)(A) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits only when the following criteria have been met:
- (1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and
- (2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and
- (3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.
- (B) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (C) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination with 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs (a) (1) (v) (B) or (C) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the Classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.
- (2) Withholding Omnitrans shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor under this contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor, so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working on the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), all or part of the

RR – Page 20 Updated: 08082018 wages required by the contract, Omnitrans may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased.

- (3) Payrolls and basic records (i) Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937, or under the Housing Act of 1949, in the construction or development of the project). Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in section 1(b) (2) (B) of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.
- (ii)(A) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to the Omnitrans for transmission to the Federal Transit Administration. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under section 5.5(a) (3) (i) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5. This information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose and may be purchased from the Superintendent of Documents (Federal Stock Number 029-005-00014-1), U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, DC 20402. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors.
- (B) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following:
- (1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be maintained under section 5.5(a)(3)(i) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5 and that such information is correct and complete;
- (2) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly

RR – Page 21 Updated: 08082018 from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in Regulations, 29 CFR part 3;

- (3) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.
- (C) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by paragraph (a)(3)(ii)(B) of this section.
- (D) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under section 1001 of title 18 and section 231 of title 31 of the United States Code.
- (iii) The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph (a)(3)(i) of this section available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the Federal Transit Administration or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, the Federal agency may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.
- (4) Apprentices and trainees (i) Apprentices Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Bureau, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the contractor's or subcontractors registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage

RR – Page 22 Updated: 08082018 determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division of the U.S. Department of Labor determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination. In the event the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Bureau, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

- (ii) Trainees Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate that is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.
- (iii) <u>Equal employment opportunity</u> The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under this part shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended and 29 CFR part 30.
- (5) **Compliance with Copeland Act requirements** The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR part 3, which are incorporated by reference in this contract.
- (6) **Subcontracts** The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1) through (10) and such other clauses as the Federal Transit Administration may by appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall

RR – Page 23 Updated: 08082018 be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5.

- (7) **Contract termination: debarment** A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.
- (8) Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract.
- (9) **Disputes concerning labor standards** Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting agency, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.
- (10) **Certification of eligibility** (i) By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
- (ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
- (iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001.

RR-019 CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT *

A. Applicability

This Article applies to federally funded construction contracts over \$2,000 (including ferry vessels), rolling stock purchases over \$2,500 and to operations/management contracts over \$2,500 (except transportation services)

- B. Pursuant to the Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Non-construction Contracts subject to the Federal Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, 40 U.S.C.A. § 327 through 332 as implemented by U.S. Department of Labor regulations, 29 CFR 5.5 (b) and (c) Contractor and Subcontractor's contracting for any part of the Contract work shall comply with the following:
 - 1. **Overtime requirements** Neither Contractor nor any Subcontractor contracting for any part of the Contract work that requires or involves the employment of

RR – Page 24 Updated: 08082018 laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.

- 2. **Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages** In the event of any violation of the Article set forth in paragraph (1) of this Article Contractor and any Subcontractor responsible therefore shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, Contractor and Subcontractor shall be liable to the United States for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this Article, in the sum of ten dollars (\$10) for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this Article.
- 3. **Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages** Omnitrans shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any monies payable on account of work performed by Contractor or Subcontractor under the Contract or any other Federal contract with Contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by Contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of Contractor or Subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2) of this Article.
- 4. **Subcontracts** Contractor or Subcontractor shall insert this Article in any Subcontracts and also an Article requiring the Subcontractors to include this Article in any lower tier Subcontracts. Contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any Subcontractor or lower tier Subcontractor with this Article.
- 5. **Payrolls and basic records** The records to be maintained hereinabove shall be made available by Contractor or Subcontractor for inspection, copying, or transcription by Omnitrans and U.S. Dept. of Labor. Contractor and Subcontractor shall maintain payrolls and basic records during the course of the work and shall preserve them for a period of three (3) years from the completion of the Contract for all laborers and mechanics, including guards and watchmen, working on the Contract. Such records shall contain the name and address of each such employee, social security number, correct classifications, hourly rates of wages paid, daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid.

RR – Page 25 Updated: 08082018

RR-020 BONDING REQUIREMENTS

Not Applicable

RR-021

SEISMIC SAFETY REQUIREMENTS 42 U.S.C. 7701 et seq. 49 CFR Part 41

Applicability to Contracts

The Seismic Safety requirements apply only to contracts for the construction of new buildings or additions to existing buildings.

Flow Down

The Seismic Safety requirements flow down from FTA recipients and subrecipients to first tier contractors to assure compliance, with the applicable building standards for Seismic Safety, including the work performed by all subcontractors.

Model Clauses/Language

The regulations do not provide suggested language for third-party contract clauses. The following language has been developed by FTA.

Seismic Safety - The contractor agrees that any new building or addition to an existing building will be designed and constructed in accordance with the standards for Seismic Safety required in Department of Transportation Seismic Safety Regulations 49 CFR Part 41 and will certify to compliance to the extent required by the regulation. The contractor also agrees to ensure that all work performed under this contract including work performed by a subcontractor is in compliance with the standards required by the Seismic Safety Regulations and the certification of compliance issued on the project.

NON-CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES

Activities Not Involving Construction. The Recipient agrees to comply, and assures the compliance of each subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, and other participant at any tier of the Project, with the employee protection requirements for nonconstruction employees of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, as amended, 40 U.S.C. §§ 3701 *et seq.*, in particular with the wage and hour requirements of section 102 of that Act at 40 U.S.C. § 3702, and with implementing U.S. DOL regulations, "Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Governing Federally Financed and Assisted Construction (also Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Nonconstruction Contracts Subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act)," 29 C.F.R. Part 5.

RR – Page 26 Updated: 08082018

TRANSIT OPERATIONS

RR-022

TRANSIT EMPLOYEE PROTECTIVE ARRANGEMENTS *

A. Applicability

Subject to the limitations in Sections B, C, and D, this Article applies if this Contract involves transit operations to be performed by employees of a Contractor recognized by FTA to be a transit operator, and if FTA has determined that it is financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance.

B. General Transit Employee Protective Requirements

If FTA has determined that this Contract involves transit operations financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance (other than Federal assistance authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5310(a)(2) or 49 U.S.C. § 5311), and if the U.S. Secretary of Transportation has determined that the employee protective requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b) are necessary or appropriate for Omnitrans under this Contract, then Contractor shall perform the transit operations work under the Contract in compliance with terms and conditions, (a) determined by the U.S. Secretary of Labor to meet the employee protective requirements of 49 U.S.C. A 5333(b), and U.S. Department of Labor ("U. S. DOL") guidelines at 29 C.F.R. Part 215, and any amendments thereto, and (b) stated in a U. S. DOL letter of certification to FTA, the date of which is set forth in the applicable Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement with Omnitrans, and which is incorporated in the Form of Contract as a Contract Document entitled "U. S. DOL Certification".

C. Transit Employee Protective Requirements for Projects Authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5310(a) (2) for Elderly Individuals and Individuals with Disabilities

If FTA has determined that this Contract involves transit operations financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5310(a)(2), and if the U.S. Secretary of Transportation has determined or determines in the future that the employee protective requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b) are necessary or appropriate for Omnitrans under the Contract, Contractor shall perform the Work in compliance with the terms and conditions determined, (a) by the U.S. Secretary of Labor to meet the requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b), U.S. DOL guidelines at 29 C.F.R. Part 215, and any amendments thereto, and (b) stated in the U.S. DOL's letter of certification to FTA, the date of which is set forth in the applicable Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement with Omnitrans, and which is incorporated in the Form of Contract as a Contract Document entitled "U. S. DOL Certification".

RR – Page 27 Updated: 08082018

D. Transit Employee Protective Requirements for Projects Authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5311 in Nonurbanized Areas

If FTA has determined that this Contract involves transit operations financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5311, Contractor shall comply with the terms and conditions of the Special Warranty for the Nonurbanized Area Program agreed to by the U.S. Secretaries of Transportation and Labor, dated May 31, 1979, and the procedures implemented by U.S. DOL or any revision thereto.

E. **Indemnity**

Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless Omnitrans, and its Board Members, employees and agents from and against all liability, claims, demands actions, costs, judgments, penalties, damages, losses and expenses arising out of or in connection with Contractor's failure to comply with or failure to carry out its responsibilities under all applicable provisions of Sections B, C and D of this Article.

CHARTER BUS OPERATION

Charter Service Operations.

The Recipient agrees that neither it nor any public transportation operator performing work in connection with a Project financed under 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 or under 23 U.S.C. §§ 133 or 142, will engage in charter service operations, except as authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5323(d) and FTA regulations, "Charter Service," 49 C.F.R. Part 604, and any Charter Service regulations or FTA directives that may be issued, except to the extent that FTA determines otherwise in writing. The Charter Service Agreement the Recipient has selected in its latest annual Certifications and Assurances is incorporated by reference and made part of the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement for the Project. If the Recipient has failed to select the Charter Service Agreement in its latest annual Certifications and Assurances to FTA and does conduct charter service operations prohibited by FTA's Charter Service regulations, the Recipient understands and agrees that: (1) the requirements of FTA's Charter Service regulations and any amendments thereto will apply to any charter service it or its subrecipients, lessees, third party contractors, or other participants in the Project provide; (2) the definitions of FTA's Charter Service regulations will apply to the Recipient's charter operations, and (3) a pattern of violations of FTA's Charter Service regulations may require corrective measures and imposition of remedies, including barring the Recipient, subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, or other participant in the Project operating public transportation under the Project from receiving Federal financial assistance from FTA, or withholding an amount of Federal assistance as set forth in Appendix D to FTA's Charter Service regulations.

> RR – Page 28 Updated: 08082018

SCHOOL BUS OPERATIONS

The Recipient agrees that neither it nor any public transportation operator performing work in connection with a Project financed under 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 or under 23 U.S.C. §§ 133 or 142, will engage in school transportation operations for the transportation of students or school personnel exclusively in competition with private school transportation operators, except as authorized by 49 U.S.C. §§ 5323(f) or (g), as applicable, and FTA regulations, "School Bus Operations," 49 C.F.R. Part 605 to the extent consistent with 49 U.S.C. §§ 5323(f) or (g), in accordance with any School Transportation Operations regulations or FTA directives that may be issued at a later date, except to the extent that FTA determines otherwise in writing. The School Transportation Operations Agreement the Recipient has selected in its latest annual Certifications and Assurances is incorporated by reference and made part of the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement for the Project. If the Recipient has failed to select the School Transportation Agreement in its latest annual Certifications and Assurances to FTA and does conduct school transportation operations prohibited by FTA's School Bus Operations regulations, 49 C.F.R. Part 605, to the extent those regulations are consistent with 49 U.S.C. §§ 5323(f) or (g), the Recipient understands and agrees that: (1) the requirements of FTA's School Bus Operations regulations, 49 C.F.R. Part 605, to the extent consistent with 49 U.S.C. §§ 5323(f) or (g), will apply to any school transportation service it or its subrecipients, lessees, third party contractor, or other participants in the project provide, (2) the definitions of FTA's School Bus Operations regulations will apply to the Recipient's school transportation operations, and (3) if there is a violation of FTA's School Bus Operations regulations, to the extent consistent with 49 U.S.C. §§ 5323(f) or (g), FTA will bar the Recipient, subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, or other Project participant operating public transportation that has violated FTA's School Bus Operations regulations, 49 C.F.R. Part 605, to the extent consistent with 49 U.S.C. §§ 5323(f) or (g), from receiving Federal transit assistance in an amount FTA considers appropriate.

RR-023 ALCOHOL AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE PROGRAM *

A. Applicability

This Article applies to federally funded contracts for transit operations.

B. FTA Prevention of Alcohol Misuse and Prohibited Drug Use in Transit Operations Regulations

Contractor and its Subcontractors shall comply with the FTA anti-drug and alcohol misuse regulations (49 CFR Part 655) and the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) Procedures for Transportation Workplace Drug and Alcohol Testing Programs (49 CFR Part 40) to the full extent that they are, by their terms, applicable to Contractor and its Subcontractors. The regulations apply to all "contractors" that have "covered employees" that perform "safety sensitive functions" as those terms are defined in the regulations.

RR – Page 29 Updated: 08082018

C. Certificate of Compliance

The CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH 49 CFR PARTS 655, PREVENTION OF ALCOHOL MISUSE AND PROHIBITED DRUG USE IN TRANSIT, submitted by Contractor prior to award, is incorporated as part of the Contract Documents.

D. Drug and Alcohol Testing Program

In the event that any part of the Work under this Contract falls within the scope of 49 CFR Part 655, Contractor, and its Subcontractors (as applicable), shall establish and implement a drug and alcohol testing program that complies with 49 CFR Parts 653 and 654, produce any documentation necessary to establish its compliance with Parts 653 and 654, and permit any authorized representative of the United States Department of Transportation or its operating administrations, the State Oversight Agency of California, or Omnitrans, to inspect the facilities and records associated with the implementation of the drug and alcohol testing program as required under 49 CFR Parts 653 and 654 and review the testing process. Contractor shall annually certify its compliance with Parts 653 and 65. To certify compliance the contractor shall use the "Substance Abuse Certifications" in the "Annual List of Certifications and Assurances for Federal Transit Administration Grants and Cooperative Agreements," which is published annually in the Federal Register.

E. Alcohol and Drug Free Workplace Program

In addition to the above, for Work performed on Omnitrans property, Contractor shall provide an Alcohol and Drug-free Workplace Program in accordance with FTA requirements found at http://transit-safety.fta.dot.gov/DrugAndAlcohol/default.asp

PLANNING, RESEARCH, DEVELOPMENT AND DEMONSTRATION PROJECTS

PATENT RIGHTS

a. General. If any invention, improvement, or discovery of the Recipient or of any subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, or other participant at any tier of the Project is conceived or first actually reduced to practice in the course of or under the Project, and that invention, improvement, or discovery is patentable under the laws of the United States of America or any foreign country, the Recipient agrees to notify FTA immediately and provide a detailed report in a format satisfactory to FTA.

b. Federal Rights. The Recipient agrees that its rights and responsibilities, and those of each subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, or other participant at any tier of the Project, pertaining to that invention, improvement, or discovery will be determined in accordance with applicable Federal laws and regulations, including any waiver thereof. Absent a determination in writing to the contrary by the Federal Government, the Recipient agrees to transmit to FTA those rights due the Federal

RR – Page 30 Updated: 08082018 Government in any invention, improvement, or discovery resulting from that subagreement, third party contract, third party subcontract, or arrangement, as specified in 35 U.S.C. §§ 200 *et seq.*, and U.S. Department of Commerce regulations, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," 37 C.F.R. Part 401, irrespective of the status of the Recipient, subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor or other participant in the Project (*i.e.*, a large business, small business, State government, State instrumentality, local government, Indian tribe, nonprofit organization, institution of higher education, or individual).

c. License Fees and Royalties. FTA considers income earned from license fees and royalties for patents, patent applications, and inventions produced under the Project to be program income. Except to the extent FTA determines otherwise in writing, as provided in 49 C.F.R. Parts 18 and 19, the Recipient has no obligation to the Federal Government with respect to that program income, apart from compliance with 35 U.S.C. §§ 200 *et seq.*, which applies to patent rights developed under a research project.

RIGHTS IN DATA AND COPYRIGHTS

- a. Definition. The term "subject data," as used in this Section 18 of this Master Agreement means recorded information, whether or not copyrighted, that is delivered or specified to be delivered under the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement for the Project. Examples include, but are not limited to: computer software, standards, specifications, engineering drawings and associated lists, process sheets, manuals, technical reports, catalog item identifications, and related information. "Subject data" do not include financial reports, cost analyses, or other similar information used for Project administration.
- b. General. The following restrictions apply to all subject data first produced in the performance of the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement for the Project:
 - (1) Except for its own internal use, the Recipient may not publish or reproduce subject data in whole or in part, or in any manner or form, nor may the Recipient authorize others to do so, without the prior written consent of the Federal Government, unless the Federal Government has previously released or approved the release of such data to the public.
 - (2) The restrictions on publication of Paragraph 18.b(1) of this Master Agreement, however, do not apply to a Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement with an institution of higher learning.
- c. Federal Rights in Data and Copyrights. The Recipient agrees to provide to the Federal Government a royalty-free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, for Federal Government purposes the subject data described in this Subsection 18.c of this Master Agreement. As used herein, "for Federal Government purposes," means use only for the direct purposes of the Federal Government. Without the copyright owner's consent, the Federal Government may not provide or otherwise extend to other parties the Federal Government's license to:
 - (1) Any subject data developed under the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement for the Project, or under a subagreement, lease, third party contract or other arrangement at any tier of the Project, supported with Federal assistance derived from the Grant Agreement or

RR – Page 31 Updated: 08082018 Cooperative Agreement for the Project, whether or not a copyright has been obtained; and

- (2) Any rights of copyright to which a Recipient, subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, or other participant at any tier of the Project purchases ownership using Federal assistance.
- d. Special Federal Rights in Data for Research, Development, Demonstration, and Special Studies Projects. In general, FTA's purpose in providing Federal assistance for a research, development, demonstration, or special studies Project is to increase transportation knowledge, rather than limit the benefits of the Project to Project participants. Therefore, when the Project is completed, the Recipient agrees to provide a Project report that FTA may publish or make available for publication on the Internet. In addition, the Recipient agrees to provide other reports pertaining to the Project that FTA may request. The Recipient agrees to identify clearly any specific confidential, privileged, or proprietary information it submits to FTA. In addition, except to the extent that FTA determines otherwise in writing, the Recipient of Federal assistance to support a research, development, demonstration, or a special studies Project agrees that, in addition to the rights in data and copyrights that it must provide to the Federal Government as set forth in Subsection 18.c of this Master Agreement, FTA may make available to any FTA recipient, subrecipient, third party contractor, third party subcontractor or other participant at any tier of the Project, either FTA's license in the copyright to the subject data or a copy of the subject data. If the Project is not completed for any reason whatsoever, all data developed under the Project shall become subject data as defined in Subsection 18.a of this Master Agreement and shall be delivered as the Federal Government may direct. This Subsection 18.d, however, does not apply to adaptations of automatic data processing equipment or programs for the Recipient's use when the costs thereof are financed with Federal assistance through an FTA capital program.
- e. License Fees and Royalties. FTA considers income earned from license fees and royalties for copyrighted material, or trademarks produced under the Project to be program income. Except to the extent FTA determines otherwise in writing, as provided in 49 C.F.R. Parts 18 and 19, the Recipient has no obligation to the Federal Government with respect to that program income, apart from compliance with 35 U.S.C. §§ 200 et seq., which applies to patent rights developed under a research project.
- f. Hold Harmless. Except as prohibited or otherwise limited by State law or except to the extent that FTA determines otherwise in writing, upon request by the Federal Government, the Recipient agrees to indemnify, save, and hold harmless the Federal Government and its officers, agents, and employees acting within the scope of their official duties against any liability, including costs and expenses, resulting from any willful or intentional violation by the Recipient of proprietary rights, copyrights, or right of privacy, arising out of the publication, translation, reproduction, delivery, use, or disposition of any data furnished under the Project. The Recipient shall not be required to indemnify the Federal Government for any such liability caused by the wrongful acts of Federal employees or agents.
- g. Restrictions on Access to Patent Rights. Nothing in Section 18 of this Master Agreement pertaining to rights in data shall either imply a license to the Federal Government under any patent or be construed to affect the scope of any license or other right otherwise granted to the Federal Government under any patent.
- h. Data Developed Without Federal Funding or Support. In connection with the Project, the Recipient may find it necessary to provide data to FTA developed without any Federal funding or support by the Federal Government. The requirements of Subsections 18.b, 18.c, and 18.d of this Master Agreement

RR – Page 32 Updated: 08082018 do not apply to data developed without Federal funding or support by the Federal Government, even though that data may have been used in connection with the Project. Nevertheless, the Recipient understands and agrees that the Federal Government will not be able to protect data from unauthorized disclosure unless that data is clearly marked "Proprietary" or "Confidential."

i. Requirements to Release Data. To the extent required by U.S. DOT regulations, "Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Agreements with Institutions of Higher Education, Hospitals, and Other Non-Profit Organizations," at 49 C.F.R. § 19.36(d), or other applicable Federal laws or Federal regulations, the Recipient understands and agrees that the data and information it submits to the Federal Government may be required to be released in accordance with the Freedom of Information Act (or another Federal law or Federal regulation providing access to such records).

SPECIAL NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS FOR STATES

SPECIAL NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS FOR STATES

To the extent required by Federal law, the State agrees that, in administering any Federal assistance Program or Project supported by the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement, any request for proposals, solicitation, grant application, form, notification, press release, or other publication involving the distribution of FTA assistance for the Program or the Project shall indicate that FTA is the Federal agency that is providing the Federal assistance, the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number of the program from which the Federal assistance is authorized, as may be applicable, and the amount of Federal assistance FTA provided.

MISCELLANEOUS SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

RR-024 ENERGY CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS

A. Applicability

This Article applies to all federally funded contracts.

B. Contractor shall comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act 42 USC §6321 et seq.

RR – Page 33 Updated: 08082018

RR-025 RECYCLED PRODUCTS

A. Applicability

This Article applies to federally funded operations/management, construction, or materials & supplies contracts for items designated by the Environmental Protection Agency, when procuring \$10,000 or more per year.

- B. To the extent practicable and economically feasible, a competitive preference shall be given for products and services that conserve natural resources and protect the environment and are energy efficient.
- C. The Contractor agrees to comply with all the requirements of Section 6002 of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), as amended (42 U.S.C. 6962), including but not limited to the regulatory provisions of 40 CFR Part 247, and Executive Order 12873, as they apply to the procurement of the items designated in Subpart B of 40 CFR Part 247.

NATIONAL INTELLIGENT TRANSPORTATION SYSTEMS ARCHITECTURE AND STANDARDS

To the extent applicable, the Recipient agrees to conform to the National Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) Architecture and Standards as required by SAFETEA-LU § 5307(c), 23 U.S.C. § 512 note, and follow the provisions of FTA Notice, "FTA National ITS Architecture Policy on Transit Projects," 66 Fed. Reg. 1455 et seq., January 8, 2001, and any other implementing directives FTA may issue at a later date, except to the extent FTA determines otherwise in writing.

RR-026 ADA ACCESS

A. Applicability

This Article applies to federally funded Architect & Engineer, Operations/Management, Rolling Stock Purchase, and Construction contracts

B. Access Requirements for Persons with Disabilities

Contractor shall comply with:

1. The requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5301(d), which states the Federal policy that elderly persons and persons with disabilities have the same right as other persons to use mass transportation service and facilities, and that special efforts shall be made in planning and designing those services and facilities to implement that policy;

Updated: 08082018

- 2. All applicable requirements of section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 794, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps;
- 3. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq., which requires that accessible facilities and services be made available to persons with disabilities, including any subsequent amendments to that Act;
- 4. The Architectural Barriers Act of 1968, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4151 et seq., which requires that buildings and public accommodations be accessible to persons with disabilities, including any subsequent amendments to that Act; and
- 5. All applicable requirements of the following regulations and any subsequent amendments thereto:
 - (1) U.S. DOT regulations, "Transportation Services for Individuals with Disabilities (ADA)," 49 C.F.R. Part 37;
 - (2) U.S. DOT regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in Programs and Activities Receiving or Benefiting from Federal Financial Assistance," 49 C.F.R. Part 27;
 - (3) Joint U.S. Architectural and Transportation Barriers Compliance Board (U.S. ATBCB)/U.S. DOT regulations, "Americans With Disabilities (ADA) Accessibility Specifications for Transportation Vehicles," 36 C.F.R. Part 1192 and 49 C.F.R. Part 38;
 - (4) U.S. DOJ regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability in State and Local Government Services," 28 C.F.R. Part 35;
 - (5) U.S. DOJ regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability by Public Accommodations and in Commercial Facilities," 28 C.F.R. Part 36;
 - (6) U.S. General Services Administration (U.S. GSA) regulations, "Accommodations for the Physically Handicapped," 41 C.F.R. Subpart 101-19;
 - (7) U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, "Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment Provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act," 29 C.F.R. Part 1630;
 - (8) U.S. Federal Communications Commission regulations, "Telecommunications Relay Services and Related Customer Premises Equipment for the Hearing and Speech Disabled," 47 C.F.R. Part 64, Subpart F; and

RR – Page 35 Updated: 08082018

- (9) U.S. ATBCB regulations, "Electronic and Information Technology Accessibility Standards," 36 C.F.R. Part 1194; and
- (10) FTA regulations, "Transportation for Elderly and Handicapped Persons," 49 C.F.R. Part 609;
- (11) Any implementing requirements FTA may issue.

NOT INCLUDED IN UPDATED POLICY

RR-01 ADMINISTRATIVE CODE *

A. Applicability

This Article applies to all contracts.

B. Compliance with §\$1090 et. seq. and §\$87100 et. seq. of the California Government Code

Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of §§1090 et. seq. and §§87100 et. seq. of the California Government Code. Without reducing or affecting its obligation to comply with any and all of said provisions, Contractor specifically covenants:

- 1. Contractor shall not cause or permit any member, officer, or employee of Omnitrans to have any financial interest in the Contract;
- 2. Contractor shall not enter into any Subcontract involving services or property with a person or business prohibited from transacting such business with Omnitrans;
- 3. Contractor warrants and represents that to its knowledge no Board member, officer, or employee of Omnitrans has any interest, whether contractual, non-contractual, financial or otherwise, in this Contract, or in the business or any other contract or transaction of the Contractor or any Subcontractor and that if any such interest comes to Contractor's knowledge at any time, Contractor shall make a full and complete disclosure of all such information in writing to Omnitrans.

C. Campaign Contributions

Neither Contractor nor its Agents shall give or offer to give any campaign contribution to any member of Omnitrans Board of Directors in violation of the California Government Code §§84300 et seq., or of the Administrative Code. Contractor shall submit a Certification of Campaign Contributions with all COs of two hundred thousand dollars (\$200,000) or more.

RR – Page 36 Updated: 08082018

RR-02 DISCRIMINATION *

A. Applicability

This Article applies to all contracts.

B. In connection with the performance of Work provided for under this Contract, Contractor agrees that it will not, on the grounds of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, medical condition, marital status, sex, sexual orientation, or age, discriminate or permit discrimination against any person or group of persons in any manner prohibited by Federal, State or local laws.

RR-03

WHISTLEBLOWER REQUIREMENTS *

A. Applicability

This Article applies to all contracts.

B. Contractor shall not adopt any rule, regulation, or policy preventing an employee from disclosing information to a government or law enforcement agency, where the employee believes the information discloses violation or noncompliance with a state or Federal regulation; nor shall Contractor retaliate against an employee for taking such actions as set forth in the t. seq.

RR-04 PUBLIC RECORDS ACT *

A. Applicability

This Article applies to all contracts.

- B. Except as otherwise provided herein, all records, documents, drawings, plans, specifications, and all other information relating to the conduct of Omnitrans business, including all information and documents submitted by Contractor ("Records"), shall become the exclusive property of Omnitrans and shall be deemed public records. Said Records are subject to the provisions of the California Public Records Act (Government Code §6250 et. seq.). Omnitrans use and disclosure of its records are governed by this Act. Omnitrans will use its best efforts to inform the Contractor of any request for any financial records or documents marked "Trade Secret", "Confidential" or "Proprietary" provided by Contractor to Omnitrans. Omnitrans will not advise as to the nature or content of documents entitled to protection from disclosure under the California Public Records Act.
- C. In the event of litigation concerning the disclosure of any Records, Omnitrans sole involvement will be as a stakeholder, retaining the Records until otherwise ordered by a court. The submitting party, at its sole expense and risk, shall be fully responsible for any

RR – Page 37 Updated: 08082018 and all fees for prosecuting or defending any action concerning the Records and shall indemnify and hold Omnitrans harmless from all costs and expenses including attorney's fees in connection with any such action.

RR-05 PRIVACY ACT - 5 U.S.C. 552

Applicability to Contracts

When a grantee maintains files on drug and alcohol enforcement activities for FTA, and those files are organized so that information could be retrieved by personal identifier, the Privacy Act requirements apply to all contracts.

Flow Down

The Federal Privacy Act requirements flow down to each third party contractor and their contracts at every tier.

Model Clause/Language

The text of the following clause has not been mandated by statute or specific regulation, but has been developed by FTA.

Contracts Involving Federal Privacy Act Requirements - The following requirements apply to the Contractor and its employees that administer any system of records on behalf of the Federal Government under any contract:

- (1) The Contractor agrees to comply with, and assures the compliance of its employees with, the information restrictions and other applicable requirements of the Privacy Act of 1974,
 - 5 U.S.C. § 552a. Among other things, the Contractor agrees to obtain the express consent of the Federal Government before the Contractor or its employees operate a system of records on behalf of the Federal Government. The Contractor understands that the requirements of the Privacy Act, including the civil and criminal penalties for violation of that Act, apply to those individuals involved, and that failure to comply with the terms of the Privacy Act may result in termination of the underlying contract.
- (2) The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract to administer any system of records on behalf of the Federal Government financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.

RR-06

VETERANS PREFERENCE

<u>Veterans Employment</u>. Contractors working on a capital project funded using FTA assistance shall give a hiring preference, to the extent practicable, to veterans (as defined in section 2108 of title 5) who have the requisite skills and abilities to perform the construction work required under the contract. This subsection shall not be understood, construed or enforced in any manner that would require an employer to give preference to any veteran over any equally qualified applicant who is

RR – Page 38 Updated: 08082018 a member of any racial or ethnic minority, female, an individual with a disability, or former employee.

END OF REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

RR – Page 39 Updated: 08082018

ATTACHMENT C - PRICING SCHEDULE

MNT19-02 BUS TIRE LEASE AND SERVICES

40-foot Buses

Tire Size	Year I Miles	Rate per Tire Mile	Dollar Total Year 1*	Year 2 Miles	Rate per Tire Mile	Dollar Total Year 2*
305/70R22.5	6,072,500	0.005973	\$217,626.26	6,112,484	0.006152	\$225,624.01
275/70R22.5	2,602,500	0.007552	\$117,924.48	2,619,636	0.007778	\$122,253.17

TOTAL YR 1 \$ 335,550.74

TOTAL YR 2 \$ 347,877.18

Tire Size	Year 3 Miles	Rate per Tire Mile	Dollar Total Year 3*	Year 4 Miles	Rate per Tire Mile	Dollar Total Year 4*
305/70R22.5	6,112,484	0.006337	\$232,408.87	6,112,484	0.006527	\$239,377.10
275/70R22.5	2,619,636	0.008012	\$125,931.14	2,619,636	0.008012	\$125,931.14

TOTAL YR 3 \$ 358,340.01

TOTAL YR 4 \$ 365,308.24

Tire Size	Year 5 Miles	Rate per Tire Mile	Dollar Total Year 5 ⁴
305/70R22.5	6,112,484	0.006723	\$246,565.38
275/70R22.5	2,619,636	0,008012	\$125,931.14

TOTAL YR 5 \$ 372,496.52

TOTAL 5 YEARS: \$ 1,779,572.69

^{*}Dollar total equals Rate per tire mileage X projected annual mileage X 6

60-foot Articulated Buses

Tire Size	Year 1	Rate per Tire	Dollar Total	Year 2	Rate per Tire	Dollar Total
	Miles	Mile	Year 1*	Miles	Mile	Year 2*
305/70R22.5	705,000	0.005973	\$42,109.65	738,696	0.006152	\$45,444.58

TOTAL YR 1 \$ 42,109.65

TOTAL YR 2 \$ 45,444.58

Tire Size	Year 3	Rate per Tire	Dollar Total	Year 4	Rate per Tire	Dollar Total
	Miles	Mile	Year 3*	Miles	Mile	Year 4 ^r
305/70R22.5	738,696	0.006337	\$46,811.17	738,696	0.006527	\$48,214.69

TOTAL YR 3 \$ 46,811.17

TOTAL YR 4 \$ 48,214.69

Tire Size	Year 5	Rate per Tire	Dollar Total
	Miles	Mile	Year 5*
305/70R22.5	738,696	0.006723	49,662.53

TOTAL YR 5 \$ 49,662.53

TOTAL 5 YEARS: \$ 232,242.61

^{*}Dollar total equals Rate per tire mileage X projected annual mileage X 10

MNT19-02 BUS TIRE LEASE AND SERVICES

Hourly Rate for Tire Services

Year	Fully Burdened Hourly Rate	Quantity Hours	Total Amount
1	\$ 28.30	4160	\$ 117,728.00
2	\$ 29.44	4160	\$ 122,470.40
3	\$ 30.61	4160	\$ 127,337.60
4	\$ 31.84	4160	\$ 132,454,40
5	\$ 33.11	4160	\$ 137,737.60
TOTAL		5 YEARS	\$637,728.00



POLICY 707 PAGE 1 OF 6

SUBJECT

PROHIBITING WEAPONS IN THE WORKPLACE

APPROVED BY OMNITRANS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DATE: June 7, 2017

I. Purpose

It is the policy of Omnitrans to maintain a work environment that is safe for all persons, including the community, and conducive to attaining high work standards. To achieve these objectives, the Agency prohibits the possession of firearms and weapons in the work place, regardless of any license or permit that an individual may have which otherwise authorizes the individual to carry firearms or weapons.

It is illegal and a criminal violation to possess weapons in public buildings (California Penal Code 171b and 171.7).

II. Scope

This policy applies to all Omnitrans employees, including but not limited to staffing agency workers and contractors working for or with the Agency at any time, regardless of whether the Agency is the actual employer.

Possession of firearms and weapons is prohibited at all Omnitrans' offices, parking lots, agency vehicles and job sites, and in all Agency vehicles.

The following person/s are exempt from this policy as stated: a guard of a contract carrier operating an armored vehicle, and any law enforcement officer who is carrying out official duties engaged in protecting and preserving property or life within the scope of his or her employment.

Omnitrans will strictly enforce this policy. Violation of this policy will result in immediate disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

III. Procedure

A. COMMUNICATION OF POLICY

- (a) Each employee of the Agency shall receive a copy of this policy at the time of his/her hire and shall sign a copy of the acknowledgment. Employees who were employed before the effective date of this policy shall also receive a copy of this policy and shall sign a copy of the acknowledgment. A copy of the signed acknowledgment and of all new and revised policies throughout the employee's employment shall be maintained in each employee's personnel file.
- (b) A copy of this policy shall be attached to each contractor's contract, and shall become a part of its contract. The contractor shall be responsible for communicating this policy to its employees and any subcontractors to which the contractor sublets any portion of its contract.



POLICY 707 PAGE 2 OF 6

SUBJECT

PROHIBITING WEAPONS IN THE WORKPLACE

APPROVED BY OMNITRANS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DATE: June 7, 2017

B. PROHIBITED CONDUCT

- (a) The transportation of firearms or weapons in Agency vehicles is prohibited. This includes but is not limited to:
 - (1) to and from work,
 - (2) when conducting Agency business,
 - (3) at all times in Agency-owned or leased vehicles.
- (b) The possession or carrying of permitted and non-permitted firearms or weapons while at Agency buildings, parking lots, sponsored events, and job sites.
- (c) Exception: Power actuated tools which are manufactured for the use of fastening building materials and sanctioned tools for the purpose of performing Agency job duties are not subject to this policy.

C. SEARCH

- (a) Omnitrans reserves the right to conduct reasonable, unannounced searches of Agency premises and personal searches of employees and others while entering, on, or leaving Agency premises, including, but not limited to, personal effects, vehicles, lockers, desks, tool boxes, clothing, meal containers, and baggage. Searches will be conducted when the Agency has a reasonable suspicion to believe that a particular employee may be in possession of a weapon or firearm.
- (b) "Reasonable suspicion" is defined as a suspicion that is based on specific personal observations such as an employee's manner, disposition, behavior, speech, information provided to management by an employee, by law enforcement officials, by a security service, or by other persons believed to be reliable, or a suspicion that is based on other surrounding circumstances.
- (c) Individuals refusing to allow an inspection will not be detained or forced to submit to the inspection. Refusal violates Agency policy and constitutes an act of insubordination constituting disciplinary action, up to and including separation of the employment relationship. Non-employees who refuse to allow an inspection will not be permitted on Agency premises and will be required to immediately leave the premises. Employees will be relieved of all duties while pending investigation.

D. <u>DISCIPLINE</u>

(a) Violations of any portion of this policy will subject the employee to discipline,



POLICY 707 PAGE 3 OF 6

SUBJECT

PROHIBITING WEAPONS IN THE WORKPLACE

APPROVED BY OMNITRANS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DATE: June 7, 2017

up to and including separation of employment.

(b) Violations by a contractor's employee or subcontractor of any portion of this policy may constitute a breach of contract and regardless will mandate the immediate removal of the contractor's employee from Agency premises, prohibition against the individual accessing Agency premises in the future, and may also constitute a breach of contract.

E. REPORT OF VIOLATIONS

1. Employee Violations

Employees are required to report violations of this policy without regard to the relationship between the individual who initiates the prohibited behavior and the individual reporting it. An employee who believes that another employee may be in violation of this policy must report the alleged violation to the employee's manager or supervisor, the department director, security, or the appropriate departmental Human Resources representative.

Departments are responsible for implementing this policy. The Agency will promptly investigate allegations of violations of this policy.

Omnitrans reserves the right to authorize searches for prohibited weapons on its property when a violation is reported or when probable cause or reasonable suspicion is present consistent with law.

Employees should be aware that there is no reasonable expectation of privacy with respect to weapons in the workplace. The Agency's right to conduct searches includes, but is not limited to, such areas and items as lockers, desks, workstations, offices, purses, briefcases, bags, toolboxes, and lunch bags.

Searches of the employee's work area and belongings, as described above, may be conducted by the Security & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator, or designee. Searches of all types, including surrounding agency property, personal property and the employee may be conducted by law enforcement in accordance with law should reasonable suspicion be present. Any weapon found in violation of this policy may be confiscated. Refusal to permit a search may result in discipline, up to and including separation.

2. Visitor Violations

Visitors are not allowed to carry a weapon on the premises. Any visitor carrying a weapon into a posted no-carry agency facility is creating an elevated risk to security and safety that warrants a response leading to compliance with the law. If the visitor



POLICY 707 PAGE 4 OF 6

SUBJECT

PROHIBITING WEAPONS IN THE WORKPLACE

APPROVED BY OMNITRANS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DATE: June 7, 2017

poses an immediate risk to security or safety, law enforcement shall be notified immediately by calling 9-911. The visitor shall be considered an immediate risk to safety and security if he/she is acting in an aggressive, belligerent, confrontational, suspicious or in an otherwise questionable manner while carrying a weapon.

F. FALSE REPORTS

Employees making intentionally false and malicious complaints of weapons in the workplace will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including separation and/or will be reported to the proper authorities as appropriate.

G. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Employees are responsible for understanding and complying with the Policy Prohibiting Weapons in the Workplace.

Whenever there is a question as to whether an instrument, article or substance is considered a weapon in violation of this policy, it is the employee's responsibility to seek clarification. Employees seeking clarification should direct their questions to the agency's Security & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator at 909-379-7117 prior to bringing the item(s) to Omnitrans work sites and events, as well as agency-owned or leased facilities or vehicles.

H. SAFETY FIRST

In applying this policy, no employee shall take any action that will risk his or her own safety or the safety of other individuals. No attempt should ever be made by an employee to restrain or forcibly evict an armed person from agency premises.

An individual's continued non-compliance after being properly informed of the law (California Penal Code 171 (b)) will result in notification to law enforcement and discipline, up to and including separation of employment. Employees should notify security immediately.

An employee who feels an imminent danger to his or her own safety or the safety or security of others, should avoid any interaction with the individual. Immediately contact law enforcement by calling 9-911 and security at 909-379-7117.

I. ANTI-RETALIATION PROVISION

Omnitrans strictly prohibits any retaliation against an employee who has reported a possible breach of policy. If an employee feels that he or she has been subjected to retaliation in violation of this policy, the employee must immediately report it to his or her supervisor or other designated Human Resources representative.



POLICY 707 PAGE 5 OF 6

SUBJECT

PROHIBITING WEAPONS IN THE WORKPLACE

APPROVED BY OMNITRANS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DATE: June 7, 2017

J. DEFINITIONS

- 1. **Firearm or weapon includes, but is not limited to:** A weapon, a pistol or rifle, whether loaded or unloaded, capable of firing a projectile and using an explosive as a propellant.
 - A firearm, whether loaded or unloaded, from which a shot may be discharged including but not limited to handguns, pistols, revolvers, shotguns, rifles, and bb guns;
 - A gun that can discharge a shot or a projectile by means of an explosive or gas, or compressed air;
 - A device designed to be used as a weapon, from which can be expelled a
 projectile by the force of any explosion or force of combustion;
 - Any weapon (including a starter gun) which will or is designed to or may readily be converted to expel a projectile by the action of an explosive;
 - Any destructive device;
 - Any device designed as a weapon and capable of producing great bodily harm, including but not limited to, stun guns, stun batons;
 - An electric weapon such as a taser gun;
 - Any combustible or flammable liquid, or other substance, device, or instrumentality that, in a manner it is used or intended to be used, is calculated or likely to produce death or great bodily harm, or any fire that is used to produce death or great bodily harm;
 - Any knife that is carried with intention or calculation to produce death or great bodily harm having a blade length in excess of four (4) inches, the blade of which is fixed or is capable of being fixed in an unguarded position by the use of one or two hands. Switchblades are specifically prohibited. (Knives intended to be used as eating utensils, and stored or maintained in office kitchens or lunchrooms do not represent a violation of this policy.)
- 2. **Office**: All permanent facilities, all mobile facilities, all leased facilities, and any facility designated as an office by the agency.
- 3. **Parking lot**: All lots at permanent facility, park and rides, lots at project sites, any lot that the agency designates as a parking lot that is not at a permanent facility or project site.
- 4. Agency vehicle: All agency-owned buses/vehicles, all agency-leased buses/vehicles, all agency-rental buses/vehicles, and all personal vehicles for which the owner receives a vehicle allowance, all personal vehicles where the owner receives reimbursement for mileage.



POLICY 707 PAGE 6 OF 6

SUBJECT

PROHIBITING WEAPONS IN THE WORKPLACE

APPROVED BY OMNITRANS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DATE: June 7, 2017

- 5. **Search**: To examine in order to find something concealed.
- 6. **Job sites**: Any and all locations where the agency conducts business.

SIGNS

- 1. At each entrance to buildings, parking lots, and project sites, a sign shall be posted in a location that is conspicuous to all who could enter a building, parking lot, or project site.
- 2. Signs shall have wording or pictogram that prohibits firearms, weapons and give notice of video surveillance. Signs shall be vandalism resistant and of the quality that they will not fade due to the elements.



CONTRACT AGREEMENT

between

CONTRACTOR) CONTRACT DOCUMENTS
EnPro Services, Inc. 2360 S. Orange Avenue, Bldg. #1 Fresno, California 93725) CONTRACT NO. MNT19-16
Tresno, Camorna 33723	Elevator Modernization Project
(hereinafter "CONTRACTOR") Telephone: (916) 389-0823 Email: mwilliams@enproservices.com))))
And))) Contract Amount: \$396,842.00))
Omnitrans 1700 West Fifth Street San Bernardino, CA 92411 (hereinafter "OMNITRANS")))))) Omnitrans Project Manager:) Name: Mark Montgomery) Title: Facilities Manager) Telephone: (909) 379-7175) Email: mark.montgomery@omnitrans.org)
) Contract Administrator: Name: Kathy McClure Title: Sr. Contract Administrator Telephone: (909) 379-7186 Email: kathy.mcclure@omnitrans.org)))



TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	SCOPE OF WORK	4
2.	PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE	4
3.	CONTRACT OPTIONS	5
4.	COMPENSATION	5
5.	INVOICING AND PAYMENT	6
6.	AUDIT AND INSPECTION OF RECORDS	7
7.	NOTIFICATION	7
8.	OMNITRANS' AND CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIVES	8
9.	DISPUTE RESOLUTION	9
10.	TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE	10
11.	TERMINATION FOR BREACH OF AGREEMENT	10
12.	ASSIGNMENT	11
13.	SUBCONTRACTING	11
14.	INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR	12
15.	INSURANCE	12
16.	INDEMNITY	15
17.	REVISIONS IN SCOPE OF WORK	15
18.	RIGHTS IN TECHNICAL DATA	16
19.	OWNERSHIP OF REPORTS AND DOCUMENTS	16
20	OWNERSHIP RIGHTS	16

21.	WORK FOR HIRE	17
22.	SUBMITTAL OF CLAIMS BY CONTRACTOR	17
23.	EQUAL OPPORTUNITY	17
24.	STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE	18
25.	NOTIFICATION OF EMPLOYMENT OF OMNITRANS BOARD MEMBERS/ALTERNATES AND EMPLOYEES	18
26.	DISQUALIFYING POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS	18
27.	COMPLIANCE WITH LAW	19
28.	COMPLIANCE WITH LOBBYING POLICIES	19
29.	PUBLIC RECORDS ACT	19
30.	WAIVER/INVALIDITY	20
31.	FORCE MAJEURE	20
32.	CONFIDENTIALITY	20
33.	CONTRACTOR'S INTERACTION WITH THE MEDIA AND THE PUBLIC	21
34.	GOVERNING LAW	21
35.	MODIFICATIONS TO AGREEMENT	21
36.	LICENSING, PERMITS AND INSPECTION COSTS	21
37.	PRECEDENCE	22
38.	ENTIRE AGREEMENT	22
ATTAC ATTAC ATTAC ATTAC	CHMENT A – TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS CHMENT B – REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS CHMENT C – COST SHEET CHMENT D – PREVAILING WAGES CHMENT E – GENERAL PROVISIONS CHMENT F – PROHIBITING WEAPONS IN THE WORKPLACE	

This Agreement is made and entered into as of this <u>14th</u> day of <u>January</u>, 2019, by and between Omnitrans (hereinafter referred to as "OMNITRANS") and <u>EnPro Services</u>, <u>Inc.</u> (hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, OMNITRANS is a joint powers authority organized under Section 6500 et seq. of the California Government Code with power to contract for services described in Attachment A to this Agreement entitled "Attachment A, Scope of Work" (hereinafter referred to as "Work");

WHEREAS, CONTRACTOR has indicated it is qualified to perform such services and (1) has reviewed all the available data furnished by OMNITRANS pertinent to the Work to be rendered; (2) has inspected and reviewed the Work to be rendered; (3) will exercise the ordinary care and skill expected of a practitioner in its profession; and (4) is willing to accept responsibility of performing the Work set forth in this Agreement for the compensation and in accordance with the terms, requirements and conditions herein specified;

NOW, THEREFORE, for the consideration hereinafter stated, the parties agree as follows:

1. SCOPE OF WORK

- A. CONTRACTOR will perform the Work and related tasks as described in Attachment A, Scope of Work hereto and is incorporated by reference into and made a part of this Agreement.
- B. This is a non-exclusive Agreement, whereby OMNITRANS may, at its sole discretion, augment or supplant the Work with its own forces or forces of another contractor or entity. CONTRACTOR will cooperate fully with OMNITRANS' staff or other contractor or entity that may be providing similar or the same Work for OMNITRANS.

2. PERIOD OF PERFORMANCE

The term of this Agreement shall be from the date of execution of this Agreement and continue in effect through <u>January 13, 2020</u>, unless terminated as specified in Section 10 and 11 of this Agreement. Omnitrans has no obligation to purchase any specified amount of products/services. All applicable indemnification provisions in this Agreement shall remain in effect following the termination of this Agreement.

Omnitrans' election to extend the Agreement beyond the Initial Term shall not diminish its right to terminate the Agreement for Omnitrans' convenience or CONTRACTORS default as provided elsewhere in this Agreement. The "maximum term" of this Agreement shall be the period extended from <u>January 14</u>, <u>2020</u> through <u>January 13</u>, <u>2024</u>, which period encompasses the Initial Term and the Option Year One, Option Year Two, Option Year Three, and Option Year Four.

3. CONTRACT OPTIONS

- A. Omnitrans will have the unilateral right in the contract by which, for a specified time, Omnitrans may elect to purchase additional services called for by the contract, or may elect to extend the term of the contract. The requirements below apply:
 - Any options that were requested by Omnitrans and/or contained in the Contractor's PROPOSAL or offer must have been evaluated in making the contract award prior to exercising any such options.
 - 2) Since Contractor's proposed pricing for the option years and additional services are considered in evaluating the Contractor's original proposal and form the basis for awarding the contract, Contractor shall be bound by the proposal pricing for additional services and/or option years, unless otherwise provided herein.
- B. Omnitrans will provide a minimum of thirty days (30) written notice to the Contractor of Omnitrans' exercise of its option to extend the contract years. Omnitrans may give notice of its exercise of the option for additional services at any time during the term of the contract. The minimum time for the written notice may be waived by mutual agreement.

4. COMPENSATION

For CONTRACTOR's full and complete performance of its obligations under this Agreement, OMNITRANS shall pay CONTRACTOR on a LUMP SUM basis at the fully burdened fixed rates shown in Attachment C, and subject to the maximum cumulative payment obligation.

OMNITRANS' maximum cumulative payment obligation under this Agreement shall not exceed <u>Three hundred ninety-six thousand, eight hundred forty-two</u> Dollars (\$396,842), including all amounts payable to CONTRACTOR for all costs, including but not limited to direct labor, other direct costs, subcontracts, indirect costs including, but not limited to, leases, materials, taxes, insurance, and profit.

5. INVOICING AND PAYMENT

A. CONTRACTOR shall invoice OMNITRANS on a monthly basis no later than the 15th of each month. CONTRACTOR shall furnish information as may be requested by OMNITRANS to substantiate the validity of an invoice.

CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices in duplicate to:

OMNITRANS 1700 West Fifth Street San Bernardino, CA 92411 Attn: Accounts Payable

Accountspayable@omnitrans.org

A separate invoice shall be used for each shipment. Each invoice shall include, at minimum, the following information:

- Contract number
- Invoice number
- Description of delivery
- Delivery Date
- Total quantity delivered
- Information as requested by OMNITRANS
- B. OMNITRANS shall remit payment within thirty (30) calendar days of approval of the invoices by OMNITRANS' Project Manager.

In the event OMNITRANS should overpay CONTRACTOR, such overpayment shall not be construed as a waiver of OMNITRANS' right to obtain reimbursement for the overpayment. Upon discovering any overpayment, either on its own or upon notice of OMNITRANS, CONTRACTOR shall immediately reimburse OMNITRANS the entire overpayment or, at its sole discretion, OMNITRANS may deduct such overpayment amount from monies due to CONTRACTOR under this Agreement or any other Agreement between OMNITRANS and CONTRACTOR.

C. TITLE

- a. Title shall pass to Omnitrans at the time of payment.
- b. The title transferred as above shall in each case be good, and free and clear from any and all security interests, liens, and/or other encumbrances.
- c. The transfer of title as specified above shall not imply Acceptance by Omnitrans, nor relieve the Contractor from the responsibility for strict compliance with the Contract, including warranty as specified in the Article entitled Warranty of Work, and for any loss of or damage to the Work.
- d. The Contractor at its own expense shall promptly execute, acknowledge, and deliver to the Omnitrans proper bills of sale or other written instruments of title in a form as required by Omnitrans; said instruments shall convey to the Omnitrans' title free and clear of debts, claims, liens, mortgages, taxes, and/or encumbrances.
- e. Contractor shall have title to and bear the risk of any loss of or damage to Work purchased hereunder until they are delivered, unloaded, and received by Omnitrans at the FOB Destination specified herein. Contractor's responsibility for loss or damage except for loss or damage resulting from Contractor's negligence, shall cease when title passes to Omnitrans.

6. AUDIT AND INSPECTION OF RECORDS

CONTRACTOR agrees that OMNITRANS or any duly authorized representative shall have access to and the right to examine, audit, excerpt, copy or transcribe any pertinent transaction, activity, time cards, employment records or other records relating to this Agreement. Such material, including all pertinent cost, accounting, financial records, and proprietary data must be kept and maintained by CONTRACTOR for a period of three (3) years after completion of this Agreement unless OMNITRANS' written permission is given to CONTRACTOR to dispose of material prior to this time.

7. NOTIFICATION

All notices hereunder concerning this Agreement and the Work to be performed shall be physically transmitted by courier, overnight, registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid and addressed as follows:

To OMNITRANS:

To CONTRACTOR:

Omnitrans 1700 West Fifth Street San Bernardino, CA 92411 Attn: Kathy McClure Sr. Contract Administrator EnPro Services Inc. 2360 S. Orange Ave, Bldg. #1 Fresno, CA 93725

Attn: Matt Williams General Manager

8. OMNITRANS' AND CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIVES

A. OMNITRANS' Project Manager

Contracting Officer: OMNITRANS' CEO/General Manager or his authorized designee who has authority to execute contracts on behalf of OMNITRANS.

Project Manager: Name, Title.

- a. Except as expressly specified in this Agreement, the Contracting Officer may exercise any powers, rights and/or privileges that have been lawfully delegated by OMNITRANS. Nothing in this Agreement should be construed to bind OMNITRANS for acts of its officers, employees, and/or agents that exceed the delegation of authority specified herein.
- b. The Contracting Officer has delegated to the Project Manager certain powers and duties in connection with this Agreement. The Project Manager is the authorized representative of the Contracting Officer for matters related to this Agreement. The Project Manager or his/her designee is empowered to:
 - 1. Have general oversight of the Work and this Agreement, including the power to enforce compliance with this Agreement.
 - 2. Reserve the right to remove any portion of the Work from CONTRACTOR which have not been performed to OMNITRANS' satisfaction.
 - 3. Subject to the review and acceptance by OMNITRANS, negotiate with CONTRACTOR all adjustments pertaining to this Agreement for revision.
- c. In addition to the foregoing, the Project Manager shall have those rights and powers expressly set forth in other sections of this Agreement.

B. Contractor's Key Personnel

The following are CONTRACTOR's key personnel and their associated roles in the Work to be provided:

<u>Name</u> <u>Role</u>

Matt Williams General Manager

Chris Ferreira Project Manager

Janey Williams Project Coordinator

Any propose/substitution or replacement by Contractor of Contractor's key personnel shall ensure that such person possesses the same or better expertise and experience than the key personnel being substituted or replaced. Omnitrans reserves the right to interview such person to ascertain and verify if such proposed substitution or replacement does in deed possess such expertise and experience.

OMNITRANS awarded this Agreement to CONTRACTOR based on OMNITRANS' confidence and reliance on the expertise of CONTRACTOR's key personnel described above. CONTRACTOR shall not reassign key personnel or assign other personnel to key personnel roles until CONTRACTOR obtains prior written approval from OMNITRANS.

9. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

Any disputes between the successful CONTRACTOR and OMNITRANS relating to the implementation or administration of the Contract shall be resolved in accordance with this section.

- A. The parties shall first attempt to resolve the dispute informally in meetings or communications between proposer and OMNITRANS.
- B. If the dispute remains unresolved fifteen (15) days after it first arises, proposer may request that Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager issue a recommended decision on the matter in dispute. Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager shall issue the recommended decision in writing and provide a copy to proposer.
- C. If the dispute remains unresolved after review by Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager, either party may seek judicial resolution of the dispute in an appropriate Court of the State of California.
- D. Pending final resolution of a dispute under this section, proposer shall proceed diligently with performance in accordance with the Contract and Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager's recommended decision.

10. TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE

OMNITRANS may terminate this Agreement in whole or in part for OMNITRANS' convenience. Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager shall terminate this Agreement by a written Notice of Termination to CONTRACTOR specifying the nature, extent, and effective date of the termination. Upon receipt of the notice of termination, CONTRACTOR shall immediately discontinue all Work affected and deliver all data, drawings, specifications, reports, estimates, summaries, and other information and materials accumulated in performing this Agreement, whether completed or in process, to Omnitrans' CEO/General Manager. OMNITRANS shall make an equitable adjustment in the Agreement for Work already performed, but shall not allow anticipated profit on unperformed services. Force Majeure shall apply.

11. TERMINATION FOR BREACH OF AGREEMENT

- A. If CONTRACTOR fails to perform any of the provisions of this Agreement or so fails to make progress as to endanger timely performance of this Agreement, OMNITRANS may give CONTRACTOR written notice of such default. If CONTRACTOR does not cure such default or provide a plan to cure such default which is acceptable to OMNITRANS within the time permitted by OMNITRANS, then OMNITRANS may terminate this Agreement due to CONTRACTOR's breach of this Agreement.
- B. If a federal or state proceeding for relief of debtors is undertaken by or against CONTRACTOR, or if CONTRACTOR makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors, then OMNITRANS may immediately terminate this Agreement.
- C. If CONTRACTOR violates Section 28, Compliance with Lobbying Policies, of this Agreement, then OMNITRANS may immediately terminate this Agreement.
- D. In the event OMNITRANS terminates this Agreement as provided in this Section, OMNITRANS may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as OMNITRANS may deem appropriate, Work similar in scope and level of effort to those so terminated, and CONTRACTOR shall be liable to OMNITRANS for all of its costs and damages, including, but not limited, any excess costs for such Work.
- E. All finished or unfinished documents and materials produced or procured under this Agreement shall become OMNITRANS' property upon date of such termination.
- F. If, after notice of termination of this Agreement under the provisions of this Section, it is determined for any reason that CONTRACTOR was not in default under the provisions of this Section, or that the default was

excusable under the terms of this Agreement, the rights and obligations of the parties shall be the same as if the notice of termination had been issued pursuant to Section 10, Termination for Convenience.

G. The rights and remedies of OMNITRANS provided in this Article shall not be exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or under this Agreement.

12. ASSIGNMENT

This Agreement, any interest herein or claim hereunder, may not be assigned by CONTRACTOR either voluntarily or by operation of law, nor may all or any part of this Agreement be subcontracted by CONTRACTOR, without the prior written consent of OMNITRANS. Consent by OMNITRANS shall not be deemed to relieve CONTRACTOR of its obligations to comply fully with all terms and conditions of this Agreement.

13. SUBCONTRACTING

OMNITRANS hereby consents to CONTRACTOR's subcontracting of portions of the Work to the parties identified below for the functions described in CONTRACTOR's proposal. CONTRACTOR shall include in each subcontract agreement the stipulation that CONTRACTOR, not OMNITRANS, is solely responsible for payment to the subcontractor for all amounts owing and that the subcontractor shall have no claim, and shall take no action against OMNITRANS, Member Agencies or officers, directors, employees or sureties thereof for nonpayment by CONTRACTOR.

CONTRACTOR shall not, without the express written consent of Omnitrans, either:

- a. Substitute any person, firm, or corporation as subcontractor in place of the subcontractors identified below; or
- b. Permit any subcontract to be assigned or transferred; or
- c. Allow work to be performed by anyone other than the original subcontractor listed below.

Subcontractor's Name and Address EnPro Elevator Inc. 11312 Sunco Drive Rancho Cordova, CA 95742 Elevator modernization

14. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

CONTRACTOR's relationship to OMNITRANS in the performance of this Agreement is that of an independent Contractor. CONTRACTOR's personnel performing Work under this Agreement shall at all times be under CONTRACTOR's exclusive direction and control and shall be employees of CONTRACTOR and not employees of OMNITRANS. CONTRACTOR shall pay all wages, salaries and other amounts due its employees in connection with this Agreement and shall be responsible for all reports and obligations respecting them, such as social security, income tax withholding, unemployment compensation, workers' compensation and similar matters.

15. INSURANCE

A. **INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS**

1) General Requirements for Contractor

- a. Without limiting or diminishing the Contractor's obligation to indemnify or hold Omnitrans harmless, Contractor shall procure, prior to commencement of the services required under this contract and maintain for the duration of the contract at its own expense, insurance of the kinds and in the amounts as indicated below:
- b. Provide Omnitrans with valid original certificates of insurance and endorsements showing Omnitrans as an additional insured.

2) Deductibles or Self-Insured Retention (SIR)

SIR must be declared to and approved by Omnitrans. At the option of Omnitrans, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or SIR or Contractor shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration and defense expenses.

3) Other Insurance Provisions

a. Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability

Commercial General Liability insurance coverage, including but not limited to, premises liability, contractual liability, products and completed operations liability, personal and advertising injury covering claims which may arise from or out of Contractor's performance of its obligations hereunder and if Contractor's vehicles or mobile equipment are used in the performance of the obligations under this Agreement, then Contractor shall maintain liability insurance for all owned, non-owned or hired vehicles so used. Policy shall name Omnitrans, its officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers as additional insured as respects: liability arising out of activities performed by or on behalf of Contractor; products and completed operations of Contractor; premises owned, occupied or used by Contractor; or automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by Contractor. The coverage shall contain no special limitations of the scope of protection afforded Omnitrans, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers.

- For any claims related to this project, Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance as respects Omnitrans, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers. Any insurance and/or deductibles and/or self-insured retentions or self-insured programs maintained by Omnitrans, its officers, officials, employees, agents, and volunteers shall be excess of Contractor's insurance and shall not be construed as contributory.
- 2. Contractor's insurance shall apply separately to each insured against whom claim is made or suit is brought, except with respect to the limits of the insurer's liability.
- 3. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled by either party, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to Omnitrans.

b. Workers' Compensation

If the Contractor has employees as defined by the State of California, the Contractor shall maintain statutory Workers' compensation Insurance (Coverage A) as prescribed by the laws of the State of California. Policy shall include Employers' Liability (Coverage B) including Occupational Disease with limits not less than \$1,000,000 per person per accident. The policy shall be endorsed to waive subrogation in favor of Omnitrans and, if applicable, to provide a Borrowed Servant/Alternate Employer Endorsement.

c. Care, Custody, and Control

Contractor shall insure any Omnitrans property while under its Care, Custody, and Control according to the requirements listed in the insurance coverage required.

4) Acceptability of Insurers

Insurance companies shall be State of California admitted or approved and have a current **A.M. Best's** rating of no less than **A:VIII.**

5) Verification of Coverage

- a. Contractor shall furnish Omnitrans with original endorsements affecting coverage required by this clause. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. All insurance certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by Omnitrans before work commences.
- b. As an alternative, Contractor's insurer may provide complete, certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the coverage required by these specifications.
- c. In lieu of purchasing insurance and providing original endorsements and or certificates of insurance, the Contractor may provide proof of self-insurance; such proof must be to the satisfaction of Omnitrans.

6) Subcontractors

Contractor shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its policies or shall furnish separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor. All coverage for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein.

7) Notification of Terminated Insurance

Insurance shall not be terminated or expire without thirty (30) days written or electronic notice, and are required to be maintained in force until completion of the contract.

B. MINIMUM INSURANCE COVERAGE

If the Contractor maintains broader coverage and/or higher limits than the minimum requirements shown below, Omnitrans requires and shall be entitled to the broader coverage and/or higher limits maintained by the Contractor.

1) Commercial General Liability including Products/Completed Operations: \$1,000,000; per occurrence for bodily and property damage liability and \$2,000,000 aggregate; Omnitrans named and endorsed as an Additional Insured.

2)	Automobile Liability: \$1,000,000; per occurrence for bodily property damage liability and aggregate; <i>Omnitrans named endorsed as an Additional Insured</i> .		
3)	☐ Errors and Omissions Liability: \$1,000,000; combined si limit bodily and property damage liability per occurrence ar 3,000,000 aggregate or,		
4)	Professional Liability: \$1,000,000; per occurrence aggregate.	and	
5)	☑ Workers' Compensation: statutory limits or,		
6)	Self-Insurance Program: a State Approved program in an amount and form that meets all applicable requirements of the Labor Code of the State of California.		
7)	Employer's Liability: \$1,000,000; per occurrence.		
8)	Environmental Liability: \$1,000,000; per occurrence aggregate; Omnitrans named and endorsed as an Additi Insured.		
9)	Umbrella Policy: \$4,000,000; per occurrence and aggree Additional coverage for the above policies, Omnitrans Additional Insured.		
10)	All drivers making deliveries of products specified on solicitation shall have Hazardous Materials Endorsements on Commercial Driver's License, and such other Endorsements may be required by relevant laws and/or regulations.	their	

16. INDEMNITY

CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless OMNITRANS, and its member agencies, and their officers, directors, employees and agents from and against any and all liability, expense (including, but not limited to, defense costs and attorneys' fees), claims, causes of action, and lawsuits for damages of any nature whatsoever, including, but not limited to, bodily injury, death, personal injury or property damage (including property of CONTRACTOR) arising from or connected with any alleged act and/or omission of CONTRACTOR, its officers, directors, employees, agents, Subcontractors or suppliers. This indemnity shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement and/or final payment thereunder.

17. REVISIONS IN SCOPE OF WORK

By written notice or order, OMNITRANS may, from time to time, order work suspension or make changes to this Agreement. Changes in the Work shall be mutually agreed to and incorporated into an amendment to this Agreement. Upon execution of an amendment, CONTRACTOR shall perform the Work, as amended.

18. RIGHTS IN TECHNICAL DATA

- A. No material or technical data prepared by CONTRACTOR under this Agreement is to be released by CONTRACTOR to any other person or entity except as necessary for the performance of the Work. All press releases or information concerning the Work that might appear in any publication or dissemination, including but not limited to, newspapers, magazines, and electronic media, shall first be authorized in writing by OMNITRANS.
- B. The originals of all letters, documents, reports and other products and data produced under this Agreement shall become the property of OMNITRANS without restriction or limitation on their use and shall be made available upon request to OMNITRANS at any time. Original copies of such shall be delivered to OMNITRANS upon completion of the Work or termination of the Work. CONTRACTOR shall be permitted to retain copies of such items for the furtherance of its technical proficiency; however, publication of this material is subject to the prior written approval of OMNITRANS. The provisions of this paragraph shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement and/or final payment thereunder.

19. OWNERSHIP OF REPORTS AND DOCUMENTS

The originals of all letters, documents, reports and other products and data produced under this Agreement shall be delivered to, and become the sole and exclusive property of OMNITRANS. Copies may be made for CONTRACTOR's records, but shall not be furnished to others without prior written authorization from OMNITRANS. Such deliverables shall be deemed works made for hire, and all rights in copyright therein shall be retained by OMNITRANS.

20. OWNERSHIP RIGHTS

Α. In the event OMNITRANS rightfully obtains copies of Proprietary Data under the terms of the separate License Agreement and Escrow Agreement that govern rights in Documentation, Software and Intellectual Property created and/or developed by Contractor, its Third Party Software Contractors and its Suppliers as part of the Project, any derivative works and associated documentation created by or on behalf of OMNITRANS by Permitted Programmers (as defined in the License Agreement) shall be the sole and exclusive property of OMNITRANS (collectively, "OMNITRANS Intellectual Property"), and OMNITRANS may use, disclose and exercise dominion and full rights of ownership, in any manner in OMNITRANS Intellectual Property in connection with the use, operation and maintenance of a transportation system administered by OMNITRANS. No use of OMNITRANS Intellectual Property shall be made for any purpose other than in conjunction with a transportation system administered by CONTRACTOR, and OMNITRANS shall not sell, lease, rent, give away or otherwise disclose any OMNITRANS

Intellectual Property to any outside third party other than Permitted Programmers. To the extent there may be any question of rights of ownership or use in any OMNITRANS Intellectual Property, Contractor shall require all of its subcontractors and suppliers (including without limitation its Third Party Software Contractors) to assign to OMNITRANS, all worldwide right, title and interest in and to all OMNITRANS Intellectual Property in a manner consistent with the foregoing terms of this paragraph. Contractor shall execute any documents as OMNITRANS may from time to time reasonably request to effectuate the terms of this paragraph.

B. All documentation and Software which predates this Contract and which otherwise owned by Contractor or its Third Party Software Contractors, and all Documentation and Software which is created by Contractor or its Third Party Software Contractors shall be Licensed Software or Licensed Documentation, as appropriate. All Licensed Software and Licensed Documentation shall be governed by the License Agreement by and between the parties of event date herewith.

21. WORK FOR HIRE

Any work created or produced as a part of this Agreement that may be defined under Section 101, Title 17, USC will be considered "work for hire" as it pertains to ownership rights. CONTRACTOR, by his/her endorsement hereon agrees that all rights to any work(s) created or produced are waived, and that ownership rests with OMNITRANS. CONTRACTOR further agrees to ensure transfer of all rights to such work(s), as defined under federal copyright law, that may be created or produced under this Agreement by its suppliers, contractors or subcontractors.

22. SUBMITTAL OF CLAIMS BY CONTRACTOR

CONTRACTOR shall file any and all claims with OMNITRANS' Project Manager in writing within thirty (30) days of the event or occurrence giving rise to the claim. The claim shall be in sufficient detail to enable OMNITRANS to ascertain the claim's basis and amount, and shall describe the date, place and other pertinent circumstances of the event or occurrence giving rise to the claim and the indebtedness, obligation, injury, loss or damages allegedly incurred by CONTRACTOR.

Even though a claim may be filed and/or in review by OMNITRANS, CONTRACTOR shall continue to perform in accordance with this Agreement.

23. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY

CONTRACTOR shall not discriminate against, or grant preferential treatment to, any individual or group, or any employee or applicant for employment because of race, age, religion, color, ethnicity, sex, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, mental disability, political affiliation, sexual orientation, marital status or other

status protected by law. CONTRACTOR shall take action to ensure that applicants and employees are treated without regard to the above.

24. STANDARD OF PERFORMANCE

- A. CONTRACTOR shall perform and exercise, and require its subcontractors to perform and exercise due professional care and competence in the performance of the Work in accordance with the requirements of this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the professional quality, technical accuracy, completeness and coordination of the Work, it being understood that OMNITRANS will be relying upon such professional quality, accuracy, completeness and coordination in utilizing the Work. The foregoing obligations and standards shall constitute the "Standard of Performance" for purposes of this Agreement. The provisions of this paragraph shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement and/or final payment thereunder.
- B. All workers shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform the Work assigned to them. OMNITRANS shall have the right, at its sole discretion, to require the immediate removal of CONTRACTOR's personnel at any level assigned to the performance of the Work at no additional fee or cost to OMNITRANS, if OMNITRANS considers such removal in its best interests and requests such removal in writing and such request is not done for illegal reasons. Further, an employee who is removed from performing Work under this Agreement under this Article shall not be re-assigned to perform Work in any other capacity under this Agreement without OMNITRANS' prior written approval.

25. NOTIFICATION OF EMPLOYMENT OF OMNITRANS BOARD MEMBERS/ALTERNATES AND EMPLOYEES

To ensure compliance with OMNITRANS' Ethics Policy, CONTRACTOR shall provide written notice to OMNITRANS disclosing the identity of any individual who CONTRACTOR desires to employ or retain under a contract, and who (1) presently serves as a Board Member/Alternate or an employee of OMNITRANS, or (2) served as a Board Member/Alternate or an employee of OMNITRANS within the previous 12 months of the date of the proposed employment or retention by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR's written notice shall indicate whether the individual will be an officer, principal or shareholder of the entity and/or will participate in the performance of this Agreement.

26. DISQUALIFYING POLITICAL CONTRIBUTIONS

In the event of a proposed amendment to this Agreement, CONTRACTOR shall provide prior to the execution of such amendment, a written statement disclosing any contribution(s) of \$250 or more made by CONTRACTOR or its

subcontractor(s) to Omnitrans Board Members/Alternates or employees within the preceding twelve (12) months of the date of the proposed amendment. Applicable contributions include those made by any agent/person/entity on behalf of CONTRACTOR or subcontractor(s).

27. COMPLIANCE WITH LAW

- A. CONTRACTOR shall familiarize itself with and perform the Work required under this Agreement in conformity with requirements and standards of OMNITRANS, municipal and public agencies, public and private utilities, special districts, and railroad agencies whose facilities and work may be affected by Work under this Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall also comply with all Federal, state and local laws and ordinances.
- B. Government regulations that directly affect the CONTRACTOR'S performance of this contract and unforeseen impacts, which neither party could have contemplated at the onset of the contract and have an unconscionable impact on the CONTRACTOR may be given special pricing consideration. The parties, in good faith, shall review established rates and may adopt any mutually agreed new rates, which shall only be effective as agreed upon by the parties. Thorough documentation including all cost elements is required to support the Contractor's claim to any relief under this clause.

28. COMPLIANCE WITH LOBBYING POLICIES

- A. CONTRACTOR agrees that if it is a Lobbyist Employer or if it has retained a Lobbying Firm or Lobbyist, as such terms are defined by OMNITRANS in its Ethics Policy, it shall comply or ensure that its Lobbying Firm and Lobbyist complies with OMNITRANS' Ethics Policy.
- B. If CONTRACTOR (Lobbyist Employer) or its Lobbying Firm or Lobbyist fails to comply, in whole or in part, with OMNITRANS' Ethics Policy, such failure shall be considered a material breach of this Agreement and OMNITRANS shall have the right to immediately terminate or suspend this Agreement.

29. PUBLIC RECORDS ACT

- A. All records, documents, drawings, plans, specifications and other material relating to conduct of OMNITRANS' business, including materials submitted by CONTRACTOR in its proposal and during the course of performing the Work under this Agreement, shall become the exclusive property of OMNITRANS and may be deemed public records. Said materials may be subject to the provisions of the California Public Records Act. OMNITRANS' use and disclosure of its records are governed by this Act.
- B. OMNITRANS will not advise as to the nature or content of documents entitled to protection from disclosure under the California Public Records Act, including interpretations of the Act or the definitions of trade secret,

confidential or proprietary. OMNITRANS will accept materials clearly and prominently labeled "TRADE SECRET" or "CONFIDENTIAL" or "PROPRIETARY" as determined by CONTRACTOR. OMNITRANS will endeavor to notify CONTRACTOR of any request of the disclosure of such materials. Under no circumstances, however, will OMNITRANS be liable or responsible for the disclosure of any labeled materials whether the disclosure is required by law or a court order or occurs through inadvertence, mistake or negligence on the part of OMNITRANS or its officers, employees and/or contractors.

C. In the event of litigation concerning the disclosure of any material submitted by CONTRACTOR, OMNITRANS' sole involvement will be as a stake holder, retaining the material until otherwise ordered by a court. CONTRACTOR, at its sole expense and risk, shall be responsible for prosecuting or defending any action concerning the materials, and shall defend, indemnify and hold OMNITRANS harmless from all costs and expenses, including attorneys' fees, in connection with such action.

30. WAIVER/INVALIDITY

No waiver of a breach of any provision of this Agreement by either party shall constitute a waiver of any other breach of the provision, or of any other breach of the provision of the Agreement. Failure of either party to enforce any provision of this Agreement at any time shall not be construed as a waiver of that provision.

The invalidity in whole or in part of any provision of this Agreement shall not void or affect the validity of any other provision.

31. FORCE MAJEURE

Performance of each and all CONTRACTOR's and OMNITRANS' covenants herein shall be subject to such delays as may occur without CONTRACTOR's or OMNITRANS' fault from acts of God, strikes, riots, or from other similar causes beyond CONTRACTOR's or OMNITRANS' control.

32. CONFIDENTIALITY

CONTRACTOR agrees that for and during the entire term of this Agreement, any information, data, figures, records, findings and the like received or generated by CONTRACTOR in the performance of this Agreement, shall be considered and kept as the private and privileged records of OMNITRANS and will not be divulged to any person, firm, corporation, or other entity except on the direct prior written authorization of OMNITRANS. Further, upon expiration or termination of this Agreement for any reason, CONTRACTOR agrees that it will continue to treat as private and privileged any information, data, figures, records, findings and the like, and will not release any such information to any person, firm, corporation or other

entity, either by statement, deposition, or as a witness, except upon direct prior written authority of OMNITRANS.

33. CONTRACTOR'S INTERACTION WITH THE MEDIA AND THE PUBLIC

- A. OMNITRANS shall review and approve in writing all OMNITRANS related copy proposed to be used by CONTRACTOR for advertising or public relations purposes prior to publication. CONTRACTOR shall not allow OMNITRANS related copy to be published in its advertisements and public relations programs prior to receiving such approval. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all published information is factual and that it does not in any way imply that OMNITRANS endorses CONTRACTOR's firm, service, and/or product.
- B. CONTRACTOR shall refer all inquiries from the news media to OMNITRANS, and shall comply with the procedures of OMNITRANS' Public Affairs staff regarding statements to the media relating to this Agreement or the Work.
- C. If CONTRACTOR receives a complaint from a citizen or the community, CONTRACTOR shall inform OMNITRANS as soon as possible and inform OMNITRANS of any action taken to alleviate the situation.
- D. The provisions of this Article shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.

34. GOVERNING LAW

The validity of this Agreement and of any of its terms or provisions, as well as the rights and duties of the parties hereunder, shall be governed by the laws of the State of California, and the proper venue of any action brought hereunder is and shall be the County of San Bernardino, California.

35. MODIFICATIONS TO AGREEMENT

Unless specified otherwise in the Agreement, this Agreement may only be modified by written mutual consent evidenced by signatures of representatives authorized to enter into and modify the Agreement. In order to be effective, amendments may require prior approval by OMNITRANS' Board of Directors, and in all instances require prior signature of an authorized representative of OMNITRANS.

36. LICENSING, PERMITS AND INSPECTION COSTS

A. The CONTRACTOR warrants that it has all necessary licenses and permits required by the laws of the United States, State of California, and the County of San Bernardino, the Local Jurisdictions, and all other appropriate governmental agencies, and agrees to maintain these licenses and permits in effect for the duration of the Agreement. Further, FIRM warrants that its

employees, agents, and contractors and subcontractors shall conduct themselves in compliance with such laws and licensure requirements including, without limitation, compliance with laws applicable to nondiscrimination, sexual harassment and ethical behavior throughout the duration of this Agreement. CONTRACTOR further warrants that it shall not retain or employ an unlicensed subcontractor to perform work on this Project. CONTRACTOR shall notify OMNITRANS immediately and in writing of its employees', agents', contractors' or subcontractors' inability to obtain or maintain, irrespective of the pendency of any appeal, any such licenses, permits, approvals, certificates, waivers, exemptions. Such inability shall be cause for termination of this Agreement.

B. CONTRACTOR shall procure all permits and licenses; pay all charges, assessments and fees, as may be required by the ordinances and regulations of the public agencies having jurisdiction over the areas in which the work is located, and shall comply with all the terms and conditions thereof and with all lawful orders and regulations of each such public agency relating to construction operations under the jurisdiction of such agency.

37. PRECEDENCE

Conflicting provisions hereof, if any, shall prevail in the following descending order of precedence: (1) the provisions of this Agreement, and any and all of its Amendments, Appendices, Exhibits and Attachments; (2) provisions of IFB-MNT19-16 and any and all of its Addenda, Appendices, Exhibits and Attachments; and (3) CONTRACTOR's bid dated November 20, 2018 and its Appendices, Exhibits, Attachments.

38. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

This Agreement, and any attachments or documents incorporated herein by inclusion or by reference, constitutes the complete and entire agreement between OMNITRANS and CONTRACTOR and supersedes any prior representations, understandings, communications, commitments, agreements or proposals, oral or written.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed on the date shown below, and effective on the date first hereinabove written.

OMNITRANS	ENPRO SERVICES INC.
P. Scott Graham CEO/General Manager	Name: Matt Williams Title: General Manager
Date	Date

Federal Tax I.D. No. <u>90-0061731</u>

CM

ATTACHMENT A

ATTACHMENT A TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS MNT19-16 Elevator Modernization Project SECTION 01 11 00

1.1 WORK STANDARDS

- A. Contractor possesses a valid California Contractors State License Board "B" License and the subcontractor holds a valid California State License Board "C-11 Elevator" License. Contractor shall be required to ensure that all subcontractors working on this project are holding valid licenses suitable for their trade.
- B. Construction and finishes shall be as identified in this package. Technical Specifications for products have been included in order to set a minimum standard of quality and are not intended to specify any particular product or manufacturer.
- C. It is the intent of these specifications that all responsibility for the erection and completion of the work in accordance with the plans and specifications is upon the building contractor with whom the Owner enters into a contract for the work hereinafter described. Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner for the acts and omissions of his employees, subcontractors, and their agents and employees, and other persons performing any of the work under a Contract with the Contractor. Such terms as the plumber, the electrician, other contractors, this contractor, work by others, cooperate with others, by others, and similar expressions, shall be deemed to refer to the prime contractor.
- D. Contractor shall not be relieved from their obligations to perform the work in accordance with the Contract Documents either by inspections, tests, or approvals required or performed under the Contract documents by persons other than the Contractor.
- E. Contractor shall employ a job superintendent acceptable to the Owner who shall be at the project site full-time as a single point of contact.
- F. Contractor shall take care to protect all new materials from damage. The Owner has the right to reject materials damaged by Contractor's negligence.
- G. It is the intent of this technical specification that all workmanship be neat and skilled in every respect and that only new materials be used (where required) to render a fully completed and finished job. If, in the course of the work, cutting and patching is required, then any evidence of the same shall be rendered

indiscernible and the whole of the renovated area shall present, upon acceptance, the appearance of new work.

- H. The codes, regulations, and standards adopted by the state and federal agencies having jurisdiction shall govern minimum requirements for this project. Where codes regulations, and standards conflict with the Contract Documents, these conflicts shall be brought to the immediate attention of the Owner.
- I. Codes, regulations, and standards shall be as published effective as of date of bid opening, unless otherwise specified or indicated.
- J. Continuous housekeeping and daily clean-up is mandatory. Contractor shall put debris in own debris boxes and/or remove debris from site at Contractor's own expense prior to the end of the work day or as directed by the Facility Manager.
- K. Existing site conditions: Contractor shall make a thorough examination of the site to determine all existing conditions affecting the work.
- L. See the General Provisions.

1.2 CONTRACTOR USE OF SITE AND PREMISES

- A. Limit use of site and premises to allow:
 - 1. Use of site by the Owner.
 - 2. Work by Others and work by Owner.
 - 3. Use of site and premises by the public.
- B. Coordinate use of premises under direction of the Owner.
 - 1. Notify the Owner in advance of work outside designated construction and staging areas. Coordinate such work with the Owner.
 - 2. Assume full responsibility for the protection and safekeeping of products under this Contract, stored on site.
 - 3. Move any stored products under Contractor's control that interferes with the operations of the Owner of separate contractor.
 - 4. Obtain and pay for the use of additional storage or work areas needed for operations.
 - 5. Contractor shall assume all responsibility for parking his own and his subcontractor's vehicles at the direction of the Facility Manager. Contractor shall direct all material deliveries to the construction job site.
 - 6. If unoccupied and only with Owner's prior written approval, Contractor may use areas at the Project Site without limitation for its operations and storage

- for the performance of the Work. If the space at the Project Site is not available or sufficient, Contractor shall arrange for its own facilities.
- 7. Contractor shall not interfere with use of or access to occupied portions of the building(s) or adjacent property.
- 8. Contractor shall maintain corridors, stairs, halls, and other exit-ways of buildings clear and free of debris and obstructions at all times.
- 9. No one other than those directly involved in the demolition and construction, or specifically designated by the Owner or Contractor shall be permitted in the areas of work during demolition and construction activities.
- 10. Contractor shall install the construction security fence, if needed, for their use and maintain that it will be locked when not in use. Keys to fencing shall be provided to the Owner.

END OF SECTION

SECTION 14 24 10

MODERNIZATION OF ELEVATORS

PART 1 - GENERAL:

1.1 General Conditions

A. Contractor shall be responsible for all building modifications to provide a code compliant elevator modernization. All sub-contractors shall be contracted directly with the elevator contractor.

1.2 DEFINITIONS:

- A. Main Lobby: Ground Level unless otherwise indicated.
- B. Fire Recall Level: As directed by local fire authority. As existing.
- C. Alternate Fire Recall Level: As directed by local fire authority. As existing.
- D. All retained existing equipment shall be of equal condition and life span as of new equipment.
- E. Serviceability: It is recognized that each manufacturers' system contains components that are proprietary to the development of their systems. The Owner may wish to have the elevator system maintained by another technically qualified service provider and by submitting a bid for this project, the manufacturer shall guarantee that for a minimum of 20 years they will provide the following:
 - Diagnostic, adjusting and monitoring tools for all components including documents, manuals, and wiring diagrams. Devices shall not self-destruct, require charging or exchange. Remote monitoring devices are excluded from this requirement, however if such devices are removed all wiring shall be neatly terminated, tied within a junction box and properly marked as to its content.
 - 2. Manufacturer shall guarantee to support the equipment for this project with regard to notification to Owner of system corrective updates, provide and install such updates at no cost to Owner.
 - 3. Provide contact information for their separate parts warehouse so that the Owner or designated service provider can order parts on a 24-hour basis and delivered within 48 hours. Parts may be provided from inventory when adequate stock exists. In some cases, parts will have to be special ordered from the factory or other vendor. Proprietary parts will be made available on an exchange basis.

- 4. Provide a list of parts of each component manufactured and stored at the warehouse and the retail cost of each at close out of the project and estimated escalation cost. The cost of these parts is what would be charged to Owner or other service provider.
- 5. Provide contact information for technical support so that the Owner or designated service provider can obtain technical support on a 24-hour basis to provide assistance in trouble shooting problems. Indicate hourly rate charged to Owner or designated service provider for such service.
- 6. In the event that a company other than the Original Equipment Manufacturer (OEM) maintains the elevators, and if the equipment was unable to be repaired by the non-OEM maintenance company, a factory-trained OEM technician would be required to assist (as it would if Contractor's own technician were in the same situation). If such an event was to occur, OEM Contractor would make its factory-trained technician available for assistance upon request of the Owner within three (3) business days, based on the original contractual hourly rates subject to established annual escalations. This shall survive any termination of the maintenance agreement.
- 7. The above will survive any termination of the maintenance agreement.
- 8. Contractor shall be defined as "Elevator Contractor".
- 9. Subcontractor shall be defined as any contractor contracted by either "Owner or Elevator Contractor".

1.3 DESCRIPTION:

A. Examination of site:

- 1. Contractor shall visit the building, examine the existing elevators and contract documents, determine condition of all retained components, space conditions, power supply and mainline disconnect.
- 2. Make all surveys necessary to meet the requirements of this specification and compatibility to products provided.

B. Field measurements:

- 1. Field verify dimensions before proceeding with the work.
- 2. Coordinate related work by other trades.
- 3. Contractor shall assume responsibility and provide full maintenance of the elevator equipment upon award of this contract and shall continue to do such throughout the modernization.
- C. Related work included by others in this section:
 - 1. Contractor shall visit the building, examine the existing conditions, power

supply, mainline disconnect, and include all work needed to ensure a fully code compliant modernization. Contractor shall perform this work, which may include but is not limited to the following:

a. General:

- Legal access consisting of self-closing and self-locking access doors, ladders, gratings and steps to machine rooms, controller areas, pits and hoistways.
- 2) Providing supports to carry structural reaction, impact and uplift loads imposed by elevator equipment.
- 3) Support full width of hoistway at edge of slab for attachment of sill support angles to be provided and installed by Contractor.
- 4) Grouting behind entrance frames where concrete walls occur.
- 5) Patching of floors, walls and surfaces constituting final finishes.
- 6) Block-outs, pockets and chases in walls and floors for entrances, signals, fixtures, cables and conduit.
- 7) Construction and modifications not limited to the hoistways, machine rooms and controller areas, all areas properly framed, enclosed and adequately ventilated.

b. Electrical work:

- Power feeders: Modification to existing, or installation and connection of three phase power, through fused mainline switches or circuit breakers and extended to terminals of controllers. Provide continuous ground where needed.
- 2) Light circuits: Single-phase circuit through disconnects and extended to controller for car lights and fan.
- 3) Communication circuit: Telephone circuit terminated at junction box of each controller.
- 4) Illumination: Lights with guards, illuminating light switches and convenience outlets in pits, machine rooms, controller areas and overhead sheave spaces.
- 5) Conduit: Installation of electrical conduit and pull boxes with pull wire between hoistways and remote locations of each indicator and control panel.
- 6) GFCI Outlets: Provide in machine room and pits.
- 7) Provide hoistway, overhead, and pit lighting as required by local code authorities.
- 8) Provide NEMA 4 approved electrical devices and conduits for all electrical installed below the lowest sill level.

c. Fire Life Safety:

- Sensing devices: Installation and or modification to smoke detectors, heat detectors, shunt trip, sprinklers, or products of combustion sensors in elevator lobbies, machine rooms, hoistways and alternate fire recall floor with circuits terminated at junction box in machine rooms for emergency fire service operation.
- Life safety circuits: Circuits terminated at junction box at each controller for life safety speakers and fireman's phone jack to each car in the car canopy or as directed by the Owner and/or local code authority
- 3) Provide fire proofing as required by lode code authority.
- 2. Barricades for protection of open hoistways during construction.
- 3. Temporary screens: Contractor shall provide code compliant hoistway screening between elevators before construction starts and remove at completion of project.
- 4. Painting: Field painting of prime-finish items constituting final finishes.
- 5. Card readers: Including wire from machine room j-box to car top j-box, interfacing with elevator controls and installation in elevator car, connection in machine room and testing of system. Note card reader panel is not allowed inside the machine room. Contractor shall coordinate with sub-contractors to complete all required work at no additional cost to the Owner.
- 6. Closed Circuit Television (CCTV): Including wire from machine room j-box to elevator car top j-box, connection in machine room and testing. Car top and machine j-box and labeled.
- 7. Contractor shall coordinate and perform all pretesting of all building systems prior to inspection at no additional cost to the Owner.

1.4 QUALITY ASSURANCE:

A. Qualifications of Contractors:

- 1. Installer's qualifications: Installer must be a licensed, certified conveyance mechanic in the state of California.
- 2. Maintenance qualifications: Contractor must be a licensed elevator contractor in the state of California.
- 3. Serviceman qualifications: All Contractor's mechanics that shall be assigned to this project, shall have been in the elevator business or trade for a minimum of five (5) years with continuous and past experience in the preventative maintenance, repair, modernization, inspection and testing of elevator equipment of similar characteristics to those included in this

project.

- a. Manufacturer's qualifications: The design, engineering and manufacture of major elevator components such as machines, motors, motor drive units, controllers, door operators, safeties, governors, selectors, etc. shall be from manufacturers that have been in the business for the last five (5) years. Equipment proposed must have a history of successful operation under similar conditions for the last five (5) years.
- b. Directly employ sufficient competent personnel to perform construction and maintenance duties.
- c. Maintain local stock of parts adequate for replacement on permanent or emergency basis.
- d. Be able to respond to trouble calls within one (1) hour during normal business hours and two (2) hours after normal business hours.
- e. Be able to respond to entrapments within thirty (30) minutes during normal business hours and thirty (30) minutes one (1) hour after normal business hours.
- 4. Company uniforms shall be worn at all times. Names shall be visible at all times.
- 5. Omnitrans issued company identification badge shall be visible at all times.

B. Sub-contractors:

1. Contractor shall be solely responsible for any and all of the work done by his sub-contractor or other personnel and all orders or instructions from the Owner's Representative shall be through the prime. It shall be the Contractor's duty to see that all of his sub-contractors commence their work properly at the proper time, and carry it on with due diligence so that they do not delay or injure either work or materials; and that all damage caused by them or their workmen is properly made good by them or by himself at his cost. Contractor shall submit names of his sub-contractors for approval by the Owner's Representative.

C. Elevator cabs and entrances:

- 1. Manufactured or rehabilitated by one of the following or accepted equal:
 - a. Citylift
 - b. Travertine
 - c. Sterling Corporation
- D. Quality of work and workmanship:
 - 1. When completed, the installation shall be modern in all respects.
 - 2. All components specified as new shall be provided as new. All

components specified to be retained may be provided as new at Contractor's option subject to approval of Owner's Representative. All retained components are to be examined, cleaned, adjusted, repaired and/or replaced with new parts. Contractor must be willing to accept all retained equipment on full maintenance without prorating.

E. Requirements of regulatory agencies:

- 1. Codes: In accordance with the latest applicable edition requirements of the following and as specified:
 - a. A.D.A.: Americans with Disabilities Act
 - ASME: American Society of Mechanical Engineers A17.1
 Safety Code for Elevators and Escalators
 - c. CBC: Title 24; California Building Codes
 - d. CCR: Title 8; California Code of Regulations
 - e. IEEE: Institute of Electrical and Electronics Engineers
 - f. NEC: National Electric Code / NFPA 70
 - g. NFPA-72
 - h. All local codes and Amendments and Administration, which govern

F. Permits, Inspections, and Taxes:

- 1. Arrange and pay for inspections by governing authorities.
- 2. Obtain and post operating permits per applicable code.
- 3. Arrange and pay for all applicable taxes.

G. Safety Policies and Practices:

- Installation and maintenance contractors are required to submit and follow their company's safety practices and policies
- 2. Installation and maintenance contractors are required to follow all practices and policies of the building management.
- 3. Installation and maintenance contractors are required to follow Cal/OSHA Health & Safety and CAL OSHA Elevator Unit safety practices and policies.

1.5 SUBMITTALS:

A. Shop drawings:

- 1. Submit three copies of the following prior to ordering any materials:
 - a. Details: Submit details of cab shell and interiors, fixtures, and entrances.
 - b. Data: Indicate on layouts or separate data sheets; machine spaces heat release, power requirements, conduit runs outside of

hoistways and machine rooms, car and counterweight roller guides, control systems, motor drive units and door operators.

B. Samples:

Provide samples of materials and finishes exposed to public view and additional, if specifically requested, 6-inch x 6 inch panels, 12 inch lengths or full size if smaller, as applicable.

1.6 PRODUCT DELIVERY, STORAGE AND HANDLING:

A. Delivery and storage:

Contractor shall protect equipment during transportation, erection and construction. Store under cover to prevent damage due to weather conditions. Replace damaged materials. Storage space on site will be available, additionally, onsite storage is provided and a storage container and or fencing is required to properly secure and store all equipment, it shall be provided at no cost to the Owner.

B. Handling:

- Owner's Representative has the first right of refusal to retain any elevator components that are to be removed and modernized with new equipment. All removed components shall remain property of the Owner's Representative, until the Owner's Representative notifies Contractor, in writing, of removed components that Owner's Representative would like to retain. All remaining elevator equipment not to be retained by the Owner's Representative or reused by Contractor shall be promptly removed from the building by Contractor at no cost to the Owner's Representative, and become the property of Contractor.
- Contractor shall make every attempt to recycle removed elevator equipment. Contractor shall correct any damage to building surfaces and surrounding areas if damaged during removal of this equipment, at no cost to the Owner's Representative.

1.7 SCHEDULING AND SEQUENCING:

A. Schedule:

- Submit construction schedule indicating time required from award of contract to;
 - Submittals
 - b. Equipment fabrication and delivery to site
 - c. Installation and testing per elevator
 - d. Final acceptance of all elevators

 Contractor shall be responsible for scheduling related work with other sub-contractors to avoid omissions and delays in job progress. Elevators shall not be removed from service, without prior approval, until all equipment has been manufactured and delivered to the project site for all elevators.

B. Sequence:

 Work under this contract shall be done in the following sequence. Any change to this must be approved by the Owner's Representative. Complete all work for each sequence before proceeding with the next.

a. Sequence (1) One: Elevator No. 1b. Sequence (2) Two: Elevator No. 2

c. Sequence (3) Three: Elevator No. 3

C. Building operations:

The building shall remain in operation during the execution of this contract. Cooperate with building management in scheduling work in such a way as not to cause interruption of or interference with the building operations.

D. Electrical shutdowns:

Temporary electrical shutdowns shall not be allowed except for brief periods to be scheduled outside normal hours and at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance and approved by Owner's Representative.

1.8 WARRANTY:

A. Guarantee and Warranty:

Provide special project warranty, signed by Contractor, Installer and Manufacturer, agreeing to replace/repair/restore defective materials and workmanship of all work performed which may develop within one (1) year from final date of completion and acceptance of the **entire installation**. "Defective" is hereby defined to include, but not by way of limitation, operation or control system failures, performances below required minimums, excessive wear, unusual deterioration or aging of materials or finishes, unsafe conditions, the need for excessive maintenance, abnormal noise or vibration and similar unusual, unexpected and unsatisfactory conditions.

PART 2 - PRODUCTS:

2.1 DESCRIPTION OF SYSTEMS:

A. Elevator No. 1, 2 & 3

Type: Hydraulic Direct Plunger

2. Capacity: 2500 Pounds

3. Speed: 150 FPM

4. Stops: Elev. 1 & 2 are 2 Stop, Elev. 3 is 3 Stop

5. Openings: 2-2 & 3 in line

6. Travel: Existing

7. Control: Soft Start AC

8. Operation: New Microprocessor Group Automatic

9. Machine Location: Adjacent

10. Special Operations:

a. Independent Service

b. Fire Emergency Service

c. Standby Emergency Power

d. Tenant Security

e. Emergency Battery Lowering

Provide 11. Door Operation: 12. Door Protection: Provide 13. Guide Rails: Retain 14. Guide Shoes: Refurbish 15. Plunger Unit: Retain 16. Cylinder Unit: Retain 17. Buffers: Retain 18. Car Frame & Platforms: Retain 19. Power Unit: Provide Provide 20. Controllers: 21. Piping: Retain 22. Car Operating Panels: Provide 23. Car Position Indicators: Provide

25. Service Cabinet: Provide New
26. Communications: Provide New
27. Hall Button Stations: Provide New
28. Hall/Car Lanterns: Provide New

29. Handicap Requirements: Provide New

30. Wiring: Provide New

31. Car Enclosure: Provide New

32. Hoistway Entrances: Retain

33. Miscellaneous Items:

Key Operated Hoistway Access.

b. Seismic Requirements.

c. Card Reader Provisions.

- d. Clean hoistways, machine rooms and equipment; paint machine room floor, pit floor, car top, and all existing metal work.
- e. Top of car guardrail Provide new.

2.2 MATERIALS:

- A. Aluminum: Alloy and temper best suited for anodizing finish specified.
- B. Brass: CDA Alloy 260.
- C. Bronze: CDA Alloy 280, muntz metal.
- D. Nickel silver: CDA Alloy 796, leaded nickel silver.
- E. Plywood: PS-1, A-D exterior Grade Douglas Fir, fire retardant treated.
- F. Sheet steel: ASTM A366, uncoated, pickled, free from defects. Cold Rolled
- G. Sound deadener: Fire retardant; spray, roller or adhesive applied; 3/16" thick.
- H. Stainless steel: ASTM A167; type 302 or 304.

2.3 FINISHES:

- A. Exposed-to-view surfaces:
 - Provide as follows unless otherwise specified.
 - a. Aluminum: Clear anodized finish.

- b. Bronze: Oil rubbed (US 10B) finish. Mirror polish finish. Satin brushed finish. Clear lacquer coat.
- c. Nickel silver: Mirror polish finish. Satin brushed finish.
- d. Sheet steel:
 - 1. Shop prime: Degrease clean of foreign substances and apply one coat of corrosion inhibiting primer compatible with finish paint selected. Hoistway items visible to public shall be painted one additional coat of black paint.
 - 2. Finish paint: Three coats baked enamel; sand each coat smooth; color as selected.
- e. Stainless steel:
 - 1. Plain: Satin, directional polish, No. 4 Mirror directional polish, No. 8 Mirror non-directional polish, No. 10 finish unless otherwise specified.
 - 2. Patterned: Rigidized Metal's No. 5 WL, Ardmore Textured Metals No. 5- SM or approved equal.
- f. Touch-up:
 - 1. Prime surfaces: Use same paint as factory for field touch-up.
 - 2. Finish painted surfaces: Refinish whole panel with shop prime and finish paint as specified above.
- B. Non-exposed-to-view surfaces:

Degrease or remove any rust and shop paint manufacturer's standard corrosion inhibiting primer.

2.4 AUTOMATIC OPERATION:

- A. General operation of individual elevators:
 - Provide a non-proprietary diagnostic microprocessor-controlled dispatching system, based on real time calculations, designed to monitor all types of traffic and sufficiently flexible so that it can be modified to accommodate changes in traffic patterns.
 - 2. Serial link communications: Provide a distributed processing network consisting of localized processors located in machine rooms, car stations, hall stations and top of car to allow system to make fast decisions based on data shared by the processor involved in the different operations of the elevators. For group dispatch operations, all elevators in the group shall be capable of acting as a group common dispatcher as the need arises.
 - 3. Fault diagnostic system: Provide Owner's Representative with all hardware such as on- board LED diagnostics, hand held device or laptop

computer, as standard with manufacturer, and supporting software documentation. Diagnostic system shall be capable of determining faults most difficult to find, as well as be capable of performing all code required testing.

4. The system shall be flexible, irrespective of the number of elevators in normal service.

2.5 SPECIAL OPERATIONS:

A. Inspection operation:

 Provide key-operated hoistway access device and car top operating device. Key switches shall be mounted in door frames with a separate cover plate at terminal landings

B. Independent service:

- Independent service operation shall be provided so that, by means of a switch located in the car service cabinet, the car can be removed from automatic operation and be operated by an attendant. The attendant shall have full control of the starting, stopping and direction of car travel.
- 2. The car shall respond to car buttons only. The hall signals for the car on independent service shall not operate.

C. Operation under fire or other emergency conditions:

- 1. Provide special emergency service to comply with current ASME and CCR Title 8, CBC Title 24, CBC, and local codes having jurisdiction.
- 2. Provide Phase 1 recall switch at main floor elevator lobby.
- 3. Key switches at main floor shall be integrated in hall button station with engraved instructions.

D. Emergency Battery Lowering: Hydraulic

- 1. Automatically activates during power loss.
- 2. Supplies power for rescue operation.
- 3. Causes car to descend smoothly to lowest landing.
- 4. Keeps doors closed until proper floor level is reached.
- 5. Automatically opens doors at lowest landing.
- 6. Safely shuts down elevator until normal power is restored.
- 7. Automatically resets for future emergencies.
- 8. Differentiates between actual power failure and manual operation of elevator disconnect switch.

2.6 DOOR OPERATION:

A. Passenger type:

- 1. Provide door times available as specified under "Design Criteria."
- 2. Car and hoistway doors shall open and close simultaneously, quietly and smoothly; door movement shall be cushioned at both limits of travel. Door operation shall not cause cars to move appreciably.
- 3. Door hold open times shall be readily and independently adjustable when car stops for a car or hall call. Main floor door hold times shall be adjustable independent of other floors.
- 4. Provide closed loop regulated speed performance, onboard diagnostics, adjustable times, nudging, and test switches.

B. Door operator:

- Elevator No. 1 3: Provide new heavy-duty master type solid state closed loop door operators mounted on car enclosure utilizing minimum 12-guage support angles to isolate from direct mounting of operator on the car top. Contractor shall use existing elevator doors and retrofit/modify as necessary.
- 2. Pre-approved closed loop heavy duty door operators.
 - a. ECI QKS-14 or QKS-15 Linear
 - b. GAL MOVFR
 - c. Kone AMD
- 3. Provide code compliant door weight data tag.

C. Door Protection:

- 1. Elevator No. 1 3: Remove existing door protection devices and provide new electronic optical 3D scanning type:
 - a. Provide a door protective system which does not rely on physical contact with a person or object to inhibit door movement or initiate door reversal.
 - b. Pre-approved optical door sensors, or approved equal:
 - 1. Elevator Contractor
 - 2. Adams GateKeeper Max
 - 3. Formula Systems
 - 4. Janus Pana40 Plus
 - 5. Janus Pana Chrome 3D, with voice annunciation
 - 6. Tritronics Leading Edge
 - c. The system shall be able to detect a 2-inch diameter rod

- introduced at any position within the door movement and between the height of 2 inches and 63 inches above sill level.
- d. Detection of intrusion into the protected area shall cause the doors, if fully open, to be held in the open position and, if closing, to reverse to fully open position.
- e. If doors are prevented from closing for an adjustable period of 15 to 45 seconds or upon activation of fire emergency service, they shall proceed to close at reduced speed and a loud buzzer shall sound. Door closing force shall not exceed 2-1/2 ft.-lb. when door re-opening device is not in operation.
- f. For side-opening doors, the detector for the strike jamb side shall be recessed, flush with strike jamb.

2.7 SIGNALS AND OPERATING FIXTURES:

A. General:

- 1. Provide signals and fixtures as shown and specified. Location and arrangement of fixtures shall comply with ADA requirements.
 - a. Passenger Elevator Buttons: Provide minimum 1-inch diameter mechanical, with fully illuminated buttons with LED's and engraved identifications. Buttons shall be raised 1/8 inch from surrounding surface with square shoulders.
 - b. Switches: Toggle type typically or key operated where noted.
 - c. Provide four (4), keys for each elevator keyed device, with proper labeled identification upon turnover of elevator.
 - d. Cabinets: Provide with pulls, concealed hinges and doors mounted flush with hairline joints to adjacent surface.
 - e. Arrangement: Arrangement of fixtures shall generally conform to that specified, but components may be rearranged, if desired, subject to Owner's Representative's approval.
 - f. Engraving: Of size indicated; color backfill with epoxy paint in contrasting color as selected. No applied engraved plates.
 - g. Lamps: Miniature LED type.
 - h. Audible Chimes: Electronic adjustable audible chimes; bell type gong not acceptable.
 - i. Provide floor passing signal of the adjustable electronic audible chime type.

- j. Tactile Markings: Provide raised Braille and alpha characters, numerals or symbols adjacent to operating buttons and devices used by the public according to local codes. Indications may be engraved directly on faceplates or separate plates flush mounted with hairline joints and concealed mechanical fasteners. Plates shall be of same size and shape as buttons or integral "fishtail" type.
- k. Acceptable manufacturers, or approved equal: EPCO, ERM, MAD, or INNOVATION, fixtures with 5/8" engraved identifications. Operation of car or hall button shall cause button to illuminate. Response of car to car or hall call shall cause corresponding button to extinguish.
- I. Faceplates: Provide of material and finish as indicated and specified; 1/8-inch minimum thickness with sharp edges relieved. Faceplates shall be sized to cover holes left by removal of existing fixtures where new fixtures are provided and provided with engraved fire sign, per A17.1.
- m. Audible chimes: Electronic adjustable audible chimes from 75 to 85 dB in elevator lobby 3' 0" above floor and 3' 0" away from elevator entrance; bell type gong not acceptable.

B. Car operating panels:

- 1. General: Provide buttons numbered to conform to floors served and the following:
 - a. Locate top operating button at 48 inches above floor.
 - b. Locate emergency stop switch and illuminated alarm button in bottom row at 35 inches above floor.
 - c. Provide "Door Open", "Door Close", and "Door Hold" buttons located above emergency stop and alarm of same design as car button.
 - d. All signage required by local codes shall be engraved and painted as directed by Owner's representative.
 - e. Provide fire emergency features, per code. Provide FEO-F1 key switch for fire service unless local code requires different.
- 2. Elevator No. 1-3: Provide one new panel per car; integrate cabinets, buttons and engraving into swing front return panels without applied faceplate. Entire front return shall swing on concealed hinges with concealed locking means for servicing.

C. Car position indicators:

Provide car position indicators with 2 inch indications corresponding to floor designations with matching direction arrows. Provide "X" or "E" indications for elevators with express zones.

D. Service cabinet:

- Provide new cabinet, door with a lock and concealed hinge as an integral
 part of car operating panel mounted with flush hairline joints. Cabinet
 door shall be provided with a flush glazed window of required size to hold
 elevator-operating permit, mounted horizontally. Service cabinet shall
 contain the following:
 - a. Independent service switch
 - b. Two-speed ventilation switch (Hi-Off-Low)
 - c. Light switch as applicable
 - d. Inspection switch, key operated
 - e. Duplex GFI convenience outlet
 - f. Buzzers as required
 - g. Constant pressure test switch for emergency car lighting
 - h. Card reader over-ride switch-key operated
 - i. USB Port for programming for Digital Display

E. Communication equipment:

Elevator No. 1-3: Provide a new complete communication system in compliance with ADA regulations consisting of a combination speaker/microphone, amplifier, automatic dialer with 4 number rollover capability and matching car station push button with telephone symbol to activate system and acknowledgment lights. Mount in car operating panel behind a pattern of holes, wire to machine room and program automatic dialer as directed by Owner's Representative.

F. Hall button fixtures:

- 1. Each fixture shall contain buttons, which light to indicate hall call registration and extinguish when call is answered. Provide intermediate fixtures with two buttons and terminal fixtures with one. Engrave fire-exiting instructions on faceplates. Provide minimum of two fasteners at top and bottom of faceplate.
 - a. Elevator No. 1 3: Provide each elevator with one riser of hall button stations.

G. Hall lanterns:

- Provide with single chime for up and double chime for down direction.
 Lantern illuminates white for up and red for down. As car approaches floor, lantern shall illuminate and chime approximately 4 seconds prior to doors opening to indicate next direction of travel. Chime sound level shall be at10 decibels over ambient.
 - a. Elevator No. 1-3: Provide manufacturer's standard hall lanterns with equilateral triangular projecting lenses.

H. Car lanterns:

- 1. Elevator No. 1-3: Manufacturer's standard dual car riding lantern mounted at a maximum height above floor. Lens shall be flush with faceplate or face of jamb.
- 2. Lantern illuminates and chimes as doors open. Provide single chime for up direction and double chime for down direction. Chime sound level shall be at 10 decibels over ambient.

I. Disabled access requirements:

- Provide to meet local codes having jurisdiction including handrail and button configuration.
 - a. Car operating panels: Provide raised Braille and alpha characters, numerals or symbols to the left of operating buttons and devices used by the public. Indications may be engraved directly on faceplates or separate plates flush mounted with hairline joints and concealed mechanical fasteners. Plates shall be of same size and shape as buttons. Raised characters shall be white on a black background with Braille designations directly below the character. Provide "star" at main egress landing.
 - b. Entrances: Provide raised Braille and alpha characters, numerals or symbols similar to those for car stations of size required by governing authority. Locate on each entrance jamb at 60 inches above floor indicating floor designation. Material and finish of plates shall be white on black. Braille designation shall be to the bottom of the raised character. Provide "star" at main egress landing.
 - c. Entrances: Provide plate with elevator number for first floor entrance. Character shall be a minimum of 3". For Destination Dispatching Systems, Braille shall include the elevator number or letter designation as well as the floor designation. Material and finish of plates shall be white on black.

2.8 WIRING:

A. General:

 Provide all necessary wiring and 25% spares between cars and controllers and to all remote-control stations; minimum of eight. Furnish shielded wires in cables for all communications card readers, cameras, digital displays, and speakers. Include four additional pairs of shielded spares and two RG-6 coaxial cables or equivalent, for each car. Electrical wire runs will be free of splices or connection unless at designated junction points.

B. Traveling Cables:

- Use minimum number of traveling cables. Include shielded wires and spares as noted above. Cord thoroughly and protect cables from rubbing against hoistways or car items. Provide with steel cable core and properly anchored to relieve strain on individual conductors.
- 2. All traveling cables shall be wired from machine to elevator, without junction box or spliced connections.

C. Hoistway Wiring:

- 1. All wiring shall be neatly terminated, tied within a junction box and properly marked as to its content.
- 2. If junction boxes are used, NEC approved terminal strips shall be used and properly identified.
- 3. No splices shall be allowed.

D. Work light and GFCI convenience outlet:

- 1. Provide on top of car with protective plastic lamp guard.
- 2. Provide compact fluorescent type (CFL)

E. Stop switch:

- 1. Provide in each pit. Provide NEMA 4 enclosure.
- 2. Provide on each top of car.

F. Alarm gong:

Provide on top of each car to be actuated by corresponding alarm button or emergency stop switch.

G. Auxiliary disconnect switches:

Provide as required in remote controller rooms or at remote equipment not in view of mainline switches; include all wiring and conduit.

H. CCTV circuit:

Provide wiring for closed circuit television camera in elevators. Run from elevator car top to outside of the elevator machine room, as directed by Owner at no additional cost to the Owner.

2.9 CAR ENCLOSURES:

A. General:

- 1. Fabricate finish work smooth and free from warps, buckles, squeaks and rattles; joints lightproof. No visible fastenings except as indicated.
- 2. All elevators shall be weighed before work begins to determine actual weight of car enclosures. Contractor shall keep a log of all equipment

- and weight removed and added to the suspension system. Contractor is responsible for complying with all applicable ASME and local codes.
- All elevators shall be weighed at the completion of the project. Provide all documentation to Cal/OSHA Elevator unit and Owner's Representative for permanent record.
- 4. Provide new crosshead data as required by ASME and local code authorities.
- B. Emergency lighting; All elevators:

Elevator No. 1 - 3: Provide an emergency car lighting unit mounted on top of car, battery driven and self-rechargeable. Upon outage of normal power, the unit shall, within 5 seconds, light two lamps as part of normal car lighting. The unit shall have sufficient capacity to keep the lights in continuous operation for four hours and the alarm bell for one hour. Provide a readily accessible means for testing the unit in service cabinet. Light fixtures mounted in car front returns or operating panels are not acceptable. Illuminate lights directly over car operating panels.

- C. Elevator No. 1 3: Retain existing shell enclosure and rehabilitate as follows:
 - 1. Garage and Bridge Elevators (1 & 2):
 - a. Demo: Demo and remove existing cab finishes as required.
 - b. Walls (Garage Car): Install (7) new vertical wall panels. Use ½" fire rated particle board, wrapped with textured stainless steel by Rigidized (5WL) or equal. Install (3) panels on the rear wall and (2) panels on each side wall.
 - c. Walls (Bridge Car): Install (4) new vertical wall panels. Use ½" fire rated particle board, wrapped with textured stainless steel by Rigidized (5WL) or equal. Install (2) panels on each side wall.
 - d. <u>Base & Reveals:</u> For the 4" tall base below the panels and the reveals between the panels install new recessed flat trims of #4, brushed (satin) stainless steel.
 - e. <u>Handrail (Garage Car):</u> On the rear wall, install (1) new ADA code compliant 1 ½" diameter handrail made of #4 brushed (satin) stainless steel.
 - f. Handrails (Bridge Car): On each side wall, install (1) new ADA code compliant 1 ½" diameter handrail made of #4 brushed (satin) stainless steel. Rail ends will return to wall.

- g. <u>Flooring:</u> Install new rubber flooring with raised design by Johnsonite or equal.
- h. <u>Ceiling:</u> Install new t-bar frame ceiling made of #4 brushed (satin) stainless steel with lay-in fire rated white diffuser lenses. Above the ceiling, install (2) new 4' linear LED light fixtures by Man-D-Tec: UniLED (see attached cut sheet), or approved equal.
- Cab Pads and Buttons: Provide one set (each car) of fire rated, gray canvas protective pads. Pads shall cover all walls and have cut outs for operating panel. Provide and install stainless steel buttons for hanging.
- j. <u>Front Walls:</u> For the returns, transoms and car doors, protect all adjoining areas, machine sand to remove scratches/graffiti as best possible, hand sand to blend in with grain, clean to remove dirt, grime, oxidation and lightly oil. Replace any scratched plastic lenses or placards.
- k. All other items remain unchanged.
- I. <u>Permit:</u> Cal/OSHA Elevator Unit mandated permit and inspections shall be the responsibility of the contractor.
- m. Labor: Work to be performed during regular trade hours.

2. Administration Elevator (#3):

- a. <u>Demo:</u> Demo and remove the existing cab interior finishes as required.
- b. Flooring: Install new Luxury Vinyl Tile (LVT) by Tandus Centiva or equal.
- c. <u>Walls:</u> Install (7) new vertical wall panels above the handrail. Use ½" fire rated particle board, faced and edge banded with a standard plastic laminate by WilsonArt or equal. Install (3) horizontal panels below the handrail level. Use ½" fire rated particle board, wrapped with textured stainless steel by Rigidized (5WL) or equal.
- d. <u>Base & Reveals:</u> For the 4" tall base below the panels and the reveals between the panels install new recessed flat trims of #4, brushed (satin) stainless steel.
- e. <u>Handrail:</u> On the rear wall, install (1) new ADA code compliant 1 ½" diameter handrail made of #4 brushed (satin) stainless steel.
- f. Ceiling: Install a new (6) section island type faced with #4, brushed

(satin) stainless steel. Install (6) recessed Man-D-Tec Solobeam LED lights (see attached cut sheet), or approved equal. One section shall be removable to access the emergency hatch above.

- g. <u>Cab Pads and Buttons:</u> Provide one set of fire rated, gray canvas protective pads. The pads shall cover all walls and have cut outs for operating panel. Provide and install stainless steel buttons for hanging
- h. <u>Front Wall:</u> For the return, transom and car door, protect all adjoining areas, machine sand to remove scratches/graffiti as best possible, hand sand to blend in with grain, clean to remove dirt, grime, oxidation and lightly oil. Replace any scratched plastic lenses or placards.
- Strike Jamb: Clad the strike jamb with new skin of #4 brushed (satin) stainless steel.
- j. All other items to remain unchanged.
- k. <u>Permit:</u> State mandated permit and inspections shall be the responsibility of the contractor.
- I. Labor: Work to be performed during regular trade hours.

2.10 HOISTWAY ENTRANCES; PASSENGER TYPE:

A. General:

Retain existing or provide new as specified.

B. Hangers and Tracks:

Elevator No. 1-3: Provide all new door tracks and hanger assemblies. Sheave type with two-point suspension. Steel sheaves with flanged groove and resilient sound-absorbing tires. Minimum 2-1/2-inch diameter for hoistway, 3 inch for car. Manufacturer's heavy- duty tracks and ball or roller bearing with adjustable up thrusts.

C. Hanger headers:

Elevator No. 1-3: Retain existing. Modify for new door tracks, reinforce and refinish.

D. Struts:

Elevator No. 1-3: Retain existing, clean.

E. Closers:

Elevator No. 1-3: Provide new cable relating torsion spring mechanical type or broken arm jack knife type as required for door assembly.

F. Dust and hanger covers:

Elevator No. 1-3: Retain existing, clean and refinish with black paint. Replace damaged and missing dust covers.

G. Fascia, toe and head guards:

Elevator No. 1-3: Retain existing, modify to comply with code, refinish with black paint and refasten for greater rigidity.

H. Interlocks:

Elevator No. 1-3: Provide all new. Equip each hoistway door with a tamper-proof interlock which shall prevent operation of the car until doors are locked in the close position as defined by the Code and shall prevent opening of doors at landing from corridor side unless car is at rest at landing in leveling zone or, hoistway access switch is used. Provide all new type "SF" high temperature wiring for interlock circuits.

I. Pick-up roller assemblies:

Elevator No. 1-3: Provide all new pick-up roller assemblies as required for door operating equipment furnished.

J. Door restrictor:

Elevator No. 1-3: Provide new, door restrictor device compatible with new door equipment.

K. Sills:

Elevator No. 1-3: Retain existing, power clean to metal and refinish, full length of sill.

L. Limit

Switches:

Elevator No. 1-3: Provide new

M. Frames:

Elevator No. 1-3: Retain existing. Clean and refinish as scheduled. Frames to be refinished by others.

N. Hoistway doors:

- Elevator No. 1-3: Retain existing, re-hang to remove all twists, provide two new gibs per panel and one fire gib per panel which will remain engaged in sill if guiding member is destroyed.
- Provide new full height astragals and missing or damaged non-vision wings matching finish of door panels. Contractor shall use the original reinforcing on existing hoistway and car doors for mounting hangers, pickup rollers, drive vanes, etc. If original reinforcing is not reusable for

drive vanes and pickup rollers, Contractor shall furnish new reinforcing (minimum of 1/4" thick plate) welded to the door face. A minimum of four (4) 5/16" threaded bolts is to be used for attachment to the reinforcing plate. Where slotted holes are provided in the attachment block, a 1/4" dowel pin is to be fitted after doors locks are set up. Clean and refinish door panels as scheduled. Door panels to be refinished by others. Vandal resistant paint. Remove door panels before painting.

O. Passenger Elevator Entrance Schedule:

1. Elevator No. 1, 2 & 3:

a. Size: 3'-6" wide by 7'-0" high.

b. Type: Side opening

c. Frames:

Main floor: Re-finish
 Typical floors: Re-finish.

d. Transoms

1) Main floor: Re-finish

2) Typical floors: Re-finish

e. Door

Main floor: Re-finish
 Typical floors: Re-finish

f. Sills:

Main floor: Re-finish
 Typical floors: Re-finish

2.11 HYDRAULIC ELEVATOR EQUIPMENT:

A. Design Criteria:

- 1. Performance:
 - a. Contract Speed: Maximum ten percent (10%) speed variation under any loading condition in the up direction.
 - Motion Time: From start to stop of elevators motion as measured in both directions for a typical one floor run under any loading condition.

1) Elevator No. 1, 2, and 3 9.1 seconds

Door Open Times:

2) Elevator No. 1, 2 and 3 2.5 seconds

c. Door close times: Minimum, without exceeding kinetic energy and closing force, allowed by code.

- d. Door dwell times: Comply with ADA formula and provide separate adjustable timers with initial settings as follows:
 - 1) Main lobby hall call: 5.0 to 6.0 seconds.
 - 2) Upper lobby hall call: 5.0 to 6.0 seconds.
 - 3) Car call: 5.0 to 6.0 seconds.
 - 4) Interruption of door protective device: Reduce dwell to 1 second.
- e. Leveling: Within 1/4 inch under any loading condition. Level into floor at all times, do not overrun floor and level back.
- f. Hydraulic pressure: Hydraulic components shall be factory tested for 600 PSI. Maximum operating pressure shall be 425 PSI.
- 2. Operating qualities: Owner's Representative will judge riding qualities of cars and enforce the following requirements. Make all necessary adjustments.
 - a. Acceleration and deceleration: Starting and stopping shall be smooth and comfortable, without obvious steps of acceleration. Slowdown, stopping and leveling shall be without jars or bumps. Elevator shall start movement within .5 seconds of fully closed doors. Stopping upon operation of emergency stop switch shall be rapid but not violent.
 - Horizontal Acceleration (ISO A95 Scaling): Maximum 10 mg peak-to-peak measured at full speed for full travel in both directions.
 - c. Vertical Vibration: Ride shall be free of vibration throughout acceleration, full speed and deceleration for full travel in both directions.
- 3. Sound control: (A Scaled fast Lmax over the duration of the operation).
 - Vibration: Sound isolate machines and motor drives from beams and building structure to prevent objectionable noise and vibration transmission to occupied building spaces.
 - b. Airborne noise: Maximum acoustical output level of:
 - 1. 65 dB measured in machine room. With the meter located 3' 0" from each machine room door at floor level
 - 2. 55 dB measured in elevator cars during all sequences of operation.
 - 3. 50 dB measured in elevator lobbies. From the nearest staff work station to the elevator lobby

2.12 HYDRAULIC HOISTWAY EQUIPMENT:

A. Guide rails and brackets:

Elevator No. 1-3: Retain existing rails, realign, clean, check, tighten and replace Code non-complying brackets, fishplates and bolts. Provide log of the alignment corrections to the Owner's Representative.

B. Guide shoes:

Elevator No. 1-3: Provide new guide shoes "Omega" type

C. Buffers:

Retain existing.

D. Car frame and platform:

- 1. Elevator No. 1-3: Retain existing car frame. Clean down and tighten frame bolts. Static balance weight to be added as required.
- 2. Piping:
 - a. Reuse existing.
 - b. Provide new gaskets for Victaulic, or approved equal, fittings and test for leaks. Pit Valves:

E. Pit Valves:

- 1) Provide in each elevator pit a gate valve to shut off oil between cylinder and pumping plant.
- Provided new, a pressure type line rupture safety valve to shut off oil between cylinder head and pit valve.
 Activation of safety valve shall not void operation of lowering valve.

F. Oil:

1. Hydraulic Fluid: USDA certified bio-based product, ultra-low toxicity, "readily" biodegradable, high performing fluid made from rapidly renewable plant stock; with

antioxidant, anticorrosive, antifoaming, and metal passivating additives. Hydraulic fluid is approved by elevator manufacturer for use with elevator equipment.

- uSDA certified bio-based product, >90% bio-based content, per ASTM D6866
- b. Classified "Readily" biodegradable, per OECD 301B
- c. >70% Biodegradability, per ASTM D5864
- d. >20,000 ppm Aquatic toxicity, per EPA-821-R-02-012
- e. >220 Viscosity Index, ASTM D2270

- f. 25 Viscosity at 400C, cSt., per ASTM D445
- g. >2200C, Flash Point, per ASTM D92

2.13 MACHINE ROOM EQUIPMENT:

A. General:

1. Provide equipment to fit existing space and structural limitations. Coordinate related electrical, structural and mechanical work with other trades.

B. Pumping plant:

- 1. Provide new.
 - a. General: Self-contained unit with sound reducing cabinet and sound isolated base.
 - b. Pump: IMO, Roper, or approved equal, for 150 SSU oil, belt driven or submersible. Maximum speed 3600 RPM. Maximum pressure 425 pounds per square inch.
 - c. Tank: Capacity equal to plunger displacement plus 50%. Provide strainers, oil level gauge and device to maintain uniform oil temperature.
 - d. Valves: Integral type by Elevator Equipment Corporation, Maxton Manufacturing or by elevator manufacturer, or approved equal. Provide conveniently located manual lowering valve accessible without removing pumping plant enclosure panels.
 - e. Motor: General Electric, Imperial, Westinghouse or accepted equal; maximum speed 1800 RPM for belt driven and 3600 RPM for submersible. Provide minimum 120 start heavy-duty motor, continuous rated, 50 degrees C. temperature rise, Class A insulation or 70 degrees C. rise for Class B insulation.
 - f. Muffler: Blow-out proof type between pumping plant and cylinder.

C. Controller:

- Integral, floor or wall mounted as applicable to space conditions. Include door operating relays combined with controller. Provide solid state soft starting with starting switches rated at minimum 57% of horsepower rating. IEC method of line starter application is unacceptable. Provide three (3) manual reset overload relays, one in each line and reverse phase relay. Provide externally mounted permanently identified junction boxes on controller cabinets for termination of communication circuits. Pre-approved controllers, or approved equal:
 - a. Smartrise SRH

- D. Hydraulic elevator protective circuit:
 - 1. In the event the car should stall due to low oil in the system or, if for other cause the car fails to reach the top landing within a predetermined time while traveling "up", a special circuit shall be provided which shall automatically return the car to the bottom landing and open the doors for 10 seconds after which the elevator will close doors and completely shut down. Recycling the mainline switch shall restore Service.
- E. Hydraulic elevator battery emergency lowering operation:
 - Provide a battery driven unit which will initiate operation of the protective circuit and lower elevator to bottom landing in the event of a power failure.
 - 2. Service shall be restored automatically upon restoration of normal power supply.
 - 3. Arrange with an exposed method of testing.
 - Arrange circuitry so that, if the mainline switch is open when the power transfer takes place, the elevator will not respond to the operation of the protective circuit.
 - 5. Provide a double pole-isolating switch on the battery unit to disconnect the battery output.

PART 3 - EXECUTION:

3.1 INSTALLATION:

A. General:

Install per manufacturer's requirements, those of regulatory agencies and as specified.

B. Welded Construction:

- 1. Provide welded connections for installation of elevator work where bolted connections are not required for subsequent removal or for normal operation, adjustments, inspection, maintenance and replacement of worn parts.
- 2. Comply with AWS standards for workmanship and for qualifications of welding operators.

C. Sound Isolation:

Mount rotating and vibrating elevator equipment and components on vibration-absorption mounts, designed to effectively prevent transmission of vibrations to structure and thereby, eliminate sources of structure-borne noise from elevator system.

D. Lubrication:

Lubricate operating parts of systems as recommended by manufacturer.

E. Hazardous Disposal Certification:

Contractor to provide oil and hazardous waste removal documentation per required EPA standards. Provide copy of documentation to Owner.

F. Alignment:

- Coordinate alignment of hoistway entrances with elevator guide rails, for accurate alignment of entrances with cars. Where possible, delay final adjustment of sills and doors until car is operable in shaft. Reduce clearances to minimum, safe workable dimensions at each landing.
- 2. Align guide rails plumb and parallel with maximum deviation of 1/16 inch. Anchorage of guide rails in pits shall not compromise waterproofing.

G. Graphics:

Provide graphics visible to public as selected by Owner's Representative.

H. Manufacturer's nameplates:

Manufacturer's nameplates, trademarks or logos not permitted on surfaces visible to public.

I. Cleaning of the installation:

After the installation of each elevator has been completed and immediately prior to the carrying out of the tests, the machine room and all equipment therein, the elevator hoistways including outside of car and all ledges and similar areas, the elevator pit and equipment therein, and all door hanger runners, guides, tracks and sills shall be thoroughly cleaned down, preferably with vacuum cleaning equipment, and all dust, fluff, dirt, grit, excessive oil and grease and rubbish shall be removed from site.

J. Finish painting after tests:

- 1. After satisfactory completion of the tests, any damage to the paint work shall be made good and the installation re-cleaned, if necessary, after which at least one final coat of gloss oil resistant or enamelized paint shall be applied by brushing or spraying in Contractor's customary colors to all the existing and new equipment in the machine room and also to such items in the hoistway or elsewhere which have received only a primer coat.
- 2. Painting shall be performed either during normal working hours or after hours at no additional cost to the Owner.

K. Painting of machine room floor, walls and pit floors:

- 1. After the completion of the entire installation, the floor and walls of each machine room and pit areas shall be thoroughly cleaned down and brush painted with one coat of traffic paint having oil resistant properties. Pit floors shall be painted after the completion of the waterproofing. Owner's Representative will advise the color.
- 2. Painting shall be performed either during normal working hours or after hours at no additional cost to the Owner.

3.2 NOISE CONTROL:

A. General:

Contractor, in the preparation and the execution of the work, shall recognize the particular and mandatory requirements of the remodeling project due to the character of the work and the use occupancy of the building.

3.3 FIELD QUALITY CONTROL:

A. Regulatory agencies inspection:

1. Upon completion of elevators, Contractor shall provide instruments, weights and personnel to conduct test required by regulatory agencies. Contractor shall submit a complete report describing the results of the tests.

B. Examination and testing:

- 1. When installation is ready for final acceptance, notify and assist Owner's Representative in making a walk-through inspection of entire installation to assure workmanship and equipment complies with contract documents. Provide equipment to perform the following tests:
 - a. One-hour heat and run test with full load in car. Perform for one car of each duty.
 - 1) Stop car at each floor in each direction.
 - 2) Verify that temperatures do not exceed manufacturer's motor ratings.
 - 3) Performance and leveling tests shall be made before and after heat and run test.
 - b. Check and verify operation of all safety features and special operations.
 - 1) Measure horizontal acceleration.
 - 2) Measure acoustical output levels in machine room, lobbies and cars.

C. Correction:

Make corrections to defects or discrepancies at no cost to Owner's Representative. Should discrepancies be such that re-examination and retesting is required, Contractor shall pay for all costs including those of Owner's Representative's fees.

D. Final acceptance:

Final acceptance of the installation will be made only after all corrections are complete, final submittals and certificates received and the Owner's Representative is satisfied and the installation is complete in all respects. Final payment will not be made until the above is completed.

3.4 INSTRUCTIONS:

Instruct Owner's personnel in proper use of each system.

3.5 PROJECT RECORD DOCUMENTS:

A. As-built drawings:

- Contractor shall maintain at the job site a separate and complete set of contract drawings which will be used solely for the purpose of recording changes made in any portion of the work during the course of construction, regardless of the reason for such change.
- 2. Changes, as they occur, will be marked on the record set of drawings on a daily basis.
- 3. The monthly payment will be withheld until the Owner's Representative has verified that "as-built" corrections are current. Before final payment is authorized, Contractor shall certify that all changes in the work are included on the drawings and will deliver such to the Owner's Representative.

B. Record drawings:

- 1. Contractor shall prepare "as-built" drawings in duplicate of any changes to electrical work on prints supplied by the Owner's Representative. During the course of construction, actual locations to scale shall be shown for all runs of mechanical and electrical work, installed in walls and floors or otherwise concealed. This shall cover all piping, electrical wiring; whether in conduit or cable, duct work, etc. shall be located, in addition, by dimension. All services shall be identified in ink on the prints.
- 2. In addition, Contractor shall keep a complete record copy of the plans and specifications for the use in preparing "as-built" plans and specifications at the end of the job. Contractor shall sign and date the prints and deliver them to the Owner's Representative.

3.6 MAINTENANCE:

A. General:

 Provide complete continuing maintenance on entire elevator equipment during regular working hours on regular working days from award of contract, through construction and for a period of twelve (12) months after completion and acceptance of all elevators. Monthly service shall be billed quarterly.

B. Examination:

1. Include systematic examination, adjustment, and lubrication of elevator equipment whenever required and replacement of defective parts with parts of same manufacture as required for proper operation. Contractor not responsible for repairs to car enclosures, door panels, frames, sills or platform flooring resulting from normal usage or misuse, accidents and negligence for which Contractor is not responsible. Examinations shall be

performed monthly based upon elevator company's electronic full maintenance program or elevator company's published full maintenance procedure.

2. Performance standards:

- a. Maintain the performance standard set forth in this Specification and maintain correct operation of the dispatching system.
- b. Maintain smooth starting and stopping, smooth riding qualities and accurate leveling at all times.

C. Call-backs:

1. In event of failures, provide 24-hour call-back service at no additional cost billed at bonus time rates to Owner.

D. Elevator shutdowns:

- 1. Should any elevator become inoperative, repair within 24 hours of notification of such failure. Breakdown of major components shall be completed and service restored within 72 hours.
- 2. Failure to comply with above, Owner's Representative may order the work done by other contractors at Contractor's expense.
- Devices repaired or replaced by others shall, nevertheless, become provided with maintenance by Contractor who shall become completely responsible for correct operation of such devices for lifetime of this contract.

E. Follow-up tests:

1. Test all safety devices and emergency operations at 6 month intervals or oftener and submit written report on each test. Make tests at times which do not interfere with building operation. No load test conducted annually as well as monthly fire service testing.

F. Maintenance materials:

- 1. Expendable Parts: Contractor shall provide in technician's vehicle at least one machine room on project premises containing the following expendable parts required for prompt replacement. Parts used for routine maintenance shall be replenished and stored in machine room to ensure an adequate supply is available.
 - a. Two field replaceable resistors of each type installed.
 - b. One set hanger sheaves for car and hoistway doors.
 - c. Two relays and relay bases of each type installed.
 - d. Ten lamps of each type installed.

- e. Car and hall buttons with identical graphics installed; six for manufacturer's standard buttons, one of each type for special buttons.
- f. Ten fuses of each type installed.
- g. Any other parts required for prompt replacement.
- h. Lubricants and cleaners of all types used for maintenance.
- 2. Replacement parts: Keep the following parts in a warehouse.
 - a. One door operator motor of each type used
 - b. Transformers of each type installed
 - c. Two complete door interlocks
 - d. Hydraulic Packing for each size at site.
 - e. Parts for door protective devices
 - f. Hall and car button modules
 - g. Such other parts as are needed to insure prompt replacement in event of elevator shutdown such as spare control boards for computer-operated systems.

G. Maintenance data:

- 1. Submit three sets of complete and accurate maintenance data specific for each elevator at the midpoint of the project. Final acceptance and final payment will not be made until approved and received.
 - a. Manuals: Describe proper use and maintenance, inspection, and testing of equipment. All error codes and description of the codes will be part of the documents. It should also include lubrication points, types of lubricants used and frequency of lubricant application.
 - b. Provide information for all of the switches and functions that were installed.
 - c. Parts catalogs: Complete listing of all parts of equipment and components used in the installation.
 - d. Wiring diagrams: One laminated set mounted in machine room, one reproducible set delivered to Owner's Representative. Wiring diagrams shall be as built, specific for this installation, and reference identification on drawings shall match points identified on terminals of controllers.
 - e. Maintenance tool and software manuals: Provide maintenance tools, dongles, and supporting software documentation required for the complete maintenance of the entire system including diagnostics, adjusting, and testing. Maintenance tool may be hand held or built into control system and shall be of the type not requiring recharging or reprogramming nor of the automatic destruct type. The tool and supporting software may be

programmed to operate only with this project's identification serial numbering.

H. Quotation: Base bid shall include cost of maintenance and materials as described above.

END OF SECTION

ATTACHMENT B

Attachment B REGULATORY REQUIREMENT

Elevator Modernization Project MNT19-16

Table of Contents

Contents

NO FEDERAL OBLIGATION TO THIRD PARTIES	2
FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS OR CLAIMS – CIVIL AND CRIMINAL FRAUD	2
ACCESS TO THIRD PARTY CONTRACT RECORDS	3
FEDERAL FUNDING, INCORPORATION OF FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINSITRATION (FTA) TERMS, AND FEDERAL CHANGES	4
CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS (TITLE VI, ADA, EEO (EXCEPT SPECIAL DOL CONSTRUCTION CLAUSE	4
DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE)	5
DAVIS-BACON AND COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACTS	7
TERMINATION 49 U.S.C. Part 18 FTA Circular 4220.1F	14
SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT	16
CLEAN WATER AND CLEAN AIR REQUIREMENTS	17
BUY AMERICA	18
BREACHES AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 49 CFR Part 18 FTA Circular 4220.1F	19
CARGO PREFERENCE	20
FLY AMERICA	20
DAVIS-BACON AND COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACTS	21
CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT	28
BONDING REQUIREMENTS	29
SEISMIC SAFETY REQUIREMENTS 42 U.S.C. 7701 et seq. 49 CFR Part 41	30
TRANSIT EMPLOYEE PROTECTIVE ARRANGEMENTS	31
ALCOHOL AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE PROGRAM	33
ENERGY CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS	38
RECYCLED PRODUCTS	38
NATIONAL INTELLIGENT TRANSPORTATION SYSTEMS ARCHITECTURE AND STANDARI	
ADA ACCESS	
ADMINISTRATIVE CODE	
DISCRIMINATION	
WHISTLEBLOWER REQUIREMENTS	
PUBLIC RECORDS ACT	
PRIVACY ACT - 5 U.S.C. 552	
VETERANS DEFERENCE	12

REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

* Marks Required Subcontract Provisions that must flow down to all subcontracts as defined in the Article entitled SUBCONTRACTORS AND SUPPLIERS herein.

Required Clauses for All FTA-Assisted Third-Party Contracts and Subcontracts

RR-01

NO FEDERAL OBLIGATION TO THIRD PARTIES *

In connection with the Project, the Recipient agrees that, absent the Federal Government's express written consent, the Federal Government shall not be subject to any obligations or liabilities to any subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, or other participant at any tier of the Project, or other person or entity that is not a party to the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement for the Project. Notwithstanding that the Federal Government may have concurred in or approved any solicitation, subagreement, lease, third party contract, or arrangement at any tier, the Federal Government has no obligations or liabilities to any entity other than the Recipient, including any subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, or other participant at any tier of the Project.

RR-02

FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS OR CLAIMS – CIVIL AND CRIMINAL FRAUD *

A. Civil Fraud.

The Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as amended, 31 U.S.C. §§ 3801 et seq., and U.S. DOT regulations, "Program Fraud Civil Remedies," 49 C.F.R. Part 31, apply to the Recipient's activities in connection with the Project. By executing the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement for the Project, the Recipient certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each statement it has made, it makes, or it may make in connection with the Project. In addition to other penalties that may apply, the Recipient also acknowledges that if it makes a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, certification, assurance, or representation to the Federal Government, the Federal Government reserves the right to impose on the Recipient the penalties of the Program Fraud Civil Remedies Act of 1986, as amended, to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate.

B. Criminal Fraud.

If the Recipient makes a false, fictitious, or fraudulent claim, statement, submission, certification, assurance, or representation to the Federal Government or includes a false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement or representation in any agreement with the Federal Government in connection with a Project authorized under 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 or any other Federal law, the Federal Government reserves the right to impose on the Recipient

RR – Page 2 Updated: 11132018

- the penalties of 49 U.S.C. § 5323(1), 18 U.S.C. § 1001, or other applicable Federal law to the extent the Federal Government deems appropriate.
- C. Contractor shall include this Article in each subcontract financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA. Contractor shall not modify the Article, except to identify the Subcontractor who will be subject to the provisions.

RR-03 ACCESS TO THIRD PARTY CONTRACT RECORDS *

A. Access to Third Party Contract Records.

The Recipient agrees to require, and assures that its subrecipients require, their third party contractors and third party subcontractors at each tier to provide to the U.S. Secretary of Transportation and the Comptroller General of the United States or their duly authorized representatives, access to all third party contract records as required by 49 U.S.C. § 5325(g). The Recipient further agrees to require, and assures that its subrecipients require, their third party contractors and third party subcontractors, at each tier, to provide sufficient access to third party procurement records as needed for compliance with Federal laws and regulations or to assure proper Project management as determined by FTA.

Contractor agrees to provide Omnitrans, the FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General of the United States or any of their authorized representatives access to any books, documents, papers and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this Contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts and transcriptions. Contractor also agrees, pursuant to 49 C. F. R. 633.17 to provide the FTA Administrator or the FTA's authorized representatives, including any FTA Project Management Oversight Contractor, access to Contractor's records and construction sites pertaining to a major capital project, defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a) 1, which is receiving federal financial assistance through the programs described at 49 U.S.C. 5307, 5309 or 5311.

- B. If this Contract is for a capital project or improvement (defined at 49 U.S.C. 5302(a) 1) and was entered in to through other than competitive bidding, the Contractor shall make records related to this Contract available to Omnitrans, the Secretary of Transportation and the Comptroller General or any authorized officer or employee of any of them for the purposes of conducting an audit and inspection.
- C. Contractor shall maintain all books, records, accounts and reports required under this Contract for a period of not less than three years after the date of termination or expiration of this Contract, except in the event of litigation or settlement of claims arising from the performance of this Contract, in which case Contractor agrees to maintain same until Omnitrans, the FTA Administrator, the Comptroller General, or any of their duly authorized representatives, have disposed of all such litigation, appeals, claims or exceptions related thereto.

RR – Page 3 Updated: 11132018

RR-04 FEDERAL FUNDING, INCORPORATION OF FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINSITRATION (FTA) TERMS, AND FEDERAL CHANGES

- A. This Contract includes, in part, certain Standard Terms and Conditions required by DOT, whether or not expressly set forth in the Contract provisions. All contractual provisions required by DOT, as set forth in FTA Circular 4220.1F, dated November 1, 2008 and revised March 18, 2013 (including any changes), and are hereby incorporated by reference. Anything to the contrary herein notwithstanding, all FTA mandated terms shall be deemed to control in the event of a conflict with other provisions contained in this Contract. Contractor shall not perform any act, fail to perform any act, or refuse to comply with any Omnitrans requests which would cause Omnitrans to be in violation of the FTA terms and conditions.
- B. Federal Transit Administration of the US Department of Transportation and all laws, regulations, guidelines, and provisions of the financial assistance agreement apply to this Contract and are incorporated by reference as if fully set forth herein.
- C. Contractor shall at all times comply with all applicable federal laws and regulations, including without limitation FTA regulations, policies, procedures and directives, including those listed directly or by reference in Applicable Grant Agreements between Omnitrans and FTA, as they may be amended or promulgated from time to time during the term of this Contract collectively "Federal Requirements". These Federal Requirements may change and the changed Federal Requirements will apply to this Contract as required unless the Federal Government determines otherwise. Contractor's failure to so comply with the Federal Requirements shall constitute a material breach of this Contract.

RR-05 CIVIL RIGHTS REQUIREMENTS (TITLE VI, ADA, EEO (EXCEPT SPECIAL DOL CONSTRUCTION CLAUSE *

A. Nondiscrimination - In accordance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d, section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act of 1975, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 6102, section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, 42 U.S.C. § 12132, and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, Contractor shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, creed, national origin, sex, age, or disability. In addition, Contractor shall comply with applicable Federal implementing regulations and other implementing requirements FTA may issue.

B. Equal Employment Opportunity

(a) Race, Color, Creed, National Origin, Sex - In accordance with Title VII of the Civil Rights Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 2000e, and Federal transit laws at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, Contractor shall comply with all applicable equal employment opportunity requirements of U.S. Department of Labor (U.S. DOL) regulations, "Office of

RR – Page 4 Updated: 11132018 Federal Contract Compliance Programs, Equal Employment Opportunity, Department of Labor," 41 C.F.R. Parts 60 et seq., (which implement Executive Order No. 11246, "Equal Employment Opportunity," as amended by Executive Order No. 11375, "Amending Executive Order 11246 Relating to Equal Employment Opportunity," 42 U.S.C. § 2000e note), and with any applicable Federal statutes, executive orders, regulations, and Federal policies that may in the future affect activities undertaken in the course of the Contract. Contractor shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, color, creed, national origin, sex, or age. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. In addition, Contractor shall comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.

- (b) Age In accordance with section 4 of the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 623 and Federal transit law at 49 U.S.C. § 5332, Contractor shall refrain from discrimination against present and prospective employees for reason of age. In addition, Contractor shall comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.
- (c) Disabilities In accordance with section 102 of the Americans with Disabilities Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 12112, Contractor shall comply with the requirements of U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, "Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment Provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act," 29 C.F.R. Part 1630, pertaining to employment of persons with disabilities. In addition, Contractor shall comply with any implementing requirements FTA may issue.
- (d) Contractor shall include these requirements in each subcontract, modified only if necessary to identify parties, as required by Federal regulations.

RR-06 DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE) 49 CFR Part 26

Disadvantaged Business Enterprises

- A. This Contract is subject to the requirements of Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 26, Participation by Disadvantaged Business Enterprises in Department of Transportation Financial Assistance Programs. The agency's overall goal for DBE participation is 1%.
- B. Contractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. Contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of this DOT-assisted Contract. Failure by Contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this Contract, which may result in the termination of this Contract or such other remedy as Omnitrans deems

RR – Page 5 Updated: 11132018

- appropriate. Each subcontract Contractor signs with a subcontractor must include the assurance in this paragraph (*see* 49 CFR 26.13(b)).
- C. Bidders are required to document sufficient DBE participation to meet these goals or, alternatively, document adequate good faith efforts to do so, as provided for in 49 CFR 26.53. Award of this contract is conditioned on submission of the following concurrent with and accompanying sealed bid concurrent with and accompanying an initial proposal prior to award:
 - 1. The names and addresses of DBE firms that will participate in this contract;
 - 2. A description of the work each DBE will perform;
 - 3. The dollar amount of the participation of each DBE firm participating;
 - 4. Written documentation of the bidder's commitment to use a DBE subcontractor whose participation it submits to meet the contract goal;
 - 5. Written confirmation from the DBE that it is participating in the contract as provided in the prime contractor's commitment; and
 - 6. If the contract goal is not met, evidence of good faith efforts to do so.

Bidders must present the information required above as a matter of responsiveness with initial proposals prior to contract award] (see 49 CFR 26.53(3)).

The successful bidder will be required to report its DBE participation obtained through race-neutral means throughout the period of performance.

- D. Contractor is required to pay its subcontractors performing work related to this contract for satisfactory performance of that work no later than 7 days after the contractor's receipt of payment for that work from the Omnitrans. In addition, Contractor is required to return any retainage payments to those subcontractors within 30 days after the subcontractor's work related to his contract is satisfactorily completed.
- E. Contractor must promptly notify Omnitrans whenever a DBE subcontractor performing work related to this contract is terminated or fails to complete its work, and must make good faith efforts to engage another DBE subcontractor to perform at least the same amount of work. Contractor may not terminate any DBE subcontractor and perform that work through its own forces or those of an affiliate without prior written consent of Omnitrans.

RR – Page 6 Updated: 11132018

Required Clauses for Awards Exceeding \$2,000

RR-07

DAVIS-BACON AND COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACTS

Background and Application

The Davis-Bacon and Copeland Acts are codified at 40 USC 3141, et seq. and 18 USC 874. The Acts apply to grantee construction contracts and subcontracts that "at least partly are financed by a loan or grant from the Federal Government." 40 USC 3145(a), 29 CFR 5.2(h), 49 CFR 18.36(i) (5). The Acts apply to any construction contract over \$2,000. 40 USC 3142(a), 29 CFR 5.5(a). 'Construction,' for purposes of the Acts, includes "actual construction, alteration and/or repair, including painting and decorating." 29 CFR 5.5(a). The requirements of both Acts are incorporated into a single clause (see 29 CFR 3.11) enumerated at 29 CFR 5.5(a) and reproduced below.

The clause language is drawn directly from 29 CFR 5.5(a) and any deviation from the model clause below should be coordinated with counsel to ensure the Acts' requirements are satisfied.

Clause Language

Davis-Bacon and Copeland Anti-Kickback Acts

(1) **Minimum wages** - (i) All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR part 3)), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and mechanics.

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of paragraph (1)(iv) of this section; also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided that the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional

RR – Page 7 Updated: 11132018 classifications and wage rates conformed under paragraph (1)(ii) of this section) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the workers.

- (ii)(A) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefore only when the following criteria have been met:
- (1) Except with respect to helpers as defined as 29 CFR 5.2(n)(4), the work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and
- (2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and
- (3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination; and
- (4) With respect to helpers as defined in 29 CFR 5.2(n)(4), such a classification prevails in the area in which the work is performed.
- (B) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (C) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs (a)(1)(ii) (B) or (C) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.
- (iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.

RR – Page 8 Updated: 11132018

- (iv) If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program.
- (v)(A) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits only when the following criteria have been met:
- (1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and
- (2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and
- (3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.
- (B) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (C) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination with 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs (a) (1) (v) (B) or (C) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the Classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.
- (2) Withholding Omnitrans shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized

RR – Page 9 Updated: 11132018 representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor under this contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor, so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working on the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), all or part of the wages required by the contract, Omnitrans may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased.

- (3) Payrolls and basic records (i) Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937, or under the Housing Act of 1949, in the construction or development of the project). Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in section 1(b) (2) (B) of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.
- (ii)(A) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to the Omnitrans for transmission to the Federal Transit Administration. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under section 5.5(a) (3) (i) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5. This information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose and may be purchased from the Superintendent of Documents (Federal Stock Number 029-005-00014-1), U.S. Government Printing Office, Washington, DC 20402. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors.
- (B) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following:

RR – Page 10 Updated: 11132018

- (1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be maintained under section 5.5(a)(3)(i) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5 and that such information is correct and complete;
- (2) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in Regulations, 29 CFR part 3;
- (3) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.
- (C) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by paragraph (a)(3)(ii)(B) of this section.
- (D) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under section 1001 of title 18 and section 231 of title 31 of the United States Code.
- (iii) The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph (a)(3)(i) of this section available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the Federal Transit Administration or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, the Federal agency may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.
- (4) Apprentices and trainees (i) Apprentices Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Bureau, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification

RR – Page 11 Updated: 11132018

of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the contractor's or subcontractors registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division of the U.S. Department of Labor determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination. In the event the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Bureau, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

(ii) <u>Trainees</u> - Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate that is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

(iii) <u>Equal employment opportunity</u> - The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under this part shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended and 29 CFR part 30.

RR – Page 12 Updated: 11132018

- (5) Compliance with Copeland Act requirements The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR part 3, which are incorporated by reference in this contract.
- (6) **Subcontracts** The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1) through (10) and such other clauses as the Federal Transit Administration may by appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5.
- (7) Contract termination: debarment A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.
- (8) Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract.
- (9) **Disputes concerning labor standards** Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting agency, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.
- (10) **Certification of eligibility** (i) By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
- (ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
- (iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001.

RR – Page 13 Updated: 11132018

RR-08

SEISMIC SAFETY REQUIREMENTS 42 U.S.C. 7701 et seq. 49 CFR Part 41

Applicability to Contracts

The Seismic Safety requirements apply only to contracts for the construction of new buildings or additions to existing buildings.

Flow Down

The Seismic Safety requirements flow down from FTA recipients and subrecipients to first tier contractors to assure compliance, with the applicable building standards for Seismic Safety, including the work performed by all subcontractors.

Model Clauses/Language

The regulations do not provide suggested language for third-party contract clauses. The following language has been developed by FTA.

Seismic Safety - The contractor agrees that any new building or addition to an existing building will be designed and constructed in accordance with the standards for Seismic Safety required in Department of Transportation Seismic Safety Regulations 49 CFR Part 41 and will certify to compliance to the extent required by the regulation. The contractor also agrees to ensure that all work performed under this contract including work performed by a subcontractor is in compliance with the standards required by the Seismic Safety Regulations and the certification of compliance issued on the project.

Required Clauses for Awards Exceeding \$10,000

RR-09

TERMINATION 49 U.S.C. Part 18 FTA Circular 4220.1F

Applicability to Contracts

All contracts (with the exception of contracts with nonprofit organizations and institutions of higher education,) in excess of \$10,000 shall contain suitable provisions for termination by the grantee including the manner by which it will be effected and the basis for settlement. (For contracts with nonprofit organizations and institutions of higher education the threshold is \$100,000.) In addition, such contracts shall describe conditions under which the contract may be terminated for default as well as conditions where the contract may be terminated because of circumstances beyond the control of the contractor.

Flow Down

The termination requirements flow down to all contracts in excess of \$10,000, with the exception of contracts with nonprofit organizations and institutions of higher learning.

RR – Page 14 Updated: 11132018

- a. **Termination for Convenience (General Provision)** Omnitrans may terminate this contract, in whole or in part, at any time by written notice to the Contractor when it is in the Government's best interest. The Contractor shall be paid its costs, including contract close-out costs, and profit on work performed up to the time of termination. The Contractor shall promptly submit its termination claim to Omnitrans to be paid the Contractor. If the Contractor has any property in its possession belonging to the Omnitrans, the Contractor will account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner the Omnitrans directs.
- b. **Opportunity to Cure (General Provision)** Omnitrans in its sole discretion may, in the case of a termination for breach or default, allow the Contractor an appropriately short period of time in which to cure the defect. In such case, the notice of termination will state the time period in which cure is permitted and other appropriate conditions

If Contractor fails to remedy to Omnitrans' satisfaction the breach or default of any of the terms, covenants, or conditions of this Contract within ten (10) days after receipt by Contractor of written notice from Omnitrans setting forth the nature of said breach or default, Omnitrans shall have the right to terminate the Contract without any further obligation to Contractor. Any such termination for default shall not in any way operate to preclude Omnitrans from also pursuing all available remedies against Contractor and its sureties for said breach or default.

- c. Waiver of Remedies for any Breach In the event that Omnitrans elects to waive its remedies for any breach by Contractor of any covenant, term or condition of this Contract, such waiver by Omnitrans shall not limit Omnitrans remedies for any succeeding breach of that or of any other term, covenant, or condition of this Contract.
- d. **Termination for Default (Construction)** If the Contractor refuses or fails to prosecute the work or any separable part, with the diligence that will insure its completion within the time specified in this contract or any extension or fails to complete the work within this time, or if the Contractor fails to comply with any other provisions of this contract, Omnitrans may terminate this contract for default. Omnitrans shall terminate by delivering to the Contractor a Notice of Termination specifying the nature of the default. In this event, Omnitrans may take over the work and compete it by contract or otherwise, and may take possession of and use any materials, appliances, and plant on the work site necessary for completing the work. The Contractor and its sureties shall be liable for any damage to Omnitrans resulting from the Contractor's refusal or failure to complete the work within specified time, whether or not the Contractor's right to proceed with the work is terminated. This liability includes any increased costs incurred by the Omnitrans in completing the work.

The Contractor's right to proceed shall not be terminated nor the Contractor charged with damages under this clause if-

RR – Page 15 Updated: 11132018

- 1. The delay in completing the work arises from unforeseeable causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the Contractor. Examples of such causes include: acts of God, acts of the Recipient, acts of another Contractor in the performance of a contract with the Recipient, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes; and
- 2. The contractor, within [10] days from the beginning of any delay, notifies Omnitrans in writing of the causes of delay. If in the judgment of Omnitrans, the delay is excusable, the time for completing the work shall be extended. The judgment of Omnitrans shall be final and conclusive on the parties, but subject to appeal under the Disputes clauses.

If, after termination of the Contractor's right to proceed, it is determined that the Contractor was not in default, or that the delay was excusable, the rights and obligations of the parties will be the same as if the termination had been issued for the convenience of Omnitrans.

Required Clauses for Awards Exceeding \$25,000

SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT*

- A. This Contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 49 CFR Part 29. As such, Contractor shall verify that none of the Contractor, its principals, as defined at 49 CFR 29.995, or affiliates, as defined at 49 CFR 29.905, are excluded or disqualified as defined at 49 CFR 29.940 and 29.945.
 - Contractor shall comply with 49 CFR 29, Subpart C and shall include the requirement to comply with 49 CFR 29, Subpart C in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into.
- B. By entering into this Contract, Contractor certifies that it shall comply with the requirements of 49 CFR 29, Subpart C throughout the period of this Contract. This certification is a material representation of fact relied upon by Omnitrans. If it is later determined that Contractor knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to remedies available to Omnitrans, the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment.

RR – Page 16 Updated: 11132018

Awards Exceeding \$100,000 by Statute

RR-011 COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL LOBBYING POLICY *

A. The Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment, 31 U.S.C. 1352, requires that Contractors who apply or bid for an award of \$100,000 or more shall file the certification required by 49 CFR Part 20, "New Restrictions on Lobbying," attached hereto as the certification entitled, "Certification of Compliance with Federal Lobbying Requirements." As set forth in the certifications, each tier of subcontractors shall certify to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier shall also disclose the name of any registrant under the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995 who has made lobbying contacts on its behalf with non-Federal funds with respect to that Federal contract, grant or award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Such disclosures shall be forwarded from tier to tier up to Omnitrans.

RR-012 CLEAN WATER AND CLEAN AIR REQUIREMENTS*

A. CLEAN WATER REQUIREMENTS

Contractor shall comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq., and all applicable clean water standards of the State of California and any state or local agency having jurisdiction. Contractor shall report each violation to Omnitrans. Omnitrans will, in turn, report each violation as required to FTA and the appropriate EPA Regional Office, and all other agencies having jurisdiction.

B. CLEAN AIR

Contractor shall comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 7401 et seq. and all applicable Clean Air Standards of the State of California or any state or local agency having jurisdiction. Contractor shall report each violation to Omnitrans. Omnitrans will, in turn, report each violation as required to FTA, the appropriate EPA Regional Office and all other agencies having jurisdiction.

C. Contractor shall include this Article in each subcontract exceeding \$100,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.

RR – Page 17 Updated: 11132018

RR-013 NON-CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES

Activities Not Involving Construction. The Recipient agrees to comply, and assures the compliance of each subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, and other participant at any tier of the Project, with the employee protection requirements for nonconstruction employees of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, as amended, 40 U.S.C. §§ 3701 *et seq.*, in particular with the wage and hour requirements of section 102 of that Act at 40 U.S.C. § 3702, and with implementing U.S. DOL regulations, "Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Governing Federally Financed and Assisted Construction (also Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Nonconstruction Contracts Subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act)," 29 C.F.R. Part 5.

Required Clauses for Awards Exceeding the Simplified Acquisition Threshold (\$150,000)

RR-014 BUY AMERICA *

A. Contractor shall comply with 49 U.S.C. 5323(j) and 49 CFR Part 661, which provide that Federal funds may not be obligated unless steel, iron, and manufactured products used in FTA-funded projects are produced in the United States, unless a waiver has been granted by FTA or the product is subject to a general waiver. General waivers are listed in 49 C.F.R. 661.7, and include final assembly in the United States for 15 passenger vans and 15 passenger wagons produced by Chrysler Corporation, and microcomputer equipment and software. Separate requirements for rolling stock are set out at 49 U.S.C. 5323(j)(2)(C) and 49 C.F.R. 661.11. Rolling stock must be assembled in the United States and have a 60 percent domestic content.

Omnitrans may investigate Contractor's, any Subcontractor's, and any Supplier's compliance with this Article. If an investigation is initiated, Contractor, Subcontractor, or Supplier shall document its compliance, in accordance with 49 CFR 661.15, and cooperate with the investigation. Contractor shall incorporate the Buy America conditions set forth in this Article in every subcontract or purchase order and shall enforce such conditions.

B. FTA requires a Buy America certification to be submitted with the proposal, or the proposal shall be considered non-responsive.

RR – Page 18 Updated: 11132018

RR-015

BREACHES AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 49 CFR Part 18 FTA Circular 4220.1F

Applicability to Contracts

All contracts in excess of \$100,000 shall contain provisions or conditions which will allow for administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instances where contractors violate or breach contract terms, and provide for such sanctions and penalties as may be appropriate. This may include provisions for bonding, penalties for late or inadequate performance, retained earnings, liquidated damages or other appropriate measures.

Flow Down

The Breaches and Dispute Resolutions requirements flow down to all tiers.

Disputes - Disputes arising in the performance of this Contract which are not resolved by agreement of the parties shall be decided in writing by the Omnitrans. This decision shall be final and conclusive unless within ten (10) days from the date of receipt of its copy, the Contractor mails or otherwise furnishes a written appeal to Omnitrans Construction Manager. In connection with any such appeal, the Contractor shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard and to offer evidence in support of its position. The decision of Omnitrans Project Manager shall be binding upon the Contractor and the Contractor shall abide be the decision.

Performance During Dispute - Unless otherwise directed by Omnitrans, Contractor shall continue performance under this Contract while matters in dispute are being resolved.

Claims for Damages - Should either party to the Contract suffer injury or damage to person or property because of any act or omission of the party or of any of his employees, agents or others for whose acts he is legally liable, a claim for damages therefore shall be made in writing to such other party within a reasonable time after the first observance of such injury of damage.

Remedies - Unless this contract provides otherwise, all claims, counterclaims, disputes and other matters in question between Omnitrans and the Contractor arising out of or relating to this agreement or its breach will be decided by arbitration if the parties mutually agree, or in a court of competent jurisdiction within the State in which Omnitrans is located.

Rights and Remedies - The duties and obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and remedies available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties, obligations, rights and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. No action or failure to act by Omnitrans, or Contractor shall constitute a waiver of any right or duty afforded any of them under the Contract, nor shall any such action or failure to act constitute an approval of or acquiescence in any breach thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in writing.

RR – Page 19 Updated: 11132018

Transport of Property or Persons

RR-016 CARGO PREFERENCE*

A. Applicability

The following Article applies to federally funded contracts involving equipment, materials, or commodities which may be transported by ocean vessels

B. USE OF UNITED STATES FLAG VESSELS

Contractor shall use privately owned United States-Flag commercial vessels to ship at least 50 percent of the gross tonnage (computed separately for dry bulk carriers, dry cargo liners, and tankers) involved, whenever shipping any equipment, material, or commodities pursuant to this Contract to the extent such vessels are available at fair and reasonable rates for United States-Flag commercial vessels.

Contractor shall furnish within 20 working days following the date of loading for shipments originating within the United States or within 30 working days following the date of leading for shipments originating outside the United States, a legible copy of a rated, "on-board" commercial ocean bill-of-lading in English for each shipment of cargo described in the preceding paragraph to the Division of National Cargo, Office of Market Development, Maritime Administration, Washington, DC 20590 and to Omnitrans (through Contractor in the case of a subcontractor's bill-of-lading.)

Contractor shall include these requirements in all subcontracts issued pursuant to this Contract when the subcontract may involve the transport of equipment, material, or commodities by ocean vessel.

RR-017 FLY AMERICA

A. Applicability

This Article applies to federally funded contracts if the contract or subcontracts may involve the international transportation of goods, equipment, or personnel by air.

B. Contractor agrees to comply with 49 U.S.C. 40118 (the "Fly America" Act) in accordance with the General Services Administration's regulations at 41 CFR Part 301-10, which provide that recipients and sub recipients of Federal funds and their contractors are required to use U.S. Flag air carriers for U.S Government-financed international air travel and transportation of their personal effects or property, to the extent such service is available, unless travel by foreign air carrier is a matter of necessity, as defined by the Fly America Act. Contractor shall submit, if a foreign air carrier was used, an appropriate certification or memorandum adequately explaining why service by a U.S. flag air carrier was not

RR – Page 20 Updated: 11132018 available or why it was necessary to use a foreign air carrier and shall, in any event, provide a certificate of compliance with the Fly America requirements. Contractor agrees to include the requirements of this section in all subcontracts that may involve international air transportation.

CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES

RR-018

DAVIS-BACON AND COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACTS

Background and Application

The Davis-Bacon and Copeland Acts are codified at 40 USC 3141, *et seq.* and 18 USC 874. The Acts apply to grantee construction contracts and subcontracts that "at least partly are financed by a loan or grant from the Federal Government." 40 USC 3145(a), 29 CFR 5.2(h), 49 CFR 18.36(i) (5). The Acts apply to any construction contract over \$2,000. 40 USC 3142(a), 29 CFR 5.5(a). 'Construction,' for purposes of the Acts, includes "actual construction, alteration and/or repair, including painting and decorating." 29 CFR 5.5(a). The requirements of both Acts are incorporated into a single clause (*see* 29 CFR 3.11) enumerated at 29 CFR 5.5(a) and reproduced below.

The clause language is drawn directly from 29 CFR 5.5(a) and any deviation from the model clause below should be coordinated with counsel to ensure the Acts' requirements are satisfied.

Clause Language

Davis-Bacon and Copeland Anti-Kickback Acts

(1) **Minimum wages** - (i) All laborers and mechanics employed or working upon the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), will be paid unconditionally and not less often than once a week, and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account (except such payroll deductions as are permitted by regulations issued by the Secretary of Labor under the Copeland Act (29 CFR part 3)), the full amount of wages and bona fide fringe benefits (or cash equivalents thereof) due at time of payment computed at rates not less than those contained in the wage determination of the Secretary of Labor which is attached hereto and made a part hereof, regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the contractor and such laborers and mechanics.

Contributions made or costs reasonably anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits under section 1(b)(2) of the Davis-Bacon Act on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid to such laborers or mechanics, subject to the provisions of paragraph (1)(iv) of this section; also, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period (but not less often than quarterly) under plans, funds, or programs which cover the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period. Such laborers and mechanics

RR – Page 21 Updated: 11132018

shall be paid the appropriate wage rate and fringe benefits on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed, without regard to skill, except as provided in 29 CFR Part 5.5(a)(4). Laborers or mechanics performing work in more than one classification may be compensated at the rate specified for each classification for the time actually worked therein: Provided that the employer's payroll records accurately set forth the time spent in each classification in which work is performed. The wage determination (including any additional classifications and wage rates conformed under paragraph (1)(ii) of this section) and the Davis-Bacon poster (WH-1321) shall be posted at all times by the contractor and its subcontractors at the site of the work in a prominent and accessible place where it can be easily seen by the workers.

- (ii)(A) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including helpers, which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits therefore only when the following criteria have been met:
- (1) Except with respect to helpers as defined as 29 CFR 5.2(n)(4), the work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and
- (2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and
- (3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination; and
- (4) With respect to helpers as defined in 29 CFR 5.2(n)(4), such a classification prevails in the area in which the work is performed.
- (B) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, U.S. Department of Labor, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (C) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination. Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs (a)(1)(ii) (B) or (C) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the classification

RR – Page 22 Updated: 11132018 under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.

- (iii) Whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly rate, the contractor shall either pay the benefit as stated in the wage determination or shall pay another bona fide fringe benefit or an hourly cash equivalent thereof.
- (iv) If the contractor does not make payments to a trustee or other third person, the contractor may consider as part of the wages of any laborer or mechanic the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing bona fide fringe benefits under a plan or program, Provided, That the Secretary of Labor has found, upon the written request of the contractor, that the applicable standards of the Davis-Bacon Act have been met. The Secretary of Labor may require the contractor to set aside in a separate account assets for the meeting of obligations under the plan or program.
- (v)(A) The contracting officer shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics which is not listed in the wage determination and which is to be employed under the contract shall be classified in conformance with the wage determination. The contracting officer shall approve an additional classification and wage rate and fringe benefits only when the following criteria have been met:
- (1) The work to be performed by the classification requested is not performed by a classification in the wage determination; and
- (2) The classification is utilized in the area by the construction industry; and
- (3) The proposed wage rate, including any bona fide fringe benefits, bears a reasonable relationship to the wage rates contained in the wage determination.
- (B) If the contractor and the laborers and mechanics to be employed in the classification (if known), or their representatives, and the contracting officer agree on the classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits where appropriate), a report of the action taken shall be sent by the contracting officer to the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division, Employment Standards Administration, Washington, DC 20210. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will approve, modify, or disapprove every additional classification action within 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.
- (C) In the event the contractor, the laborers or mechanics to be employed in the classification or their representatives, and the contracting officer do not agree on the proposed classification and wage rate (including the amount designated for fringe benefits, where appropriate), the contracting officer shall refer the questions, including the views of all interested parties and the recommendation of the contracting officer, to the Administrator for determination. The Administrator, or an authorized representative, will issue a determination with 30 days of receipt and so advise the contracting officer or will notify the contracting officer within the 30-day period that additional time is necessary.

RR – Page 23 Updated: 11132018

- (D) The wage rate (including fringe benefits where appropriate) determined pursuant to paragraphs (a) (1) (v) (B) or (C) of this section, shall be paid to all workers performing work in the Classification under this contract from the first day on which work is performed in the classification.
- (2) Withholding Omnitrans shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld from the contractor under this contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to Davis-Bacon prevailing wage requirements, which is held by the same prime contractor, so much of the accrued payments or advances as may be considered necessary to pay laborers and mechanics, including apprentices, trainees, and helpers, employed by the contractor or any subcontractor the full amount of wages required by the contract. In the event of failure to pay any laborer or mechanic, including any apprentice, trainee, or helper, employed or working on the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937 or under the Housing Act of 1949 in the construction or development of the project), all or part of the wages required by the contract, Omnitrans may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds until such violations have ceased.
- (3) Payrolls and basic records (i) Payrolls and basic records relating thereto shall be maintained by the contractor during the course of the work and preserved for a period of three years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work (or under the United States Housing Act of 1937, or under the Housing Act of 1949, in the construction or development of the project). Such records shall contain the name, address, and social security number of each such worker, his or her correct classification, hourly rates of wages paid (including rates of contributions or costs anticipated for bona fide fringe benefits or cash equivalents thereof of the types described in section 1(b) (2) (B) of the Davis-Bacon Act), daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid. Whenever the Secretary of Labor has found under 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1)(iv) that the wages of any laborer or mechanic include the amount of any costs reasonably anticipated in providing benefits under a plan or program described in section 1(b)(2)(B) of the Davis-Bacon Act, the contractor shall maintain records which show that the commitment to provide such benefits is enforceable, that the plan or program is financially responsible, and that the plan or program has been communicated in writing to the laborers or mechanics affected, and records which show the costs anticipated or the actual cost incurred in providing such benefits. Contractors employing apprentices or trainees under approved programs shall maintain written evidence of the registration of apprenticeship programs and certification of trainee programs, the registration of the apprentices and trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in the applicable programs.
- (ii)(A) The contractor shall submit weekly for each week in which any contract work is performed a copy of all payrolls to the Omnitrans for transmission to the Federal Transit Administration. The payrolls submitted shall set out accurately and completely all of the information required to be maintained under section 5.5(a) (3) (i) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5. This information may be submitted in any form desired. Optional Form WH-347 is available for this purpose and may be purchased from the Superintendent of Documents (Federal Stock Number 029-005-00014-1), U.S.

RR – Page 24 Updated: 11132018 Government Printing Office, Washington, DC 20402. The prime contractor is responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls by all subcontractors.

- (B) Each payroll submitted shall be accompanied by a "Statement of Compliance," signed by the contractor or subcontractor or his or her agent who pays or supervises the payment of the persons employed under the contract and shall certify the following:
- (1) That the payroll for the payroll period contains the information required to be maintained under section 5.5(a)(3)(i) of Regulations, 29 CFR part 5 and that such information is correct and complete;
- (2) That each laborer or mechanic (including each helper, apprentice, and trainee) employed on the contract during the payroll period has been paid the full weekly wages earned, without rebate, either directly or indirectly, and that no deductions have been made either directly or indirectly from the full wages earned, other than permissible deductions as set forth in Regulations, 29 CFR part 3;
- (3) That each laborer or mechanic has been paid not less than the applicable wage rates and fringe benefits or cash equivalents for the classification of work performed, as specified in the applicable wage determination incorporated into the contract.
- (C) The weekly submission of a properly executed certification set forth on the reverse side of Optional Form WH-347 shall satisfy the requirement for submission of the "Statement of Compliance" required by paragraph (a)(3)(ii)(B) of this section.
- (D) The falsification of any of the above certifications may subject the contractor or subcontractor to civil or criminal prosecution under section 1001 of title 18 and section 231 of title 31 of the United States Code.
- (iii) The contractor or subcontractor shall make the records required under paragraph (a)(3)(i) of this section available for inspection, copying, or transcription by authorized representatives of the Federal Transit Administration or the Department of Labor, and shall permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. If the contractor or subcontractor fails to submit the required records or to make them available, the Federal agency may, after written notice to the contractor, sponsor, applicant, or owner, take such action as may be necessary to cause the suspension of any further payment, advance, or guarantee of funds. Furthermore, failure to submit the required records upon request or to make such records available may be grounds for debarment action pursuant to 29 CFR 5.12.
- (4) **Apprentices and trainees** (i) <u>Apprentices</u> Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they performed when they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program registered with the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or with a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Bureau, or if a person is employed in his or her first 90 days of probationary employment as an apprentice in such an apprenticeship program, who is not individually registered in the program, but who has been certified by the

RR – Page 25 Updated: 11132018

Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training or a State Apprenticeship Agency (where appropriate) to be eligible for probationary employment as an apprentice. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen on the job site in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the contractor as to the entire work force under the registered program. Any worker listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate, who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any apprentice performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. Where a contractor is performing construction on a project in a locality other than that in which its program is registered, the ratios and wage rates (expressed in percentages of the journeyman's hourly rate) specified in the contractor's or subcontractors registered program shall be observed. Every apprentice must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the registered program for the apprentice's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeymen hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Apprentices shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the apprenticeship program. If the apprenticeship program does not specify fringe benefits, apprentices must be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination for the applicable classification. If the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division of the U.S. Department of Labor determines that a different practice prevails for the applicable apprentice classification, fringes shall be paid in accordance with that determination. In the event the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or a State Apprenticeship Agency recognized by the Bureau, withdraws approval of an apprenticeship program, the contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize apprentices at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

(ii) Trainees - Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.16, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to and individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration. The ratio of trainees to journeymen on the job site shall not be greater than permitted under the plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for the trainee's level of progress, expressed as a percentage of the journeyman hourly rate specified in the applicable wage determination. Trainees shall be paid fringe benefits in accordance with the provisions of the trainee program. If the trainee program does not mention fringe benefits, trainees shall be paid the full amount of fringe benefits listed on the wage determination unless the Administrator of the Wage and Hour Division determines that there is an apprenticeship program associated with the corresponding journeyman wage rate on the wage determination which provides for less than full fringe benefits for apprentices. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate that is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Employment and Training Administration shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the classification of work actually performed. In addition, any trainee performing work on the job site in excess of the ratio permitted under the registered program shall be paid not less than the applicable wage rate on the wage determination for the work actually performed. In the event the Employment and Training Administration withdraws approval of a training program, the contractor will no longer be

> RR – Page 26 Updated: 11132018

permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.

- (iii) <u>Equal employment opportunity</u> The utilization of apprentices, trainees and journeymen under this part shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended and 29 CFR part 30.
- (5) Compliance with Copeland Act requirements The contractor shall comply with the requirements of 29 CFR part 3, which are incorporated by reference in this contract.
- (6) **Subcontracts** The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses contained in 29 CFR 5.5(a)(1) through (10) and such other clauses as the Federal Transit Administration may by appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5.
- (7) Contract termination: debarment A breach of the contract clauses in 29 CFR 5.5 may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and a subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR 5.12.
- (8) Compliance with Davis-Bacon and Related Act requirements All rulings and interpretations of the Davis-Bacon and Related Acts contained in 29 CFR parts 1, 3, and 5 are herein incorporated by reference in this contract.
- (9) **Disputes concerning labor standards** Disputes arising out of the labor standards provisions of this contract shall not be subject to the general disputes clause of this contract. Such disputes shall be resolved in accordance with the procedures of the Department of Labor set forth in 29 CFR parts 5, 6, and 7. Disputes within the meaning of this clause include disputes between the contractor (or any of its subcontractors) and the contracting agency, the U.S. Department of Labor, or the employees or their representatives.
- (10) Certification of eligibility (i) By entering into this contract, the contractor certifies that neither it (nor he or she) nor any person or firm who has an interest in the contractor's firm is a person or firm ineligible to be awarded Government contracts by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
- (ii) No part of this contract shall be subcontracted to any person or firm ineligible for award of a Government contract by virtue of section 3(a) of the Davis-Bacon Act or 29 CFR 5.12(a)(1).
- (iii) The penalty for making false statements is prescribed in the U.S. Criminal Code, 18 U.S.C. 1001.

RR – Page 27 Updated: 11132018

RR-019 CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT *

A. Applicability

This Article applies to federally funded construction contracts over \$2,000 (including ferry vessels), rolling stock purchases over \$2,500 and to operations/management contracts over \$2,500 (except transportation services)

- B. Pursuant to the Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Non-construction Contracts subject to the Federal Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, 40 U.S.C.A. § 327 through 332 as implemented by U.S. Department of Labor regulations, 29 CFR 5.5 (b) and (c) Contractor and Subcontractor's contracting for any part of the Contract work shall comply with the following:
 - 1. **Overtime requirements** Neither Contractor nor any Subcontractor contracting for any part of the Contract work that requires or involves the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.
 - 2. Violation; liability for unpaid wages; liquidated damages In the event of any violation of the Article set forth in paragraph (1) of this Article Contractor and any Subcontractor responsible therefore shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, Contractor and Subcontractor shall be liable to the United States for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this Article, in the sum of ten dollars (\$10) for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (1) of this Article.
 - 3. Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages Omnitrans shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any monies payable on account of work performed by Contractor or Subcontractor under the Contract or any other Federal contract with Contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by Contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of Contractor or Subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (2) of this Article.

RR – Page 28 Updated: 11132018

- 4. **Subcontracts** Contractor or Subcontractor shall insert this Article in any Subcontracts and also an Article requiring the Subcontractors to include this Article in any lower tier Subcontracts. Contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any Subcontractor or lower tier Subcontractor with this Article.
- 5. **Payrolls and basic records** The records to be maintained hereinabove shall be made available by Contractor or Subcontractor for inspection, copying, or transcription by Omnitrans and U.S. Dept. of Labor. Contractor and Subcontractor shall maintain payrolls and basic records during the course of the work and shall preserve them for a period of three (3) years from the completion of the Contract for all laborers and mechanics, including guards and watchmen, working on the Contract. Such records shall contain the name and address of each such employee, social security number, correct classifications, hourly rates of wages paid, daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid.

RR-020 BONDING REQUIREMENTS

Applicability to Contracts

For those construction or facility improvement contracts or subcontracts exceeding \$100,000, FTA may accept the bonding policy and requirements of the recipient, provided that they meet the minimum requirements for construction contracts as follows:

- A. A bid guarantee from each bidder equivalent to five (5) percent of the bid price. The "bid guarantees" shall consist of a firm commitment and may be in any of the following forms:

 (a) cash; (b) cashier's check payment to Omnitrans; (c) a certified check payable to the city; or (d) a bidder's bond executed by an admitted surety insurer. Such as a bid bond, certifies check, or other negotiable instrument accompanying a bid as assurance that the bidder will, upon acceptance of his bid, execute such contractual documents as may be required within the time specified.
- B. A performance bond on the part of the Contractor for 100 percent of the contract price. A "performance bond" is one executed in connection with a contract to secure fulfillment of all the contractor's obligations under such contract.
- C. A payment bond on the part of the Contractor for 100 percent of the contract price. A "payment bond" is one executed in connection with a contract to assure payment, as required by law, of all persons supplying labor and material in the execution of the work provided for in the contract.

RR – Page 29 Updated: 11132018

RR-021

SEISMIC SAFETY REQUIREMENTS 42 U.S.C. 7701 et seq. 49 CFR Part 41

Applicability to Contracts

The Seismic Safety requirements apply only to contracts for the construction of new buildings or additions to existing buildings.

Flow Down

The Seismic Safety requirements flow down from FTA recipients and subrecipients to first tier contractors to assure compliance, with the applicable building standards for Seismic Safety, including the work performed by all subcontractors.

Model Clauses/Language

The regulations do not provide suggested language for third-party contract clauses. The following language has been developed by FTA.

Seismic Safety - The contractor agrees that any new building or addition to an existing building will be designed and constructed in accordance with the standards for Seismic Safety required in Department of Transportation Seismic Safety Regulations 49 CFR Part 41 and will certify to compliance to the extent required by the regulation. The contractor also agrees to ensure that all work performed under this contract including work performed by a subcontractor is in compliance with the standards required by the Seismic Safety Regulations and the certification of compliance issued on the project.

NON-CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES

Activities Not Involving Construction. The Recipient agrees to comply, and assures the compliance of each subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, and other participant at any tier of the Project, with the employee protection requirements for nonconstruction employees of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, as amended, 40 U.S.C. §§ 3701 *et seq.*, in particular with the wage and hour requirements of section 102 of that Act at 40 U.S.C. § 3702, and with implementing U.S. DOL regulations, "Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Contracts Governing Federally Financed and Assisted Construction (also Labor Standards Provisions Applicable to Nonconstruction Contracts Subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act)," 29 C.F.R. Part 5.

RR – Page 30 Updated: 11132018

TRANSIT OPERATIONS

RR-022 TRANSIT EMPLOYEE PROTECTIVE ARRANGEMENTS *

A. Applicability

Subject to the limitations in Sections B, C, and D, this Article applies if this Contract involves transit operations to be performed by employees of a Contractor recognized by FTA to be a transit operator, and if FTA has determined that it is financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance.

B. General Transit Employee Protective Requirements

If FTA has determined that this Contract involves transit operations financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance (other than Federal assistance authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5310(a)(2) or 49 U.S.C. § 5311), and if the U.S. Secretary of Transportation has determined that the employee protective requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b) are necessary or appropriate for Omnitrans under this Contract, then Contractor shall perform the transit operations work under the Contract in compliance with terms and conditions, (a) determined by the U.S. Secretary of Labor to meet the employee protective requirements of 49 U.S.C. A 5333(b), and U.S. Department of Labor ("U. S. DOL") guidelines at 29 C.F.R. Part 215, and any amendments thereto, and (b) stated in a U. S. DOL letter of certification to FTA, the date of which is set forth in the applicable Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement with Omnitrans, and which is incorporated in the Form of Contract as a Contract Document entitled "U. S. DOL Certification".

C. Transit Employee Protective Requirements for Projects Authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5310(a) (2) for Elderly Individuals and Individuals with Disabilities

If FTA has determined that this Contract involves transit operations financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5310(a)(2), and if the U.S. Secretary of Transportation has determined or determines in the future that the employee protective requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b) are necessary or appropriate for Omnitrans under the Contract, Contractor shall perform the Work in compliance with the terms and conditions determined, (a) by the U.S. Secretary of Labor to meet the requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5333(b), U.S. DOL guidelines at 29 C.F.R. Part 215, and any amendments thereto, and (b) stated in the U.S. DOL's letter of certification to FTA, the date of which is set forth in the applicable Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement with Omnitrans, and which is incorporated in the Form of Contract as a Contract Document entitled "U. S. DOL Certification".

RR – Page 31 Updated: 11132018

D. Transit Employee Protective Requirements for Projects Authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5311 in Nonurbanized Areas

If FTA has determined that this Contract involves transit operations financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5311, Contractor shall comply with the terms and conditions of the Special Warranty for the Nonurbanized Area Program agreed to by the U.S. Secretaries of Transportation and Labor, dated May 31, 1979, and the procedures implemented by U.S. DOL or any revision thereto.

E. **Indemnity**

Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless Omnitrans, and its Board Members, employees and agents from and against all liability, claims, demands actions, costs, judgments, penalties, damages, losses and expenses arising out of or in connection with Contractor's failure to comply with or failure to carry out its responsibilities under all applicable provisions of Sections B, C and D of this Article.

CHARTER BUS OPERATION

Charter Service Operations.

The Recipient agrees that neither it nor any public transportation operator performing work in connection with a Project financed under 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 or under 23 U.S.C. §§ 133 or 142, will engage in charter service operations, except as authorized by 49 U.S.C. § 5323(d) and FTA regulations, "Charter Service," 49 C.F.R. Part 604, and any Charter Service regulations or FTA directives that may be issued, except to the extent that FTA determines otherwise in writing. The Charter Service Agreement the Recipient has selected in its latest annual Certifications and Assurances is incorporated by reference and made part of the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement for the Project. If the Recipient has failed to select the Charter Service Agreement in its latest annual Certifications and Assurances to FTA and does conduct charter service operations prohibited by FTA's Charter Service regulations, the Recipient understands and agrees that: (1) the requirements of FTA's Charter Service regulations and any amendments thereto will apply to any charter service it or its subrecipients, lessees, third party contractors, or other participants in the Project provide; (2) the definitions of FTA's Charter Service regulations will apply to the Recipient's charter operations, and (3) a pattern of violations of FTA's Charter Service regulations may require corrective measures and imposition of remedies, including barring the Recipient, subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, or other participant in the Project operating public transportation under the Project from receiving Federal financial assistance from FTA, or withholding an amount of Federal assistance as set forth in Appendix D to FTA's Charter Service regulations.

> RR – Page 32 Updated: 11132018

SCHOOL BUS OPERATIONS

The Recipient agrees that neither it nor any public transportation operator performing work in connection with a Project financed under 49 U.S.C. chapter 53 or under 23 U.S.C. §§ 133 or 142, will engage in school transportation operations for the transportation of students or school personnel exclusively in competition with private school transportation operators, except as authorized by 49 U.S.C. §§ 5323(f) or (g), as applicable, and FTA regulations, "School Bus Operations," 49 C.F.R. Part 605 to the extent consistent with 49 U.S.C. §§ 5323(f) or (g), in accordance with any School Transportation Operations regulations or FTA directives that may be issued at a later date, except to the extent that FTA determines otherwise in writing. The School Transportation Operations Agreement the Recipient has selected in its latest annual Certifications and Assurances is incorporated by reference and made part of the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement for the Project. If the Recipient has failed to select the School Transportation Agreement in its latest annual Certifications and Assurances to FTA and does conduct school transportation operations prohibited by FTA's School Bus Operations regulations, 49 C.F.R. Part 605, to the extent those regulations are consistent with 49 U.S.C. §§ 5323(f) or (g), the Recipient understands and agrees that: (1) the requirements of FTA's School Bus Operations regulations, 49 C.F.R. Part 605, to the extent consistent with 49 U.S.C. §§ 5323(f) or (g), will apply to any school transportation service it or its subrecipients, lessees, third party contractor, or other participants in the project provide, (2) the definitions of FTA's School Bus Operations regulations will apply to the Recipient's school transportation operations, and (3) if there is a violation of FTA's School Bus Operations regulations, to the extent consistent with 49 U.S.C. §§ 5323(f) or (g), FTA will bar the Recipient, subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, or other Project participant operating public transportation that has violated FTA's School Bus Operations regulations, 49 C.F.R. Part 605, to the extent consistent with 49 U.S.C. §§ 5323(f) or (g), from receiving Federal transit assistance in an amount FTA considers appropriate.

RR-023 ALCOHOL AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE PROGRAM *

A. Applicability

This Article applies to federally funded contracts for transit operations.

B. FTA Prevention of Alcohol Misuse and Prohibited Drug Use in Transit Operations Regulations

Contractor and its Subcontractors shall comply with the FTA anti-drug and alcohol misuse regulations (49 CFR Part 655) and the U.S. Department of Transportation (DOT) Procedures for Transportation Workplace Drug and Alcohol Testing Programs (49 CFR Part 40) to the full extent that they are, by their terms, applicable to Contractor and its Subcontractors. The regulations apply to all "contractors" that have "covered employees" that perform "safety sensitive functions" as those terms are defined in the regulations.

RR – Page 33 Updated: 11132018

C. Certificate of Compliance

The CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH 49 CFR PARTS 655, PREVENTION OF ALCOHOL MISUSE AND PROHIBITED DRUG USE IN TRANSIT, submitted by Contractor prior to award, is incorporated as part of the Contract Documents.

D. Drug and Alcohol Testing Program

In the event that any part of the Work under this Contract falls within the scope of 49 CFR Part 655, Contractor, and its Subcontractors (as applicable), shall establish and implement a drug and alcohol testing program that complies with 49 CFR Parts 653 and 654, produce any documentation necessary to establish its compliance with Parts 653 and 654, and permit any authorized representative of the United States Department of Transportation or its operating administrations, the State Oversight Agency of California, or Omnitrans, to inspect the facilities and records associated with the implementation of the drug and alcohol testing program as required under 49 CFR Parts 653 and 654 and review the testing process. Contractor shall annually certify its compliance with Parts 653 and 65. To certify compliance the contractor shall use the "Substance Abuse Certifications" in the "Annual List of Certifications and Assurances for Federal Transit Administration Grants and Cooperative Agreements," which is published annually in the Federal Register.

E. Alcohol and Drug Free Workplace Program

In addition to the above, for Work performed on Omnitrans property, Contractor shall provide an Alcohol and Drug-free Workplace Program in accordance with FTA requirements found at http://transit-safety.fta.dot.gov/DrugAndAlcohol/default.asp

PLANNING, RESEARCH, DEVELOPMENT AND DEMONSTRATION PROJECTS

PATENT RIGHTS

a. General. If any invention, improvement, or discovery of the Recipient or of any subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, or other participant at any tier of the Project is conceived or first actually reduced to practice in the course of or under the Project, and that invention, improvement, or discovery is patentable under the laws of the United States of America or any foreign country, the Recipient agrees to notify FTA immediately and provide a detailed report in a format satisfactory to FTA.

b. Federal Rights. The Recipient agrees that its rights and responsibilities, and those of each

RR – Page 34 Updated: 11132018 subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, or other participant at any tier of the Project, pertaining to that invention, improvement, or discovery will be determined in accordance with applicable Federal laws and regulations, including any waiver thereof. Absent a determination in writing to the contrary by the Federal Government, the Recipient agrees to transmit to FTA those rights due the Federal Government in any invention, improvement, or discovery resulting from that subagreement, third party contract, third party subcontract, or arrangement, as specified in 35 U.S.C. §§ 200 et seq., and U.S. Department of Commerce regulations, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms Under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements," 37 C.F.R. Part 401, irrespective of the status of the Recipient, subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor or other participant in the Project (i.e., a large business, small business, State government, State instrumentality, local government, Indian tribe, nonprofit organization, institution of higher education, or individual).

c. License Fees and Royalties. FTA considers income earned from license fees and royalties for patents, patent applications, and inventions produced under the Project to be program income. Except to the extent FTA determines otherwise in writing, as provided in 49 C.F.R. Parts 18 and 19, the Recipient has no obligation to the Federal Government with respect to that program income, apart from compliance with 35 U.S.C. §§ 200 et seq., which applies to patent rights developed under a research project.

RIGHTS IN DATA AND COPYRIGHTS

a. Definition. The term "subject data," as used in this Section 18 of this Master Agreement means recorded information, whether or not copyrighted, that is delivered or specified to be delivered under the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement for the Project. Examples include, but are not limited to: computer software, standards, specifications, engineering drawings and associated lists, process sheets, manuals, technical reports, catalog item identifications, and related information. "Subject data" do not include financial reports, cost analyses, or other similar information used for Project administration.

b. General. The following restrictions apply to all subject data first produced in the performance of the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement for the Project:

- (1) Except for its own internal use, the Recipient may not publish or reproduce subject data in whole or in part, or in any manner or form, nor may the Recipient authorize others to do so, without the prior written consent of the Federal Government, unless the Federal Government has previously released or approved the release of such data to the public.
- (2) The restrictions on publication of Paragraph 18.b(1) of this Master Agreement, however, do not apply to a Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement with an institution of higher learning.
- c. Federal Rights in Data and Copyrights. The Recipient agrees to provide to the Federal Government a royalty-free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable license to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use, and to authorize others to use, for Federal Government purposes the subject data described in this Subsection 18.c of this Master Agreement. As used herein, "for Federal Government purposes," means use only for the direct purposes of the Federal Government. Without the copyright owner's

RR – Page 35 Updated: 11132018 consent, the Federal Government may not provide or otherwise extend to other parties the Federal Government's license to:

- (1) Any subject data developed under the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement for the Project, or under a subagreement, lease, third party contract or other arrangement at any tier of the Project, supported with Federal assistance derived from the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement for the Project, whether or not a copyright has been obtained; and
- (2) Any rights of copyright to which a Recipient, subrecipient, lessee, third party contractor, or other participant at any tier of the Project purchases ownership using Federal assistance.
- d. Special Federal Rights in Data for Research, Development, Demonstration, and Special Studies Projects. In general, FTA's purpose in providing Federal assistance for a research, development, demonstration, or special studies Project is to increase transportation knowledge, rather than limit the benefits of the Project to Project participants. Therefore, when the Project is completed, the Recipient agrees to provide a Project report that FTA may publish or make available for publication on the Internet. In addition, the Recipient agrees to provide other reports pertaining to the Project that FTA may request. The Recipient agrees to identify clearly any specific confidential, privileged, or proprietary information it submits to FTA. In addition, except to the extent that FTA determines otherwise in writing, the Recipient of Federal assistance to support a research, development, demonstration, or a special studies Project agrees that, in addition to the rights in data and copyrights that it must provide to the Federal Government as set forth in Subsection 18.c of this Master Agreement, FTA may make available to any FTA recipient, subrecipient, third party contractor, third party subcontractor or other participant at any tier of the Project, either FTA's license in the copyright to the subject data or a copy of the subject data. If the Project is not completed for any reason whatsoever, all data developed under the Project shall become subject data as defined in Subsection 18.a of this Master Agreement and shall be delivered as the Federal Government may direct. This Subsection 18.d, however, does not apply to adaptations of automatic data processing equipment or programs for the Recipient's use when the costs thereof are financed with Federal assistance through an FTA capital program.
- e. License Fees and Royalties. FTA considers income earned from license fees and royalties for copyrighted material, or trademarks produced under the Project to be program income. Except to the extent FTA determines otherwise in writing, as provided in 49 C.F.R. Parts 18 and 19, the Recipient has no obligation to the Federal Government with respect to that program income, apart from compliance with 35 U.S.C. §§ 200 et seq., which applies to patent rights developed under a research project.
- f. Hold Harmless. Except as prohibited or otherwise limited by State law or except to the extent that FTA determines otherwise in writing, upon request by the Federal Government, the Recipient agrees to indemnify, save, and hold harmless the Federal Government and its officers, agents, and employees acting within the scope of their official duties against any liability, including costs and expenses, resulting from any willful or intentional violation by the Recipient of proprietary rights, copyrights, or right of privacy, arising out of the publication, translation, reproduction, delivery, use, or disposition of any data furnished under the Project. The Recipient shall not be required to indemnify the Federal Government for any such liability caused by the wrongful acts of Federal employees or agents.

RR – Page 36 Updated: 11132018

- g. Restrictions on Access to Patent Rights. Nothing in Section 18 of this Master Agreement pertaining to rights in data shall either imply a license to the Federal Government under any patent or be construed to affect the scope of any license or other right otherwise granted to the Federal Government under any patent.
- h. Data Developed Without Federal Funding or Support. In connection with the Project, the Recipient may find it necessary to provide data to FTA developed without any Federal funding or support by the Federal Government. The requirements of Subsections 18.b, 18.c, and 18.d of this Master Agreement do not apply to data developed without Federal funding or support by the Federal Government, even though that data may have been used in connection with the Project. Nevertheless, the Recipient understands and agrees that the Federal Government will not be able to protect data from unauthorized disclosure unless that data is clearly marked "Proprietary" or "Confidential."
- i. Requirements to Release Data. To the extent required by U.S. DOT regulations, "Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Agreements with Institutions of Higher Education, Hospitals, and Other Non-Profit Organizations," at 49 C.F.R. § 19.36(d), or other applicable Federal laws or Federal regulations, the Recipient understands and agrees that the data and information it submits to the Federal Government may be required to be released in accordance with the Freedom of Information Act (or another Federal law or Federal regulation providing access to such records).

SPECIAL NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS FOR STATES

SPECIAL NOTIFICATION REQUIREMENTS FOR STATES

To the extent required by Federal law, the State agrees that, in administering any Federal assistance Program or Project supported by the Grant Agreement or Cooperative Agreement, any request for proposals, solicitation, grant application, form, notification, press release, or other publication involving the distribution of FTA assistance for the Program or the Project shall indicate that FTA is the Federal agency that is providing the Federal assistance, the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number of the program from which the Federal assistance is authorized, as may be applicable, and the amount of Federal assistance FTA provided.

RR – Page 37 Updated: 11132018

MISCELLANEOUS SPECIAL REQUIREMENTS

RR-024 ENERGY CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS

A. Applicability

This Article applies to all federally funded contracts.

B. Contractor shall comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the state energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act 42 USC §6321 et seq.

RR-025 RECYCLED PRODUCTS

A. Applicability

This Article applies to federally funded operations/management, construction, or materials & supplies contracts for items designated by the Environmental Protection Agency, when procuring \$10,000 or more per year.

- B. To the extent practicable and economically feasible, a competitive preference shall be given for products and services that conserve natural resources and protect the environment and are energy efficient.
- C. The Contractor agrees to comply with all the requirements of Section 6002 of the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), as amended (42 U.S.C. 6962), including but not limited to the regulatory provisions of 40 CFR Part 247, and Executive Order 12873, as they apply to the procurement of the items designated in Subpart B of 40 CFR Part 247.

NATIONAL INTELLIGENT TRANSPORTATION SYSTEMS ARCHITECTURE AND STANDARDS

To the extent applicable, the Recipient agrees to conform to the National Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) Architecture and Standards as required by SAFETEA-LU § 5307(c), 23 U.S.C. § 512 note, and follow the provisions of FTA Notice, "FTA National ITS Architecture Policy on Transit Projects," 66 Fed. Reg. 1455 et seq., January 8, 2001, and any other implementing directives FTA may issue at a later date, except to the extent FTA determines otherwise in writing.

RR – Page 38 Updated: 11132018

RR-026 ADA ACCESS

A. Applicability

This Article applies to federally funded Architect & Engineer, Operations/Management, Rolling Stock Purchase, and Construction contracts

B. Access Requirements for Persons with Disabilities

Contractor shall comply with:

- 1. The requirements of 49 U.S.C. § 5301(d), which states the Federal policy that elderly persons and persons with disabilities have the same right as other persons to use mass transportation service and facilities, and that special efforts shall be made in planning and designing those services and facilities to implement that policy;
- 2. All applicable requirements of section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended, 29 U.S.C. § 794, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of handicaps;
- 3. The Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (ADA), as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 12101 et seq., which requires that accessible facilities and services be made available to persons with disabilities, including any subsequent amendments to that Act;
- 4. The Architectural Barriers Act of 1968, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §§ 4151 et seq., which requires that buildings and public accommodations be accessible to persons with disabilities, including any subsequent amendments to that Act; and
- 5. All applicable requirements of the following regulations and any subsequent amendments thereto:
 - (1) U.S. DOT regulations, "Transportation Services for Individuals with Disabilities (ADA)," 49 C.F.R. Part 37;
 - (2) U.S. DOT regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Handicap in Programs and Activities Receiving or Benefiting from Federal Financial Assistance," 49 C.F.R. Part 27;
 - (3) Joint U.S. Architectural and Transportation Barriers Compliance Board (U.S. ATBCB)/U.S. DOT regulations, "Americans With Disabilities (ADA) Accessibility Specifications for Transportation Vehicles," 36 C.F.R. Part 1192 and 49 C.F.R. Part 38;

RR – Page 39 Updated: 11132018

- (4) U.S. DOJ regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability in State and Local Government Services," 28 C.F.R. Part 35;
- (5) U.S. DOJ regulations, "Nondiscrimination on the Basis of Disability by Public Accommodations and in Commercial Facilities," 28 C.F.R. Part 36;
- (6) U.S. General Services Administration (U.S. GSA) regulations, "Accommodations for the Physically Handicapped," 41 C.F.R. Subpart 101-19;
- (7) U.S. Equal Employment Opportunity Commission, "Regulations to Implement the Equal Employment Provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act," 29 C.F.R. Part 1630;
- (8) U.S. Federal Communications Commission regulations, "Telecommunications Relay Services and Related Customer Premises Equipment for the Hearing and Speech Disabled," 47 C.F.R. Part 64, Subpart F; and
- (9) U.S. ATBCB regulations, "Electronic and Information Technology Accessibility Standards," 36 C.F.R. Part 1194; and
- (10) FTA regulations, "Transportation for Elderly and Handicapped Persons," 49 C.F.R. Part 609;
- (11) Any implementing requirements FTA may issue.

NOT INCLUDED IN UPDATED POLICY

RR-01 ADMINISTRATIVE CODE *

A. Applicability

This Article applies to all contracts.

B. Compliance with §§1090 et. seq. and §§87100 et. seq. of the California Government Code

Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of §§1090 et. seq. and §§87100 et. seq. of the California Government Code. Without reducing or affecting its obligation to comply with any and all of said provisions, Contractor specifically covenants:

RR – Page 40 Updated: 11132018

- 1. Contractor shall not cause or permit any member, officer, or employee of Omnitrans to have any financial interest in the Contract;
- 2. Contractor shall not enter into any Subcontract involving services or property with a person or business prohibited from transacting such business with Omnitrans;
- 3. Contractor warrants and represents that to its knowledge no Board member, officer, or employee of Omnitrans has any interest, whether contractual, non-contractual, financial or otherwise, in this Contract, or in the business or any other contract or transaction of the Contractor or any Subcontractor and that if any such interest comes to Contractor's knowledge at any time, Contractor shall make a full and complete disclosure of all such information in writing to Omnitrans.

C. Campaign Contributions

Neither Contractor nor its Agents shall give or offer to give any campaign contribution to any member of Omnitrans Board of Directors in violation of the California Government Code §§84300 et seq., or of the Administrative Code. Contractor shall submit a Certification of Campaign Contributions with all COs of two hundred thousand dollars (\$200,000) or more.

RR-02 DISCRIMINATION *

A. Applicability

This Article applies to all contracts.

B. In connection with the performance of Work provided for under this Contract, Contractor agrees that it will not, on the grounds of race, religious creed, color, national origin, ancestry, physical disability, medical condition, marital status, sex, sexual orientation, or age, discriminate or permit discrimination against any person or group of persons in any manner prohibited by Federal, State or local laws.

RR-03 WHISTLEBLOWER REQUIREMENTS *

A. Applicability

This Article applies to all contracts.

B. Contractor shall not adopt any rule, regulation, or policy preventing an employee from disclosing information to a government or law enforcement agency, where the employee believes the information discloses violation or noncompliance with a state or Federal regulation; nor shall Contractor retaliate against an employee for taking such actions as set forth in the t. seq.

RR – Page 41 Updated: 11132018

RR-04 PUBLIC RECORDS ACT *

A. Applicability

This Article applies to all contracts.

- B. Except as otherwise provided herein, all records, documents, drawings, plans, specifications, and all other information relating to the conduct of Omnitrans business, including all information and documents submitted by Contractor ("Records"), shall become the exclusive property of Omnitrans and shall be deemed public records. Said Records are subject to the provisions of the California Public Records Act (Government Code §6250 et. seq.). Omnitrans use and disclosure of its records are governed by this Act. Omnitrans will use its best efforts to inform the Contractor of any request for any financial records or documents marked "Trade Secret", "Confidential" or "Proprietary" provided by Contractor to Omnitrans. Omnitrans will not advise as to the nature or content of documents entitled to protection from disclosure under the California Public Records Act.
- C. In the event of litigation concerning the disclosure of any Records, Omnitrans sole involvement will be as a stakeholder, retaining the Records until otherwise ordered by a court. The submitting party, at its sole expense and risk, shall be fully responsible for any and all fees for prosecuting or defending any action concerning the Records and shall indemnify and hold Omnitrans harmless from all costs and expenses including attorney's fees in connection with any such action.

RR-05 PRIVACY ACT - 5 U.S.C. 552

Applicability to Contracts

When a grantee maintains files on drug and alcohol enforcement activities for FTA, and those files are organized so that information could be retrieved by personal identifier, the Privacy Act requirements apply to all contracts.

Flow Down

The Federal Privacy Act requirements flow down to each third party contractor and their contracts at every tier.

Model Clause/Language

The text of the following clause has not been mandated by statute or specific regulation, but has been developed by FTA.

Contracts Involving Federal Privacy Act Requirements - The following requirements apply to the Contractor and its employees that administer any system of records on behalf of the Federal Government under any contract:

RR – Page 42 Updated: 11132018

- (1) The Contractor agrees to comply with, and assures the compliance of its employees with, the information restrictions and other applicable requirements of the Privacy Act of 1974,
 - 5 U.S.C. § 552a. Among other things, the Contractor agrees to obtain the express consent of the Federal Government before the Contractor or its employees operate a system of records on behalf of the Federal Government. The Contractor understands that the requirements of the Privacy Act, including the civil and criminal penalties for violation of that Act, apply to those individuals involved, and that failure to comply with the terms of the Privacy Act may result in termination of the underlying contract.
- (2) The Contractor also agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract to administer any system of records on behalf of the Federal Government financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FTA.

RR-06

VETERANS PREFERENCE

<u>Veterans Employment</u>. Contractors working on a capital project funded using FTA assistance shall give a hiring preference, to the extent practicable, to veterans (as defined in section 2108 of title 5) who have the requisite skills and abilities to perform the construction work required under the contract. This subsection shall not be understood, construed or enforced in any manner that would require an employer to give preference to any veteran over any equally qualified applicant who is a member of any racial or ethnic minority, female, an individual with a disability, or former employee.

END OF REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

RR – Page 43 Updated: 11132018

ATTACHMENT C

ATTACHMENT C - COST/PRICE MNT19-16 ELEVATOR MODERNIZATION PROJECT

Base Bid Description	Bid Amount
Elevator #1	\$132,280.00
Machine Room Components	\$34,860.00
Hoistway Components	\$8,430.00
Entrance Components	\$8,715.00
Pit Components	\$8,715.00
Car (including enclosure) Components	\$17,430.00
Operating Signal Components	\$26,430.00
Cab Interior Modernization	\$25,000.00
First Year Maintenance and Warranty	\$2,700.00
Elevator #2	\$132,280.00
Machine Room Components	\$34,860.00
Hoistway Components	\$8,430.00
Entrance Components	\$8,715.00
Pit Components	\$8,715.00
Car (including enclosure) Components	\$17,430.00
Operating Signal Components	\$26,430.00
Cab Interior Modernization	\$25,000.00
First Year Maintenance and Warranty	\$2,700.00
Elevator #3	\$132,280.00
Machine Room Components	\$34,860.00
Hoistway Components	\$8,430.00
Entrance Components	\$8,715.00
Pit Components	\$8,715.00
Car (including enclosure) Components	\$17,430.00
Operating Signal Components	\$26,430.00
Cab Interior Modernization	\$25,000.00
First Year Maintenance and Warranty	\$2,700.00
GRAND TOTAL LUMP SUM BID	\$396,842.00

Optional Work Description	Bid Amount		
Optional Work – Elevators 1, 2 and 3			
Year 1 – Full Service Maintenance Contract	\$9,000.00		
Year 2 – Full Service Maintenance Contract	\$9,000.00		
Year 3 – Full Service Maintenance Contract	\$9,000.00		
Year 4 – Full Service Maintenance Contract	\$9,000.00		
GRAND TOTAL	\$36,000.00		

TOTAL OF ALL ITEMS OF THE BASE BID SCHEDULE:

\$396,842

ATTACHMENT D

GENERAL PREVAILING WAGE APPRENTICE RATES

APPRENTICE INFORMATION

Determination: 2018-2 Issue Date: 02-22-2017 Expire Date: 07-08-2017 * Page: 1

Craft/Classification: Elevator Constructor

4305 7516

Counties: Alameda, Alpine, Amador, Butte, Calaveras, Colusa, Contra Costa, Del Norte, El Dorado, Fresno, Glenn, Humboldt, Inyo, Kern (Portion North Of The Tehachapi Line), Kings, Lake, Lassen, Madera, Marin, Mariposa, Mendocino, Merced, Modoc, Mono, Monterey, Napa, Nevada, Placer, Plumas, Sacramento, San Benito, San Bernardino (Portion North Of The Tehachapi Line), San Francisco, San Joaquin, San Luis Obispo (Portion North Of The Tehachapi Line), San Mateo, Santa Clara, Santa Cruz, Shasta, Sierra, Siskiyou, Solano, Sonoma, Stanislaus, Sutter, Tehama, Trinity, Tulare, Tuolumne, Yolo, Yuba

Period	Duration Months	OJT Hours	Hourly Basic Rate	Health & Welfare	Pension	Vacation /Holiday	Training	Other	Hourly Total Rate
	WOTHIS			vvenare		/Holluay			
1	6	600	\$31.720						\$31.720
2	6	600	\$34.890	\$15.275	\$15.710	\$2.090	\$.600	\$.300	\$68.865
3	12	1.200	\$41.240	\$15.275	\$15.710	\$2.470	\$.600	\$.300	\$75.595
	12	1,200	Ψ11.210	Ψ10.210	Ψ10.710	Ψ2.170	ψ.σσσ	ψ.000	ψ, σ.σσσ
4	12	1,200	\$44.410	\$15.275	\$15.710	\$2.660	\$.600	\$.300	\$78.955
5	12	1,200	\$50.750	\$15.275	\$15.710	\$3.050	\$.600	\$.300	\$85.685

Footnote(s):

PENSION: Includes \$6.25 for Annuity per hour for periods 2 to 5.

VACATION: 6% Employees under five (5) years in industry based on regular hourly rate for all hours worked and 8% Employees over five (5) years in industry based on regular hourly rate for all hours worked.

NOTE: For the 4th period apprentices (Employed in industry more than 5 years), the vacation/holiday payment is \$3.55 and the total hourly rate is \$79.845. For the 5th period apprentices (Employed in industry more than 5 years), the vacation/holiday payment is \$4.06 and the total hourly rate is \$86.695.

OTHER: \$0.30 per hour for EIWPF (Elevator Industry Work Preservation Fund) for periods 2 to 5.

There are no predetermined increases.

Apprentice Prevailing Wage Rates are paid only to apprentices registered with the State of California, Division of Apprenticeship Standards, for work the registered apprentice performs in his/her specific craft or trade. You may check whether an Apprentices is registered at http://www.dir.ca.gov/DAS/appcertpw/AppCertSearch.asp

GENERAL PREVAILING WAGE APPRENTICE RATES

APPRENTICE INFORMATION

Craft/Classification: Elevator Constructor Shift: 1

4736 7651

Counties: Imperial, Inyo, Kern (Portion South Of The Tehachapi Line), Los Angeles, Orange, Riverside, San Bernardino (Portion South Of The Tehachapi Line), San Diego, San Luis Obispo (Portion South Of The Tehachapi Line), Santa Barbara, Ventura

Period	Duration	OJT	Hourly	Health &	Pension	Vacation	Training	Other	Hourly
	Months	Hours	Basic Rate	Welfare		/Holiday			Total Rate
1	6	850	\$26.930			_			\$26.930
2	6	850	\$29.620	\$15.425	\$16.610	\$2.690	\$.610	\$.360	\$65.315
3	12	1,700	\$35.000	\$15.425	\$16.610	\$3.190	\$.610	\$.360	\$71.195
4	12	1,700	\$37.700	\$15.425	\$16.610	\$3.420	\$.610	\$.360	\$74.125
5	12	1,700	\$43.080	\$15.425	\$16.610	\$3.910	\$.610	\$.360	\$79.995

Footnote(s):

- 1) Pension includes the following: Defined Benefit Pension Plan \$9.71 / Defined Contribution Pension Plan \$6.90
- 2) Other Elevator Work Preservation Fund \$0.36

JOURNEYMAN PREDETERMINED INCREASES:

MECHANIC

Effective January 1, 2019 -- an increase of \$3.01 allocated to wages and/or employer payments.

Effective January 1, 2020 -- an increase of \$3.11 allocated to wages and/or employer payments.

Effective January 1, 2021 -- an increase of \$3.21 allocated to wages and/or employer payments.

Effective January 1, 2022 -- an increase of \$3.32 allocated to wages and/or employer payments.

MECHANIC (Employed in industry more than 5 years)

Effective January 1, 2019 -- an increase of \$3.01 allocated to wages and/or employer payments.

Effective January 1, 2020 -- an increase of \$3.11 allocated to wages and/or employer payments.

Effective January 1, 2021 -- an increase of \$3.21 allocated to wages and/or employer payments.

Effective January 1, 2022 -- an increase of \$3.32 allocated to wages and/or employer payments.

There may be corresponding predetermined increase(s) to the apprentices associated with this journeyman craft/classification. Please fax a request to (415) 703-4771 or send to the following address:

Department of Industrial Relations Office of the Director - Research Unit P.O. Box 420603 San Francisco, CA 94142-0603

Apprentice Prevailing Wage Rates are paid only to apprentices registered with the State of California, Division of Apprenticeship Standards, for work the registered apprentice performs in his/her specific craft or trade. You may check whether an Apprentices is registered at http://www.dir.ca.gov/DAS/appcertpw/AppCertSearch.asp

DEPARTMENT OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS Office of the Director – Research Unit 455 Golden Gate Avenue, 9th Floor San Francisco, CA 94102



PREDETERMINED INCREASES FOR ELEVATOR CONSTRUCTOR (SC-62-X-999-2018-1)

IN IMPERIAL, LOS ANGELES, ORANGE, RIVERSIDE, SAN DIEGO, SANTA BARBARA, AND VENTURA COUNTIES

PORTIONS OF KERN^a, SAN BERNARDINO^a, AND SAN LUIS OBISPO^a COUNTIES (^aApplies to that portion of these counties south of the Tehachapi Line.)

This predetermined increase for the above named craft applies only to the above-referenced determination for work being performed on public works projects with bid advertisement dates on or after **March 4**, **2018**, until this determination is superseded by a new determination or a predetermined increase modification notice becomes effective.

When referencing our prevailing wage determinations, please note that if the prevailing wage rate determination, which was in effect on the bid advertisement date of a project has a single asterisk (*) after the expiration date, the rate will be good for the life of the project. However, if a prevailing wage rate determination has double asterisks (**) after the expiration date, the rate must be updated on the following date to reflect the predetermined rate change(s).

MECHANIC

Determination SC-62-X-999-2018-1 is currently in effect and expires on December 31, 2018**.

Effective January 1, 2019, there will be an increase of \$3.01 allocated to wages and/or employer payments. **Effective January 1, 2020,** there will be an increase of \$3.11 allocated to wages and/or employer payments.

Effective January 1, 2021, there will be an increase of \$3.21 allocated to wages and/or employer payments.

Effective January 1, 2022, there will be an increase of \$3.32 allocated to wages and/or employer payments.

MECHANIC (Employed in industry more than 5 years)

Determination SC-62-X-999-2018-1 is currently in effect and expires on December 31, 2018**.

Effective January 1, 2019, there will be an increase of \$3.01 allocated to wages and/or employer payments.

Effective January 1, 2020, there will be an increase of \$3.11 allocated to wages and/or employer payments.

Effective January 1, 2021, there will be an increase of \$3.21 allocated to wages and/or employer payments.

Effective January 1, 2022, there will be an increase of \$3.32 allocated to wages and/or employer payments.

HELPER

Determination SC-62-X-999-2018-1 is currently in effect and expires on December 31, 2018**.

Effective January 1, 2019, there will be an increase of \$2.43 allocated to wages and/or employer payments.

Effective January 1, 2020, there will be an increase of \$2.51 allocated to wages and/or employer payments.

Effective January 1, 2021, there will be an increase of \$2.59 allocated to wages and/or employer payments.

Effective January 1, 2022, there will be an increase of \$2.68 allocated to wages and/or employer payments.

HELPER (Employed in industry more than 5 years)

Determination SC-62-X-999-2018-1 is currently in effect and expires on December 31, 2018**.

Effective January 1, 2019, there will be an increase of \$2.43 allocated to wages and/or employer payments. Effective January 1, 2020, there will be an increase of \$2.51 allocated to wages and/or employer payments. Effective January 1, 2021, there will be an increase of \$2.59 allocated to wages and/or employer payments. Effective January 1, 2022, there will be an increase of \$2.68 allocated to wages and/or employer payments.

There will be no further predetermined increases applicable to this determination.

Issued 2/22/2018, Effective 3/4/2018 until superseded.

This page will be updated when wage rate breakdown information becomes available.

Last Updated: March 4, 2018

GENERAL PREVAILING WAGE DETERMINATION MADE BY THE DIRECTOR OF INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA LABOR CODE PART 7, CHAPTER 1, ARTICLE 2, SECTIONS 1770, 1773 AND 1773.1 FOR COMMERCIAL BUILDING, HIGHWAY, HEAVY CONSTRUCTION AND DREDGING PROJECTS

CRAFT: #ELEVATOR CONSTRUCTOR

DETERMINATION: SC-62-X-999-2018-1

ISSUE DATE: February 22, 2018

EXPIRATION DATE OF DETERMINATION: December 31, 2018** The rate to be paid for work performed after this date has been determined. If work will extend past this date, the new rate must be paid and should be incorporated in contracts entered into now. Contact the Office of the Director – Research Unit for specific rates at (415) 703-4774.

LOCALITY: All localities within Imperial, Los Angeles, Orange, Riverside, San Diego, Santa Barbara and Ventura counties. ^aPortions of Kern, San Bernardino and San Luis Obispo counties are detailed below.

			Employer Payments				Straig	nt-time	O	ertime Hour	ly Rate
Classification (Journeyperson)	Basic Hourly Rate	Health and Welfare	Pension ^e	Vacation/ Holiday ^b	Training	Other Payments	Hours	Total Hourly Rate	Daily ^d	Saturday ^d 1 ½X	Sunday and Holiday
Mechanic Mechanic (employed in industry more than	\$53.85	15.425	16.61	4.89	0.61	0.36	8	\$91.745	\$118.67	\$118.67	\$145.595
5 years)	\$53.85	15.425	16.61	5.97	0.61	0.36	8	\$92.825	\$119.75	\$119.75	\$146.675
Helper ^c	\$37.70	15.425	16.61	3.42	0.61	0.36	8	\$74.125	\$92.975	\$92.975	\$111.825
Helper (employed in industry more than 5 years) ^c	\$37.70	15.425	16.61	4.18	0.61	0.36	8	\$74.885	\$93.735	\$93.735	\$112.585

[#] Indicates an apprenticeable craft. The current apprentice wage rates are available on the Internet @ http://www.dir.ca.gov/OPRL/PWAppWage/PWAppWageStart.asp. To obtain any apprentice wage rates as of July 1, 2008 and prior to September 27, 2012, please contact the Division of Apprenticeship Standards or refer to the Division of Apprenticeship Standards' website at http://www.dir.ca.gov/das/das.html.

RECOGNIZED HOLIDAYS: Holidays upon which the general prevailing hourly wage rate for Holiday work shall be paid, shall be all holidays in the collective bargaining agreement, applicable to the particular craft, classification, or type of worker employed on the project, which is on file with the Director of Industrial Relations. If the prevailing rate is not based on a collectively bargained rate, the holidays upon which the prevailing rate shall be paid shall be as provided in Section 6700 of the Government Code. You may obtain the holiday provisions for the current determinations on the Internet at http://www.dir.ca.gov/OPRL/DPreWageDetermination.htm. Holiday provisions for current or superseded determinations may be obtained by contacting the Office of the Director – Research Unit at (415) 703-4774.

TRAVEL AND/OR SUBSISTENCE PAYMENT: In accordance with Labor Code Sections 1773.1 and 1773.9, contractors shall make travel and/or subsistence payments to each worker to execute the work. You may obtain the travel and/or subsistence provisions for the current determinations on the Internet at http://www.dir.ca.gov/OPRL/DPreWageDetermination.htm. Travel and/or subsistence requirements for current or superseded determinations may be obtained by contacting the Office of the Director – Research Unit at (415) 703-4774.

^a Applies to that portion of these counties south of the Tehachapi Line. For more information contact the Office of the Director – Research Unit.

^b Includes an amount for 8 paid holidays.

^c Ratio: The total number of Helpers employed shall not exceed the number of Mechanics on any one job. When removing old and installing new cables on existing elevator installations, the Company may use two (2) Helpers, Apprentices or Assistant Mechanics to one (1) Mechanic. Two (2) Helpers, Apprentices or Assistant Mechanics to each three (3) Mechanics may be employed in Contract Service work only. For more information on the use of Helpers, contact the Office of the Director – Research Unit.

^d For Contract Service work only. All other overtime is paid at the Sunday/Holiday rate.

^e Includes an amount for Annuity Trust Fund.

ATTACHMENT E

ATTACHMENT E – GENERAL PROVISIONS CONTRACT MNT19-16

Elevator Modernization Project TABLE OF CONTENTS

A.	SCHEDULE OF VALUES	3
B.	PROGRESS PAYMENTS	3
C.	FINAL INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE	4
D.	FINAL PAYMENT	5
E.	MODIFICATIONS IN THE SPECIFICATIONS AND SCOPE OF WORK	5
F.	CLAIMS	7
G.	ACCELERATION	9
Н.	STOP PAYMENT NOTICES	10
I.	ORDER OF WORK	10
J.	LABOR PROVISIONS	10
K.	TIME EXTENSION/DELAYS	16
L.	NONDISCRIMINATION	17
M.	TITLE VI OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964	19
N.	GOVERNMENT INSPECTIONS	19
Ο.	LICENSING, PERMITS AND INSPECTION COSTS	19
P.	HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES	19
Q.	MEDIA AND THE PUBLIC	20
R.	COORDINATION AND ACCESS	20
S.	UTILITIES RELATED DELAYS	20
Т.	UTILITIES AND SUBSURFACE STRUCTURES	21
U.	LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES (OFFSITE WORK ONLY)	22
V.	UNFORESEEN HAZARDOUS OR REGULATED MATERIALS	22
W.	CONTRACTOR'S OBLIGATIONS	23
X.	CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS	3 24
Υ.	INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR	27
Z.	COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS	27
AA.	WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE AND LIABILITY	27
BB.	CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIVE, ORGANIZATION AND PERSONNE	L 28
CC.	SUPERINTENDENT	28
DD.	CHANGE IN CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIVE AND KEY PERSONNEI	L 28
EE.	REMOVAL OF CONTRACTOR PERSONNEL	29

FF.	TRENCHES	29
GG.	SANITARY FACILITIES	29
нн.	AIR POLLUTION CONTROL	30
II.	CLEAN UP	30
JJ.	OCCUPANCY	30
KK.	STATE LICENSE BOARD NOTICE	30
LL.	WAIVER	30
MM.	MISCELLANEOUS	31
NN.	INTEGRATION	31
00.	SCHEDULE OF WORK	31
PP.	EXAMINATION OF WORK SITE	31
QQ.	OBSTRUCTIONS	31
RR.	QUALITY OF THE WORK	31
SS.	SUPERVISION AND SUPERINTENDENCE	32
TT.	CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE WORK	33
UU.	PRESERVATION OF PROPERTY	34
VV.	REGIONAL NOTIFICATION CENTER CONTACT	34
WW.	SAFETY	35
XX.	WARRANTY OF TITLE	36
YY.	PROPERTY RIGHTS IN MATERIALS	36
ZZ.	MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY OF CONTRACTORS	36
AAA.	ASSIGNMENT OF ANTI-TRUST ACTIONS	37
BBB.	EXISTING CONDITIONS	38
CCC.	WARRANTY OF SCOPE OF WORK AND LUMP SUM PRICING	38
DDD.	OBSERVATION OF WORK BY PROJECT MANAGER	38
EEE.	REMOVAL OF DEFECTIVE AND UNAUTHORIZED WORK	39
FFF.	USE OF COMPLETED PORTIONS	39
GGG.	PROJECT COMPLETION	39
ннн.	OBLIGATION TO CONTINUE WORK	40
III.	SUSPENSION OF WORK BY OMNITRANS	40
JJJ.	GENERAL REQUIREMENTS	40
KKK.	WARRANTY	41

A. SCHEDULE OF VALUES

Within 15 calendar days after "Notice to Proceed," the Contractor shall, upon request by Omnitrans, submit a Schedule of Values of the lump sum Bid entered on the Bid Form for all construction work. This Schedule of Values will form the basis for progress payments in accordance with these Specifications and shall show all of the major categories and subcategories of work and equipment requested by Omnitrans. Bonds and insurance costs will be identified as a separate line item. Such Schedule of Values shall not be required if Omnitrans, at its sole discretion, elects to pay the Contractor in lump sum within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of proper invoice following the Contractor's satisfactory completion and Omnitrans' acceptance of all work.

B. PROGRESS PAYMENTS

- 1. Invoicing Instructions and Requirements:
 - a) Contractor shall invoice Omnitrans monthly based upon the Schedule of Values.
 - b) Invoices shall be separately numbered and sent to Omnitrans at the address listed below:

Omnitrans 1700 West Fifth Street San Bernardino, California 92411 Attn: accountspayable@omnitrans.org

- c) The Contractor is required to submit a Conditional Waiver and Release Upon Partial Payment with each invoice. The Contractor must submit the Contractor Final Release with the final invoice.
- 2. For capital projects, Omnitrans pays invoices on the first Thursday of each month.
 - a) Subject to verification of receipt, accuracy, and quality of orders, invoices received will be paid on the first Thursday of the month after the received date of an invoice.
 - b) If received within the 10 days prior to the first Thursday of the month, payment may be delayed to the following month.
- 3. In no event shall Omnitrans be obligated to make any payment on account of the Services which would cause the total amount paid to Contractor to exceed that not-to-exceed amount set forth above unless the Contract is amended through a Change Order.
- 4. For purposes of calculating the progress payments, Omnitrans will use the Schedule of Values submitted by the Contractor at the start of this Agreement. In no event will Omnitrans make a progress payment that, when added to the prior progress payments, amounts to a sum more than the Contractor's actual aggregate incurred expenses, adjusted to include Contractor's overhead and profit as allocated to such incurred expenses.
 - 5. Omnitrans will pay only 95% of each progress payment amount as determined above, retaining 5% as part security for the fulfillment of this Agreement by the Contractor. Unless otherwise required by law, the final payment of five percent (5%) of the value of

the total price of this Agreement, if unencumbered, shall be paid no later than sixty (60) days after the date of recordation of the Notice of Completion.

- 6. No progress payments will be made for materials not installed.
- 7. Progress payments made by Omnitrans in no way shall be deemed or construed as acceptance by Omnitrans of work or waiver by Omnitrans of any rights hereunder.
- 8. Acceptance by Contractor of the final payment shall constitute a waiver of all claims against Omnitrans arising from this Agreement.
- 9. The Contractor shall pay subcontractors, promptly upon receipt of each Omnitrans progress payment, the respective amounts allowed the Contractor on account of the work performed by subcontractors, to the extent of each such subcontractor's interest therein. Such payments to subcontractors shall be based on estimates made pursuant to this Agreement. Any diversion by the Contractor of payments received for prosecution of a contract, or failure to reasonably account for the application or use of such payments, constitutes ground for termination of the Contractor's control over the work and for taking over the work, in addition to disciplinary action by the Contractor's State License Board. The subcontractor shall notify, in writing, the Contractor's State License Board and Omnitrans of any payment less than the amount or percentage approved for the class or item of work as set forth in this Agreement.
- 10. In addition to other amounts properly withheld under this Agreement, Omnitrans shall withhold all legally required sums for, but not necessarily limited to, stop payment notices, labor and tax liens, etc.

C. FINAL INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE

Promptly after Substantial Completion has occurred, Contractor shall perform all Punch List Work, if any, which was deferred for purposes of Project Completion, and shall satisfy all of its other contractual obligations under the contract documents.

When the Contractor determines that the work is fully completed, including satisfactory completion of all inspections, tests, and required documentation, Punch List and clean-up items, Contractor shall give Omnitrans a written request for Final Acceptance within ten (10) days thereafter, specifying that the work is completed and the date on which it was completed.

Within thirty (30) days after receipt of the request for Final Acceptance from Contractor, Omnitrans will make a final inspection of the work and will either:

- 1. Reject the request for Final Acceptance, specifying the defective or uncompleted work; or
- 2. Issue a written Final Acceptance and record Notice of Completion with County Recorder.

Substantial Completion is defined herein as; In the opinion of Omnitrans, that Work or portion thereof that is sufficiently complete and in accordance with the Contract, that it can be utilized by Omnitrans for the purpose for which it was intended. A determination of Substantial Completion does not waive, but may not require the prior completion of minor items, which do not impair Omnitrans ability to safely occupy and utilize the Work for its intended purpose.

D. FINAL PAYMENT

- 1. After the filing of the Notice of Completion, Omnitrans will make a proposed final estimate, in writing, of the total amount payable to the Contractor, including therein an itemization of said amount, segregated as to contract item quantities, extra work and any other basis for payment, and shall also show therein all deductions made or to be made for prior payments and amounts to be kept or retained under the provisions of the contract. All prior estimates and payments shall be subject to correction in the proposed final estimate. Within 15 days after proposed final estimate has been submitted, Contractor shall submit to Omnitrans written approval of proposed final estimate and/or a written statement of all claims of the contract. No claim will be considered that was not included in written statement of claims, nor will any claim be allowed unless the Contractor has previously complied with the notice and protest requirements.
- 2. On the Contractor's approval, or if he files no claim within stated period, Omnitrans will issue a final written estimate, in accordance with the proposed final estimate submitted to the Contractor; and 35 days after the date of filing the Notice of Completion Omnitrans will pay the entire sum found to be due. Such final estimate and payment thereon shall be conclusive and binding against the Contractor on all questions relating to the amount of work done and the compensation payable therefore, except as otherwise provided.
- 3. If the Contractor within said period of 15 days files claims, Omnitrans will issue a semi-final estimate in lieu of the final estimate submitted to the Contractor; and 35 days after the date of filing of the Notice of Completion, Omnitrans will pay the sum found to be due. Such semi-final estimate and payment thereon shall be conclusive and binding against the Contractor on all questions relating to the amount of work done and the compensation payable therefore, except insofar as affected by the claims filed within the time and in the manner required hereunder and except as otherwise provided.
- 4. Upon final determination of any outstanding claims, Omnitrans shall then make and issue a final estimate in writing and within 30 days thereafter, Omnitrans will pay the entire sum, if any, found due. Such final estimate shall be conclusive and binding against the Contractor on all questions relating to the amount of work done and the compensation payable therefore, except as otherwise provided.

E. MODIFICATIONS IN THE SPECIFICATIONS AND SCOPE OF WORK

- 1. Modifications to the Specifications and or Scope of Work
 - a. Omnitrans may, from time to time, make changes to the Specifications and or Scope of Work under the Contract, through a Change Order.
 - b. A Change Order shall not modify the overall purpose of the Contract.
 - c. At any time during the term of the Contract, Omnitrans may order Additional Services to be performed by the Contractor by a Change Order.
 - d. Additional Services are defined as services that were not contained in the Contract and are determined by Omnitrans to be necessary, and where a reasonable relationship to the services originally described in the Contract exists.

- e. Contractor shall not be entitled to make any changes in the services or perform any Additional Services unless authorized, in advance, by written Change Order.
- f. Contractor shall continue performance of the Scope of Work as modified by the Change Order upon receipt of a Change Order approved by Omnitrans.
- g. Contractor and Owner hereby agree and acknowledge that execution of the Change Order constitutes a mutual accord and satisfaction as to the work covered hereby. Contractor specifically waives and releases: any and all claims; rights or interest; including, but not limited to, those for: impact; disruption; loss of efficiency; "ripple"; other extraordinary; or consequential costs, arising directly or indirectly out of the work described in this Change Order, except as specifically included herein.

2. Authorization of Additional Work

- a. Authorization to make changes to the Specifications and or Scope of Work under the Contract shall be completed through a written Change Order.
- b. Persons authorized to make those changes will exclusively be:

Contractor: the person whose duly authorized signature appears on the BID documents and has authority to legally bind the firm.

Omnitrans: CEO/General Manager.

- c. Either Omnitrans or Contractor may designate other persons as agreed upon in writing or as designated herein.
- d. For the purposes of this contract, temporary work ordered for special occasions that is not meant to affect the overall purpose and intent of this contract will be issued by Omnitrans under a separate contract and or purchase order. Any such additional work will be under the terms and conditions of that contract or purchase order, but may reference any portions of this contract.

3. Price Adjustments

- a. Any change in the contract that causes an increase or decrease in cost to Omnitrans, or the time required for the performance of the contract, must be approved as prescribed herein.
- b. An equitable adjustment in the compensation and schedule will be made upon an approved Change Order, which shall be incorporated, into the Contract by reference.
- c. Contractor shall be liable for all costs resulting from, and or for satisfactorily correcting, any specification change not properly ordered by written modification to the contract and signed by the Contracting Officer.
- d. Except as otherwise expressly provided in the Contract, when costs are a factor in any determination of a contract price adjustment, such costs shall be in accordance with the applicable cost principles of Subpart 31.2 of the Federal Acquisition Regulations (*FARs*) in effect at the onset of the Contract.

F. CLAIMS

- 1. In accordance with Public Contract Code Sections 20104 *et seq.* and other applicable law, public works claims of \$375,000 or less which arise between the Contractor and Omnitrans shall be resolved under the following statutory procedure unless Omnitrans has elected to resolve the dispute pursuant to Public Contract Code Section 10240 *et seq.*
- 2. **All Claims.** All claims shall be submitted in writing and accompanied by substantiating documentation. Claims must be filed on or before the date of final payment unless other notice requirements are provided in the Contract Documents. "Claim" means a separate demand by the claimant for (1) a time extension, (2) payment of money or damages arising from work done by or on behalf of the claimant and payment of which is not otherwise expressly provided for or the claimant is not otherwise entitled, or (3) an amount the payment of which is disputed by Omnitrans. The Contractor shall promptly comply with the Contract Documents in the performance of Work and/or the requests of Omnitrans even though a written claim has been filed. The Contractor and Omnitrans shall make good faith efforts to resolve any and all claims that may arise during performance of the Work covered by this Contract.
- 3. Claims Under \$50,000. Omnitrans shall respond in writing to the claim within 45 days of receipt of the claim, or, Omnitrans may request, in writing, within 30 days of receipt of the claim, any additional documentation supporting the claim or relating to defenses or claims Omnitrans may have. If additional information is needed thereafter, it shall be provided upon mutual agreement of Omnitrans and the claimant. Omnitrans' written response shall be submitted 15 days after receiving the additional documentation, or within the same period of time taken by the claimant to produce the additional information, whichever is greater.
- 4. Claims over \$50,000 but less than or equal to \$375,000. Omnitrans shall respond in writing within 60 days of receipt, or, may request in writing within 30 days of receipt of the claim, any additional documents supporting the claim or relating to defenses or claims Omnitrans may have against the claimant. If additional information is needed thereafter, it shall be provided pursuant to mutual agreement between Omnitrans and the claimant. Omnitrans' response shall be submitted within 30 days after receipt of the further documents, or within the same period of time taken by the claimant to produce the additional information or documents, whichever is greater. The Contractor shall make these records and documents available at all reasonable times, without any direct charge.
- 5. The Contractor will submit the claim justification in the following format:
 - 1) Summary of claim merit and price, and Contract clause pursuant to which the claim is made.
 - 2) List of documents relating to claim
 - (a) Specifications
 - (b) Drawings

- (c) Clarifications (Requests for Information)
- (d) Schedules
- (e) Other
- 3) Chronology of events and correspondence
- 4) Analysis of claim merit
- 5) Analysis of claim cost
- 6) Analysis of time impact analysis in CPM format
- 7) Cover letter and certification of validity of the claim
- 6. If the claimant disputes Omnitrans' response, or if Omnitrans fails to respond within the statutory time period(s), the claimant may so notify Omnitrans within 15 days of the receipt of the response or the failure to respond, and demand an informal conference to meet and confer for settlement. Upon such demand, Omnitrans shall schedule a meet and confer conference within 30 Days.
- 7. If following the meet and confer conference, the claim or any portion thereof remains in dispute, the claimant may file a claim pursuant to Government Code 900 et seq. and Government Code 910 et seq. For purposes of those provisions, the time within which a claim must be filed shall be tolled from the time the claimant submits the written claim until the time the claim is denied, including any time utilized for the meet and confer conference.

Submission of a claim, properly certified, with all required supporting documentation, and written rejection or denial of all or part of the claim by Omnitrans, is a condition precedent to any action, proceeding, litigation, suit, general conditions claim, or demand for arbitration by Contractor.

Claims submitted by the Contractor shall be accompanied by a notarized certificate containing the language listed below. Failure to submit the notarized certificate will be cause for denying the claim.

Certificate

Under the penalty of law for perjury or falsification with specific reference to the California False Claims Act, Government Code Section 12650 et. Seq., the undersigned,
(Name)
(Title)
(Company)
herby certifies that the claim for the additional compensation and time, if any, made herein for the work on this Contract is a true statement of the actual cost incurred and time sough, and is fully documented and supported under the Contract between the parties
Dated:
Signature:
NOTARY CERTIFICATION
STATE OF
SS:
Subscribed and sworn to before me this
to be the person(s) who appeared before me.
Signature of Notary Public
Printed/typed name of Notary Public
County of residence Date commission expires
(SEAL)

G. ACCELERATION

1. Omnitrans reserves the right to accelerate the work of the Contract at any time during its performance. In the event that Omnitrans directs acceleration, such directive will be given

to the Contractor in writing. The Contractor shall keep cost and other Project records related to the acceleration directive separately from normal Project cost records and shall provide a written record of acceleration costs to Omnitrans on a daily basis.

- 2. In the event that the Contractor believes that some action or inaction on the part of Omnitrans constitutes an acceleration directive, the Contractor shall immediately notify Omnitrans in writing that the Contractor considers the actions or inactions an acceleration directive. This written notification shall detail the circumstances of the acceleration directive. The Contractor shall not accelerate their work efforts until Omnitrans responds to the written notification. If acceleration is then directed or required by Omnitrans, all cost records referred to in section (1) shall be maintained by the Contractor and provided to Omnitrans on a daily basis.
- 3. In order to recover additional costs due to acceleration, the Contractor must document that additional expenses were incurred and paid by the Contractor. Labor costs recoverable will only be overtime or shift premium costs or the cost of additional laborers brought to the site to accomplish the accelerated work effort. Equipment costs recoverable will only be the cost of added equipment mobilized to the site to accomplish the accelerated work effort.

H. STOP PAYMENT NOTICES

Omnitrans, at its sole discretion, may, at any time, retain out of any amounts due the Contractor, sums sufficient to cover claims filed pursuant to Section 9530 et. seq. of the California Civil Code.

I. ORDER OF WORK

Contractor shall perform work hereunder at such places, and in such order or precedence, as may be determined necessary by the Engineer to expedite completion of the required work.

J. LABOR PROVISIONS

- 1. Prevailing Wages
 - a. Contractor shall comply with all applicable requirements of Division 2, Part 7, Chapter 1 of the Labor Code and all applicable federal requirements respecting prevailing wages. If there is a difference between the minimum wage rates predetermined by the Secretary of Labor and the wage rates determined by the Director of the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR) for similar classifications of labor, the Contractor and subcontractors shall not pay less that the higher wage rate. The DIR will not accept lower state wage rates not specifically included in the Federal minimum wage determination.
 - b. The Contractor and each subcontractor shall forfeit as a penalty to Omnitrans not more than Two Hundred Dollars (\$200.00) for each calendar day, or portion thereof, for each worker paid less than the stipulated prevailing wage rate for any work done by him, or by any subcontract under him, in violation of the provisions of the Labor Code. The difference between such stipulated prevailing wage rate and the amount paid to each worker for each calendar day or portion thereof for which each worker was paid less than the stipulated prevailing wage rate shall be paid to each worker by the Contractor.

c. The Contractor shall obtain a copy of the prevailing rates of per diem wages at the commencement of this Agreement from the website of the Division of Labor Statistics and Research of the Department of Industrial Relations located at www.dir.ca.gov/dlsr/. In the alternative, the Contractor may view a copy of the prevailing rates of per diem wages upon request to OMNITRANS. Contractor shall make copies of the prevailing rates of per diem wages for each craft, classification, or type of worker needed to perform work on the Project available to interested parties upon request, and shall post copies at the Contractor's principal place of business and at the Project Site. Contractor shall post, at appropriate conspicuous points on the Project Site, a schedule showing all determined general prevailing wage rates and all authorized deductions, if any, from unpaid wages actually earned.

2. Minimum Wages

- a. All mechanics and laborers employed or working upon the site of the work will be paid unconditionally, and not less often than once a week and without subsequent deduction or rebate on any account, the full amounts due at time of payment computed at wage rates not less than those specified in the General Wage Determinations referenced in this section regardless of any contractual relationship which may be alleged to exist between the Contractor and such laborers and mechanics; and the wage determination decision shall be posted by the Contractor at the site of the work in a prominent place where it can be easily seen by the workers. For the purpose of this clause, contributions made or cost reasonably anticipated under the Labor Code of the State of California on behalf of laborers or mechanics are considered wages paid by such Laborers or mechanics. Also for the purpose of this clause, regular contributions made or costs incurred for more than a weekly period under plans, funds or programs, but covering the particular weekly period, are deemed to be constructively made or incurred during such weekly period.
- b. Omnitrans shall require that any class of laborers or mechanics, including apprentices and trainees, which is not listed in the General Wage Determinations and which is to be employed under this Contract, shall be classified conformably to such wage determinations. In the event Omnitrans does not concur in the Contractor's proposed classification or reclassification of a particular class of laborers and mechanics (including apprentices and trainees) to be used, the question, accompanied by the recommendation of Omnitrans, shall be referred to the State Director of Industrial Relations for determination.
- c. Omnitrans shall require, whenever the minimum wage rate prescribed in the contract for a class of laborers or mechanics includes a fringe benefit which is not expressed as an hourly wage and the Contractor is obligated to pay a cash equivalent of such a fringe benefit, an hourly cash equivalent thereof to be established. In the event the interested parties cannot agree upon cash equivalent of the fringe benefit, the questions, accompanied by the recommendation of Omnitrans, shall be referred to the State Director of Industrial Relations for determination.
- d. All disputes concerning the payment of wages or the classification of workers under this Agreement shall be promptly reported to Omnitrans.

3. Deductions

In addition to amounts which Omnitrans may retain under other provisions of the Contract Documents Omnitrans may withhold payments due to Contractor as may be necessary to cover:

- a. Stop Payment Notice Claims.
- b. Defective work not remedied.
- c. Failure of Contractor to make proper payments to its subcontractors or suppliers.
- d. Completion of the Contract if there exists a reasonable doubt that the work can be completed for balance then unpaid.
- e. Damage to another Contractor or third party.
- f. Amounts which may be due Omnitrans for claims against Contractor.
- g. Failure of Contractor to keep the record ("as-built") drawings up to date.
- h. Failure to provide updates on the construction schedule and/or a recovery schedule if required.
- i. Site clean-up.
- j. Failure of the Contractor to comply with requirements of the Contract Documents, including but not limited to Contractor's failure to provide approved complete as-builts prior to filing of Notice of Completion.
- k. Liquidated damages.
- 1. Legally permitted penalties.
 - i. Omnitrans may apply such withheld amount or amounts to payment of such claims or obligations at its discretion with the exception of subsections (a), (c) and (e) of this Article, which must be retained or applied in accordance with applicable law. In so doing, Omnitrans shall be deemed the agent of Contractor and any payment so made by the Contractor shall be considered as a payment made under contract by Omnitrans to Contractor and Omnitrans shall not be liable to Contractor for such payments made in good faith. Such payments may be made without prior judicial determination of the claim or obligations. Omnitrans will render Contractor a proper accounting of such funds disbursed on behalf of the Contractor.
 - ii. Upon completion of the Contract, Omnitrans will reduce the final Contract amount to reflect costs charged to the Contractor, back charges or payments withheld pursuant to the Contract Documents.
- iii. All amounts owing by Contractor to Omnitrans under the Contract shall earn interest from the date on which such amount is owing at the lesser of (i) 10% per annum or (ii) the maximum rate allowable under applicable Governmental Rules.

4. Payrolls and Basic Records

- a. Payrolls and basic records relating thereto will be maintained during the course of the work and preserved for a period of three (3) years thereafter for all laborers and mechanics working at the site of the work. Such records will contain the name, address and social security number of each such worker, the correct classification, rates of pay, daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made and actual wages paid.
- b. Pursuant to Labor Code Section 1776, the Contractor and each subcontractor shall maintain weekly certified payroll records showing the name, address, social security number, work classification, straight time and overtime hours paid each day and week, and the actual per diem wages paid to each journeyman, apprentice, worker or other employee employed in connection with the work. Contractor shall certify under penalty of perjury that records maintained and submitted by Contractor are true and accurate. Contractor shall also require subcontractor(s) to certify weekly payroll records under penalty of perjury
- The Contractor will submit weekly a copy of all payrolls to Omnitrans as required in these c. "Labor Provisions" as well as to the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR). See subsection 17, Certified Payroll Compliance Monitoring, in this section. The copy shall be accompanied by a statement signed by the employer or its agent indicating that the payrolls are correct and complete, that the wage rates contained therein are not less than those determined by the State Director of Industrial Relations and that the classifications as set forth for each laborer or mechanic conform to the work performed. A submission of the "Weekly Statement of Compliance," which is required under this Contract, shall satisfy this requirement. The prime Contractor shall be responsible for the submission of copies of payrolls of all subcontractors. The Contractor will make the records required under the labor standard clauses of the contract available for the inspection by authorized representatives of Omnitrans, and will permit such representatives to interview employees during working hours on the job. In the event of noncompliance with the requirements of this Section, the Contractor shall have ten (10) days in which to comply subsequent to receipt of written notice specifying any item or actions necessary to ensure compliance with this section. Should noncompliance still be evident after such ten (10) day period, the Contractor shall, as a penalty to Omnitrans, forfeit One Hundred Dollars (\$100.00) for each day, or portion thereof, for each worker until strict compliance is effectuated. Upon the request of the DIR, such penalties shall be withheld from contract payments

5. Apprentices and Trainees

a. Apprentices: Apprentices will be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work they perform when they are employed and individually registered in a bona fide apprenticeship program as defined in section 1777.5 of the Labor Code of the State of California. The allowable ratio of apprentices to journeymen in any craft classification shall not be greater than the ratio permitted to the Contractor as to his entire work force under the registered program. Any employee listed on a payroll at an apprentice wage rate who is not registered or otherwise employed as stated above, shall be paid the wage rate determined by the State Director of Industrial Relations for the classification of work he actually performed. The Contractor or subcontractor will be required to furnish to Omnitrans or the State Director of Industrial Relations written evidence of the registration of his program and apprentices as well as the appropriate ratios and wage rates (expressed

in percentages of the journeyman's rate contained in the applicable wage determination).

- b. Trainees: Except as provided in 29 CFR 5.15, trainees will not be permitted to work at less than the predetermined rate for the work performed unless they are employed pursuant to or individually registered in a program which has received prior approval, evidenced by formal certification, by the U.S. Department of Labor, Employment and Training Administration, Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training. The ratio of trainees to journeymen shall not be greater than that permitted under the plan approved by the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training. Every trainee must be paid at not less than the rate specified in the approved program for his level of progress. Any employee listed on the payroll at a trainee rate who is not registered and participating in a training plan approved by the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training shall be paid not less than the wage rate determined by the Secretary of Labor for the classification of work he actually performed. The Contractor or subcontractor will be required to furnish the contracting officer or a representative of the Wage-Hour Division of the U.S. Department of Labor written evidence of the certification of his program, the registration of the trainees, and the ratios and wage rates prescribed in that program. In the event the Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training withdraws approval of a training program, the Contractor will no longer be permitted to utilize trainees at less than the applicable predetermined rate for the work performed until an acceptable program is approved.
- c. Equal Employment Opportunity: The utilization of apprentices and journeymen under this part shall be in conformity with the equal employment opportunity requirements of Executive Order 11246, as amended and 29 CFR, Part 30.
- 6. Compliance with Copeland Regulations (29 CFR, Part 3)

The Contractor shall comply with the Copeland Regulations (29 CFR, Part 3) of the Secretary of Labor which is herein incorporated by reference.

7. Contract Termination: Debarment

A breach of item 1 through 6 may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as provided in 29 CFR 5.6.

8. Overtime Requirements

No Contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any laborer or mechanic in any work week in which he is employed on such work to work in excess of 8 hours a day or 40 hours in such work week unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 8 hours a day or 40 hours in such work week.

9. Violation; Liability for Unpaid Wages

Pursuant to section 1775 of the Labor Code of the State of California, in the event that any workman employed on this public works project is paid less than the amount specified in the General Prevailing Wage Determinations or less than is required,

relative to overtime, the Contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefore shall be liable to the affected workman for the unpaid wages. In addition, such Contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the State of California or Omnitrans for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual workman found to be underpaid and shall be in the amount of \$50 per calendar day that a workman was underpaid.

10. Withholding for Liquidated Damages

Omnitrans may withhold or cause to be withheld, from any monies payable on account of work performed by the Contractor or subcontractor, such sums as may administratively be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such Contractor or subcontractor for liquidated damages as provided in this section.

11. Final Labor Summary

The Contractor and each subcontractor shall furnish to Omnitrans, upon the completion of the contract, a summary of all employment, indicating for the completed project, the total hours worked and the total amount earned.

12. Final Certificate

Upon completion of the contract, the Contractor shall submit to Omnitrans, with the voucher for a final payment for any work performed under the contract, a concerning wages and classifications for laborers and mechanics, including apprentices and trainees employed on the project, in the following form:

The undersigned, Contractor on		
	(Contract No.)	

hereby certifies that all laborers, mechanics, apprentices and trainees employed by the Contractor or by a subcontractor performing work under the contract on the project have been paid wages at rates not less than those required by the contract provisions, and that the work performed by each such laborer, mechanic, apprentice or trainee conformed to the classifications set forth in the contract or training program provisions applicable to the wage rate paid.

Signature and Title

13. Notice to Omnitrans of Labor Dispute

Whenever the Contractor has knowledge that any actual or potential labor dispute is delaying or threatens to delay the timely performance of this contract, the Contractor shall immediately give notice thereof, including all relevant information with respect thereto, to Omnitrans.

14. Disputes Clause

- a. All disputes concerning the payment of prevailing wage rates or classifications shall be promptly reported to Omnitrans for its referral to DOT for decision or, at the option of Omnitrans, DOT referral to the Secretary of Labor. The decision of DOT or the Secretary of Labor, as the case may be, shall be final.
- b. All questions relating to the application or interpretation of the Copeland Act, the Contract Work Hours Standards Act, the Davis-Bacon Act, or Section 13 of the Act shall be sent to the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) for referral to the Secretary of Labor for ruling or interpretation, and such ruling or interpretation shall be final.

15. Convict Labor

In connection with the performance of work under this Contract, the Contractor agrees not to employ any person-undergoing sentence of imprisonment at hard labor. This does not include convicts who are on parole or probation.

16. Insertion in Subcontracts

The Contractor shall set forth in item 1 through 15 of this Section so that all of the provisions of this section will be inserted in all construction subcontracts of any tier, and such other clauses as the Government may by appropriate instructions require.

17. Certified Payrolls Compliance Monitoring

- a. This project is subject to monitoring and enforcement by the Department of Industrial Relations (DIR).
- b. This project is subject to prevailing wages.
- c. Contractors and subcontractors are obligated to submit certified payroll records utilizing the DIR's eCPR system. You can access additional information regarding the DIR's reporting system by using the following link: http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/Certified-Payroll-Reporting.html.

K. TIME EXTENSION/DELAYS

- 1. Contractor may be granted an extension of time for any portion of a delay in completion of the work due to acts of God, the public enemy, wars, civil unrest, fires, quarantine restrictions, or weather more severe than normal, providing that (1) the aforesaid causes were not foreseeable and did not result from an act or omission by the Contractor, (2) Contractor has taken reasonable precautions to prevent further delays owing to such causes, and (3) Contractor notifies Omnitrans in writing of the cause(s) for the delay within ten (10) days from the beginning of any such delay. No claims for additional compensation or damages for the foregoing delays shall be allowed to the Contractor, and the extension of time provided for herein shall be the sole remedy of the Contractor on account of any such delays.
- 2. An extension of time will not be granted for a delay described in the above paragraph(s) caused by a shortage of materials, except if materials are furnished by Omnitrans, unless the Contractor supplies Omnitrans with documented proof that every effort to obtain the

materials from all known sources that (a) such materials could have been obtained only at exorbitant prices or (b) the prices were entirely inconsistent with current rates, taking into account the quantities; and (c) such facts could not have been known or anticipated at the time the Notice To Proceed was issued. Contractor shall also submit proof, that the inability to obtain such materials when originally planned, did in fact, cause a delay in completion of the work that could not be compensated for by revising the sequence of its operations. Only the physical shortage of material will be considered as a basis for an extension of time.

- 3. An extension of time for weather more severe than normal shall be granted only to the extent the work is actually delayed as determined by Omnitrans. Normal is defined as the monthly average of the temperature and rainfall wherein the work was performed for the prior 20 years before the execution of the contract.
- 4. In the event Contractor is actually and necessarily delayed by an act or omission on the part of Omnitrans, as determined by Omnitrans, the Contractor shall notify Omnitrans in writing within five (5) days from the beginning of any such delay. The time for completion of the work may be extended at the sole discretion of Omnitrans.
- 5. Within 30 days after the last day of delay, Contractor shall provide Omnitrans with detailed information concerning the circumstances of the delay, the number of days actually delayed, and the measures taken to minimize or prevent the delay. Failure to submit information shall be sufficient reason to deny the claim. Omnitrans shall ascertain the facts and the extent of the delay; and provide the Contractor its written findings, which will be final and conclusive. Except for the additional compensation for herein and except as provided in Public Contract Code Section 7102, Contractor shall have no claim for damages or compensation for any delay or hindrance.
- 6. No extension of time will be granted for any Omnitrans caused delay or delay as defined in which (a) the performance of work would have been concurrently delayed by Contractor induced causes, including but not limited to an act or omission of the Contractor, or (b) remedies are included or excluded by any other contract provision. Only the actual delay necessarily resulting from the causes specified in this Article shall be grounds for extension of time. Should the Contractor be delayed at any time for any period by two or more of the causes specified in this article, Contractor shall only be entitled to one time extension for the entire delay.
- 7. Any time extension granted to Contractor shall not release the Contractor or surety from its obligations. Work shall continue and be carried on in accordance with the contract provisions, unless formally suspended or terminated by Omnitrans.

L. NONDISCRIMINATION

During the performance of this Contract, the Contractor agrees as follows:

1. The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, creed, color or national origin. The Contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, religion, color, sex or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to employment; upgrading; demotion; transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff; termination; rates of pay or other forms

of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Contractor agrees to post, in conspicuous places available to the employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

- 2. The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, religion, color, sex or national origin.
- 3. The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the Contractor's commitments under this Section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.
- 4. The Contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor. The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations and orders.
- 5. In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this Contract or with any of the said rules, regulations or orders, this Contract may be canceled, terminated or suspended in whole or in part, and the Contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or Federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation or order, of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.
- 6. The Contractor will include the provisions of this Paragraph ("Nondiscrimination") in every subcontract or purchase order entered into under this Agreement unless exempted by rules, regulations or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to Section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The Contractor will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance provided, however, that in the event a Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering agency, the Contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.
- 7. No person employed on the work covered by this Agreement shall be discharged or in any way discriminated against because he has filed any complaints or instituted or caused to be instituted any proceeding or has testified or is about to testify in any proceeding under or relating to the labor standards applicable hereunder to his employer.

M. TITLE VI OF THE CIVIL RIGHTS ACT OF 1964

Contractor agrees to comply with and ensure compliance by all subcontractors with all requirements of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, 42 U.S.C. §2000d; 49 U.S.C. §5332 and Department of Transportation Regulations, "Nondiscrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation-Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act," 49 CFR Part 21.

N. GOVERNMENT INSPECTIONS

Omnitrans or Government representatives shall have access to the construction site and shall have the right to inspect all project works.

O. LICENSING, PERMITS AND INSPECTION COSTS

- 1. The Contractor warrants that it has all necessary licenses and permits required by the laws of the United States, State of California, the County of San Bernardino, the Local Jurisdictions, and all other appropriate governmental agencies, and agrees to maintain these licenses and permits in effect for the duration of the Agreement. Further, Contractor warrants that its employees, agents, and Contractors and subcontractors shall conduct themselves in compliance with such laws and licensure requirements including, without limitation, compliance with laws applicable to nondiscrimination, sexual harassment and ethical behavior throughout the duration of this Agreement. Contractor further warrants that it shall not retain or employ an unlicensed subcontractor to perform work on this Project. Contractor shall notify Omnitrans immediately and in writing of its employees', agents', Contractors' or subcontractors' inability to obtain or maintain, irrespective of the pendency of any appeal, any such licenses, permits, approvals, certificates, waivers, and exemptions. Such inability shall be cause for termination of this Agreement.
- 2. Contractor shall procure all permits and licenses and pay all charges, assessments and fees as may be required by the ordinances and regulations of the public agencies having jurisdiction over the areas in which the work is located, and shall comply with all the terms and conditions thereof and with all lawful orders and regulations of each such public agency relating to construction operations under the jurisdiction of such agency.
- 3. Contractor shall act as permittee on behalf of Omnitrans for coordination of all associated City of San Bernardino Building Department inspections.

P. HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES

1. CAL-OSHA Requirements

All flammable, corrosive, toxic or reactive materials being bid must have a complete CAL-OSHA Material Safety Data Sheet accompanying the submitted bid.

2. Notice of Hazardous Substances

Title 8, California Code of Regulations, Section 5194 (e)(c), states that the employer must inform any Contractor employers with employees working in the employer's workplace of the hazardous substances to which their employees may be exposed while

performing their work. In compliance with this requirement, Omnitrans hereby gives notice to all Bidders that the following general categories of hazardous substances are present on Omnitrans' premises:

- a. adhesives, sealant, patching and coating products
- b. antifreeze, coolants
- c. cleaners, detergents
- d. paints, thinners, solvents
- e. pesticides, petroleum products (diesel and unleaded fuel, oil products)
- f. printing, photocopying materials
- g. propane welding materials/compressed gases (e.g., acetylene, oxygen, nitrogen)

More specific information may be obtained from Omnitrans Safety and Security Office at (909) 379-7125, and from Material Safety Data Sheets for individual products.

Q. MEDIA AND THE PUBLIC

Contractor shall immediately refer all inquiries from the news media or other public sources to Omnitrans' Project Manager, or designated representative, relating to this project.

R. COORDINATION AND ACCESS

Omnitrans may undertake or award other contracts for additional work at the project site. Contractor is responsible for coordinating its work with the work of other Contractors as appropriate. The Contractor acknowledges that they do not have any exclusive access to the site or other work areas. Omnitrans may require that certain facilities and areas be used concurrently by the Contractors and others. Contractor shall cooperate fully with Omnitrans Contractors/consultants that may be performing work in the construction area.

S. UTILITIES RELATED DELAYS

If, due to interruptions caused by the undocumented utilities, Contractor sustains loss which could not have been avoided by the judicious handling of forces, equipment and plant, there shall be paid to the Contractor that amount that Omnitrans may find to be a fair and reasonable compensation for the part of the Contractor's actual loss, that, in the opinion of Omnitrans was unavoidable, determined as follow: Compensation for idle time of equipment will be determined in the same manner as determinations are made for equipment used in the performance of extra work paid for on a force account basis per Section E, Modifications in the Specifications and Scope of Work, with the following exceptions:

- 1. The utility related delay factor for each classification of equipment shown in the Department of Transportation publication entitled Labor Surcharge and Equipment Rental Rates will be applied to that equipment rental rate.
- 2. The time for which the compensation will be paid will be the actual normal working time during which the delay condition exists, but in no case will exceed 8 hours in any one day.
- 3. The days for which compensation will be paid will be the calendar days, excluding Saturdays, Sundays and legal holidays, during the existence of the delay, except that

when the rented equipment can be returned or used elsewhere on the project, then no payment will be made for utilities related delays.

Actual loss shall be understood to include no items of expense other than idle time of equipment and necessary payments for idle time of workers, and cost of extra moving of equipment.

T. UTILITIES AND SUBSURFACE STRUCTURES

Contractor shall protect from damage utility and other subsurface structures that are to remain in place, be installed, relocated or otherwise rearranged (as used herein, rearranged includes installation, relocation, alteration or removal).

The right is reserved to Omnitrans, or their authorized agents, to enter upon the site for the purpose of making those changes that are necessary for the rearrangement of their facilities or for making necessary connections or repairs to their properties. Contractor shall cooperate with forces engaged in this work and shall conduct operations in such a manner as to avoid any unnecessary delay or hindrance to the work being performed by the other forces. Wherever necessary, the work of Contractor shall be coordinated with the rearrangement of utility or other non-highway facilities, and Contractor shall make arrangements with the owner of those facilities for the coordination of the work.

Attention is directed to the possible existence of underground main or trunk line utilities not indicated on the plans or in the special provisions and to the possibility that underground main or trunk lines may be in a location different from that which is indicated on the plans or in the special provisions. Contractor shall ascertain the exact location of underground main or trunk lines whose presence is indicated on the plans or in the special provisions, the location of their service laterals or other appurtenances, and of existing service lateral or appurtenances of any other underground facilities which can be inferred from the presence of visible facilities such as buildings, meters and junction boxes prior to doing work that may damage any of the facilities or interfere with their service.

If Contractor cannot locate an underground utility whose presence is indicated on the plans or in the special provisions, the Contractor shall so notify Omnitrans in writing. If the utility for which the notice is given is in a substantially different location from that indicated on the plans or in the special provisions, the additional cost of locating the utility will be paid for as extra per Section E, Modifications in the Specifications and Scope of Work.

If Contractor discovers underground main, trunk lines or other structures and utilities not indicated on the plans or in the special provisions, Contractor shall immediately give Omnitrans and the Utility Company written notification of the existence of those utilities. Such utilities shall be located and protected from damage as directed by Omnitrans, and the cost of that work will be paid for as extra work per Section E, Modifications in the Specifications and Scope of Work. Contractor shall, if directed by Omnitrans repair any damage which may occur to the main or trunk lines. The cost of that repair work, not due to the failure of the Contractor to exercise reasonable care, will be paid for as extra work per Section E, Modifications in the Specifications and Scope of Work. Damage due to Contractor's failure to exercise reasonable care shall be repaired at the Contractor's cost and expense.

Where it is determined by Omnitrans that the rearrangement of an underground utility essential in order to accommodate the project work and the plans and specifications do not provide that

the utility is to be rearranged, Omnitrans will provide for the rearrangement of the utility by other forces or the rearrangement shall be performed by Contractor and will be paid for as extra work per Section E, Modifications in the Specifications and Scope of Work.

When ordered by Omnitrans in writing, Contractor shall rearrange any utility or other subsurface structures necessary to be rearranged as a part of the project work and that work will be paid for as extra work per Section E, Modifications in the Specifications and Scope of Work.

Should Contractor desire to have any rearrangement made in any utility facility, or other improvement, for the Contractor's convenience in order to facilitate the Contractor's construction operations, which rearrangement is in addition to, or different from, the rearrangements indicated on the plans or in the special provisions, the Contractor shall make whatever arrangements are necessary with the owners of the utility or other subsurface structure for the rearrangement and bear all expenses in connection therewith.

Contractor shall immediately notify Omnitrans of any delays to the Contractor's operations as a direct result of underground utilities or other structures which were not indicated on the plans or in the special provisions or were located in a position substantially different from that indicated on the plans or in the special provisions, (other than delays in connection with rearrangements made to facilitate the Contractor's construction operations or delays due to a strike or labor dispute). These delays will be considered utilities related delays within the meaning of Section S, Utilities Related Delays and compensation for the delay will be determined in conformance with the provisions in Section J, Labor Provisions. Contractor shall be entitled to no other compensation for that delay.

U. LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES (OFFSITE WORK ONLY)

Contractor is required to obtain permits prior to start of excavation by contacting the appropriate permitting agencies at least 15 calendar days in advance. For the Offsite work scan the construction site with electromagnetic or sonic equipment, and mark the surface of the ground where existing underground utilities are discovered. Verify the elevations of existing piping, utilities, and any type of underground obstruction not indicated or specified to be removed but indicated or discovered during scanning in locations to be traversed by piping, ducts, and other work to be installed. Verify elevations before installing new work closer than nearest manhole or other structure at which an adjustment in grade can be made. Perform potholing to confirm location of all the utilities along the construction alignment prior to start of the construction. The Contractor is responsible for all costs associated with these investigations including the cost of equipment, labor and materials required for any confined space entry.

V. UNFORESEEN HAZARDOUS OR REGULATED MATERIALS

All known hazardous or regulated materials are indicated in the contract documents. If material that is not indicated in the contract documents is encountered that may be dangerous to human health upon disturbance during construction operations, stop that portion of work and notify Omnitrans immediately. Intent is to identify materials such as PCB, lead paint, mercury, petroleum products, and friable and non-friable asbestos. The handling, containment and disposal of hazardous and containment material shall be in accordance with applicable State, Federal, and local environmental laws and regulations.

Contractor shall immediately notify Omnitrans of any delays to the Contractor's operations as a direct result of Unforeseen Hazardous and Regulated Materials These delays will be considered utilities related delays within the meaning of Section S, Utilities Related Delays and compensation for the delay will be determined in conformance with the provisions in Section J, Labor Provisions. Contractor shall be entitled to no other compensation for that delay.

W. CONTRACTOR'S OBLIGATIONS

1. Overview of Contractor's Responsibilities

1.1. General:

Contractor shall furnish the following on the Project, in accordance with Omnitrans-furnished Contract Documents and all other requirements set forth in the Contract:

- 1.1.1. <u>Construction Services</u> Contractor shall furnish labor, material and equipment necessary to construct the Project as designed in a timely manner, in accordance with all construction practices generally accepted as standards of the industry in the State of California, in a good and workmanlike manner, free from construction defects.
- 1.2. <u>Compliance with Requirements</u> Contractor shall perform all services set forth in Paragraph entitled General Guidelines above (in this section), provide all materials and undertake all efforts necessary or appropriate (excluding only those materials, services and efforts that the Contract Documents specify will be furnished by Omnitrans or other persons) to construct the Project in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the Schedule, all applicable Laws, all Governmental Approvals, the Construction Documents provided to Omnitrans, and all other applicable safety, environmental and other requirements, and other physical limits resulting from constraints affecting the Project, so as to achieve Substantial Completion and Final Acceptance and to perform all required tests by the deadlines specified herein, and otherwise to do everything required by and in accordance with the Contract Documents.
- 1.3. <u>Professional Qualifications</u> Contractor shall perform the Work under the supervision of persons licensed and certified to practice the applicable function/profession in the State of California, by personnel who are careful, skilled, experienced and competent in their respective trades or professions, who are professionally qualified to perform the Work in accordance with the Contract, and who shall assume professional responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of the Work prepared or checked by them.
- 1.4. <u>Governing Dimensions</u> Before commencing any construction work, Contractor shall verify all governing dimensions at the Worksite, examine all adjoining work and activities that may have an impact on Work, and ensure that the Contract Documents (and any other documents related to the Work) accurately depict all governing and adjoining dimensions.
- 1.5. <u>Scheduling</u> Contractor shall schedule and direct its work to provide an orderly work progression, achieve on-time completion of all Milestones set forth in the Schedule, and complete its work within the Contract Time. To accomplish this goal, Contractor shall furnish such employees, materials, facilities and Equipment, and work such hours (including extra

shifts, overtime operations, Sundays and holidays), as may be necessary.

- 1.6. <u>Means and Methods</u> Contractor shall be solely responsible for the performance of its Work in accordance with its own means, methods, sequences, and procedures, and for coordination of all portions of its Work in compliance with the Contract.
- 1.7. <u>Performance During Disputes</u> At all times during the term hereof, including during any Dispute, Contractor shall perform as directed by Omnitrans, and shall comply with all provisions of the Contract.
- 1.8. <u>Ascertaining Facts</u> Contractor shall be solely responsible for its failure to ascertain the facts and take the actions described, represented, warranted, and acknowledged in this Article, and no provision of this Contract shall be construed to relieve Contractor from responsibility for such failure.
- 1.9. <u>Subcontractors & Suppliers</u> Contractor shall be responsible for the acts and omissions of its Subcontractors and Suppliers. Contractor agrees to bind every subcontractor to the terms of this Agreement as far as such terms are applicable to subcontractor's portion of the Work
- 1.10. <u>Assistance to Omnitrans</u> Contractor shall provide such assistance as is reasonably requested by Omnitrans in dealing with any Government Entity, or in prosecuting and defending Environmental lawsuits in any and all matters relating to the Work. Such assistance may include providing information and reports regarding the Work, as well as executing declarations and attending meetings and hearings. In no event shall the Contractor be required to provide legal services.
- 1.11. <u>Cooperation</u> The Contractor will cooperate with Omnitrans and its Authorized Representative(s), in their review(s) and/or inspection(s) of any portion or phase of the Work, and other matters relating to the Work.
- 1.12. <u>Mitigation</u> The Contractor will Mitigate Delay in all circumstances, to the extent reasonably possible, including the re-sequencing, reallocating or redeploying of its forces to other work, as appropriate.

X. CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS

Contractor represents, warrants and covenants for the benefit of Omnitrans that:

- 1. <u>Status</u> If it is a corporation, limited partnership, general partnership, and/or joint venture, it is duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the Laws of its jurisdiction of formation, and has full power and authority to own and operate its business and properties and perform the Work within the State of California.
- 2. <u>Contractor & Subcontractor Qualifications</u> It and all of its Subcontractors are, and will be and will remain, fully experienced and properly qualified to perform the Work, and are, and throughout the term of this Contract shall remain, properly licensed, equipped, organized and financed to perform the Work hereunder and shall perform it in accordance with the Contract and in accordance with professional standards of skill, care, and diligence adhered to by firms recognized for their expertise, experience and knowledge in

performing Work of a similar nature.

- 3. <u>Control of Employees and Subcontractors</u> It shall maintain complete control of its employees, and its Subcontractors and Suppliers of all tiers, and shall not assign or transfer Work from itself or any listed Subcontractor or Supplier to itself or any other Subcontractor or Supplier without the written consent of Omnitrans.
- 4. <u>Review of Information and Inspection of Worksites</u> It has, in accordance with prudent and generally accepted engineering and construction practices:
 - a. Reviewed all of the information provided in the Contract (including reports provided by Omnitrans);
 - b. Inspected and evaluated the Worksite and surrounding locations to the extent the Contractor deems necessary or advisable for performing all portions/phases of the Work under the Contract. These inspections and evaluations include without limitation:
 - 1) The character, quality, and quantity of surface and subsurface materials or obstacles to be encountered insofar as this information is reasonably ascertainable from an inspection of the Worksite, including review of the Contract Documents provided by Omnitrans.
 - 2) Conditions bearing upon transportation, disposal, handling, and storage of materials, Goods, and Equipment;
 - 3) The availability of labor, water, electric power, and roads;
 - 4) Uncertainties of weather, or physical conditions at the site;
 - 5) The conformation and conditions of the ground;
 - 6) The character of Equipment and facilities needed preliminary to and during Work performance; and
 - 7) Conditions bearing upon security and protection of material, Goods, Equipment, and Work in progress.
- 5. Physical Requirements As a result of its inspection and examination of the Worksite, and other related and surrounding sites and conditions, it is familiar with and accepts the physical requirements of the Work.
- 6. Feasibility As a result of its review of all the information and its inspection and examination of the Worksite, it has evaluated the feasibility of performing the Contract within the Contract Time and for the Total Contract Price, and has reasonable grounds for believing and does believe that such performance, including achievement of Substantial Completion of the Project within the Contract Time, for the Total Contract Price is feasible and practicable.

- 7. Legal Proceedings There are no existing or threatened legal proceedings against Contractor that would have an adverse effect on its ability to perform its obligations under the Contract, its financial condition or its operations.
- 8. Governmental Approvals Based upon its review of the Contract Documents, it shall be able to obtain and keep in effect throughout the Contract Time all Governmental Approvals the Contractor is obligated to obtain in accordance with the Contract.
- 9. Difficulty and Cost of Work It has estimated the difficulty and cost of successfully performing the Work, and based upon that estimate has concluded that it can successfully perform the Work at the Total Contract Price.
- 10. Non-Debarment: In accordance with the provisions of the California Labor Code, Contractors or subcontractors may not perform work on a public works project with a subcontractor who is ineligible to perform work on a public project pursuant section 1777.1 or section 1777.7 of the California Labor Code. Any contract on a public works project entered into between a Contractor and a debarred subcontractor is void as a matter of law. A debarred subcontractor may not receive any public money for performing work as a subcontractor on a public works contract. Any public money that is paid to a debarred subcontractor by the Contractor for the Project shall be returned to Omnitrans. The Contractor shall be responsible for the payment of wages to workers of a debarred subcontractor who has been allowed to work on the Project.
- 11. Non-Discrimination: Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, rules, and regulations pertaining to non-discrimination, including but not limited to, Section 1735 of the California Labor Code and Section 12940 of the California Government Code. The Contractor, sub recipient or subcontractor shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, or sex in the performance of this contract. The Contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of Title 49 CFR (Code of Federal Regulations) part 26 in the award and administration of US DOT assisted contracts. Failure by the Contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this contract, which may result in the termination of this contract or such other remedy, as the recipient deems appropriate. Each subcontract signed by the bidder must include this assurance.
- 12. Conflicts of Interest/ Criminal Activities: A Contractor shall not permit any official, officer or employee of Omnitrans during his tenure, or for one year thereafter, to have any interest, direct or indirect, in this Contract or the proceeds thereof. However, this subsection shall not be construed to extend to this Contract if made with a corporation for its general benefit. Contractor, its employees, its Subcontractors or their employees shall not provide or offer to provide any campaign contribution to any member of Omnitrans in violation of California Government Code Section 84308. Further, to Contractor's knowledge, neither Contractor nor any of its employees nor its Subcontractors nor their employees has either promised or provided a campaign contribution of \$250 or more to any member of Omnitrans within 12 months prior to the award of this Contract or any subcontract of this Contract, unless an explicit statement to the contrary accompanies Contractor's bid. In no event shall gratuities (in the form of entertainment, gifts, or otherwise) be offered promised or given by Contractor, or any agent or representative of Contractor, to any official, officer or employee of

Omnitrans or its Authorized Representative. Contractor or his employees shall not enter into any Contract involving not be considered a conflict under Sections 1090 et seg. and 87100 et seq. of the Government Code of the State of California. In the event Contractor, or any of its officers, partners, principals or employees are convicted of any crime arising out of, or in connection with, the work to be done or payment to be made under this Contract, this Contract in whole or any part thereof may, at the discretion of Omnitrans, be terminated for default. Any violation of the terms of this Section by Contractor may be considered a default of the Contract by Omnitrans and may result in termination of same pursuant to applicable provisions of this Contract. In the event of such a termination, Omnitrans shall be entitled to pursue the same remedies against Contractor as it could pursue in the event of a breach of the Contract by Contractor. Rights and remedies provided to Omnitrans by this Section are in addition to any additional rights and remedies provided by law or under the Contract services or property with a person or business prohibited from transacting such business with Omnitrans pursuant to Sections 1090 et seq. and 87100 et seq. of the Government Code of the State of California. To Contractors knowledge, no Board member, officer, or employee of Omnitrans has any interest, whether contractual, non-contractual, financial or otherwise, in this transaction, or in the business of Contractor, unless an explicit statement to the contrary accompanies Contractor's bid. If any such transaction comes to the knowledge of Contractor at any time, a full and complete disclosure of such information shall be made to Omnitrans, even if such interest would

Y. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

- 1. Contractor, and its Subcontractors and Suppliers of any tier, are independent Contractors, and nothing in this Contract shall be construed to create the relationship of agent, servant, employee, partnership, joint venture, or other association as between Contractor and Omnitrans. The employees and agents of one party shall not be, or be construed to be, the employees or agents of the other party for any purpose whatsoever.
- 2. Contractor, as an independent Contractor, shall have responsibility for and control over the details and means for performing the Work, provided that Contractor is in compliance with the terms of this Contract. Anything in this Contract that may appear to give Omnitrans the right to direct Contractor as to the details of the performance of the Work, or to exercise a measure of control over Contractor, shall mean that Contractor shall follow the desires of Omnitrans only as to the intended results of the Work.

Z. COMPENSATION AND BENEFITS

Contractor shall be solely liable and responsible for providing all compensation and benefits to, or on behalf of, all persons performing Work pursuant to this Contract. Omnitrans will have no liability or responsibility for the payment of any salaries, wages, unemployment benefits, disability benefits, Federal, State, or local taxes, or other compensation, benefits, or taxes for any personnel provided by or on behalf of Contractor.

AA. WORKERS' COMPENSATION INSURANCE AND LIABILITY

If Contractor employs any person to perform work in connection with this Contract, Contractor shall procure and maintain at all times during the performance of such work Workers'

Compensation Insurance in conformance with the laws of the State of California and Federal laws where applicable. Employers' Liability Insurance shall not be less than \$1,000,000 per accident or disease. Prior to execution of this Contract by any such employee, Contractor shall deliver to Omnitrans a Certificate of Insurance that shall stipulate that 30 days' advance written notice of cancellation, non-renewal or reduction in limits shall be given to Omnitrans

BB. CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIVE, ORGANIZATION AND PERSONNEL

Before starting any Work, the Contractor shall submit for Engineer review and acceptance, an organization chart showing the proposed organization established by the Contractor for the performance of the Work, including:

- a. Lines of authority, responsibility, and communication;
- b. Office organizations, if any; and
- c. Names, titles, and functions of all the Contractor's key personnel.

CC. SUPERINTENDENT

- 1. The Contractor shall designate and keep a competent superintendent on the work at all times during its progress. The superintendent will be the Contractor's representative at the site and shall have authority to act on behalf of the Contractor. Qualifications and experience shall include:
 - a. Demonstrated ability to work safely and supervise individuals in safe work.
 - b. Previous experience supervising and planning work activities of foremen and crews.
 - c. Ability to read and understand construction plans.
- 2. The Superintendent must be:
 - a. Able to respond immediately to emergency or problem calls, 7 days a week, 24 hours a day.
- 3. The Superintendent shall manage and directly oversee the safety, condition, and quality of work that has been modified by the Contractor and shall direct corrective and maintenance measures to keep the site operating safely.

DD. CHANGE IN CONTRACTOR'S REPRESENTATIVE AND KEY PERSONNEL

The Contractor shall secure the prior written acceptance of Engineer for any change or reassignment of the Contractor's Representative(s) and other key personnel, submitting written documentation of the new individuals' qualifications. The Contractor shall not reassign key personnel to other projects until a satisfactory replacement has been approved by Engineer.

EE. REMOVAL OF CONTRACTOR PERSONNEL

Engineer may require the Contractor to remove any person assigned by the Contractor or by any Subcontractor or Supplier from the Project performing on the Project, if the Engineer considers such removal in the best interest of Omnitrans and the Work. The Engineers decision to require Contractor to remove any Contractor personnel, including Contractor's Representative, shall be final and binding on the Contractor. Upon such direction, Contractor shall remove the person(s) and resolve all employment or contractual issues at no cost or expense to, and shall fully indemnify, Omnitrans.

FF. TRENCHES

- a. <u>Trenches Five Feet or More in Depth</u>. The Contractor shall submit to Omnitrans, in advance of excavation, a detailed plan showing the design of shoring, bracing, sloping or other provisions to be made for worker protection from the hazard of caving ground during the excavation of any trench or trenches five feet or more in depth. If the plan varies from shoring system standards, the plan shall be prepared by a registered civil or structural engineer. The plan shall not be less effective than the shoring, bracing, sloping, or other provisions of the Construction Safety Orders, as defined in the California Code of Regulations.
- b. <u>Excavations Deeper than Four Feet</u>. If work under this Contract involves digging trenches or other excavation that extends deeper than four feet below the surface, Contractor shall promptly, and before the following conditions are disturbed, notify Omnitrans, in writing, of any:
 - 1) Material that the Contractor believes may be material that is hazardous waste, as defined in Section 25117 of the Health and Safety Code, that is required to be removed to a Class I, Class II, or Class III disposal site in accordance with provisions of existing law.
 - 2) Subsurface or latent physical conditions at the Site differing from those indicated.
 - 3) Unknown physical conditions at the Site of any unusual nature, different materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as inherent in work of the character provided for in the Contract.

Omnitrans shall promptly investigate the conditions, and if it finds that the conditions do so materially differ, or do involve hazardous waste, and cause a decrease or increase in Contractor's cost of, or the time required for, performance of any part of The Work, shall issue a change order under the procedures described in the Contract Documents.

In the event that a dispute arises between Omnitrans and the Contractor as to whether the conditions materially differ, or involve hazardous waste, or cause a decrease or increase in the Contractor's cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of The Work, the Contractor shall not be excused from any scheduled completion date provided for by the Contract, but shall proceed with all Work to be performed under the Contract. Contractor shall retain any and all rights provided either by contract or by law which pertain to the resolution of disputes and protests between the parties.

GG. SANITARY FACILITIES

Contractor shall provide sanitary temporary toilet buildings for the use of all workers. All toilets shall comply with local codes and ordinances. Toilets shall be kept supplied with toilet paper, hand sanitizers

and shall have workable door fasteners. Toilets shall be serviced no less than once weekly and shall be present in a quantity of not less than 1 per 20 workers as required by CAL-OSHA regulation. The toilets shall be maintained in a sanitary condition at all times. Use of toilet facilities in The Work under construction shall not be permitted. Any other Sanitary Facilities required by CAL-OSHA shall be the responsibility of the Contractor.

HH. AIR POLLUTION CONTROL

Contractor shall comply with all air pollution control rules, regulations, ordinances and statutes. All containers of paint, thinner, curing compound, solvent or liquid asphalt shall be labeled to indicate that the contents fully comply with the applicable material requirements.

II. CLEAN UP

Contractor at all times shall keep premises free from debris such as waste, rubbish, and excess materials and equipment. Contractor shall not store debris under, in, or about the premises. Upon completion of Work, Contractor shall clean the interior and exterior of the building or improvement including fixtures, equipment, walls, floors, ceilings, roofs, window sills and ledges, horizontal projections, and any areas where debris has collected so surfaces are free from foreign material or discoloration. Contractor shall clean and polish all glass, plumbing fixtures, and finish hardware and similar finish surfaces and equipment and Contractor shall also remove temporary fencing, barricades, planking and construction toilet and similar temporary facilities from Site. Contractor shall also clean all buildings, asphalt and concrete areas to the degree necessary to remove oil, grease, fuel, or other stains caused by Contractor operations or equipment.

Contractor shall fully clean up the Site at the completion of the Work. If the Contractor fails to immediately clean up at the completion of the Work, Omnitrans may do so and the cost of such clean up shall be charged back to the Contractor.

JJ. OCCUPANCY

Omnitrans reserves the right to occupy or utilize any portion of the Work at any time before completion, and such occupancy or use shall not constitute Acceptance of any part of Work covered by this Contract. This use shall not relieve the Contractor of its responsibilities under the Contract.

KK. STATE LICENSE BOARD NOTICE

Contractors are required by law to be licensed and regulated by the Contractors' State License Board which has jurisdiction to investigate complaints against Contractors if a complaint regarding a patent act or omission is filed within four (4) years of the date of the alleged violation. A complaint regarding a latent act or omission pertaining to structural defects must be filed within ten (10) years of the date of the alleged violation. Any questions concerning a Contractor may be referred to the Registrar, Contractors' State License Board, P.O. Box 26000, Sacramento, California 95826.

LL. WAIVER

No provision of these Contract Documents shall be deemed waived by either party unless such waiver shall be expressly specified in writing, regardless of the actions or inaction of the parties.

MM. MISCELLANEOUS

These Contract Documents shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of California. If any action is brought to interpret or enforce any term of these Contract Documents, the action shall be brought in a state or federal court situated in the County of San Bernardino, State of California.

NN. INTEGRATION

No oral order, objection, direction, claim or notice by any party or person shall affect or modify any of the terms or obligations contained in the IFB. The IFB represents the entire agreement of Omnitrans and the Contractor.

OO. SCHEDULE OF WORK

- 1. Normal hours of work shall be between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 6:00 p.m. Other hours, such as weekends and holidays, are permissible provided prior authorization has been granted by Omnitrans, Project Manager (s).
- 2. Contractor shall submit a Schedule of Work to Omnitrans' Project Manager as follows:
 - a. Submit within two (2) days after the Notice to Proceed date.
 - b. Show all major elements of the work and their duration and interrelationships; showing the proposed dates of commencement and completion.
 - c. All work must be completed by January 13, 2019.
 - d. Submit a conceptual schedule with bid.
- 3. If any activity falls behind schedule, Contractor shall regain the time lost at its own cost and expense.

PP. EXAMINATION OF WORK SITE

Bidder shall visit and become acquainted with the work site and the conditions thereof to fully understand the scope of work, difficulties and restrictions attending the execution of the work under contract.

QQ. OBSTRUCTIONS

The Contractor shall remove and dispose of all structures, or other obstructions of any character necessary to accommodate the work. Where such obstructions consist of improvements not required by law to be removed by Omnitrans, improvements shall be removed, maintained, and permanently replaced by the Contractor at his expense except as otherwise specifically provided in the Contract.

RR. QUALITY OF THE WORK

1. AUTHORITY OF THE FACILITIES MANAGER

The Facilities Manager, and/or his designee, shall decide any and all questions which may arise as to the interpretation of the plans and specifications and shall have authority to disapprove or reject materials and equipment furnished and work performed which, in his opinion, is not in accordance with the Contract.

2. SUPPLEMENTAL DRAWINGS

- a) The plans may be supplemented by such drawings as are necessary to better define the work. All such drawings delivered to the Contractor by the Planning Manager shall be deemed written instructions to the Contractor. If the Contractor believes that any supplemental drawings call for changes in the work for which the contract amount or time for completion should be changed, he shall not proceed with the changes in the work so called for and shall within seven days of the receipt of the supplemental drawings notify the Project Manager in writing of his estimate of the changes in the contract amount and time for completion he believes to be appropriate.
- b) No payment for changes in the work will be made and no change in the time for completion by reason of changes in the work will be made, unless the changes are covered by a written change order approved by Omnitrans in advance of the Contractor's proceeding with the changed work.

3. CONFORMITY WITH CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

- a) The work shall conform to the lines, grades, dimensions, tolerances, and material and equipment requirements shown on the plans or set forth in the specifications. Although measurement, sampling, and testing may be considered evidence as to such conformity, the Project Manager shall be the sole judge as to whether the work or materials deviate from the plans and specifications, and his decision as to any allowable deviations therefore shall be final.
- b) If specific lines, grades, and dimensions are not shown on plans, those furnished by the Project Manager shall govern.

4. MANUFACTURER'S INSTRUCTIONS

All materials and equipment shall be applied, installed, connected, erected, used, cleaned, and conditioned in accordance with the instructions of the applicable manufacturer, fabricator, supplier, or distributor, except as otherwise specifically provided in the Contract.

SS. SUPERVISION AND SUPERINTENDENCE

- 1. The Contractor shall supervise and direct the work competently and efficiently, devoting such attention thereto and applying such skills and expertise as may be necessary to perform the work in accordance with the Contract. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for the means, methods, techniques, sequences, and procedures of construction, but the Contractor shall not be solely responsible for the negligence of others in the design or selection of a specific means, method, technique, sequence, or procedure of construction which is indicated in and required by the Contract except as otherwise provided.
- 2. The Contractor shall be responsible to see that the completed work complies with the Contract.
- 3. The Contractor shall designate and keep a competent superintendent on the work at all times during its progress who shall not be replaced without written notice to the Project Manager. The superintendent will be the Contractor's representative at the site and shall have authority to act on behalf of the Contractor. All communications given to the

- superintendent shall be as binding as if given to the Contractor. During periods when the work is suspended, the Contractor shall make appropriate arrangements for any emergency work, which may be required.
- 4. Whenever the superintendent is not present on any particular part of the work where the Project Manager may desire to inform the Contractor relative to interpretation of the plans and specifications or to disapproval or rejection of materials or work performed, the Project Manager may so inform the foreman or other worker in charge of the particular part of the work in reference to which the information is given. Information so given shall be as binding as if given to the superintendent.
- 5. All equipment, materials, and supplies to be incorporated in the work shall be new, unless otherwise specified. All equipment, materials, and supplies shall be produced in a good and workmanlike manner. When the quality of a material, process, or article is not specifically set forth in the plans and specifications, the best available quality of the material, process, or article shall be provided.

TT. CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE WORK

- 1. In the event any hazardous materials, including but not limited to asbestos, are utilized in construction or hazardous materials are otherwise encountered during construction, the Contractor shall take all appropriate precautions to protect persons and property and shall comply with all applicable regulations for the installation and handling of such hazardous materials. The Contractor is solely responsible for protection of persons and property that could be affected by construction and the Contractor's handling of such materials.
- 2. Until the acceptance of the work, the Contractor shall have the responsible charge and care of the work and of the materials to be used therein (including materials for which he has received partial payment or materials which have been furnished by the Omnitrans) and shall bear the risk of injury, loss, or damage to any part thereof by the action of the elements or from any other cause, whether arising from the execution or from the non-execution of the work.
- 3. The Contractor shall rebuild, repair, restore, and make good all injuries, losses, or damages to any portion of the work or the materials occasioned by any cause before its completion and acceptance and shall bear the expense thereof. Where necessary to protect the work or materials from damage, the Contractor shall, at his expense, provide suitable drainage and erect such temporary structures as are necessary to protect the work or materials from damage. The suspension of the work or the granting of an extension of time from any cause whatever shall not relieve the Contractor of his responsibility for the work and materials as herein specified.
- 4. In an emergency affecting the safety of life or property, including adjoining property, the Contractor, without special instructions or authorizations, shall act at his discretion to prevent such threatened loss or injury.
- 5. Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions of this clause, the Contractor shall not be responsible for the cost of repairing or restoring damage to the work, which damage is determined to have been proximately caused by an Act of God, in excess of 5 percent of the contracted amount, provided that the work damaged is built in accordance with accepted and applicable building standards and the plans and specifications. For the

purposes of this paragraph, "Acts of God" shall include the following occurrence or conditions and effect: earthquakes in excess of a magnitude of 3.5 on the Richter scale.

UU. PRESERVATION OF PROPERTY

- 1. The Contractor shall exercise due care to avoid injury to existing improvements or facilities, utility facilities, adjacent property, and trees and shrubbery that are not to be removed.
- 2. All trees, shrubbery, and landscaping that are not to be removed, and pole lines, fences, signs, survey markers and monuments, buildings and structures, conduits, pipelines under or above ground, sewer and waterlines, all highway or street facilities, and any other improvements or facilities within or adjacent to the work shall be protected from injury or damage, and the Contractor shall provide and install suitable safeguards to protect such objects from injury or damage. If such objects are injured or damaged by reason of the Contractor's operation, they shall be replaced or restored at the Contractor's expense to a condition as good as when the Contractor entered upon the work or as good as required by the plans and specifications if any such objects are a part of the work being performed.
- 3. The fact that any such pipe or other underground facility is not shown on the plans shall not relieve the Contractor of his responsibility under this clause.
- 4. In addition to any requirements imposed by law, the Contractor shall shore up, brace, underpin, and protect as may be necessary, all foundations and other parts of all existing structures adjacent to and adjoining the site of the work which are in any way affected by the excavations or other operations connected with the performance of the work. Whenever any notice is required to be given by Omnitrans or the Contractor to any adjacent or adjoining landowner or other party before commencement of any work, such notice shall be given by the Contractor.
- 5. In an emergency affecting the safety of life or property, including adjoining property, the Contractor, without special instructions or authorizations, shall act at his discretion to prevent such threatened loss or injury.

VV. REGIONAL NOTIFICATION CENTER CONTACT

- 1. Contractor, except in an emergency, shall contact the appropriate regional notification center at least two working days prior to commencing any excavation if the excavation will be conducted in an area or in a private easement which is known, or reasonably should be known, to contain subsurface installations other than the underground facilities owned or operated by the Owner, and obtain an inquiry identification number from that notification center. No excavation shall be commenced and carried out by the Contractor unless such an inquiry identification number has been assigned to the Contractor or any subcontractor of the Contractor and Omnitrans has been given the identification number by the Contractor.
- 2. Emergency shall be defined as a sudden, unexpected occurrence, involving a clear and imminent danger, demanding immediate action to prevent or mitigate loss of, or damage to, life, health, property, or essential public services. Emergency includes such occurrences as fire, flood, earthquake, or other soil or geologic movements, as well as such occurrences as riot, accident, or sabotage (Government Code Section 4216).

3. Subsurface installation means any underground pipeline, conduit, duct, wire, or other structure operated or maintained in or across a public street or public right-of-way (Government Code Section 4216).

WW. SAFETY

- 1. In accordance with generally accepted construction practices, the Contractor shall be solely and completely responsible for conditions of the job site, including safety of all persons and property during performance of the work, and the Contractor shall fully comply with all state, federal and other laws, rules, regulations, and orders relating to safety of workers and all others.
- 2. The right of the Omnitrans to conduct construction review or observation of the Contractor's performance will not include review or observation of the adequacy of the Contractor's safety measures in, on, or near the construction site.
- 3. Omnitrans reserves the right to correct unsafe practices by the Contractor's employees, or to stop work until the Contractor makes the necessary corrections.

4. Smoking

Omnitrans uses designated areas for smoking. Smoking is not allowed at any time in the bus yard, on or in any buildings, or by the entrances to any buildings. Smoking by employees of the Contractor, or sub-Contractors, shall not create a hazardous condition for themselves, co-workers, or employees and property of Omnitrans.

5. Eye Protection

- a) Per Omnitrans eye protection policy, ANSI Z87 approved eye protection shall be worn by all persons while conducting business outside the boundaries of the established "green zone". The policy also requires that eye protection be utilized if hazardous work is being conducted within the "green zone". The Contractor shall ensure that all of its employees have been provided eye protection that meets the requirement.
- b) The Project Manager, or his designee, reserves the right to stop the Contractor's work in the event that a Contractor employee is in violation, and that work will remain stopped until the violation is corrected.

6. Vests

- a) Contractors and their employees working or performing services in outside work zones shall wear ANSI Class 2 Safety Vests.
- b) Safety Vests are not required while in designated, marked with painted green borders Safety Zones on Agency property or while on sidewalks, curbs, or raised pavement.

7. Hazardous Materials

- a) Contractor shall perform all work in a clean, safe and professional manner, causing no hazards to Omnitrans staff, facility the environment or Contractors service personnel.
- b) All hazardous waste shall be handled, collected, stored and disposed of in accordance with federal, state and local environmental compliance regulations.

c) Coordination of hazardous waste collection, storage, and disposal shall be made through the Omnitrans' Facility Manager, or his designee.

XX. WARRANTY OF TITLE

No materials, supplies, or equipment for the work under this contract shall be purchased subject to any chattel mortgage or under a conditional sale contract or other agreement by which an interest therein or any part thereof is retained by the seller or supplier. The Contractor warrants clear and good title to all materials, supplies, and equipment installed and incorporated in the work and agrees upon completion of all work to deliver the premises, together with all improvements and appurtenances constructed or placed thereon by him, to Omnitrans free from any claims, liens, encumbrances, or charges and further agrees that neither he nor any person, firm, or corporation furnishing any material or labor for any work covered by the contract shall have any right to a lien upon the premises or any improvement or appurtenance thereon, provided that this shall not preclude the Contractor from installing metering devices or other equipment of utility companies or of municipalities, the title of which is commonly retained by the utility company or the municipality. Nothing contained in this clause, however, shall defeat or impair the right of such persons furnishing materials or labor under any bond given by the Contractor for their protection or any right under any law permitting such persons to look to funds due the Contractor in the hands of Omnitrans. The provisions of this clause shall be inserted in all subcontracts and material contracts, and notices of its provision shall be given to all persons furnishing materials for the work when no formal contract is entered into for such materials.

YY. PROPERTY RIGHTS IN MATERIALS

- 1. Nothing in the contract shall be construed as vesting in the Contractor any right of property in the materials used after they have been attached or affixed to the work or the soil, or after payment has been made for materials delivered to the site of the work, or stored subject to or under the control of Omnitrans. All such materials shall become the property of Omnitrans upon being so attached or affixed or upon payment for materials delivered to the site of the work or stored subject to or under the control of Omnitrans.
- 2. Soil, stone, gravel, and other materials found at the site of the work and which conform to the plans and specifications for incorporation into the work may be used in the work. No other use shall be made of such materials except as may be otherwise described in the plans and specifications.

ZZ. MUTUAL RESPONSIBILITY OF CONTRACTORS

- 1. Nothing in the contract shall be interpreted as granting to the Contractor exclusive occupancy of the site of the project. The Contractor must ascertain to his own satisfaction the scope of the project and the nature of any other contracts that have been or may be awarded by Omnitrans in the construction of the project, to the end that the Contractor may perform this contract in the light of such other contracts, if any.
- 2. The Contractor shall not cause any unnecessary hindrance or delay to any other Contractor working on the project. If the performance of any contract for the project is likely to be interfered with by the simultaneous performance of some other contract or contracts, the Project Manager shall decide which Contractor shall cease work

temporarily and which Contractor shall continue or whether the work under the contracts can be coordinated so that the Contractors may proceed simultaneously. On all questions concerning conflicting interest of Contractors performing related work, the decision of the Project Manager shall be binding upon all Contractors concerned and Omnitrans, the Project Manager , and their Contractors shall not be responsible for any damages suffered or extra costs incurred by the Contractor resulting directly or indirectly from the award or performance or attempted performance of any other contract or contracts on the project or caused by a decision or omission of the Project Manager respecting the order of precedence in the performance of the contracts.

3. If through acts of neglect on the part of the Contractor, any other Contractor or any subcontractor shall suffer loss or damage on the work, the Contractor agrees to settle with such other Contractor or subcontractor by agreement or arbitration, if such other Contractor or subcontractor will so settle. If such other Contractor or subcontractor shall assert any claim against Omnitrans, the Project Manager, or their Contractors or any of their directors, officers, employees, or agents on account of any damage alleged to have been so sustained, Omnitrans shall notify the Contractor who shall hold harmless, indemnify, and defend Omnitrans, the Project Manager, and their Contractors, and each of their directors, officers, employees, and agents against any such claim, including all attorneys' fees and any other costs incurred by the indemnified parties relative to any such claim.

AAA. ASSIGNMENT OF ANTI-TRUST ACTIONS

- 1. In entering into a public works contract or subcontract to supply goods, services, or materials pursuant to a public works contract, the Contractor or subcontractor offers and agrees to assign to the awarding body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Section 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 [commencing with Section 16700] of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, services, or materials pursuant to the public works contract or the subcontract. This assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the awarding body tenders final payment to the Contractor, without further acknowledgment by the parties.
- 2. In submitting a bid, the bidder offers and agrees that if the bid is accepted, it will assign to the awarding body all rights, title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.C. Section 15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 [commencing with Section 16700] of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Business and Professions Code), arising from purchases of goods, materials, or services by the bidder for sale to the awarding body pursuant to the bid. Such assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the awarding body tenders final payment to the bidder.

BBB. EXISTING CONDITIONS

- 1. Drawings, if any, show existing conditions as supposed or believed. Drawings are based on the best evidence and information available, but no warranty is thereby expressed or implied that such conditions actually exist.
- 2. Omnitrans and any of its Contractors shall not be liable for any loss sustained by Contractor as a result of any variance between existing conditions as indicated on the plans and the actual conditions revealed during the progress of the work, provided that the Contractor should have reasonably known of or identified the existing condition.

CCC. WARRANTY OF SCOPE OF WORK AND LUMP SUM PRICING

- 1. Contractor represents and warrants that in setting the Lump Sum Pricing herein, that:
 - a) Contractor has done so after a thorough review of the description of work, plans, drawings and specifications;
 - b) Contractor deems that the aforementioned documents are sufficiently complete to enable Contractor to establish the Lump Sum Pricing set forth herein;
 - c) Contractor deems the contract price is adequate to provide all the necessary labor, service, equipment or material to complete the work as stated herein, according to industry standards and good workmanship, and within the contract time set forth herein.
- 2. Contractor acknowledges that except for adjustments in the Lump Sum Pricing by change orders, Contractor shall build the project in conformance to the contract documents and Omnitrans shall in no event be chargeable for more than the Lump Sum Pricing.

DDD. OBSERVATION OF WORK BY PROJECT MANAGER

- 1. The Project Manager, shall at all times have access to the work during construction and shall be furnished with every reasonable facility for ascertaining full knowledge respecting the progress, workmanship, and character of materials and equipment used and employed in the work.
- 2. Whenever the Contractor varies the normal period during which work or any portion of it is carried on each day, he shall give timely notice to the Project Manager so that the Project Manager may be present to observe the work in progress. If the Contractor fails to give such timely notice, any work done in the absence of the Project Manager will be subject to rejection.
- 3. The Contractor shall give timely notice to the Project Manager in advance of backfilling or otherwise covering any part of the work so that the Director of Maintenance may observe such part of the work before it is concealed.
- 4. The observation, if any, by the Project Manager of the work shall not relieve the Contractor of any of his obligations to fulfill the contract as prescribed. Defective work shall be made good, and materials and equipment furnished and work performed which is not in accordance with the Contract documents may be rejected notwithstanding the

fact that such materials, equipment, and work have been previously observed by the Project Manager or that payment therefore has been included in an estimate for payment.

EEE. REMOVAL OF DEFECTIVE AND UNAUTHORIZED WORK

- 1. Any work which does not conform to the requirements of the Contract documents shall be remedied or removed and replaced by the Contractor, together with any other work which may be displaced in so doing, and no compensation or extension of time will be allowed him for such removal, replacement, or remedial work. All nonconforming materials shall be immediately removed from the site.
- 2. Costs for re-testing and re-inspecting construction that replaces or is necessitated by work that failed to comply with the Contract Documents will be charged to Contractor and the Contract Price will be adjusted by Change Order.
- 3. Any work done beyond the lines and grades shown on the plans or established by the Project Manager or any changes in, additions to, or deductions from the work done without written authority will be considered as unauthorized and will not be paid for. Work so done may be ordered remedied, removed, or replaced at the Contractor's expense.
- 4. Upon failure on the part of the Contractor to comply promptly with any order of the Project Manager made under the provisions of this Contract, the Project Manager shall have authority to cause non-conforming materials, rejected work, or unauthorized work to be remedied, removed, or replaced at the Contractor's expense and to deduct the costs from any moneys due or to become due to the Contractor.

FFF. USE OF COMPLETED PORTIONS

- 1. When the Work or any portion of it is sufficiently complete to be utilized or placed into service, Omnitrans shall have the right upon written notification to the Contractor to utilize such portions of the work and to place the operable portions into service and to operate same.
- 2. Upon said notice and commencement of utilization or operation by Omnitrans, the Contractor shall be relieved of the duty of maintaining the portions so utilized or placed into operation; provided, however, that nothing in this article shall be construed as relieving the Contractor of the full responsibility for completing the work in its entirety, for making good defective work and materials, for protecting the work from damage, and for being responsible for damage and for the work as set forth in the Contract nor shall such action by Omnitrans be deemed completion and acceptance, and such action shall not relieve the Contractor, his sureties, or insurers of the provisions of Contractor's insurance, indemnity, and guarantees.

GGG. PROJECT COMPLETION

Project completion shall be defined as the date on which it is agreed by Omnitrans and its representatives, Contractor and permitting agencies that the project is accepted.

HHH. OBLIGATION TO CONTINUE WORK

Contractor, in the event of any dispute or controversy with Omnitrans over any matter whatsoever, shall not cause any delay or cessation in or of Contractor's work, but shall proceed under the contract with the performance of the work required thereby.

III. SUSPENSION OF WORK BY OMNITRANS

- 1. Omnitrans may, without cause, order Contractor in writing to suspend, delay, or interrupt the work in whole or in part for such period of time as Omnitrans may determine.
- 2. An adjustment shall be made for increases in the cost of performance of the contract, including profit on the increased cost of performance caused by suspension, delay or interruption.
- 3. No adjustment shall be made to the extent that:
 - d) Performance is, was or would have been so suspended, delayed or interrupted by another cause for which Contractor is responsible;
 - e) Force Majeure;
 - f) An equitable adjustment was made under another provision of this contract.
- 4. Any such petitions for adjustments are subject to audit, Federal Cost Principles, and any other provision of this contract.

JJJ. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS

- 1. Contractor to field verify all areas for appropriate square footages, linear feet, etc.
- 2. It is the Contractor's responsibility to coordinate the Work so as to minimize conflicts and optimize efficiency.
- 3. If and when it should be necessary for the Contractor to impact day-to-day operations of Omnitrans functions in order to pursue the Work, the Contractor shall furnish adequate notice to Omnitrans and coordinate the means and timing to avoid, minimize, or circumvent such impacts. Omnitrans reserves the right to assess and anticipate such impacts and the right to stop or postpone the Work until a mutually satisfactory time and means can be agreed upon.
- 4. The Contractor shall not stop or park any of his vehicles in such a manner to prevent the timely entrance and exit of Omnitrans coaches from the parking area. Our customers expect prompt service, and our service is scheduled on a tight timeline, and we will not accept any delays.
- 5. All Work is to comply with all applicable state and city code requirements.
- 6. The Contractor shall ensure that all of his operations strictly adhere to all Federal, State, and Local safety and environmental laws and regulations. Omnitrans, in accordance with the dual employer law, reserves the right to correct unsafe practices by the

Contractor's employees, or stop work until the Contractor makes the appropriate corrections.

- 7. The Contractor shall arrange for the disposal of all materials generated in the performance of this contract. No trash or waste of any kind that is generated by the Contractor shall be disposed of in any receptacle that is in place for the use of our employees. Any trash or waste that must be disposed of by Omnitrans due to the Contractor's failure to provide for proper disposal will result in a liquidated damage to the Contractor equal to the cost of disposal plus the labor costs associated with making those arrangements.
- 8. Contractor to repair any damage to irrigation or landscaping as a result of construction activity.

KKK. WARRANTY

- 1. Contractor warrants all Work under the Contract (which for purposes of this Section shall be deemed to include unauthorized work which has not been removed and any non-conforming materials incorporated into the Work) to be of good quality and free from any defective or faulty material and workmanship.
- 2. Contractor agrees that for a period of one year (or the period of time specified elsewhere in the Contract or in any guarantee or warranty provided by any manufacturer or supplier of equipment or materials incorporated into the Work, whichever is later) after the date of final acceptance, Contractor shall within ten (10) days after being notified in writing by Omnitrans of any defect in the Work or non-conformance of the Work to the Contract, commence and prosecute with due diligence all Work necessary to fulfill the terms of the warranty at its sole cost and expense.
- 3. Contractor shall act sooner as requested by Omnitrans in response to an emergency.
- 4. In addition, Contractor shall, at its sole cost and expense, repair and replace any portions of the Work (or work of other contractors) damaged by its defective Work or which becomes damaged in the course of repairing or replacing defective Work. For any Work so corrected, Contractor's obligation hereunder to correct defective Work shall be reinstated for an additional one year period, commencing with the date of acceptance of such corrected Work. Contractor shall perform such tests as Omnitrans may require to verify that any corrective actions, including, without limitation, redesign, repairs, and replacements comply with the requirements of the Contract. All costs associated with such corrective actions and testing, including the removal, replacement, and reinstitution of equipment and materials necessary to gain access, shall be the sole responsibility of Contractor.
- 5. All warranties and guarantees of subcontractors, suppliers and manufacturers with respect to any portion of the Work, whether express or implied, are deemed to be obtained by Contractor for the benefit of Omnitrans, regardless of whether or not such warranties and guarantees have been transferred or assigned to Omnitrans by separate agreement and Contractor agrees to enforce such warranties and guarantees, if necessary, on behalf of Omnitrans.

6. In the event that Contractor fails to perform its obligations under this Section, or under any other warranty or guaranty under this Contract, to the reasonable satisfaction of Omnitrans, Omnitrans shall have the right to correct and replace any defective or non-conforming Work and any work damaged by such work or the replacement or correction thereof at Contractor's sole expense. Contractor shall be obligated to fully reimburse Omnitrans for any expenses incurred hereunder upon demand.

End of General Provisions

ATTACHMENT F



POLICY 707 PAGE 1 OF 6

SUBJECT

PROHIBITING WEAPONS IN THE WORKPLACE

APPROVED BY OMNITRANS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DATE: June 7, 2017

I. Purpose

It is the policy of Omnitrans to maintain a work environment that is safe for all persons, including the community, and conducive to attaining high work standards. To achieve these objectives, the Agency prohibits the possession of firearms and weapons in the work place, regardless of any license or permit that an individual may have which otherwise authorizes the individual to carry firearms or weapons.

It is illegal and a criminal violation to possess weapons in public buildings (California Penal Code 171b and 171.7).

II. Scope

This policy applies to all Omnitrans employees, including but not limited to staffing agency workers and contractors working for or with the Agency at any time, regardless of whether the Agency is the actual employer.

Possession of firearms and weapons is prohibited at all Omnitrans' offices, parking lots, agency vehicles and job sites, and in all Agency vehicles.

The following person/s are exempt from this policy as stated: a guard of a contract carrier operating an armored vehicle, and any law enforcement officer who is carrying out official duties engaged in protecting and preserving property or life within the scope of his or her employment.

Omnitrans will strictly enforce this policy. Violation of this policy will result in immediate disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

III. Procedure

A. COMMUNICATION OF POLICY

- (a) Each employee of the Agency shall receive a copy of this policy at the time of his/her hire and shall sign a copy of the acknowledgment. Employees who were employed before the effective date of this policy shall also receive a copy of this policy and shall sign a copy of the acknowledgment. A copy of the signed acknowledgment and of all new and revised policies throughout the employee's employment shall be maintained in each employee's personnel file.
- (b) A copy of this policy shall be attached to each contractor's contract, and shall become a part of its contract. The contractor shall be responsible for communicating this policy to its employees and any subcontractors to which the contractor sublets any portion of its contract.



POLICY 707 PAGE 2 OF 6

SUBJECT

PROHIBITING WEAPONS IN THE WORKPLACE

APPROVED BY OMNITRANS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DATE: June 7, 2017

B. PROHIBITED CONDUCT

- (a) The transportation of firearms or weapons in Agency vehicles is prohibited. This includes but is not limited to:
 - (1) to and from work,
 - (2) when conducting Agency business,
 - (3) at all times in Agency-owned or leased vehicles.
- (b) The possession or carrying of permitted and non-permitted firearms or weapons while at Agency buildings, parking lots, sponsored events, and job sites.
- (c) Exception: Power actuated tools which are manufactured for the use of fastening building materials and sanctioned tools for the purpose of performing Agency job duties are not subject to this policy.

C. SEARCH

- (a) Omnitrans reserves the right to conduct reasonable, unannounced searches of Agency premises and personal searches of employees and others while entering, on, or leaving Agency premises, including, but not limited to, personal effects, vehicles, lockers, desks, tool boxes, clothing, meal containers, and baggage. Searches will be conducted when the Agency has a reasonable suspicion to believe that a particular employee may be in possession of a weapon or firearm.
- (b) "Reasonable suspicion" is defined as a suspicion that is based on specific personal observations such as an employee's manner, disposition, behavior, speech, information provided to management by an employee, by law enforcement officials, by a security service, or by other persons believed to be reliable, or a suspicion that is based on other surrounding circumstances.
- (c) Individuals refusing to allow an inspection will not be detained or forced to submit to the inspection. Refusal violates Agency policy and constitutes an act of insubordination constituting disciplinary action, up to and including separation of the employment relationship. Non-employees who refuse to allow an inspection will not be permitted on Agency premises and will be required to immediately leave the premises. Employees will be relieved of all duties while pending investigation.

D. <u>DISCIPLINE</u>

(a) Violations of any portion of this policy will subject the employee to discipline,



POLICY 707 PAGE 3 OF 6

SUBJECT

PROHIBITING WEAPONS IN THE WORKPLACE

APPROVED BY OMNITRANS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DATE: June 7, 2017

up to and including separation of employment.

(b) Violations by a contractor's employee or subcontractor of any portion of this policy may constitute a breach of contract and regardless will mandate the immediate removal of the contractor's employee from Agency premises, prohibition against the individual accessing Agency premises in the future, and may also constitute a breach of contract.

E. REPORT OF VIOLATIONS

1. Employee Violations

Employees are required to report violations of this policy without regard to the relationship between the individual who initiates the prohibited behavior and the individual reporting it. An employee who believes that another employee may be in violation of this policy must report the alleged violation to the employee's manager or supervisor, the department director, security, or the appropriate departmental Human Resources representative.

Departments are responsible for implementing this policy. The Agency will promptly investigate allegations of violations of this policy.

Omnitrans reserves the right to authorize searches for prohibited weapons on its property when a violation is reported or when probable cause or reasonable suspicion is present consistent with law.

Employees should be aware that there is no reasonable expectation of privacy with respect to weapons in the workplace. The Agency's right to conduct searches includes, but is not limited to, such areas and items as lockers, desks, workstations, offices, purses, briefcases, bags, toolboxes, and lunch bags.

Searches of the employee's work area and belongings, as described above, may be conducted by the Security & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator, or designee. Searches of all types, including surrounding agency property, personal property and the employee may be conducted by law enforcement in accordance with law should reasonable suspicion be present. Any weapon found in violation of this policy may be confiscated. Refusal to permit a search may result in discipline, up to and including separation.

2. Visitor Violations

Visitors are not allowed to carry a weapon on the premises. Any visitor carrying a weapon into a posted no-carry agency facility is creating an elevated risk to security and safety that warrants a response leading to compliance with the law. If the visitor



POLICY 707 PAGE 4 OF 6

SUBJECT

PROHIBITING WEAPONS IN THE WORKPLACE

APPROVED BY OMNITRANS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DATE: June 7, 2017

poses an immediate risk to security or safety, law enforcement shall be notified immediately by calling 9-911. The visitor shall be considered an immediate risk to safety and security if he/she is acting in an aggressive, belligerent, confrontational, suspicious or in an otherwise questionable manner while carrying a weapon.

F. FALSE REPORTS

Employees making intentionally false and malicious complaints of weapons in the workplace will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including separation and/or will be reported to the proper authorities as appropriate.

G. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Employees are responsible for understanding and complying with the Policy Prohibiting Weapons in the Workplace.

Whenever there is a question as to whether an instrument, article or substance is considered a weapon in violation of this policy, it is the employee's responsibility to seek clarification. Employees seeking clarification should direct their questions to the agency's Security & Emergency Preparedness Coordinator at 909-379-7117 prior to bringing the item(s) to Omnitrans work sites and events, as well as agency-owned or leased facilities or vehicles.

H. SAFETY FIRST

In applying this policy, no employee shall take any action that will risk his or her own safety or the safety of other individuals. No attempt should ever be made by an employee to restrain or forcibly evict an armed person from agency premises.

An individual's continued non-compliance after being properly informed of the law (California Penal Code 171 (b)) will result in notification to law enforcement and discipline, up to and including separation of employment. Employees should notify security immediately.

An employee who feels an imminent danger to his or her own safety or the safety or security of others, should avoid any interaction with the individual. Immediately contact law enforcement by calling 9-911 and security at 909-379-7117.

I. ANTI-RETALIATION PROVISION

Omnitrans strictly prohibits any retaliation against an employee who has reported a possible breach of policy. If an employee feels that he or she has been subjected to retaliation in violation of this policy, the employee must immediately report it to his or her supervisor or other designated Human Resources representative.



POLICY 707 PAGE 5 OF 6

SUBJECT

PROHIBITING WEAPONS IN THE WORKPLACE

APPROVED BY OMNITRANS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DATE: June 7, 2017

J. DEFINITIONS

- 1. **Firearm or weapon includes, but is not limited to:** A weapon, a pistol or rifle, whether loaded or unloaded, capable of firing a projectile and using an explosive as a propellant.
 - A firearm, whether loaded or unloaded, from which a shot may be discharged including but not limited to handguns, pistols, revolvers, shotguns, rifles, and bb guns;
 - A gun that can discharge a shot or a projectile by means of an explosive or gas, or compressed air;
 - A device designed to be used as a weapon, from which can be expelled a
 projectile by the force of any explosion or force of combustion;
 - Any weapon (including a starter gun) which will or is designed to or may readily be converted to expel a projectile by the action of an explosive;
 - Any destructive device;
 - Any device designed as a weapon and capable of producing great bodily harm, including but not limited to, stun guns, stun batons;
 - An electric weapon such as a taser gun;
 - Any combustible or flammable liquid, or other substance, device, or instrumentality that, in a manner it is used or intended to be used, is calculated or likely to produce death or great bodily harm, or any fire that is used to produce death or great bodily harm;
 - Any knife that is carried with intention or calculation to produce death or great bodily harm having a blade length in excess of four (4) inches, the blade of which is fixed or is capable of being fixed in an unguarded position by the use of one or two hands. Switchblades are specifically prohibited. (Knives intended to be used as eating utensils, and stored or maintained in office kitchens or lunchrooms do not represent a violation of this policy.)
- 2. **Office**: All permanent facilities, all mobile facilities, all leased facilities, and any facility designated as an office by the agency.
- 3. **Parking lot**: All lots at permanent facility, park and rides, lots at project sites, any lot that the agency designates as a parking lot that is not at a permanent facility or project site.
- 4. Agency vehicle: All agency-owned buses/vehicles, all agency-leased buses/vehicles, all agency-rental buses/vehicles, and all personal vehicles for which the owner receives a vehicle allowance, all personal vehicles where the owner receives reimbursement for mileage.



POLICY 707 PAGE 6 OF 6

SUBJECT

PROHIBITING WEAPONS IN THE WORKPLACE

APPROVED BY OMNITRANS BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DATE: June 7, 2017

- 5. **Search**: To examine in order to find something concealed.
- 6. **Job sites**: Any and all locations where the agency conducts business.

SIGNS

- 1. At each entrance to buildings, parking lots, and project sites, a sign shall be posted in a location that is conspicuous to all who could enter a building, parking lot, or project site.
- 2. Signs shall have wording or pictogram that prohibits firearms, weapons and give notice of video surveillance. Signs shall be vandalism resistant and of the quality that they will not fade due to the elements.